*REVISED

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
CITY OF PHOENIX
ETHICS COMMISSION

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS COMMISSION and to the general public, that the ETHICS COMMISSION will
hold a Hybrid meeting open to the public on February 19, 2026, at 3:00 p.m.

OPTIONS TO ACCESS THE MEETING

- Call-in to listen to the live meeting: Dial 1-415-655-0001, Enter meeting access
code 2339 267 3270 and press # again when prompted for the attendee ID.

- Observe the live meeting virtually, by clicking on the following link and registering
to join the meeting online:
https://cityofphoenix.webex.com/weblink/register/r3609c5c6e6¢15be689007 caed4ff0e70

- If you would like to attend in person at Phoenix City Hall, 12th Floor, Central
Conference Room 200 W. Washington St., Phoenix, Arizona, please RSVP to
ethics.commission@phoenix.qgov.

- Register to speak and/or submit a comment on an agenda item:
= Contact: Rebecca McCarthy
= At (602) 262-7526
= Email: ethics.commission@phoenix.gov
= By: 11:00 a.m. on February 19, 2026

Public Comment: If you wish to provide a written comment or speak at the meeting
virtually or by phone, please submit a request to ethics.commission@phoenix.gov or
call (602) 262-7526 no later than 11:00 a.m. on Thursday, February 19, 2026. The email
or phone call should include your first and last name, email address, the item number(s)
and whether you would like your comment read into the record or if you wish to speak.

Please take notice that in order to preserve the integrity of the investigation
process and pursuant to the City Code, all information related to an Ethics Inquiry
is required to remain confidential until there is final action by the Commission;
therefore, the Commission will not take public comment on Agenda items
regarding pending ethics inquiries. Written comments may be submitted at any
time to the Commission inbox at ethics.commission@phoenix.gov.

Additional information can be found at https://www.phoenix.qgov/ethics.



https://cityofphoenix.webex.com/weblink/register/r3609c5c6e6c15be689007caed4ff0e70
mailto:ethics.commission@phoenix.gov
mailto:ethics.commission@phoenix.gov
mailto:ethics.commission@phoenix.gov
https://www.phoenix.gov/ethics
Rebecca McCarthy
Highlight


Executive Session

The Ethics Commission may vote to convene into executive session (which will not be
open to the public) pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(2) or (A)(3) for discussion
or consideration of any items on the agenda, at any time during the meeting. The Ethics
Commission must take action on an agenda item in open session. ltems on the agenda
may be discussed out of order unless they have been specifically noted to be set for a
certain time.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. |Call to Order/Roll Call Chair
2. |Commission Attorney Explains Public Comment Commission
Attorney

3. *Revised to correct Commission members listed as present and absent |{Chair
Approval of Meeting Minutes from January 15, 2026
Discussion and Possible Action

4. |Staff Update Staff
Information and Discussion

5. |Discussion of Inquiry Review Process and Citizen Petition Chair
Discussion and Possible Action

Attachment A: Report of the Phoenix Ethics Review Ad Hoc
Task Force

Attachment B: Principles for Designing an Independent Ethics
Commission, Campaign Legal Center

6. |Review of Current Complaints Chair
Discussion and Possible Action

1. EC-25-01

2. EC-25-06

3. EC-25-18
7. |Call to Public Chair
8. |Future Agenda Iltems and Meeting Dates Chair
9. |Adjournment Chair

For further information, please contact Rebecca McCarthy at (602) 262-7526 or via
electronic mail at ethics.commission@phoenix.gov. For reasonable accommodation or
translation services, please contact Rebecca McCarthy at (602) 262-7526 or TTY: 7-1-1
as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

2/18/2026



mailto:ethics.commission@phoenix.gov
Rebecca McCarthy
Highlight


AGENDA ITEM 3

CITY OF PHOENIX
ETHICS COMMISSION
Summary Minutes
January 15, 2026

Phoenix City Hall

12t Floor, Central Conference Room
200 W Washington St.

Phoenix, AZ 85003

Commission Members Present Commission Members Absent
Patricia Sallen, Chair Cheryl Pietkiewicz

Peter Schirripa, Vice Chair

Ann Hart

Jose Samuel (Sam) Leyvas |l

1. Call to Order/Roll Call
Chairwoman Patricia Sallen called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m. with Vice
Chairman Peter Schirripa and Commissioners Ann Hart present. Commissioner
Sam Leyvas attended virtually. Commissioner Cheryl Pietkiewicz did not attend.

Chairwoman Patricia Sallen thanked the former Chairman, Commissioner
Leyvas, for his work and leadership.

Commissioner Leyvas expressed gratitude for the Commission’s and staffs’
efforts over the last two years and expressed confidence in the new leadership.

2. Commission Attorney Explains Public Comment
Elizabeth Nillen, Commission Attorney, stated members of the public may speak
for up to two minutes on agenda items, aside from agenda items on the pending
complaints, and gave direction on appropriate decorum when providing
comments.

3. Approval of Meeting Minutes from December 18, 2025
Commissioner Hart made a motion to approve the minutes of the December 18,
2025, Ethics Commission Meeting. Vice Chairman Schirripa seconded the
motion, which passed unanimously 4-0.

4. Staff Update
Rebecca McCarthy, Special Projects Administrator, informed the Commission

that the Ethics Handbook for the Board and Commissions has been revised and
posted to the Ethics Website.
Vice Chairman Schirripa asked if the previous version would be available online.

Ms. McCarthy responded that the previous version could be added.



Vice Chairman Schirripa opened the discussion up to the Commission. He noted
that transparency about the revisions would be fair.

Chairwoman Sallen agreed and noted it would be important to note the
substantive or high-level changes on the website.

Deputy City Manager David Mathews commented that staff can provide a draft to
the Commission.

Discussion of Inquiry Review Process and Citizen Petition

Chairwoman Sallen summarized the agenda item and noted the action by the
Council was to refer the Citizen Petition to the Commission for further action as
part of the Commission’s planned review of the procedures and other governing
policies.

Deputy City Manager Mathews added that any recommendations made by the
Commission would be sent to the City Manager, who would then make the
recommendation to City Council to be voted upon.

Chairwoman Sallen asked Deputy City Manager Mathews about the best course
of action regarding these recommendations.

Deputy City Manager Mathews stated that staff would take any recommendations
provided by the Commission and draft them as a formal recommendation from
the Commission to the City Manager’s Office.

Commissioner Leyvas asked staff to verify in the procedures if any
recommendations would need to go back to the City Manager or if this
requirement was only for the initial Rules of Procedure.

Deputy City Manager Mathews referenced Rules of Procedure Section Il E.
stating the Commission may refer changes to the Rules of Procedures to the City
Manager and must be approved by an affirmative vote of seven
Councilmembers.

Commissioner Leyvas asked if that dynamic changes since the Council referred
the Citizen Petition directly to the Commission.

Deputy City Manager Mathews responded no. He noted that since the
Commission was already planning to review the procedures, the Council referred
the Citizen Petition to the Commission to be included in this planned discussion
and review. He stated the process per the Rules of Procedure still applies.

Commissioner Leyvas thanked staff for clarifying.



Chairwoman Sallen suggested the Commission begin with a discussion
regarding topics requiring attention and offer recommendations to the City
Manager’s Office for potential changes to language or other provisions. She
mentioned having a brief list of topics to discuss, including the initiation of the
procedures for inquiries, as referenced in the Citizen Petition. She requested
clarification on whether the inquiry must be hand-delivered to the City Clerk’s
Office, as stated in the Citizen Petition.

Deputy City Manager Mathews clarified the City Clerk would require the original
wet signature to comply since it is a notarized document. He stated the inquiry
could be accepted via email originally and then could be followed up by either
hand delivering or mailing the original signed copy.

Chairwoman Sallen stated she would want to follow-up on this topic. She
requested to review the process for withdrawing a complaint, including when a
request can be made. She stated a discussion is also needed on the issue of
confidentiality and how the Commission can fulfill their responsibilities while
balancing confidentiality with transparency. She noted the Commission needs to
consider how the rules might be changed to achieve this balance, including how
this would be presented to the Council.

Vice Chairman Schirripa recommended a discussion of the financial penalties.

Deputy City Manager Mathews clarified the reference about financial penalties in
the Citizen Petition. He noted that according to the Rules of Procedure and City
Code, the Commission can recommend a fine for submitting a frivolous or
fictitious complaint.

Commissioner Leyvas noted the Commission previously discussed reviewing the
defined procedures and how the Commission operationalizes the processes
overall. He referenced editing the flow chart process. He asked about the former
ethics Task Force recommendations and noted they could be beneficial to review
as part of this conversation. He asked if staff could provide these documents for
their review.

Chairwoman Sallen added that the ethics policy does not discuss the
appearance of impropriety and recommended adding this to the list of discussion
topics.

Commissioner Leyvas referenced this review process could take longer than a
few meetings and could also include public input and discussions.

Chairwoman Sallen asked if the Commission would recommend any other
discussion topics to add to the list to further review and investigate. She asked
staff about recommended next steps.



Deputy City Manager Mathews suggested staff find and share any reports from
the former ethics Task Force with the Commission. He advised the Commission
to review all topics and submit one comprehensive list of recommendations to the
City Manager and Council, rather than providing updates individually.

Chairwoman Sallen asked staff to find the final report from the former ethics Task
Force and include it on the next meeting agenda for further discussion. She
recommended the Commission review the former ethics Task Force’s
recommendations to identify other items to adopt as part of this process.

Chairwoman Sallen introduced Jeremy Thacker for public comment and stated
she looked forward to his comments on the topic.

Mr. Thacker mentioned he had previously submitted best practices to the
Commission for their review and consideration during their first meetings. He
inquired whether the complaints mentioned in the City Council Meetings and
referenced in the Citizen Petition would also remain confidential and on what
basis. He asked how decisions were made about what information remains
confidential.

Chairwoman Sallen asked if the Commission has any active inquiries that have
been discussed at City Council Meetings.

Commission Attorney Nillen noted he may be referring to the action taken by City
Council recently that was relating to the 21 inquiries. She stated she was not
sure if the names were discussed during the meeting, as she was not in
attendance.

Deputy City Manager Mathews noted he did not recall the names of individuals
being discussed at the meeting. He noted that complaints are referenced in the
Citizen Petition but specifics about the inquiries are not provided.

Chairwoman Sallen stated the Commission would not be making decisions on
recommendations today. She asked staff about the documents Mr. Thacker
mentioned.

Ms. McCarthy stated she will share the documents mentioned by Mr. Thacker.
Chairwoman Sallen thanked Mr. Thacker for his comments.

Review of Current Complaints

Chairwoman Sallen noted there are seven active inquiries left of the 21 submitted

in November. She noted EC-25-01 and EC-25-06 are under investigation and
asked the Commission Attorney for an update.




Commission Attorney Nillen stated the Commission’s procedures allow the
Respondent 20 days to provide a response; as indicated in the letter sent on
December 31, the Respondent has until January 20 to provide a response. She
noted the investigation does not begin until a response has been provided or the
date has passed. She stated there would be a more substantive update during
the February meeting.

Chairwoman Sallen noted there are four inquiries that the Complainants have
requested to withdraw. Regarding EC-25-08, EC-25-09, and EC-25-10, she
stated the Complainant has requested these inquiries to be withdrawn. She
stated the procedures do not clarify a process on how to handle inquiries that
have been requested to be withdrawn by the Complainant. She stated the
Commission needs to decide how to process this request. She asked
Commission Attorney Nillen if there is anything in the procedures that may
address or impact this process.

Commission Attorney Nillen confirmed there is not a documented process for
how to handle complaints that have been withdrawn.

Commissioner Leyvas noted that even when a complaint is withdrawn, he may
have additional questions beyond the information provided in the initial inquiry
and would need more details from an investigation. If the Commission is
considering a frivolous filing, he stated he would factor in the Complainant's
request to withdraw but may request to proceed with our investigation. He stated
the Commission should consider the withdrawal of the inquiry as part of the
overall situation rather than automatically halting all actions. He stated he is
willing to motion for an executive session to obtain legal guidance on this matter.

Chairwoman Sallen confirmed the Commission did not take action on these items
during the last meeting, and they are not currently under investigation.

Commissioner Leyvas clarified that this distinction changes his thoughts. He
noted his previous philosophy was based on the understanding that the
Commission had already voted to investigate. He recommended that if the
inquiry is withdrawn before consideration by the Commission, the inquiry should
be dismissed and closed. He recommended that, if the Commission has voted to
investigate, they should continue their investigation until they are ready to vote.

Chairwoman Sallen agreed that once the Commission has voted to investigate
the inquiry, there are additional considerations. She reiterated that no action had
been taken by the Commission on EC-25-08, EC-25-09, and EC-25-10.

Commissioner Leyvas asked for clarification on the language if he were to make
a motion to close the matter.



Commission Attorney Nillen recommended language to accept the Complainant’s
request to withdraw and vote to close the matter.

Commissioner Leyvas motioned to accept the Complainant’s request to withdraw
EC-25-08, EC-25-09, and EC-25-10 and close the matters. Vice Chairman
Schirripa seconded the motion.

Chairwoman Sallen opened the floor to discussion.

Vice Chairman Schirripa requested to add the following topic to the list discussed
in Agenda Item 5: add verbiage on how to properly submit a withdraw request.

Commissioner Leyvas asked if the Commission closes the matter, does this
action still permit the Commission to recommend sanctions to the City Council for
frivolous filings.

Commission Attorney Nillen asked for time to review.

Commissioner Hart expressed her desire to understand the reasons behind their
withdrawal. She remarked that it is challenging to determine what qualifies as
frivolous and suggested that it would be beneficial for the Commission to
understand their reasons. She believes this approach would help the
Commission gain clarity and take these considerations into account.

Chairwoman Sallen asked if Commissioner Hart envisions this to be a
requirement in the withdrawal process.

Commissioner Hart responded yes and believes it will provide the Complainant
ownership of the withdrawal.

Commissioner Leyvas asked if this should be added to the list of future
discussion topics.

Commissioner Hart responded yes.
Commissioner Leyvas clarified that he is not recommending these complaints be
deemed frivolous, but he believes this should be addressed as a separate

consideration.

Commission Attorney Nillen stated she needs to review the current procedures
further prior to giving a response to the Commission on this topic.

Chairwoman Sallen asked Commissioner Leyvas to repeat his motion.

Commissioner Leyvas repeated his motion to accept the Complainant’s request
to withdraw EC-25-08, EC-25-09, and EC-25-10 and close the matters.



Vice Chairman Schirripa agreed that this was the motion he seconded.

Chairwoman Sallen called for the roll call vote. The motion passed 4-0 by the
following roll call vote:

Yes: 4 — Chairwoman Sallen, Vice Chairman Schirripa,
Commissioner Leyvas, and Commissioner Hart

No: 0

EC-25-08, EC-25-09, and EC-25-10 are closed.

Chairwoman Sallen noted the Commission voted to investigate EC-25-18 during

the December meeting, and the Complainant requested to withdraw the inquiry.

She opened the floor for discussion.

Commissioner Leyvas stated he is interested in the results of the investigation.
He asked for clarification if only the names of the inquiries are confidential.

Commission Attorney Nillen stated the entire inquiry, including the facts, are to
remain confidential.

Chairwoman Sallen clarified he could discuss how he wants to review the
answers.

Commissioner Leyvas began to discuss the inquiry and a potential conflict of
interest.

Commission Attorney Nillen recommended to stop his discussion.

Chairwoman Sallen clarified and stated he could discuss how to address the
issues in a complaint, without itemizing them.

Commissioner Leyvas made a motion to convene in Executive Session to
discuss inquiries listed under Agenda ltem 6 and to receive legal advice,
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Section 38-431.03, as noticed on the
agenda. Vice Chairman Schirripa seconded the motion, which passed
unanimously 4-0.

The Commission entered Executive Session at 3:44 p.m.

The Commission returned from Executive Session at 4:23 p.m.

Chairwoman Sallen asked if there was a motion on EC-25-18.

There was no motion. The Commission did not take action on EC-25-18.



Chairwoman Sallen asked if there was a motion on EC-25-12.

Commissioner Leyvas motioned to dismiss EC-25-12 because the complaint is
facially insufficient to pursue. Vice Chairman Schirripa seconded the motion.

Chairwoman Sallen called for the roll call vote. The motion passed 4-0 by the
following roll call vote:

Yes: 4 — Chairwoman Sallen, Vice Chairman Schirripa,
Commissioner Leyvas, and Commissioner Hart
No: 0

EC-25-12 was dismissed.

Call to Public

Chairwoman Sallen stated to preserve the integrity of the investigation process
and pursuant to the City Code, all information related to an ethics inquiry is
required to remain confidential until there is final action by the Commission;
therefore, the Commission will not take public comment on agenda items
regarding pending ethics inquiries.

Chairwoman Sallen introduced Jeremy Thacker for public comment.

Staff confirmed Mr. Thacker was no longer online, and there were no other
individuals signed up to speak.

Future Agenda Items and Meeting Dates

Chairwoman Sallen asked to keep the agenda item to discuss the inquiry review
process and Citizen Petition. She asked to include the former ethics Task Force
recommendations and include Mr. Thacker’s document submitted about best
practices. She stated the Commission can continue the discussion about topics
to propose for revisions.

Commission Attorney Nillen asked if the Chairwoman wants to include an
agenda item to discuss the active inquiries.

Chairwoman Sallen asked to add EC-25-01, EC-25-06 and EC-25-18 to the next
agenda.

Adjournment
Chairwoman Sallen adjourned the meeting 4:28 p.m.




AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT A

REPORT OF THE
PHOENIX ETHICS REVIEW
AD HOC TASK FORCE

January 14, 2013




COVER LETTER

Mayor Stanton and Members of the Phoenix City Council:

On behalf of the City of Phoenix Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force, we are pleased to submit our report,
which details our recommendations born out of our review of Phoenix ethics policies and procedures. We
believe our recommendations help to strengthen Phoenix’s reputation as a national leader for transparent and
well-managed government. We hope our recommendations serve to inspire Phoenix to continue to establish
and follow the highest of ethics standards.

Accordingly, in undertaking this assignment, we sought to consider as many perspectives as possible
and received information from a broad spectrum of community leaders, academics, elected officials,
Phoenix employees, and Phoenix residents. Over the course of these past four months, we conducted an in-
depth review of Phoenix’s ethics-related policies, Phoenix’s implementation of these policies, and the
effectiveness of these policies. The Task Force held 13 public meetings, which included presentations on
current ethics policies and procedures, ethics in government, and best practices from other jurisdictions. We
received public comment from union representatives, other municipal executives, and concerned residents.

We came to this assignment with the shared belief that the vast majority of Phoenix elected officials, employees,
volunteers, and board members are decent, honorable, and hard-working people who strive to do the right
thing for our city. After our review, this shared belief remains true.

However, for Phoenix to maintain its national leadership role the Task Force believes Phoenix must
implement strong preventative measures and endeavor to create an ethical culture built on leadership,
education, and best practices. Our recommendations emphasize plain compliance-based rules, on-going
training, accessible ethics resources, and uniform enforcement of ethics policies for elected officials,
employees, volunteers, and board members.

The Task Force believes public trust in government is essential. To this end, we urge Council to strongly consider
the recommendations contained in this report. Further, to emphasize our commitment to Phoenix and the work
of this Task Force, we wish to be kept informed of Council's consideration of these recommendations and
stand ready to assist with the implementation of the recommendations contained within this report. We trust
Council will continue to lead by implementing these serious and fair-minded ethics recommendations that
will serve Phoenix and its residents for years to come.



Respectfully submitted this 14t day of January, 2013,

Cou = 7

Mr. Richard M. Romley, Chair

Mr. Timothy Burke Mr. Ernest Calderon Mr. Michael DeMuro
- 27 - iy
i “\l I - N //.'/ 7 .' .z/u r,
Chapbeth ZHu - -
Honorable Elizabeth Finn Honorable David Gass Mr. Brandon Goad

Mr. William Hardin Ms. Melissa Ho Honorable Cecil Patterson



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Task Force wishes to thank the Mayor’s Office, Council members and their staff, City Manager
David Cavazos and his executive team, ethics in government consultant Teri Traaen, union representatives
on behalf of AFSCME 2384, AFSCME 2960, ASPTEA, IAFF 493, LIUNA 777, PLEA, PPSLA, former Mesa
City Manager Mike Hutchinson, and Phoenix employees who generously shared their experiences and
insight with us.

In particular, we wish to thank all the members of the public who sent us comments, attended public
meetings, and showed how deeply ethics matter to Phoenix residents, volunteers, elected officials, and
employees.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

00 LT I I =] i
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS .......ccociiiuirieresessssssssssssmssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasans iii
TABLE OF CONTENTS ..o e s sssss s s s s sesessssssssssssessssssssssssessssssssnens iv
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .......coiiiiiriiriissssssssesessssssssssssessssssssssssessssssssssssssessssssssssssssessssssssssasssesssssssnssessssassnsss 1
GLOSSARY. .....ccoiiririermsmssssssssssssessssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssesesssssssnssssesssssnsnsssnesessassnsnsnsnes 5
INTRODUCTION ....cociuiuirririsessssssssesesessssssssssesesssssssssss s s sss e s s sss e s ssssssssssesessssssssssasesessssssnssesessasanans 7

A. Why Does Ethics Matter? ... 7

B. The History of Phoenix’s Ethics PoliCies. ... 7
TASK FORCE: ITS CHARGE, APPROACH, AND FINDINGS..........ccoosnmmmmmnmnmsssssesssssssssssssessssssssssses 9

A. Task FOrce Charge. ... s sssnns 9

= TR Y oo o T 9

C. Task Force Findings Related to Current Ethics Policies ..........cccevvvveeeiiiiiiicccccccn 9
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENTIRE ORGANIZATION ........coeercerrrereresesssssssssesessssssssssssessssssssssssssssasans 14
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARD MEMBERS ..........ccoovnnemmnnreresesnnnns 14
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EMPLOYEES AND VOLUNTEERS............cccocoensmmmmnmnesessssssssesessssssssssssesessnnns 19
CONGCLUSION.....ciritreremesssssresesesssssssssssesssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssessassssassssssessssssssssssessssssssssssssessssssssnses 23
APPENDICES

Tab 1 - Task Force Members

Tab 2 — Meeting Agenda

Tab 3 — Meeting Results

Tab 4 - Meeting Minutes

Tab 5 — Applicable Laws, Rules, and Regulations

Tab 6 — Research/Best Practices from Other Cities

Tab 7 - “Open Meeting Law” presentation by Deputy City Clerk, Joey Casto

Tab 8 - “Legal Framework” presentation by Acting Chief Counsel, Daniel L. Brown

Tab 9 - “Current City Policies,” presentation by Human Resources Department Director, Janet Smith

Tab 10 - “Current City Ethics Information” presentation by Phoenix executives

Tab 11 - “Government Ethics” presentation by Teri Traaen

Tab 12 — “Best Practices Elected Officials” presentation by Acting Chief Counsel, Daniel L. Brown

Tab 13 - “Best Practices — Employees” presentation by Human Resources Dept. Director, Janet Smith

Tab 14 - “Employees and Volunteers Subcommittee Draft Recommendations” presentation by the
Honorable Elizabeth Finn

Tab 15 - “Elected Officials and Board Members Subcommittee Draft Recommendations” presentation by
Chairman Richard M. Romley

Tab 16 — Proposed Ethics Investigation and Enforcement for Elected Officials and Board Members
Process Flow Chart dated January 14, 2013



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In September 2012, the City of Phoenix Ethics Review Task Force was established to review and
recommend changes to ethics policies applicable to Phoenix Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and
Board Members. Specifically, the Task Force was charged to evaluate best practices and provide
recommendations with respect to the receipt of gifts, familial conflicts, financial conflicts, and professional
conflicts.

As part of its review and work over the past four months, the Task Force received comments and
heard remarks from Phoenix Elected Officials, Phoenix executives, union representatives, an ethics expert,
and a former municipal executive. The Task Force held a televised hearing to receive public comment. The
Task Force also reviewed Phoenix Ethics Policies, the application of various policies to Elected Officials,
employees, volunteers, and Board Members, and the enforcement of these policies with respect to each
group. The Task Force also considered best practices from a number of jurisdictions to fully inform its review.

Findings Related to Current Ethics Policies.

Phoenix first implemented an ethics policy in 1990 and over the years made further enhancements
to strengthen the ethics standards for Phoenix employees. In addition to the policies currently in place,
Phoenix continues to emphasize ethical conduct by identifying integrity as part of its “Vision and Values
Statement” and ensuring that each new employee who joins the Phoenix workforce receives ethics training.
However, the Task Force made a number of findings and learned that a number of significant ethics matters
should be addressed including:

¢ A condition exists where employees may be held to a more extensive standard to determine conflicts
of interest compared to Elected Officials, volunteers, and Board Members because AR 2.91 includes
more than a “relative” to determine a conflicting relationship.

e The interaction of Arizona law applicable to Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board
Members and Phoenix administrative regulations applicable to employees results in an inconsistent
ethics policy for gifts. For example, an Elected Official may be prohibited from receiving a ticket to an
entertainment event, but an employee may be allowed to attend the same event as long as the
employee files the proper disclosure form with the Phoenix City Clerk. Conversely, an Elected
Official may attend a dinner, but an employee may not accept the same gift of food unless the food is
of minimal value and shared with the employee’s entire work unit.

e The Phoenix Charter does not include a provision to investigate ethics violations by Elected Officials,
or impose sanctions against an Elected Official, if necessary, for ethics violations. Most levels of
government have established a process to impose sanctions against an elected official for ethics
violations by a vote of the elected official’s peers.

e Many levels of government publish an ethics handbook or other manual to guide and inform elected
officials. Phoenix has adopted the Ethics Handbook, which currently applies to Elected Officials,
employees, and Board Members. However, the Task Force has uncovered a number of ethics
anomalies and disparities that cannot be cured by simply adopting an appropriate AR and

1



incorporating it into the existing Ethics Handbook. Such a cure does not recognize the different roles,
issues, and conditions that affect Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members.

Phoenix conducts ethics training for new Elected Officials, employees, and Board Members, but
Phoenix does not conduct follow up or supplemental training. Phoenix also does not maintain an
ethics website. Volunteers currently do not receive ethics training.

Phoenix has a long legacy of ethics review, but Phoenix’s review has been irregular in time and
inconsistent in the scope of its ethics review.

The Task Force divided into two subcommittees to discuss and make recommendations in response

to these findings. One subcommittee focused on ethics issues and policies related to employees and
volunteers while the other focused on ethics issues and policies related to Elected Officials and Board
Members. 27 recommendations grew out of the work by the two subcommittees. These recommendations
fall into three categories: (1) recommendations for the entire organization; (2) recommendations for Elected
Officials and Board Members; and (3) recommendations for employees and volunteers. Each of the
recommendations is detailed in this report, but the significant recommendations follow.

Recommendations for the Entire Organization.

The Task Force makes the following recommendations with respect to the entire organization:

The same Ethics Policies should apply as equally as possible to all Elected Officials, employees,
volunteers, and Board Members.

Phoenix should review and update its Ethics Policies every four years at a minimum.

Subject to several exceptions listed below, gifts that create the appearance of undue influence and
gifts of entertainment should be banned for all groups.

Phoenix should require ethics training at regular intervals for Elected Officials, employees,
volunteers, and Board Members.

Recommendations for Elected Officials and Board Members.

The Task Force makes the following recommendations with respect to Elected Officials and Board

Members:

The publishing of a new ethics handbook for Elected Officials and Board Members to detail the laws,
rules, and regulations related to Phoenix Ethics Policies.

The establishment of a gift policy applicable to Elected Officials and Board Members whereby all
gifts, including food, to an Elected Official or Board Member in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00) or
more are disclosed by the Elected Official or Board Member by filing a form with the Phoenix City
Clerk within 48 hours of receiving such gift. The Task Force further recommends that gifts of
entertainment such as cultural or sporting events remain banned as provided by law.

2



o The posting of the Elected Official gift disclosure forms on-line within a searchable database.

¢ The maintenance and posting of the disclosure forms for the period of the Elected Official’s or Board
Member’s public service plus two years after departure by such Elected Official or Board Member.

e The establishment of an independent Phoenix Ethics Commission to oversee the investigation and
enforcement of violations of Phoenix Ethics Policies by Elected Officials and Board Members.!

e The Phoenix Ethics Commission should be authorized to receive allegations of ethical violations,
investigate, take testimony, and engage in any other action to the extent permitted and established
by law to oversee the investigation and enforcement of violations of Phoenix Ethics Policies by
Elected Officials and Board Members. The Phoenix Ethics Commission should be authorized to
appoint an independent investigator, hearing officer, or neutral mediator as may be necessary to
assist the Phoenix Ethics Commission in carrying out its purpose and responsibilities.

e The Phoenix Ethics Commission be authorized to recommend to Council the imposition of the
following actions or sanctions: censure, admonishment, reprimand, suspension (if voters approve),
removal (if voters approve), reimbursement of costs, or imposition of a fine in an amount up to
$10,000 per violation (if voters approve) for misconduct, unprofessional conduct, incapacity, or
Ethics Policy violation by an Elected Official or Board Member.

e The Council should refer to Phoenix voters an amendment to the Charter to allow the suspension,
removal from office, or imposition of a fine in an amount up to $10,000 per violation as sanctions for
misconduct, unprofessional conduct, incapacity, or Ethics Policy violation by an Elected Official or
Board Member.

Recommendations for Employees and Volunteers.

The Task Force makes the following recommendations with respect to Phoenix employees and
volunteers:

¢ Phoenix should update the Phoenix’s Human Resources website to include ethics-related resources.

¢ Phoenix should add mandatory biennial ethics training to the employee and supervisor training
curriculum.

e Phoenix’s volunteer website and volunteer application should include a statement acknowledging the
volunteer’'s compliance with Phoenix’s Ethics Policies. On-going volunteers should be required to
participate in ethics training. Staff should monitor compliance with Phoenix’s ethics training
requirements.

! See Tab 16 for a flow chart that depicts the proposed ethics investigation and enforcement process for Elected Officials and
Board Members.

3



¢ Phoenix should add ethics-related components to interview and selection processes for Phoenix
employees and volunteers. This recommendation should be accomplished either by utilizing a
validated ethics survey or by adding ethics scenarios to interview questions.

¢ Phoenix should revise the draft AR to include guidance to all Phoenix employees on the use of social
media, both professionally and personally.

o The Task Force strongly recommends that hearing officers for planning and zoning matters be paid,
full-time Phoenix employees to avoid the perception of a conflict of interest.

e If unpaid volunteers continue to serve as hearing officers in planning and zoning matters, Phoenix
should add website language regarding the ethical standards these volunteers must satisfy.

o The Task Force recommends Phoenix re-examine Phoenix policies that prohibit the participation of
Phoenix employees in Phoenix election activities.

Conclusion.

The Task Force urges the Council to strongly consider these recommendations. While Phoenix has
a legacy of high ethical standards, the Task Force submits these recommendations with the intent to
continue and strengthen this legacy. In addition to the adoption of these recommendations, the Task Force
recommends Phoenix commit to a regular review of Ethics Policies and to on-going training for Elected
Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members. Lastly, several matters were brought to the attention
of the Task Force during public comments that were outside the Task Force’s charge, and therefore, these
matters have not been addressed in this report.



GLOSSARY

For purposes of this report and the recommendations contained within it, the following terms shall have the
meaning ascribed as follows. The singular of the term shall include the plural, and the plural of the term shall
include the singular.

‘AR” means a Phoenix administrative regulation issued by the City Manager as guidance to and
applicable to Phoenix employees.

‘ARS” means Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended from time to time.

“Board Member” means a member of a Phoenix board, committee, or commission.
“Charter” means the Phoenix City Charter.

“Code” means the Phoenix City Code, as amended from time to time.

"Complainant" means a Phoenix resident, or a person who is affected by an action of an Elected Official
or Board Member.

‘Complaint” means the legal document the Ethics Commission prepares, or causes to be prepared,
containing specific allegations of misconduct, unprofessional conduct, incapacity, or Ethics Policy
violations by an Elected Official or Board Member.

“Council” means the Phoenix City Council.

“Elected Official” means an elected or appointed Phoenix official.

"Ethics Commission" means the proposed Phoenix Ethics Commission.

“Ethics Handbook” means the Phoenix Ethics Handbook adopted by the Council in June 1991, as
amended from time to time.

“Ethics Policy” means Phoenix ethics policies and standards codified in Chapter XI, Section 1 of the
Charter; Section 2-52 of the Code, the Ethics Handbook and the AR’s.

“Hearing Officer” means the person appointed by the Ethics Commission to preside at a hearing to hear
and address a Complaint against a Respondent.

“Investigator” means the person appointed by the Ethics Commission to investigate a Request for Inquiry
and to prepare and prosecute a Complaint against a Respondent as necessary.



“Judicial Selection Advisory Board” or “JSAB” means the Phoenix board whose establishment,
membership, powers, and duties are defined in Code Section 2-96.

"Request for Inquiry" means a specific allegation of misconduct, unprofessional conduct, incapacity, or
an Ethics Policy violation by an Elected Official or Board Member.

"Respondent" means the person who must respond to a Request for Inquiry.

“Task Force” means the Phoenix Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force established September 10, 2012.



INTRODUCTION

A. Why Does Ethics Matter?

Government is a trust, and the officers
of government are trustees; and both the
trust and trustees are created for the
benefit of the people .2

The Phoenix Ethics Policy emphasizes democratic government can function properly only when
residents have confidence in how their government is run.3 Public trust is built largely upon residents’
perception of their Council members, Phoenix employees, and Board Members.# Once public confidence
is destroyed, it is difficult to reestablish.® As a result, government may not be able to function effectively.
Moreover, individual careers and reputations may be irrevocably damaged.” Hence, it is imperative that
Council members, Phoenix employees, and Board Members foster the highest standards of personal
integrity and honesty in discharging their public duties.8

Further, ethics is a critical issue in contemporary governance.® Corruption, even the perception of
corruption, can be measured not only in wasted dollars, but also in lost confidence.? Government that
promotes transparency and accountability will also encourage Elected Officials, employees, and Board
Members to be responsive to those they serve, and effective in discharging their public duties.! The
result is public trust and confidence in government, and a government that is able to innovate and tackle
challenges, free from the inefficiencies that waste and corruption entail.'? These fundamental principles
of good governance are at the core of the Task Force’s review and work.

B. The History of Phoenix’s Ethics Policies.

By Charter election in 1971, Phoenix residents adopted the provisions of state law governing
conflicts of interest for Elected Officials and employees. In addition, the Charter sets out the laws for the
recall of Elected Officials, but does not address the removal of Elected Officials who violate Phoenix
Ethics Policies.

Beginning about September 1990, the City of Phoenix Ad Hoc Committee on Ethics for Boards and
Commission Members drafted ordinances establishing the Phoenix Ethics Policy and a process for the

2 Henry Clay speech at Ashland, Kentucky, March 1829, quoted in House Ethics Manual, pg. 2.
3 Comment, City of Phoenix Ethics Policy, City of Phoenix Ethics Handbook, pg. 1.
41d.

5/d.

6 /d.

71d.

81d.

9 Report of the Chicago Ethics Reform Task Force Part I, dated April 30, 2012 pg. 9.
10 /d,

d.

12d,



removal of Board Members for ethics violations. As part of this work, the 1990 committee drafted a
proposed ethics handbook. These ordinances were adopted by the Council in June 1991 and codified as
Code Sections 2-52 and 2-53 respectively. The Phoenix Ethics Policy applies to Council members,
Phoenix employees, and Board Members. The Ethics Handbook sets out the standards of conduct and
provides ethics guidance to Council members, Phoenix employees, and Board Members. Minor
amendments have been made to the Ethics Handbook from time to time.

To provide additional ethics guidance to Phoenix employees, the City Manager has published a
number of ARs. These ARs, including AR 2.91 (Conflicts in Employment, Supervisory and Contractual
Relationships) and AR 2.93 (City Employee Gift Policy), have been amended from time to time.

On July 7, 1993, the Council adopted an ordinance that requires the registration of lobbyists and the
disclosure of their activities related to lobbying.

In October 1994, the Council adopted a process for the removal of Board Members found in Code
Section 2-53. This process was amended in 2006 to reflect its present form.

The Arizona State Legislature adopted changes in 2000 to ARS Section 41-1232.08 that banned the
receipt of gifts of entertainment by municipal Elected Officials.



TASK FORCE: ITS CHARGE, APPROACH, AND FINDINGS

A. Task Force Charge.

On September 10, 2012, the Task Force was established with 11 appointed members: Richard Romley,
Chair, Tim Burke, Ernest Calderon, Michael DeMuro, the Honorable Elizabeth Finn, the Honorable David
Gass, Wayne George (resigned 10/29/12), Brandon Goad, Bill Hardin, Melissa Ho, and the Honorable Cecil
Patterson. It was requested that the Task Force review and recommend changes to the Ethics Policies
applicable to Phoenix Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members as follows:

1. Based on observed and potential conflicts of interest with respect to local government, evaluate the
strengths and weakness of Phoenix Ethics Policies as compared to accepted best practices; in
particular, with respect to: (i.) receipt of gifts; (ii.) familial conflicts; (iii.) financial conflicts; and (iv.)
professional conflicts;

2. Make recommendations related to the documentation, implementation and enforcement of Ethics
Policies; and

3. Evaluate best practices and recommend the process to review Ethics Policies on a regular basis.

The charge further requested the Task Force to present its findings and recommendations to the
Phoenix City Council Public Safety, Veterans, Transparency, and Ethics Subcommittee for further review and
action as necessary. The original deadline for the Task Force to complete its work was December 31, 2012;
however, the date was extended to February 28, 2013, by Mayor Stanton.

B. Approach.

After opening remarks from Mayor Stanton and Chairman Romley, the Task Force began its work on
September 17, 2012, with a review of Arizona open meeting laws13, the legal framework of Phoenix Ethics
Policies'4, and current Phoenix Ethics Policies and practices's. On October 1, 2012, the Task Force heard
remarks from Councilman Daniel Valenzuela, a presentation from City Manager David Cavazos and other
City executives regarding the status of ethics compliance by Phoenix as an organization'®, a presentation
from Teri Traaen with Traaen & Associates, LLC regarding ethics in government'”, and concerns from union
representatives on behalf of AFSCME 2384, AFSCME 2960, ASPTEA, IAFF493, LIUNA 777, PLEA, and
PPSLA.

To promote transparency and public discussion, the Task Force meeting on October 15, 2012, was
recorded and televised on Phoenix Channel 11. After a presentation by Mike Hutchinson, former Mesa,
Arizona City Manager regarding best ethics practices for municipal government, most of the meeting was
dedicated to receive public comment related to Phoenix ethics standards and policies. Approximately 13
residents presented testimony to the Task Force and several more presented written comment. Most of the
public comment centered on specific facts and conditions, but two themes emerged: (1) government should

13 See Tab 7 for presentation by Deputy City Clerk, Joey Casto.

14 See Tab 8 for presentation by Acting Chief Counsel, Daniel Brown.

15 See Tab 9 for presentation by Human Resources Department Director, Janet Smith.
16 See Tab 10 for presentation by Phoenix executives.

17 See Tab 11 for presentation by Teri Traaen.



lead in ethics principles of honesty and transparency, and set high standards such as those followed by the
United States military; and (2) for zoning and village planning matters, Phoenix should revisit the use of
private hearing officers and should adopt transparent processes.

Best practices related to peer review and ethics enforcement for Elected Officials and Board
Members were presented to the Task Force on October 29, 2012. Practices and procedures from the City of
Mesa, Arizona, the Arizona State Legislature, and Congress were described and detailed.'® A summary of
ethics violations by Phoenix employees and best practices related to employees and volunteers were also
presented to the Task Force at the same meeting.1?

To more fully review and discuss specific recommendations, the Task Force split into two
subcommittees. A subcommittee chaired by the Honorable Elizabeth Finn was charged to develop additional
policies and recommendations for employees and volunteers including the discussion of ethics standards
and policies related to the use of social media. Another subcommittee chaired by Mr. Romley was charged to
discuss and develop recommendations for Elected Officials and Board Members. Each subcommittee met on
three occasions to develop specific recommendations for their charge. These recommendations were
presented to the entire Task Force for review and discussion on November 26, 2012.20

C. Task Force Findings Related to Current Ethics Policies.

During the course and scope of the Task Force’s review of current Phoenix Ethics Policies and best
practices from other jurisdictions, the Task Force uncovered a number of disparities among Phoenix Ethics
Policies for Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members. These disparities include: (1) a
different standard to determine prohibited relationships when addressing conflicts of interest; (2) the lack of a
uniform and comprehensive gift policy for Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members; (3)
the lack of an ethics investigation and enforcement process for Elected Officials; (4) the lack of a uniform and
comprehensive source of guidelines to advise Elected Officials and Board Members; (5) the lack of on-going
training and a comprehensive ethics website as a resource for Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and
Board Members; and (6) the lack of a process for regular review of Phoenix Ethics Policies.

1. Conflicts of Interest—Different Standard for Relationships.

As part of its review, the Task Force learned the standard applied to Phoenix employees for familial
conflicts of interest is broader than the standard applied to Elected Officials and Board Members. ARS
Section 38-502, which applies to Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members through the
Charter, defines “relative” as the spouse, child, child’s child, parent, grandparent, brother or sister of the
whole or half-blood and their spouses, and the parent, brother, sister, or child of a spouse. AR 2.91, which
applies to Phoenix employees but does not apply to Elected Officials, volunteers, or Board Members,
establishes a standard for familial conflicts of interest that includes ARS Section 38-502 plus any
relationships, which “may create the appearance of a conflict”. Examples of the additional relationships
analyzed under AR 2.91 include a court appointed guardian, an individual who acts as a parent substitute, or
a person who resides in the person’s household as a member of the family. AR 2.91 also encourages the
disclosure of roommates or other individuals who share a substantial financial interest with the employee to

18 See Tab 12 for presentation by Acting Chief Counsel, Daniel Brown.
19 See Tab 13 for presentation by Human Resources Department Director, Janet Smith.
%0 See Tabs 14 and 15 for presentations by Judge Finn and Mr. Romley respectively.

10



avoid the appearance of a conflict. Consequently, to determine when a conflict of interest exists, the Task
Force has uncovered a condition where employees may be held to a more extensive standard compared to
Elected Officials and Board Members.

2. Lack of Uniform and Comprehensive Gift Policy.

As a general principle for the receipt of gifts, ARS Section 38-505, as adopted by the Charter, prohibits
an Elected Official, employee, volunteer, or Board Member from the direct or indirect receipt of compensation
other than provided by law. This principle means any gift to an Elected Official, employee, volunteer, or
Board Member is prohibited if the gift creates the appearance of an undue influence. Further, with some
exceptions, ARS Section 41-1232.08 prohibits an Elected Official from receiving an “expenditure” for
entertainment from a person who seeks to influence a proposed or pending matter before the Council.

AR 2.93 prohibits employees from accepting any gift that leads to favoritism or gives the appearance of
favoritism. Token gifts of minimal value that are shared with the entire work unit are permitted. Under AR
2.93, an employee may accept a gift of entertainment or tickets to a cultural event if there is no appearance
of favoritism and the employee discloses the gift by filing a form with the Phoenix City Clerk.

These two bodies of law result in an inconsistent gift policy as applied to Elected Officials, employees,
volunteers, and Board Members. For example, an Elected Official may be prohibited from receiving a ticket
to an entertainment event, but an employee may be allowed to attend the same event as long as the
employee files the proper disclosure form with the Phoenix City Clerk. Conversely, an Elected Official may
attend a dinner, but an employee may not accept the same gift of food unless the food is of minimal value
and shared with the employee’s entire work unit.

3. Lack of an Ethics Investigation and Enforcement Process for Elected Officials.

As part of its review of best practices from other jurisdictions, the Task Force learned the Charter does
not include a provision to investigate ethics violations by Elected Officials, nor a process by which
progressive sanctions may be imposed. Most levels of governments have established a process to sanction
an elected official for ethics violations by a vote of the Elected Official's peers. Many of the processes are
complex, such as the Ethics Rules and Manual published by Congress, while others are more direct such as
the City of Mesa Charter provision that requires a super majority of its council to sanction a fellow council
member.

Code Section 2-53 includes a provision for the removal of Board Members for violating the Charter or
Code, and employees may be terminated or receive discipline for ethics violations as established by the
AR’s. While the Charter includes a provision for the recall of Elected Officials by residents, it is silent
regarding the removal of an Elected Official by a vote of their peers.

4. Lack of a Uniform and Comprehensive Source of Guidelines to Advise Elected Officials and
Board Members.

Many levels of government publish an ethics handbook or other manual to guide and inform elected
officials. Phoenix has adopted the Ethics Handbook, which currently applies to Elected Officials, employees,
volunteers, and Board Members. However, the Task Force has uncovered a number of ethics

11



inconsistencies and disparities that cannot be cured by simply adopting an appropriate AR and incorporating
it into the existing Ethics Handbook. To do so does not recognize the different roles, issues, and conditions
that affect Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members. Accordingly, many jurisdictions
have adopted an ethics handbook tailored to the specific group within an organization. This approach allows
for the application of substantially similar ethics policies to various conditions and groups throughout an
organization.

5. Lack of On-Going Training and a Comprehensive Ethics Website as a Resource.

The Task Force learned that many jurisdictions conduct on-going ethics training and have a
comprehensive website for Elected Officials, employees, supervisors, volunteers, and Board Members. In
addition, the Task Force learned Phoenix conducts ethics training for new Elected Officials, employees
including supervisors, and Board Members. However, Phoenix but does not conduct mandatory follow up or
supplemental training. Phoenix does not currently maintain an ethics website.

6. Lack of Regular Review of Ethics Policies.

Because of constant change in the conditions and circumstances to which ethics apply, the Task Force
learned that many jurisdictions conduct a regular review of ethics policies. The Task Force learned further
that Phoenix has a long legacy of ethics review, but Phoenix’s review has been irregular in time and
inconsistent in the scope of its ethics review.

These Task Force findings are the genesis for the following recommendations adopted by the Task
Force on January 7, 2013. The recommendations fall into three categories: (1) recommendations for the
entire organization; (2) recommendations for Elected Officials and Board Members; and (3)
recommendations for employees and volunteers.

12



RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE ENTIRE ORGANIZATION

Based on its review and findings, the Task Force presents the following recommendations to the
Phoenix City Council Public Safety, Veterans, Transparency, and Ethics Subcommittee related to the entire
Phoenix organization.

Recommendation No. 1. It is the strong belief of the Task Force that Phoenix Ethics Policies must apply as
equally as possible to all Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members.

Recommendation No. 2. The Task Force recommends the Council adopt a policy to review Phoenix Ethics
Policies at a minimum of every four years.

Recommendation No. 3. Subject to the particular exceptions detailed in this report for Elected Officials and
Board Members, and those detailed in this report for employees and volunteers, the Task Force
recommends a uniform gift policy applicable to Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members
whereby (ifts that create the appearance of undue influence and gifts of entertainment should be banned.

Recommendation No. 4. The Task Force believes its review is just a beginning. It is essential Phoenix
develops an on-going process to address specific ethics issues as they may arise.

13



RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARD MEMBERS

Based on its review and findings, the Task Force presents the following recommendations to the
Phoenix City Council Public Safety, Veterans, Transparency, and Ethics Subcommittee related to Elected
Officials and Board Members.

Recommendation No. 1. The Task Force recommends publishing a new ethics handbook for Elected
Officials and Board Members to detail the Phoenix Ethics Policies applicable to them.

Recommendation No. 2. The Task Force recommends the establishment of a gift policy applicable to
Elected Officials and Board Members whereby all gifts, including food, to an Elected Official or Board
Member in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00) or more are disclosed by the Elected Official or Board Member
by filing a form with the Phoenix City Clerk within 48 hours of receiving such gift. This recommendation
applies to gifts of fifty dollars ($50.00) or more that do not create an appearance of undue influence or a
conflict of interest; gifts that create an appearance of undue influence or conflict of interest are recommended
to be banned in their entirety in accordance with Recommendation No. 3 applicable to the entire Phoenix
organization. The Task Force further recommends gifts of entertainment such as cultural or sporting events
remain banned as provided by law.

Recommendation No. 3. The Task Force recommends the posting of the gift disclosure forms on-line within
a searchable database.

Recommendation No. 4. The Task Force recommends the maintenance and posting of the disclosure forms
for the period of the Elected Official’s or Board Member’s public service plus two years after departure by
such Elected Official or Board Member.

Recommendation No. 5. The Task Force recommends the establishment of an independent ethics
commission to oversee the investigation and enforcement of Ethics Policies and proposed ethics handbook
for Elected Officials and Board Members as follows:

Ethics Commission Members.

The Ethics Commission is established to oversee the investigation and enforcement of Ethics Policies and
(proposed) City of Phoenix Ethics Handbook for Elected Officials and Board Members. The Commission
shall consist of five members who shall serve a term of three years unless otherwise specified. The Phoenix
Judicial Selection Advisory Board (JSAB) shall recommend to the Council for Council approval the
appointment of five Commission members who satisfy the following requirements. One member shall: (i) be a
Phoenix resident who has not held public office nor been appointed to a Phoenix board or commission; (ii) be
knowledgeable of or an expert in government ethics; and (iii) serve a full initial term. One member shall: (i) be
an active or former municipal elected official from a jurisdiction within Maricopa County, Arizona; and (ii)
serve an initial one-year term. One member shall: (i) be an active or former superior court or appellate judge;
and (i) serve a two-year initial term. Two at-large members shall be Phoenix residents. By coin flip, one at-
large member shall serve a full initial term and the other shall serve an initial term of two years. Any

14



Commission vacancy shall be filled by a candidate recommended by the JSAB, approved by Council, and
who satisfies the particular requirements for the vacant position.

Recommendation No. 6. The Task Force recommends the establishment of the Ethics Commission with the
following authority:

Ethics Commission Authority.

The Ethics Commission is authorized to receive allegations of ethical violations, investigate, take testimony,
and engage in any other action to the extent permitted and established by law to oversee the investigation
and enforcement of the Ethics Policies and (proposed) City of Phoenix Ethics Handbook for Elected Officials
and Board Members. The Commission may appoint an independent investigator and hearing officer as may
be necessary to assist the Commission in carrying out its purpose and responsibilities.

Recommendation No. 7. The Task Force recommends amending Code Section 2-96 to add as a new
responsibility of the Phoenix Judicial Selection Advisory Board the solicitation of candidates, review of
candidates and recommendation of candidates to Council to serve as members of the Ethics Commission.

Recommendation No. 8. The Task Force recommends Phoenix should bear all reasonable Commission
costs including the reasonable costs related to an Investigator or Hearing Officer as may be necessary.

Recommendation No. 9. The Task Force recommends Commission members shall not receive a salary or
otherwise be compensated except for the reimbursement of parking charges and mileage from the member’s
residence to Phoenix City Hall. Mileage shall be paid at the per diem rate allowed by the Internal Revenue
Service.

Recommendation No. 10. The Task Force recommends the Commission be authorized to recommend to
Council the imposition of the following actions or sanctions: censure, admonishment, reprimand, suspension
(if approved by voters), removal (if approved by voters), reimbursement of costs, or imposition of a fine in an
amount up to $10,000 per violation (if approved by voters) for misconduct, unprofessional conduct,
incapacity, or Ethics Policy violation by an Elected Official or Board Member.

Recommendation No. 11. In addition, the Task Force recommends that the Council refer to Phoenix voters
an amendment to the Charter to allow the suspension, removal, or imposition of a fine in an amount up to
$10,000 per violation as a sanction for misconduct, unprofessional conduct, incapacity, or Ethics Policy
violation by an Elected Official or Board Member.

Recommendation No. 12. The Task Force recommends a process to investigate and enforce the Ethics
Policy applied to Elected Officials and Board Members?! as follows:

1. Initiation of Proceedings.

a. A Complainant may file with the Phoenix City Clerk a written Request for Inquiry containing specific
allegations of misconduct, unprofessional conduct, incapacity, or an Ethics Policy violation by any

2! See Tab 16 for a flow chart that depicts the proposed ethics investigation and enforcement process for Elected Officials and
Board Members.

15



Elected Official or Board Member. The Phoenix City Clerk shall not accept the submission of an
anonymous Request for Inquiry.

Within five business days of receiving the Request for Inquiry, the City Clerk shall assign a matter
number to the Request for Inquiry, refer the Request for Inquiry to the Commission for evaluation
and send a copy of the Request for Inquiry to the Respondent.

For the period that begins with the assignment of the matter number by the City Clerk through the
completion of the investigation by the Commission, the Request for Inquiry shall solely be referenced
by matter number, and the Request for Inquiry, investigation and any Commission proceedings
related to its evaluation shall remain confidential. The Commission may discuss the Request for
Inquiry in executive session. All records related to the Request for Inquiry shall be made public in
accordance with Arizona law after the Commission votes in open session to: (i) dismiss the Request
for Inquiry in whole or in part; or (ii) recommend to the Council an informal settlement of the Request
for Inquiry by consent decree; or (iii) issue an order for a formal hearing of the Request for Inquiry.

Initial Evaluation by Commission.

Each Request for Inquiry received by the Commission shall be evaluated by the Commission to
determine if the allegations in the Request for Inquiry are within the Commission’s jurisdiction and
are facially sufficient to warrant investigation by the Commission.

If by unanimous vote the Commission determines the allegations in the Request for Inquiry are
outside of its jurisdiction or facially insufficient to warrant investigation, the Commission in the
exercise of its discretion may dismiss the Request for Inquiry. The Commission’s dismissal of
allegations in the Request for Inquiry is not subject to review.

If by majority vote the Commission determines the allegations in the Request for Inquiry, in whole or
in part, are within its jurisdiction and are facially sufficient to warrant investigation, the Commission
shall cause the additional evaluation and investigation of the allegations in the Request for Inquiry.
If by majority vote the Commission determines the allegations in the Request for Inquiry may involve
a crime, the Commission shall refer the Request for Inquiry to the proper authority for investigation
and prosecution. If the Commission refers the Request for Inquiry to another authority for criminal
investigation or prosecution, the Commission shall stay all action related to the Request for Inquiry
until the criminal investigation and any related proceedings are resolved.

If the Commission fails to make a determination by unanimous or majority vote as required in
subsections (b) through (d), the Request for Inquiry shall be deemed dismissed. The Commission
shall give notice to the Complainant and Respondent if the Commission dismisses the Request for

Inquiry.
Investigation by Commission.

The Commission may appoint an independent Investigator to assist with the evaluation and
investigation of any Request for Inquiry received by the Commission.

The Respondent shall be given written notice of the investigation and the nature of the Request for
Inquiry. The Respondent may submit a written response to the Commission or Investigator within 20
days of the notice requesting a written response. For good cause, the Commission or Investigator
may grant an extension of time to respond to the Request for Inquiry.

A Respondent may request the Request for Inquiry and response be made public. Any such
request shall not apply to the Commission’s discussions in executive session, its investigation or

16



related Commission proceedings, which shall remain confidential until a vote in open session by the
Commission on the merits of the Request for Inquiry.

d. The Commission shall forward a copy of the Respondent's response to the Complainant. The
Commission or the Investigator may ask the Complainant to provide additional information.

e. The Commission and its Investigator may conduct interviews, obtain records or other necessary
information and undertake appropriate research. All Respondents and Complainants must cooperate
with the Commission and its Investigator. All Respondents and Complainants must provide
requested information unless the request violates Arizona law. A Respondent or Complainant who
fails to cooperate with the Commission or Investigator must cite the specific legal basis for doing so.
If the Commission finds there is no legal basis for the Respondent’s or Complainant’s failure to
cooperate, the uncooperative party shall pay for all costs incurred by the Commission directly related
to that party’s failure to cooperate.

f.  The Commission shall prepare or cause the preparation of a report and recommendations to Council
related to the allegations in the Request for Inquiry.

g. The Commission shall make its findings and recommendations to Council based on clear and
convincing evidence.

4. Commission Recommendation for Dismissal, Consent Decree, or Formal Hearing after
Investigation.

If by majority vote the Commission finds clear and convincing evidence exists to proceed, the
Commission shall issue a written order setting the Request for Inquiry for formal hearing. Also by
majority vote, the Commission may recommend to Council to: (i) dismiss the Request for Inquiry, in
whole or in part; or (i) informally settle the Request for Inquiry by consent decree. If the Commission fails
to make a determination by majority vote, the Request for Inquiry shall be deemed dismissed. The
Commission shall provide notice of any order to the Respondent and Complainant, and shall submit to
Council for approval any order recommending dismissal, with or without prejudice, or informal settlement
by consent decree.

5. Filing of Complaint; Formal Hearing.

a. The Commission may appoint a Hearing Officer, who must be a member in good standing of the
State Bar of Arizona, to preside at a formal hearing of the Complaint.

b. Upon issuance of the order for formal hearing, the Commission or appointed Investigator shall
prepare a Complaint and present its report and findings to the Hearing Officer and request a formal
hearing. The Commission and the Respondent may or may not be represented by legal counsel, in
their respective discretion.

c. The Respondent shall file an answer within 20 calendar days after service of the Complaint. Service
of all legal documents shall be made by certified, first class U.S. mail, return receipt unless otherwise
agreed to by the parties.

d. After the answer is filed, the matter shall be set for a settlement conference and formal hearing. The
Commission and the Respondent must participate in a settlement conference held no less than 30
calendar days but no more than 60 calendar days prior to the formal hearing. A neutral mediator
appointed and approved by the Commission and the Respondent shall facilitate the settlement
conference.

e. Ifnoagreement is reached in the settlement conference, the matter shall proceed to a contested
hearing before the Hearing Officer. The Hearing Officer may receive testimony and other information

17



1.

related to the Complaint and answer. The Arizona Rules of Evidence, as amended, shall apply to all
proceedings before the Hearing Officer.

Within ten business days of the completion of the hearing, the Hearing Officer shall prepare and
issue a written recommendation to the Council that contains findings of fact and conclusions of law
related to the merit of the Complaint, and any proposed sanctions for a violation.

The Hearing Officer must find that any allegation of misconduct, unprofessional conduct, incapacity,
or Ethics Policy violation is supported by clear and convincing evidence. The Hearing Officer may
recommend the Council dismiss the Complaint, in whole or in part, or find the Respondent has
violated the Phoenix Ethics Policy, and recommend the imposition of sanctions for any such
violation. Permissible sanctions include any one or more of the following: censure, admonishment,
reprimand, or reimbursement of costs [Note: include suspension, removal, and fines if approved by
Charter amendment].

Council Review and Action.

For matters proposed to be resolved by dismissal or consent decree, the Council must approve the
action by a majority vote. If the Council does not approve the action by a majority of the members,
excluding the Respondent, the matter shall be remanded to the Commission for further
consideration.

For matters proposed to be resolved based on the Hearing Officer’s report, the Council must
approve any action by a majority of the members, excluding the Respondent. The Council may
approve or reject, in whole or in part, the Hearing Officer's recommended sanctions. The Council
may impose sanctions not recommended by the Hearing Officer. If the Council does not resolve the
matter by a majority vote of the members, excluding the Respondent, no sanctions shall be imposed
and the matter shall be dismissed.

The Council shall take action on any proposed dismissal, consent decree, or Hearing Officer’s report
at the earliest, regularly scheduled meeting within 30 calendar days of the date of the recommended
action. The Council may delay action beyond the 30 calendar days by a majority vote of the Council.
A Respondent who prevails in defending a Complaint may seek, and the Council may authorize
payment to reimburse the Respondent for the Respondent’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs
incurred from the date of filing the Complaint in a formal hearing through and up to Council action.

Appeal.

Except for the Council’s approval of a consent decree, within 30 calendar days of Council action, either
the Commission or the Respondent may appeal the Council action by special action to the superior
court. The Council's approval of a consent decree is a final action and is not subject to review.

Recommendation No. 13. The Task Force recommends the review and establishment of Ethics Policies for

the use of social media by Elected Officials and Board Members. The Task Force further recommends as
part of this review Phoenix should include guidance to Elected Officials and Board Members for the use of
social media in the proposed ethics handbook for Elected Officials and Board Members. The Task Force
believes the establishment of Ethics Policies for the use of social media is important, and the lack of specific
Task Force recommendations related to the use of social media in this report should not be construed to
mean this issue is of less importance.

18



RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EMPLOYEES AND VOLUNTEERS

Based on its review and findings, the Task Force presents the following recommendations to the Phoenix
City Council Public Safety, Veterans, Transparency, and Ethics Subcommittee related to employees and
volunteers.

Recommendation No. 1. The Task Force recommends updates to Phoenix’s Human Resources website to
include ethics-related resources.

Ethics Resources
The Ethics Handbook is currently available on Phoenix’s internal web site; and, Phoenix policies, including
ARs and personnel rules, are also available on the Phoenix’s internal web site.

The Task Force recommends developing a web page that provides ethics-related resources such as
‘Frequently Asked Questions” and examples of situations that create ethical dilemmas, links to ethics-related
policies and procedures, contact information for questions, inquiries, and complaints, and other information
as determined by Phoenix.

Recommendation No. 2. The Task Force recommends adding mandatory and biennial ethics training to the
employee training curriculum.

Ethics Training

Following approval of the Ethics Handbook in 1991, over 500 training sessions were delivered to Phoenix
employees over the following two year period and ethics was added as a component to the Phoenix’s New
Employee Orientation training. Refresher training was provided after the 1997 Ethics Handbook revisions.
Currently, staff provides customized refresher courses to departments as needed; and ethics training
continues to be a significant component of new employee training programs.

The Task Force recommends mandatory ethics training to occur every two years. Topics should include the
“Top 10” ethical dilemmas faced by employees in addition to updates on ethics related to new information
and technology. If possible, Phoenix should try to include both court and non-court employees in classes to
further the exchange of ethics knowledge and explore classroom as well as on-line training to fill the
requirement for ethics training. Also, specialized training should be developed for supervisors to help them
comply with their responsibility for enforcement of Ethics Policies.

Recommendation No. 3. The Task Force recommends updates to the Phoenix’s Human Resources website
to include information regarding the Civil Service Board and progressive discipline.

Civil Service Board Information

It is important to the public trust that employee violations of ethics or other Phoenix policies are dealt with in a
timely, fair, and reasonable manner. Currently, information regarding the Phoenix’s Civil Service Board
process is provided to employees upon the receipt of discipline. Additionally, supervisors receive mandatory
training regarding discipline and the Civil Service Board, but typically employees do not receive this training.

19



The Task Force recommends Phoenix include information on the Phoenix’s Human Resources Department
website regarding the Civil Service Board process, “Frequently Asked Questions”, and the roles of the
hearing officer, Civil Service Board members, and staff. The website should also contain information that
explains Phoenix’s use of progressive discipline to correct inappropriate behavior, deter reoccurrence of
violations, and to help the employee comply with Phoenix policies.

Recommendation No. 4. The Task Force recommends the use of paid zoning hearing officers instead of
volunteers, and recommends adding website language regarding the ethical standards that zoning hearing
officers are required to meet.

Zoning Hearing Officers

Concerns have been raised that the use of private land use attorneys as zoning hearing officers gives the
perception of a conflict of interest. In the past, zoning hearing officers were paid for their services. In March
2010, a transition was made to use volunteer zoning hearing officers because of budgetary constraints. To
avoid any conflict of interest, the respective volunteer zoning hearing officer may be recused from serving as
a hearing officer in a particular matter. Even with these measures, based on public comment heard by the
Task Force, the public perceives that a conflict of interest exists. Therefore, the Task Force recommends
Phoenix return to the practice of utilizing paid zoning hearing officers.

Recommendation No. 5. If Phoenix must utilize volunteer zoning hearing officers, the Task Force
recommends adding language to the Planning and Development Department’s website to make the public
aware of the standards the volunteer attorneys who serve as zoning hearing officers are required to meet.
The Task Force suggests the following language:

“Phoenix enlists the assistance of volunteers to act as hearing officers in the administration
of zoning matters. These individuals are appointed on the basis of their training and
experience, which qualify them to conduct hearings, and to make findings and conclusions
on the matters they hear. These individuals must be neutral and impartial. In addition,
attorneys who volunteer as zoning hearing officers for Phoenix are bound by the Rules of
Professional Conduct prescribed by the Arizona Supreme Court, and as such must declare
conflicts of interest if they are present.”

Also, the Planning and Development Department has indicated formal zoning interpretations will soon be
added to their department’s public website.

Recommendation No. 6. The Task Force recommends revising the Ethics Handbook for employees and
revising Phoenix’s gift policy.

Ethics Handbook

The Ethics Handbook, which is available in both hard copy and on Phoenix’s intranet, was originally
developed by an ad-hoc committee comprised of Phoenix staff, an official with the State Solicitor General’s
Office, and local business people. It was approved by the Council in 1991. The Ethics Handbook was revised
in 1997 to reflect new Phoenix policies and provide practical examples of situations that might arise
regarding use of ethical standards. The Ethics Handbook is issued to all new hires, along with training during
New Employee Orientation.

20



The Task Force recommends amending the Ethics Handbook with updated information, including references
to new or revised Phoenix policies. The Task Force also recommends when an employee is presented with a
gift, supervisory approval must be obtained even if the gift is declared. The supervisor should use good
judgment, without regard to the dollar amount of the gift, to determine whether the employee should accept
and declare the gift. To determine whether to approve the employee’s acceptance of a gift, the supervisor
should exercise his or her judgment to avoid a potential conflict of interest, the appearance of a conflict of
interest, or favoritism. The Task Force further recommends gifts of entertainment such as cultural or sporting
events should not be allowed and references to such in the Ethics Handbook, Sample List of
Tickets/Entertainment Gifts to Declare, should be removed to avoid any appearance of impropriety.

Consistent with existing policy, token gifts of minimal value offered to a group of employees should be
allowed provided they are not perceived as influencing decisions. Examples include, but are not limited to,
items such as pens, toothbrushes, cookies, muffins, and donuts.

Phoenix’s Gift Policy

In conjunction with the above recommendation, the Task Force recommends revising Phoenix’s gift policy to
reflect gifts of entertainment such as cultural or sporting events should not be allowed to avoid any
appearance of impropriety.

Recommendation No. 7. The Task Force recommends changes to Phoenix’s draft policy on social media.

Social Media Policy

A draft social media policy was developed by a city-wide task force during 2012 in response to the growth of
social media and the need to identify guidelines for both official and personal use by Phoenix employees.
The original approach to the draft focused on authorized professional use of social media; protected
employees and Phoenix; and support of existing policies, personnel rules, and technical standards.

The Task Force recommends revising the draft policy to include guidance to all employees on the use of
social media, both professionally and personally. This recommendation includes the consideration of the
following components:

o Employees must not appear to represent Phoenix on their own personal social media sites.
Employees must not post other individual’s confidential or personally-identifiable information on
social media.

o Employees may not access or post to personal social media sites during working hours or use
Phoenix resources.

e Employees may be subject to investigations by the Phoenix Human Resources or Equal Opportunity
Departments when posting items on social media sites related to co-workers and supervisors.

¢ Employees can be held accountable for postings that violate Phoenix’s anti-harassment standards or
Civil Treatment policy even if the employee posts to a personal site at home, on their own time.

e Ifinformation is brought to Phoenix’s attention that an employee has engaged in a potential violation
of a Phoenix policy through the use of social media and this information is not otherwise available,
the employee must allow the Phoenix Human Resources Department to have access to the
employee’s social media site. The information from the employee’s social media site shall be held
confidential by the Human Resources Department unless the information is material to an
investigation or unless ordered otherwise by a court.

21



e Ahiring authority is allowed to search for information about a prospective employee on a public
domain and utilize the information as one component of the selection process. (This item will be
included in the Phoenix’s Supervisor’s Toolkit for Selection Interviews and Hiring Process
Guidelines).

Recommendation No. 8. The Task Force recommends adding ethics-related components to interview and
selection processes.

Interview and Selection Processes

Phoenix currently utilizes testing procedures for certain job classifications to gauge an applicant’s propensity
for unethical behavior. Additionally, interview questions are incorporated into some selection processes as
needed to assess a candidate’s ethics and best fit with Phoenix values.

The Task Force recommends adding ethics-related questions to the interview selection process or the use of
an assessment testing tool or instruments. This item will be included in the Supervisor’s Toolkit for Selection
Interviews and Hiring Process Guidelines.

Recommendation No. 9. The Task Force recommends Phoenix’s volunteer website and volunteer
application include a statement acknowledging adherence to Phoenix’s Ethics Policies. On-going volunteers
will be required to participate in ethics training. Staff will monitor compliance with Phoenix’s ethics training
requirements.

Recommendation No. 10. The Task Force recommends Phoenix re-examine Phoenix policies that prohibit
the participation of Phoenix employees in Phoenix election activities.

22



CONCLUSION

Survey results from 2007 to 2011 show Phoenix employees strongly believe their co-workers and
supervisors display honesty and integrity. After its review, the belief of the Task Force mirrors this strong
belief.

Accordingly, the Task Force urges Phoenix to continue this legacy of honesty and integrity by
establishing and following the highest ethics standards. The Task Force believes its recommendations, while
numerous and wide-ranging, not only continue Phoenix’s legacy of high ethics standards, but are also the
beginning of new, ever-higher standards as much work remains. For example, even though the Task Force
has recommended a detailed process to investigate and enforce Ethics Policy violations by Elected Officials
and Board Members, it will be Phoenix's task to continue this work by the further development of Ethics
Policies and standards for Elected Officials and Board Members, and to include these standards in an ethics
handbook. These ever-higher standards will be strengthened by Phoenix’s commitment to on-going ethics
review and training for Elected Officials, employees, volunteers, and Board Members as recommended by
the Task Force.

Finally, the Task Force recognizes there are matters brought to its attention that have not been
addressed in this report or certain matters have been presented broadly in this report. The Task Force
wishes to emphasize that the failure to address certain matters or the Task Force’s broad presentation of the
matter does not reflect the importance of the matter. Instead, the lack of a discussion regarding a matter or a
broad presentation of the matter is a reflection of the Task Force’s time constraints or a full presentation of
the matter was outside the Task Force’s charge. Resources permitting, the Task Force recommends Phoenix
further review these matters, especially those matters presented broadly in this report.

23



APPENDICES

Tab 1 - Task Force Members

Tab 2 — Meeting Agenda

Tab 3 — Meeting Results

Tab 4 — Meeting Minutes

Tab 5 — Applicable Laws, Rules, and Regulations

Tab 6 — Research/Best Practices from Other Cities

Tab 7 - Presentation by Deputy City Clerk, Joey Casto

Tab 8 — Presentation by Acting Chief Counsel, Daniel Brown

Tab 9 - Presentation by Human Resources Department Director, Janet Smith
Tab 10 - Presentation by Phoenix executives

Tab 11 — Presentation by Teri Traaen

Tab 12 - Presentation by Daniel Brown, “Best Practices Elected Officials”
Tab 13 - Presentation by Janet Smith, “Best Practices — Employees”

Tab 14 - Presentation by the Honorable Elizabeth Finn--Employees and Volunteers Subcommittee
Draft Recommendations

Tab 15 - Presentation by Chairman Richard M. Romley--Elected Officials and Board Members
Subcommittee Draft Recommendations

Tab 16 — Proposed Ethics Investigation and Enforcement for Elected Officials and Board Members
Process Flow Chart dated January 14, 2013

DLB/dIb/1011874v6 Revised 1/14/13



CITY OF PHOENIX

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
TASK FORCE MEMBER INFORMATION

AUGUST 2012

Name

Title

Organization/Affiliation

Rick Romley, Task Force
Chairperson

President

RMR, PLC

Tim Burke

Attorney/Director

Fennemore Craig, P.C.

Ernest Calderdn President Calderon Law Offices

Michael DeMuro President Regency Consulting

Elizabeth Finn Presiding Judge Glendale City Court

David Gass Judge Maricopa County Superior Court

Brandon Goad

Senior Manager

Maximus

Wayne George*

Retired Community Activist

Neighborhood Blockwatch Fund
Oversight Committee (member)

Bill Hardin

Attorney

Osborn Maledon, P.A.

Melissa Ho

Attorney

Polsinelli Shugart, P.C.

Cecil Patterson

Retired Judge

Arizona Court of Appeals

* Resigned from Task Force effective 10/29/12




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE will hold a meeting open to the public on September
17, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the Adams Street Training Center, 140 North 3rd
Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. |Call to Order Rick Romley, Chairperson

2. |Introductions of Task Force Members and Staff Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion and possible action.

3. |Message from the Mayor Greg Stanton, Mayor
This item is for discussion only.

4. |Discussion of the Task Force Charge Greg Stanton, Mayor /

Rick Romley, Chairperson

This item is for discussion and possible action. | Task Force

5. |Message from the Chairperson Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion only.

6. |Open Meeting Law Training Joey Casto, City Clerk
This item is for discussion only. Department

7. |Review of Ethics Legal Framework Law Department Staff
This item is for discussion only.

8. |Review of Current Ethics Policies and Practices Janet Smith, Human
This item is for discussion only. Resources Department

9. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion only.

10. |Call to the Public Rick Romley, Chairperson

11. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.

12. |Adjournment Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human
Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at VVoice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

September 10, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE will hold a meeting open to the public on October 1,
2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams

Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. Call to Order

Rick Romley, Chairperson

2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from September 17, 2012
This item is for discussion and action.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

3. |Message from Members of the Phoenix City Council
This item is for discussion only.

Daniel Valenzuela,
Councilman

4. |Presentation from the Phoenix City Manager’s Office
This item is for discussion only.

David Cavazos, City
Manager

5. |Ethics Presentation
This item is for discussion only.

Teri Traaen, Traaen &
Associates, LLC

6. |Employee Unions/Associations Panel Discussion
e AFSCME 2384
AFSCME 2960
ASPTEA
IAFF 493
LIUNA 777
PLEA
e PPSLA
This item is for discussion only.

Union/Association
Representatives

7. |Future Agenda Items
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

8. Call to the Public

Rick Romley, Chairperson

9. |Next Meeting Date
This item is for information only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

10. |Adjournment

Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant 1, Human

Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at VVoice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

September 27, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE will hold a meeting open to the public on October 15,
2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the Council Chambers, 200 West Jefferson,

Phoenix, Arizona 85003.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. |Call to Order Rick Romley, Chairperson

2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from October 1, 2012 Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.

3. |Presentation from Mike Hutchinson Mike Hutchinson, Former

City Manager, City of

This item is for discussion only. Mesa

4. |Public Comment Rick Romley, Chairperson
The purpose of this item is to invite public comment on how
to strengthen the City of Phoenix’s ethics codes.
This item is for discussion only.

5. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion only.

6. |Call to the Public Rick Romley, Chairperson

7. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for information only.

8. |Adjournment Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human
Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

October 10, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE will hold a meeting open to the public on October 29,
2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams
Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. |Call to Order Rick Romley, Chairperson

2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from October 15, 2012 Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.

3. |Presentation on Best Practices Pertaining to Elected Daniel L. Brown,
Officials and Board and Commission Members — Law Law Department
Department
This item is for discussion only.

4. |Presentation on Best Practices Pertaining to Employees Janet Smith, Human
and Volunteers — Human Resources Department Resources Department
This item is for discussion only.

5. |Discussion of Subcommittee Work Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion and possible action.

6. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion only.

7. |Call to the Public Rick Romley, Chairperson

8. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for information only.

9. |Adjournment Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human
Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

October 25, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED
OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED
OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS and to the general
public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON
ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS will hold a
meeting open to the public on November 5, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the
Conference Room 7-A, 7" Floor, Public Transit Building, 302 North 1%' Avenue,

Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. Call to Order

Rick Romley, Chairperson

2. |Discussion of the Applicability of Administrative
Regulations for Elected Officials
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

2. Discussion of Potential Enforcement Mechanisms
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

3. Discussion of Additional Subcommittee Work
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

4. |Future Agenda Items
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

5. |Next Meeting Date
This item is for information only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

6. |Adjournment

Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, Mayor’s Office

602-261-8983.

For reasonable accommodations, call Jeff Stapleton at Voice/602-261-8983 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

Parking Accommodations are available for an hourly fee on-site. The parking garage will

close at approximately 7:30 p.m.

November 1, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES,

VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES,
VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES,
VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFICERS will hold a meeting open to the public on
November 8, 2012, at 3:30 p.m. located in the Executive Training Room, 5™ Floor,
Personnel Building, 135 North 2" Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. |Call to Order Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
2. |Presentation on Civil Service Board Janet Smith,
This item is for discussion and possible action Human Resources
3. |Presentation on Social Media Kathy Haggerty,
This item is for discussion and possible action Human Resources
4. |Ethics Gap Analysis Janet Smith and Kathy
This item and sub-items are for discussion and possible |Haggerty,
action Human Resources
5. |Presentation on Zoning Hearing Officers Derek Horn,
This item is for discussion and possible action Planning and Development
6. |Future Agenda Items Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
This item is for discussion only.
7. |Next Meeting Date Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
This item is for information only.
8. |Adjournment Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant 1l, Human
Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 6, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED
OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED
OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS and to the general
public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON
ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS will hold a
meeting open to the public on November 8, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the
Conference Room 7-A, 7" Floor, Public Transit Building, 302 North 1°' Avenue,

Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. Call to Order

Rick Romley, Chairperson

2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 5, 2012
This item is for discussion and action.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

3. Discussion of Potential Enforcement Mechanisms
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

4. Discussion of Additional Subcommittee Work
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

5. |Future Agenda Items
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

6. |Next Meeting Date
This item is for information only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

7. |Adjournment

Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, Mayor’s Office

602-261-8983.

For reasonable accommodations, call Jeff Stapleton at Voice/602-261-8983 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

Parking Accommodations are available for an hourly fee on-site. The parking garage will

close at approximately 7:30 p.m.

November 6, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES,

VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES,
VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES,
VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFICERS will hold a meeting open to the public on
November 15, 2012, at 3:30 p.m. located in the Executive Training Room, 5™ Floor,
Personnel Building, 135 North 2" Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. |Call to Order Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson

2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 8, 2012 Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.

3. |Social Media Discussion Janet Smith,
This item is for discussion and possible action Human Resources

4. |Ethics Gap Analysis Janet Smith and Kathy
This item is for discussion and possible action Haggerty,

Human Resources

5. |Future Agenda Items Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
This item is for discussion only.

6. |Next Meeting Date Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
This item is for information only.

7. |Adjournment Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human
Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at VVoice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 14, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES,
VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES,
VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES,
VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFICERS will hold a meeting open to the public on
November 19, 2012, at 3:30 p.m. located in the Executive Training Room, 5™ Floor,
Personnel Building, 135 North 2nd Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. |Call to Order Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson

2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 15, 2012 Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.

3. |Review of Public Comments from the Previous Meeting |Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
This item is for discussion and possible action.

4. |Volunteer Discussion Janet Smith,
This item is for discussion and possible action. Human Resources
5. |Review and Adoption of Subcommittee Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson

Recommendations
This item is for discussion and action.

6. |Next Meeting Date Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
This item is for information only.
7. |Adjournment Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant II, Human
Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at VVoice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 16, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED
OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED
OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS and to the general
public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON
ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS will hold a
meeting open to the public on November 19, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the
Conference Room 7-A, 7" Floor, Public Transit Building, 302 North 1%' Avenue,

Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. Call to Order

Rick Romley, Chairperson

2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 8, 2012
This item is for discussion and action.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

3. Presentation and Discussion on Subcommittee’s Draft
Recommendations
This item is for discussion and possible action.

Daniel L. Brown,
Law Department

4. |Adoption of Subcommittee Recommendations
This item is for discussion and action.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

5. |Future Agenda Items
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

6. |Next Meeting Date
This item is for information only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

7. |Adjournment

Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, Mayor’s Office

602-261-8983.

For reasonable accommodations, call Jeff Stapleton at Voice/602-261-8983 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

Parking Accommodations are available for an hourly fee on-site. The parking garage will

close at approximately 7:30 p.m.

November 15, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE will hold a meeting open to the public on November
26, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the Adams Street Training Center, 304 West
Adams Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. |Call to Order Rick Romley, Chairperson
2. |Approval of October 29, 2012, Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task [Rick Romley, Chairperson
Force Meeting Minutes
This item is for discussion and action.
3. |Approval of November 19, 2012, Subcommittee on Elected |Rick Romley,
Officials and Boards and Commissions Members Meeting |Subcommittee
Minutes Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.
4. |Approval of November 19, 2012, Subcommittee on Elizabeth Finn,
Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers Meeting Subcommittee
Minutes Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.
5. |Presentation of Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Elizabeth Finn,
Officers Subcommittee Recommendations Subcommittee
This item is for discussion and possible action. Chairperson
6. |Presentation of Elected Officials and Boards and Rick Romley,
Commissions Members Recommendations Subcommittee
This item is for discussion and possible action. Chairperson
7. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion only.
8. |Call to the Public Rick Romley, Chairperson
9. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for information only.
10. |Adjournment Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant I, Human
Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 21, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE will hold a meeting open to the public on December
10, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the Adams Street Training Center, 304 West
Adams Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. |Call to Order Rick Romley, Chairperson
2. |Approval of November 26, 2012, Ethics Review Ad Hoc Rick Romley, Chairperson
Task Force Meeting Minutes
This item is for discussion and action.
3. |Review of Draft Version Report of Task Force Task Force Members
Recommendations
The purpose of this item is to review the draft report and
make amendments to it, as motioned by members.
This item is for discussion and possible action.
4. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for discussion only.
5. |Call to the Public Rick Romley, Chairperson
6. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley, Chairperson
This item is for information only.
7. |Adjournment Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human
Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

December 7, 2012




NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE will hold a meeting open to the public on January 7,
2013, at 4:30 p.m. located in the Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams

Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. Call to Order

Rick Romley, Chairperson

2. |Approval of December 10, 2012, Ethics Review Ad Hoc
Task Force Meeting Minutes
This item is for discussion and action.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

3. |Discussion of City Budget Process

This item is for discussion only.

Jeff DeWitt, Finance
Director / Mario Paniagua,
Budget & Research
Director / Michelle Kirby,
Deputy Finance Director

4. |Review of Edits to the Draft Report of Task Force
Recommendations
This item is for discussion and possible action.

Dan Brown, Law
Department

5. Review of Feedback Received on Draft Recommendations

This item is for discussion and possible action.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

6. |Potential Adoption of Draft Report
This item is for possible action.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

7. |Future Agenda Items
This item is for discussion only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

8. Call to the Public

Rick Romley, Chairperson

9. |Next Meeting Date
This item is for information only.

Rick Romley, Chairperson

10. |Adjournment

Rick Romley, Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human

Resources Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or
TTY/602-261-8687 as early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

January 4, 2013




NOTICE OF RESULTS

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE held a meeting open to the public on September 17, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in
the Adams Street Training Center, 140 North 3" Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Called to Order|1. |Call to Order Rick Romley,
Chairperson
No Action |2. |Introductions of Task Force Members and Staff Rick Romley,
Taken This item is for discussion and possible action. Chairperson
Discussed |3. |Message from the Mayor Greg Stanton, Mayor
This item is for discussion only.
No Action |4. |Discussion of the Task Force Charge Greg Stanton, Mayor /
Taken This item is for discussion and possible action. Rick Romley,
Chairperson / Task
Force
Discussed |5. |Message from the Chairperson Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Presentation |6. |Open Meeting Law Training Joey Casto, City Clerk
Made This item is for discussion only. Department
Presentation |7. |Review of Ethics Legal Framework Law Department Staff
Made This item is for discussion only.
Presentation |8. |Review of Current Ethics Policies and Practices Janet Smith, Human
Made This item is for discussion only. Resources Department
Discussed |9. |Future Agenda ltems Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Comments [10.|Call to the Public Rick Romley,
Received Chairperson
Discussed |11. Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
Meeting This item is for discussion and action. Chairperson
Schedule
Adjourned |[12.|Adjournment Rick Romley,
Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant I, Human Resources

Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as

early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

September 18, 2012




NOTICE OF RESULTS
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE held a meeting open to the public on October 1, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the

Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Called to Order|1. |Call to Order Rick Romley,
Chairperson
Approved |2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from September 17, 2012 |Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion and action. Chairperson
Discussed |3. |Message from Members of the Phoenix City Council Daniel Valenzuela,
This item is for discussion only. Councilman
Presentation |4. |Presentation from the Phoenix City Manager’s Office David Cavazos, City
Made This item is for discussion only. Manager
Presentation |5. |Ethics Presentation Teri Traaen, Traaen &
Made This item is for discussion only. Associates, LLC
Discussed |6. |Employee Unions/Associations Panel Discussion Union/Association
e AFSCME 2384 Representatives
e AFSCME 2960
e ASPTEA
e |AFF 493
o LIUNA 777
e PLEA
e PPSLA
This item is for discussion only.
Discussed |7. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Comments |8. |Call to the Public Rick Romley,
Made Chairperson
Discussed |9. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned |10.|Adjournment Rick Romley,

Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant I, Human Resources
Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

October 2, 2012




NOTICE OF RESULTS
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS

REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE held a meeting open to the public on October 15, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the

Council Chambers, 200 West Jefferson,
Phoenix, Arizona 85003.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Called to Order|1. |Callto Order Rick Romley,
Chairperson
Approved |2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from October 1, 2012 Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion and action. Chairperson
Presentation |3. |Presentation from Mike Hutchinson Mike Hutchinson,
Made Former City Manager,
This item is for discussion only. City of Mesa
Comments [4. |Public Comment Rick Romley,
Received The purpose of this item is to invite public comment on |Chairperson
how to strengthen the City of Phoenix’s ethics codes.
This item is for discussion only.
Discussed |5. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Comments |6. |Call to the Public Rick Romley,
Received Chairperson
Discussed |7. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned |8. |Adjournment Rick Romley,
Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human Resources
Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as

early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

October 16, 2012




NOTICE OF RESULTS
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE held a meeting open to the public on October 29, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the
Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Calledto |1. |[Callto Order Rick Romley,
Order Chairperson
Approved |2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from October 15, 2012 Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion and action. Chairperson

Daniel L. Brown,
Law Department

Presentation on Best Practices Pertaining to Elected
Officials and Board and Commission Members — Law
Department

This item is for discussion only.

Presentation |3.
Made

Presentation |4. |Presentation on Best Practices Pertaining to Employees |Janet Smith, Human

Made and Volunteers — Human Resources Department Resources Department
This item is for discussion only.

Discussed |5. |Discussion of Subcommittee Work Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion and possible action. Chairperson

Discussed |6. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson

No 7. |Call to the Public Rick Romley,
Comments Chairperson

Received

Discussed |8. [Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
This item is for information only. Chairperson

Adjourned |9. [Adjournment Rick Romley,
Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human Resources
Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

October 30, 2012



NOTICE OF RESULTS
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARDS
AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
MEMBERS held a meeting open to the public on November 5, 2012 at 4:30 p.m. located in the
Conference Room, 7" Floor, Public Transit Building, 302 North 1% Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Calledto |1. [Callto Order Rick Romley,
order Chairperson
Discussed |2. |Discussion of the Applicability of Administrative Regulations |Rick Romley,
for Elected Officials Chairperson
This item is for discussion only.
Discussed |3. |[Discussion of Potential Enforcement Mechanisms Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Discussed |4. |Discussion of Additional Subcommittee Work Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Discussed |5. [Future Agenda Items Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Discussed |6. [Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned |7. |Adjournment Rick Romley,
Chairperson

For further information, please call Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, Mayor’s Office at 602-261-
8983.

For reasonable accommodations, call Jeff Stapleton at Voice/602-261-8983 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 6, 2012



NOTICE OF RESULTS

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS

AND HEARING OFFICERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND
HEARING OFFICERS and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFICERS held a meeting
open to the public on November 8, 2012, at 3:30 p.m. located in the Executive Training Room, 5"

Floor, Personnel Building, 135 North 2" Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Called to |1. |Call to Order Elizabeth Finn,
Order Chairperson
Presentation |2. |Presentation on Civil Service Board Janet Smith,
Made This item is for discussion and possible action. Human Resources
Presentation |3. |Presentation on Social Media Kathy Haggerty,
Made This item is for discussion and possible action. Human Resources
Tabled to |4. |Ethics Gap Analysis Janet Smith and Kathy
Future This item and sub-items are for discussion and Haggerty,
Agenda possible action. Human Resources
Presentation |5. |Presentation on Zoning Hearing Officers Derek Horn,
Made This item is for discussion and possible action. Planning and Development
Discussed |6. |Future Agenda ltems Elizabeth Finn,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Information |7. |[Next Meeting Date Elizabeth Finn,
Provided This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned |8. |Adjournment Elizabeth Finn,

Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human Resources
Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 9, 2012



NOTICE OF RESULTS
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARDS
AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
MEMBERS held a meeting open to the public on November 8, 2012 at 4:30 p.m. located in the
Conference Room, 7" Floor, Public Transit Building, 302 North 1% Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS

Called to Call to Order Rick Romley,
order Chairperson

Approved Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 5, 2012 Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion and action. Chairperson

Discussed Discussion of Potential Enforcement Mechanisms Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson

Discussed Discussion of Additional Subcommittee Work Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson

Discussed Future Agenda Items Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson

Discussed Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
This item is for information only. Chairperson

Adjourned Adjournment Rick Romley,
Chairperson

For further information, please call Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, Mayor’s Office at 602-261-
8983.

For reasonable accommodations, call Jeff Stapleton at Voice/602-261-8983 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

December 7, 2012



ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS

NOTICE OF RESULTS

AND HEARING OFFICERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND

HEARING OFFICERS and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFICERS held a meeting

open to the public on November 15, 2012, at 3:30 p.m. located in the Executive Training Room,

5" Floor, Personnel Building, 135 North 2"* Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Called to |1. |Call to Order Elizabeth Finn,
Order Chairperson
Approved |2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 8, 2012 |Elizabeth Finn,
with Chairperson
Amendment This item is for discussion and action.
Discussed |3. |Social Media Discussion Janet Smith,
This item is for discussion and possible action. Human Resources
Discussed |4. |Ethics Gap Analysis Janet Smith and Kathy
Haggerty,
This item is for discussion and possible action. Human Resources
Discussed |5. |Future Agenda Items Elizabeth Finn,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Information |6. |Next Meeting Date Elizabeth Finn,
Provided This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned |7. |Adjournment Elizabeth Finn,
Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant I, Human Resources

Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at VVoice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 16, 2012



NOTICE OF RESULTS

ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS

AND HEARING OFFICERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND
HEARING OFFICERS and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS held a meeting
open to the public on November 19, 2012, at 3:30 p.m. located in the Executive Training Room,
5" Floor, Personnel Building, 135 North 2"* Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Called to Order (1. |Call to Order Elizabeth Finn,
Chairperson
Approved 2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 15, 2012 |Elizabeth Finn,
This item is for discussion and action. Chairperson
No Comments |3. |Review of Public Comments from the Previous Elizabeth Finn,
Received Meeting Chairperson
This item is for discussion and possible action.
Approved 4. |Volunteer Discussion Janet Smith,
Recommendations This item is for discussion and possible action. Human Resources
Approved 5. |Review and Adoption of Subcommittee Elizabeth Finn,
Revised Recommendations Chairperson
Recommendations This item is for discussion and action.
Information 6. |Next Meeting Date Elizabeth Finn,
Provided This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned 7. |Adjournment Elizabeth Finn,
Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant I, Human Resources
Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at VVoice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 20, 2012



NOTICE OF RESULTS
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED
OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARDS
AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
MEMBERS held a meeting open to the public on November 19, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the
Conference Room 7-A, 7 Floor, Public Transit Building, 302 North 13t Avenue, Phoenix,
Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Calledto |1. |Call to Order Rick Romley,
Order Chairperson
Approved |2. |Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 8, 2012 Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion and action. Chairperson
Discussed |3. |Presentation and Discussion on Subcommittee’s Draft |Daniel L. Brown,
Recommendations Law Department
This item is for discussion and possible action.
Discussed |4. |Adoption of Subcommittee Recommendations Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion and action. Chairperson
Discussed |5. |Future Agenda ltems Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Discussed |6. [Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned (7. |Adjournment Rick Romley,
Chairperson

For further information, please call Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, Mayor’s Office, 602-261-
8983.

For reasonable accommodations, call Jeff Stapleton at Voice/602-261-8983 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 20, 2012




NOTICE OF RESULTS
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE held a meeting open to the public on November 26, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in

the Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Called to Order |1. [Callto Order Rick Romley,
Chairperson
Approved 2. |Approval of October 29, 2012, Ethics Review Ad Hoc Rick Romley,
Task Force Meeting Minutes Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.
Approved 3. |Approval of November 19, 2012, Subcommittee on Rick Romley,
Elected Officials and Boards and Commissions Members |Subcommittee
Meeting Minutes Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.
Approved with |4. [Approval of November 19, 2012, Subcommittee on Elizabeth Finn,
Amendment Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers Meeting Subcommittee
Minutes Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.
Presentation |5. |Presentation of Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Elizabeth Finn,
Made Officers Subcommittee Recommendations Subcommittee
This item is for discussion and possible action. Chairperson
Presentation |6. |Presentation of Elected Officials and Boards and Rick Romley,
Made Commissions Members Recommendations Subcommittee
This item is for discussion and possible action. Chairperson
Discussed 7. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
No Comments |8. |Call to the Public Rick Romley,
Received Chairperson
Discussed 9. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned 10. |Adjournment Rick Romley,
Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant I, Human Resources
Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

November 27, 2012



NOTICE OF RESULTS
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE held a meeting open to the public on December 10, 2012, at 4:30 p.m. located in the

Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Called to 1. |Callto Order Rick Romley,
Order Chairperson
Approved with|2. |Approval of November 26, 2012, Ethics Review Ad Hoc |Rick Romley,
Amendment Task Force Meeting Minutes Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.
Discussed |3. |Review of Draft Version Report of Task Force Task Force Members
Recommendations
The purpose of this item is to review the draft report and
make amendments to it, as motioned by members.
This item is for discussion and possible action.
Discussed |4. |Future Agenda ltems Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Comments |5. |Callto the Public Rick Romley,
Received Chairperson
Discussed |6. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned |7. |Adjournment Rick Romley,

Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant I, Human Resources
Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

December 11, 2012




NOTICE OF RESULTS
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the ETHICS
REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE and to the general public, that the ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC
TASK FORCE held a meeting open to the public on January 7, 2013, at 4:30 p.m. located in the

Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, Arizona.

One or more Task Force members may participate via teleconference.

The results of the meeting were as follows:

RESULTS
Calledto |1. |Callto Order Rick Romley,
Order Chairperson
Approved |2. |Approval of December 10, 2012, Ethics Review Ad Hoc |Rick Romley,
Task Force Meeting Minutes Chairperson
This item is for discussion and action.
Discussed |3. |Discussion of City Budget Process Jeff DeWitt, Finance

This item is for discussion only.

Director / Mario
Paniagua, Budget &
Research Director /
Michelle Kirby, Deputy
Finance Director

Actions Taken |4. |Review of Edits to the Draft Report of Task Force Dan Brown, Law
Recommendations Department
This item is for discussion and possible action.
Discussed |5. |Review of Feedback Received on Draft Rick Romley,
Recommendations Chairperson
This item is for discussion and possible action.
Adopted with [6. |Potential Adoption of Draft Report Rick Romley,
Amendments This item is for possible action. Chairperson
Discussed |7. |Future Agenda Items Rick Romley,
This item is for discussion only. Chairperson
Comments [8. |Callto the Public Rick Romley,
Received Chairperson
Discussed |9. |Next Meeting Date Rick Romley,
This item is for information only. Chairperson
Adjourned |10. |Adjournment Rick Romley,

Chairperson

For further information, please call Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, Human Resources
Department 602-495-5715.

For reasonable accommodations, call Tiana Roberts at Voice/602-495-5715 or TTY/602-261-8687 as
early as possible to coordinate needed arrangements.

January 8, 2013




MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
Monday, September 17, 2012

Adams Street Training Center, 140 North 3" Avenue, Phoenix

Present: Rick Romley, Chair; Tim Burke, Member; Ernest Calderdn, Member;
Michael DeMuro, Member (arrived late); Elizabeth Finn, Member; David
Gass, Member; Wayne George, Member; Brandon Goad, Member; Bill
Hardin, Member; Melissa Ho, Member; and, Cecil Patterson, Member

Absent: None
Also
Present: Greg Stanton, Mayor, Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, and Carolyn

Augustyn - Mayor Greg Stanton’s Office; Janet Smith, Human Resources
Director, James May, Deputy Human Resources Director, Tiana Roberts,
Management Assistant Il (Recording Secretary), and Theresa Faull,
Administrative Assistant Il - Human Resources Department; Gary Verburg,
City Attorney, and Daniel L. Brown, Acting Chief Counsel — Law
Department; and, Joey Casto, Administrative Assistant | - City Clerk
Department

1. Call to Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force met on Monday, September 17, 2012, in the
Adams Street Training Center located at 140 North 3" Avenue, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Rick
Romley, Task Force Chairperson, opened the meeting at 4:32 p.m.

2. Introductions of Task Force Members and Staff

Members of the Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force and staff provided introductions,
noting their name and affiliation.

3. Message from the Mayor

Mayor Greg Stanton thanked the members for serving on the Task Force and explained
that he brought together some of the best diversified minds and business leaders in the
City to examine whether the City was engaged in best practices and at the cutting edge
as it should be. He expressed that he wanted the Task Force to see what
improvements could be made so that the public has the maximum level of confidence in
the decisions that are made at the City.

4. Discussion of the Task Force Charge

The Mayor discussed the Task Force’s charge. He explained there were gray areas
and issues surrounding gifts, meals, and conflicts of interest. He expressed that the
Task Force could help the City think through these gray areas and eliminate them if
possible, or outline additional reporting requirements.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
September 17, 2012
Page 2 of 6

5. Message from the Chairperson

Mr. Romley stated that the manner by which elected officials, board and staff conduct
themselves is critical to building public confidence. Mr. Romley also discussed
timelines and noted the Task Force would sunset on December 31, 2012.

Mayor Stanton added comments regarding transparency and his efforts to make key
documents, such as financial disclosure reports, open, online and easily searchable.
He stated the work produced from the Task Force was part of a larger package to
increase public confidence in the City of Phoenix.

Mr. Romley stated the Task Force will be presenting their report to the Public Safety,
Veterans, Transparency, and Ethics (PSVTE) Subcommittee. He explained that he and
Ms. Janet Smith will be attending the September 25, 2012, PSVTE Subcommittee
meeting to provide an initial presentation. Mr. Romley stated the charge of the Task
Force is very broad with very few limitations, which would be defined more as the Task
Force moves forward. He stated the first meetings would be devoted to listening and
learning about City policies and future meetings would include invitees such as the City
Manager, labor organizations, and others to discuss what works and does not work.

Mayor Greg Stanton left the meeting.
6. Open Meeting Law Training

Mr. Romley introduced Joey Casto with the City Clerk Department to provide a
presentation to the Task Force on Open Meeting Law (OML). The following items were
addressed during Mr. Casto’s presentation:

¢ Applicability of OML and that it is mandated by State of Arizona, Arizona Revised
Statute, 38-431;

e Quorums;

e Meeting agendas;

e Methods of voting (roll call or voice vote, no secret ballots or voting by proxy);

e Communication among board members;

¢ Public records (e-mail, social media tweets, or Facebook posts);

¢ Conflict of interest

¢ Calls to the public

In response to a question by Mr. Hardin, Mr. Casto stated public meeting postings are
available online on phoenix.gov.

Mr. Romley asked for an official roll call to ensure a quorum. Mr. Verburg, City
Attorney, conducted the roll call. All Task Force members were noted as present.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
September 17, 2012
Page 3 of 6

7. Review of Ethics Legal Framework

Mr. Romley introduced Daniel L. Brown with the Law Department to provide a
presentation to the Task Force on Ethics Legal Framework. The following items were
addressed during Mr. Brown’s presentation:

e Significant Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS) related to ethics applicable to the City;
e ARS 38-481, related to Employment of relatives;

¢ ARS 38-503, related to Conflict of Interest;

¢ ARS 38-504 (A), (B), and (C) related to Prohibited Acts;

¢ ARS 38-505 (A), related to Additional Income Prohibited;

e ARS 38-510, related to Penalties;

e ARS 41-1232.08 (B), related to Entertainment Ban; Political Subdivisions;

e Significant City of Phoenix ethics laws and regulations;

e City Charter, Chapter XI81, regarding Conflict of Interest, state law applies;

o In response to a question on this topic by Mr. Romley, Mr. Verburg stated the
City could adopt more restrictive provisions (does not require a change to the
Charter), but not more lenient provisions.

e City of Phoenix Ethics Policy, P.C.C. § 2-52;

e Complaints of Ethics Policy violations, P.C.C. § 2-53;

e P.C.C. § 2-1001(6)(7) — Lobbyists; and,

e Administrative Regulations — AR 2.91, Conflicts in Employment, Supervisory, and
Contractual Relationships, and, AR 2.93, City Employee Gift Policy

In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Verburg stated the policies make
distinctions between employees and officers, although some policies may apply to both.
He provided an example that the administrative regulations do not apply to elected
officials because the City Manager does not have authority over elected officials.

Mr. Romley asked about the ambiguities in the policies and suggested that at a future
meeting, staff could highlight areas the Task Force needs to focus on from a legal
perspective.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Mr. Verburg stated the City’s ethics policy and
Charter incorporates state law by reference. He added that the City’s ethics policy
applies to both officers and employees although there was no penal provision for
officers in the Ethics Handbook; whereas employees could be disciplined for violating
the City’s ethics policy.

Mr. Verburg explained that most of the City’s elected officials will declare conflicts not
based upon state statute, but rather on the City’s ethics policies, if there is an
appearance of impropriety, which the City’s ethics policy touches upon.

Mr. Romley asked if the City requires anything in addition to what is required by state
law in reference to declaring a conflict to which Mr. Verburg stated disclosure is made in
the minutes and there is no requirement of a standing declaration. He added that

3



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
September 17, 2012
Page 4 of 6

requiring a standing list was a debatable point; there are legal implications and it is
attorney/client communication, therefore not subject to disclosure.

Mr. Romley asked if declaring conflicts was tied to an elected official’s duties or an
officer’s personal matter to which Mr. Verburg stated the elected official has to make the
choice, but the Law Department is available to give advice.

8. Review of Current Ethics Policies and Practices

Mr. Romley introduced Janet Smith with the Human Resources Department to provide a
presentation to the Task Force on Ethics Policies and Practices. The following items
were addressed:

e Ethics policy;

e Ethics Handbook history — designed by Committee in 1990/91;

e Ethics training;

¢ Ethics Handbook revision — 1997;

e Ethics history — 2003-2005, developed FAQs for board and commission members
and revised the Ethics handbook;

e City’s commitment — core training classes are customer service, civil treatment,
and ethics ;

¢ Value statements — highlighted “We Work with Integrity”;

¢ Electronic communications — governs acceptable use of City’s information
systems;

e Political activity — falls under ethics umbrella — defines prohibited activities;

¢ Solicitation by or of City employees;

e Work conduct — harassment or discrimination not tolerated;

¢ Outside employment;

e Conflicts of interest — employee work/personal relationships with relatives,
roommates, and individuals who share a financial interest;

e Contract or rehire of retirees;

e Gift policy — no employee shall accept gift which could lead to favoritism;

e Ethics relation violations — misuse of City resources for personal use/gain, may not
use a City vehicle for personal use; an example of scavenging from City landfill;

e Components of Ethics Program; and,

e Integrity Committee — outlet for City employees to report fraudulent or unethical
behavior — members include the City Auditor, City Attorney, and a Deputy City
Manager.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Bill Greene, City Auditor, who was in the
audience, confirmed that he reported to the City Manager, but added that he also
reported to the Audit Committee, which is made up of three residents and three elected
officials.

In response to a question by Mr. Hardin, Ms. Smith stated the Integrity Committee was
available for anonymous complaints.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
September 17, 2012
Page 5 of 6

9. Future Agenda Items

The Mayor’s Office provided a handout of a tentative schedule of meetings and future
agenda items and presenters. Mr. Romley reviewed this document with the Task Force.
Mr. Romley opened this item for discussion. He explained that he envisioned the Task
Force would meet every two weeks and that the meetings would be divided into phases:
Phase I, listen and learn; Phase II, discussion, legal research, recommendations; and,
Phase lll, presentation to subcommittee.

Ms. Ho suggested that someone from the business industry and a social media expert
be invited as presenters.

Tim Delaney and Mary Ann Jennings were recommended as potential future speakers.
Mr. DeMuro suggested the Task Force focus attention on loopholes and issues that
have had the biggest impact on the public losing confidence in government, such as
those items in newspaper articles and research on where there have been public
relations issues.

Mr. Burke stated that, regarding relationships, remote interest and substantial interest
were defined in different ways and proposed whether there should be a zero tolerance
policy rather than trying to carve out exceptions.

Mr. Patterson proposed looking at jurisdictions beyond Phoenix.

Mr. DeMuro left the room.

Mr. Gass stated it is important to have consistency between staff and elected officials
and consistency in the definition.

Mr. DeMuro returned to the room.

Mr. Patterson suggested it may be possible to invite a presenter from the Cronkite
School.

Ms. Finn suggested inviting a presenter who had already developed ethical standards.

Mr. Calderon expressed caution about drilling down too deep and recommended,
instead, having the Task Force deal with big ticket items and headline items.

Ms. Finn stated that the law has not caught up with social media and she believed it
was an issue the Task Force needed to address; although, she agreed it needed to be
kept at a high level.

Mr. Verburg reminded the Task Force that if the social media issue is reviewed to be
aware of First Amendment concerns.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
September 17, 2012
Page 6 of 6

Mr. DeMuro suggested identifying two or three ethical issues that would concern
citizens and use those issues to develop agenda items.

Mr. Romley addressed the Task Force and encouraged everyone to develop a list of
items for consideration at future meetings

Mr. Calderon left the meeting.

10. Call to the Public

Mr. Romley asked for a call to the public after discussing Item 11, Next Meeting Date.
Mr. Joseph Patrick “Pat” Vinn provided comments to the Task Force.

Mr. Romley noted the Tuesday, November 13, 2012, meeting would be devoted to the
public to provide comments.

Mr. John Rusnek provided comments to the Task Force and inquired if the Task Force’s
recommendations would be accepted. Mr. Verburg stated he would talk with the
resident regarding his questions.

Ms. Diane Barker provided comments to the Task Force and inquired if the meetings
were going to be televised.

11. Next Meeting Date

This item was taken out of order. Mr. Romley announced the date of the next meeting:
October 1, 2012 at 4:30 p.m.

12. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Mr. Patterson and SECONDED by Mr. DeMuro to adjourn the
meeting. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (7-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m.



MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
Monday, October 1, 2012

Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix

Present: Rick Romley, Chair; Tim Burke, Member (via teleconference); Michael
DeMuro, Member; Elizabeth Finn, Member; Wayne George, Member;
Brandon Goad, Member; and Melissa Ho, Member

Absent: David Gass, Member; Bill Hardin, Member; Cecil Patterson, Member;
Ernest Calderdn, Member

Also

Present: David Cavazos, City Manager, and Sam Feldman, Management Assistant
II, City Manager’s Office; Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, and Carolyn
Augustyn - Mayor Greg Stanton’s Office; Janet Smith, Human Resources
Director, James May, Deputy Human Resources Director, Tiana Roberts,
Management Assistant Il (Recording Secretary), and Theresa Faull,
Administrative Assistant Il - Human Resources Department; Gary Verburg,
City Attorney, and Daniel L. Brown, Acting Chief Counsel — Law
Department

1. Callto Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force met on Monday, October 1, 2012, in the Adams
Street Training Center located at 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Rick
Romley, Task Force Chairperson, opened the meeting at 4:32 p.m.

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes from September 17, 2012

A MOTION was made by Mr. Goad and SECONDED by Mr. George to approve the
meeting minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (6-0).

3. Message from Members of the Phoenix City Council

Councilman Daniel Valenzuela, District 5, thanked the Task Force members for their
service and stressed the importance of reviewing ethics.

Mr. Romley referenced the presentation at the Public Safety, Veterans, Transparency,
and Ethics (PSVTE) Subcommittee meeting held on September 25, 2012. Mr.
Valenzuela stated the PVSTE meeting was televised and he recognized the efforts of the
City Manager, David Cavazos.

4. Presentation from the City Manager’s Office

Mr. Cavazos thanked the Task Force members for their service. Mr. Cavazos introduced
City staff participating in the presentation: Janet Smith, Human Resources Director, Toni



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 1, 2012
Page 2 of 9

Maccarone, Public Information Director, Cris Meyer, City Clerk, Bill Greene, City Auditor,
Jeff DeWitt, Finance Director, and James Scarboro, Deputy Finance Director.

Mr. Cavazos opened the presentation by discussing “The Phoenix Way”. He reviewed
the code of conduct expected of City staff. He added that ethics was regularly reviewed
and the City sought to constantly improve. He provided an example of outreach efforts to
include customers and the community in the budget process.

Ms. Smith reviewed the “City of Phoenix Code of Ethics”. She stressed that ethics
training was a significant part of new employee orientation. She explained that in
addition to Citywide training, departments also had ethics training specific to
departmental needs. She provided two examples: The Police Department had
“Operations Orders” and the Fire Department had a “Professional Standards” booklet.

Ms. Finn joined the meeting.

In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro, Ms. Smith replied ethical violations were coded
by violation of a Personnel Rule, if discipline was imposed.

Mr. DeMuro requested the Human Resources (HR) Department provide general
information and statistics related to ethical violations for a three-year period.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Ms. Smith replied HR is informed of violations
when the act resulted in discipline (written reprimand or higher); oral reprimand was not
tracked by HR.

Ms. Finn stated the Court also had a code of ethics that was stricter and applied to
judges and Court staff.

Mr. Verburg reviewed the rules and regulations for City employees participating in City
Elections. He distributed A.R. 2.16, Political Activity Administrative Regulation.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Mr. Verburg stated, under current policy, there
was not a mechanism in place to report a violation of ethics by an elected official and no
process for discipline; however, there may be enforcement under a penal provision in the
state statutes. He added although the City Charter was expressed for City employees
and the City Manager, under which discipline could be imposed, there was a provision
within it that allowed for an elected official’s removal from office for inappropriately
interfering with employment issues.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Mr. Verburg stated the body (City Council)
implicitly has power to censure its members and could adopt an ethics policy.

In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Verburg stated City employees can take a
leave of absence to participate in campaigns.

Mr. Cavazos reviewed sample industry policies which City employees must also follow.

2



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 1, 2012
Page 30f 9

He provided several examples, one of which was from the American Institute of Certified
Planners Code of Ethics and Professional Conduct. He explained that if an employee
was aware of certain pending zoning, the employee was prohibited from using that
knowledge to seek special advantage such as purchase of the land.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Ms. Smith replied the City’s practice was to
provide a complainant the final decision regarding a complaint against an employee.

Mr. Greene, Chairman of Integrity Committee, stated that in regards to the Integrity
Committee, the complainant will be asked if he/she wants to be briefed on the outcome, if
it was not already requested.

Ms. Maccarone reviewed “Increased Transparency in Decision-Making.” She explained
the City’s efforts to become more transparent and highlighted the following areas:
broadcasting City Council and Subcommittee meetings and replaying the broadcasts on
PHX 11 and YouTube; communication through the use of Facebook, Twitter, and
YouTube; live budget hearing posted to YouTube; and improved online placement for the
search of Public Records.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Ms. Maccarone replied Task Force and Board
meetings could be televised if held in the Subcommittee Room at City Hall.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Ms. Maccarone stated the City’s social media
policy was in draft form, but could be provided to the Task Force.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Ms. Maccarone replied most elected officials
have separate Twitter and Facebook pages. Mr. Verburg explained that if an elected
official used a government-sponsored site, the argument could be made that it was a
public forum not subject to restriction; therefore, elected officials were encouraged to
have their own sites.

Mr. Romley expressed that Congress had some ability to censure conduct.

In response to a question by Mr. Goad, Mr. Meyer explained that lobbyist information and
elected official financial disclosure statements were now available online.

Mr. Meyer reviewed “Increased Transparency through Website Improvements” and the
‘Formal Meeting Page”. He explained that work was being done to develop an on-line
searchable database so that Public Records could be more easily attained.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Mr. Meyer stated Council packets were
available Wednesday or Thursday the week prior to the meeting and the agenda was
posted on the Wednesday prior to the meeting. He added that some board agendas
were often posted up to three days prior to the meeting.

Mr. DeMuro stated he was impressed with the openness of the City and asked if any city
did more than the City of Phoenix. Mr. Cavazos replied the City was a leader and had

3



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 1, 2012
Page 4 of 9

received the Sunny Award for its transparency efforts. He added the philosophy of the
City was to encourage public input and participation in public meetings.

Mr. Green reviewed the makeup of the Integrity Committee and his role as City Auditor.
He explained that when a complaint came in, it was logged and addressed. He stated
that complaints not recommended for corrective action were still reviewed for
consistency. He added that workplace discrimination complaints were referred to the
Equal Opportunity Department.

In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro regarding a recent Arizona Republic news
article about a City employee, Mr. Greene stated if a complaint comes through the
Integrity Committee, there was usually a counseling and education component in addition
to HR’s involvement. Ms. Smith stated HR reviews the employee’s history and supports
progressive discipline.

Mr. Romley asked about Civil Service Board (CSB) rights and Ms. Smith replied most
employees have a right to appeal to the CSB, and the Board ultimately decides the level
of discipline for those appealed. Mr. Cavazos stated the individual mentioned in the
article was not an executive, as noted by the Arizona Republic; this person was
equivalent to an administrative assistant level with CSB rights; an executive would have
been fired.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Ms. Smith replied the City has disciplined
supervisors periodically if they did not adequately take action or provide oversight of the
employee.

Mr. Romley asked if the Integrity Committee can instruct Mr. Greene to look into specific
issues, to which Mr. Greene replied in the affirmative.

Mr. Greene stated Integrity Committee reports go to all members of the City Council and
are posted on the Auditor’s web page.

In response to a question by Mr. Goad regarding allegations against an elected official
coming before the Integrity Committee, Mr. Greene replied that a criminal issue would
require police involvement and for non-criminal issues staff would discuss how best to
proceed.

Mr. DeWitt reviewed “Recent Developments” in “Ensuring Ethical Procurement”. He
explained recent changes to the City’s procurement process including consolidated
procurement websites, vendor management system, transparency policy, and appeal
process.

In response to a question by Mr. Goad, Mr. Verburg replied an individual hired to
advocate on behalf of a company would need to register as a lobbyist, but the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of the company would not need to register since that is not the
CEOQ'’s profession/business.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 1, 2012
Page 5 of 9

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Mr. DeWitt replied purchases over $50,000 for
general goods and services were handled centrally; professional services were handled
in the soliciting department.

Mr. Scarboro reviewed “Upcoming Developments” in “Ensuring Ethical Procurement”. He
explained a working committee comprised of representatives from City departments was
drafting a new procurement policy. He added that centralized training and compliance
support from the City Auditor would be included to ensure consistency throughout the
City.

In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro regarding suppliers who act inappropriately, Mr.
Scaboro replied information was noted in the contract file which was available as a public
record. He explained that a company’s past performance could be taken into
consideration in future procurement offerings. He added a company could also be
precluded from participating in a solicitation for a specific period of time.

In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro regarding the City notifying the public of
suppliers who have acted inappropriately, Mr. Verburg replied the City could be sued for
defamation in those cases.

Mr. Cavazos concluded the presentation. Mr. Romley asked if the City Manager could
provide a presentation at a future meeting regarding receipt of gifts, familial conflicts,
financial conflicts, and professional conflicts.

In response to a question by Ms. Ho, Ms. Smith replied an employee under investigation
is issued a Notice of Investigation (NOI) in which the allegation is outlined, and the
employee can respond to the allegation in writing or verbally.

5. Ethics Presentation

Mr. Romley tabled item 5 and moved to item 6 out of order.

Mr. Romley provided background on Ms. Traaen’s credentials. Ms. Traaen stated she
was a 30-year public servant and approached ethics from the public’s perspective. Ms.

Traaen provided a presentation to the Task Force addressing the following areas:

e Defining Ethics

¢ Doing the right thing at the right time
o Optimum timing is preventative
¢ Public Perceptions and Ethics
o Real issues, borrowed issues, unfounded issues, and unknown issues
o Do not assume government is flawed; assume government is trying to

do the right things
¢ Best Practices — Perceptions Public Service Values

o Trustworthiness, fairness, responsibility, respect, compassion and
loyalty
o Creating a common language

5



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 1, 2012

Page 6 of 9
¢ Best Practices — Key Methods
o Elected body should have same level of expectations
o If ethics is not embedded in performance management, opportunity is
being missed
o Embed an expectation of tangible ethical behavior with the help of

employee groups

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Ms. Smith replied many of the City’s Vision and
Values were addressed in performance evaluations and the City Manager has asked staff
to revisit the value statements.

Ms. Traaen continued her presentation.

¢ Best Practice — Barriers
o Il conceived goals; motivated blindness; indirect blindness, slippery
slope, overvaluing outcomes
¢ Social Media

o Active social networkers show a higher tolerance for activities that
could be considered unethical

o Communication for younger workers is different than for older
generation

Ms. Traaen read policy statements on social media and then continued her presentation.

e Best Practics — Social Media

o Members of elected body attend the same training as employees
¢ Bonus Recap — Checklist

o Ethics Within High Performing Organizations

o Is the organization conducting continuous ethical improvement

o Vendor perceptions on award process and recommendations for

improving the contract award process.
¢ Resources

Ms. Traaen opened the discussion for comments and stated that a copy of the
presentation would be provided to the Task Force.

Mr. DeMuro left the meeting.

Ms. Smith described the Integrity Committee process and stated outside investigators
have occasionally been used.

6. Employee Unions/Associations Panel Discussion

The following members of the City’s employee unions and associations participated in a
panel question and answer process: Rae Kell, Unit 3, American Federation of State,
County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME 2960); Pete Gorraiz, Unit 5, City of Phoenix
and Phoenix Firefighters Association ( IAFF 493); Ron Ramirez, Unit 7, Administrative,

6



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 1, 2012
Page 7 of 9

Supervisory, Professional & Technical Employees Association, (ASPTEA); Ken Crane,
Unit 4, Phoenix Law Enforcement Association (PLEA); Rufino Uribe, Unit 1, Laborers’
International Union of North America, (LIUNA 777); and James Tierney, Unit 2, American
Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, (AFSCME 2384).

Mr. Romley invited the panels response to the three questions provided to the panel in
advance of the meeting:

What kind of common situations cause ethical dilemmas for employees?

¢ Do you believe there are gaps in City policies/programs that increase the risk of
employees being exposed to compromising situations?

e What are your recommendations for the Task Force?

Mr. Tierney described a situation in which he was accused of vandalizing a City
Councilman’s vehicle and being the recipient of negative email blasts by the City
Councilman. Mr. Tierney stated he had a right as a citizen to sign a petition to recall a
Councilperson.

In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Verburg replied an employee would be in
violation of City policy if, on his own time, the employee participated in a petition for a City
recall. Mr. Verburg provided background as to why prohibitions on political activity were
in place.

Mr. Gorraiz stated he could not identify specific situations that were problematic. He
explained that departments did a good job of letting employees know what was and was
not appropriate. He expressed through progressive discipline repeat offenders get taken
care of through the process. He stated the City should make a distinction between what
was in the City Charter versus an Administrative Regulation (A.R.). He expressed that he
believed A.R.s go beyond what was legal, such as an employee not being allowed to sign
a petition. Mr. Gorraiz stated he would like to see the Task Force recommend that
employees be allowed to be involved in City elections during off duty, and develop a
process that includes penalties to address elected officials who violate provisions and
have the City Council vote on it

Ms. Kell outlined an example of an employee issue related to ethical violations and
progressive discipline and requested the Task Force to keep the front line workers in
mind when reviewing ethics.

In response to a question from Mr. Romley about what information was provided to
employees about their rights, Ms. Smith replied in addition to some departments having a
checklist, an employee is advised of his/her rights when the employee receives an NOI.

In response to a question by Mr. Romley, Mr. Gorraiz stated City unions/associations
were required to represent all employees.

Mr. Uribe stated the union tries to educate employees about their rights by visiting job
sites daily. He explained that union representatives have been allowed to sit in during
supervisory counseling and that Unit 1 had a good relationship with employees and
management.

7



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 1, 2012
Page 8 of 9

Mr. Tierney stated employees do not know where to make an ethical complaint. Mr.
Tierney referenced a Goldwater report and noted he would provide it to Mr. Romley for
reference.

Mr. Gorraiz stated there was a process to address employee behavior. He expressed
that problems occur when a manager takes an issue to HR. In response to a question by
Mr. Romley as to where it should go, Mr. Gorraiz replied the issue could be taken to the
union.

Ms. Finn stated she, prior to being a judge, represented a garbage workers’ union. She
expressed she did not regard absence issues or progressive discipline as ethics issues.
Ms. Kell expressed that her example was brought up because the employee was initially
disciplined based on ethics.

Mr. Ramirez expressed concerns with an HR employee who serves as Secretary to the
CSB and also administers and signs discipline. He stated policies appear to be
guidelines for managers and rules for employees. He added there should be an
independent group that listens to the facts to issue discipline, as the Grievance
Committee was only comprised of managers. Mr. Ramirez commented on the Phoenix
Employee Relation Board (PERB), grievance and discipline processes.

Mr. Romley asked if there were different processes. Ms. Smith replied most employees
have CSB rights for disciplinary appeals. She explained the CSB was a five-member
board appointed by the Mayor. Ms. Smith described PERB, which hears unfair labor
practices and applies to the five Meet and Confer groups. She added supervisory groups
were Meet and Discuss which did not have the same access to PERB as the Meet and
Confer groups.

Mr. Crane stated PLEA employees were subject to Hatch Act violations and it was not
clear to employees about what constitutes an ethical violation and how to make a
complaint. He explained in Police, everything gets lumped into “unprofessional conduct”
and the process was more forgiving for higher level employees. Mr. Crane stated there
were problems with internal investigations in which some were perceived as unethical.

Mr. DeMuro made an observation that management was doing a good job, public
officials’ behavior can taint the public perspective; and he has heard the
unions/associations references to overtures of double standards for elected officials.

Mr. Romley added he was also hearing double standards expressed in the ranks and
inquired if the process could be enhanced. He emphasized the Task Force wanted to
hear from everyone, which included unions/associations, management and the public.

Mr. Ramirez commented it was a difficult time for employees in the current climate with
elected officials and the public.

Mr. Romley acknowledged that equal treatment and equal standards were items that
would be addressed.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 1, 2012
Page 9 of 9

7. Future Agenda Items

Mr. Romley stated that in addition to Mike Hutchinson presenting at the next meeting,
public comment would also be an item rather than waiting until November. After some
discussion among the Task Force, Mr. Romley expressed the importance of public
involvement and five minutes with a timer was agreed to for public comments.

Mr. Romley stated the Task Force may break into subcommittee groups. Ms. Finn
inquired if staff could review what other jurisdictions do in relation to elected officials. Mr.
Romley replied in the affirmative and suggested that other elected bodies/entities also be
looked at.

8. Call to the Public

Mr. Luis Acosta provided comments to the Task Force outlining his employment and
discipline history with the City of Phoenix (documentation provided to the Task Force and
available upon request to the meeting recording secretary).

Mr. Burke left the meeting (via teleconference).

Ms. Gail LaGrander provided comments to the Task Force and inquired about public
participation. She asked whether she could provide the Task Force with research, to
which Mr. Romley replied that she provide the information to staff for distribution to the
Task Force.

9. Next Meeting Date

The next meeting date is Monday, October 15, 2012.

10. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Mr. George and SECONDED by Mr. Goad to adjourn the
meeting. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (5-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m.






MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
Monday, October 15, 2012

Council Chambers, 200 West Jefferson, Phoenix

Present: Rick Romley, Chair; Tim Burke, Member; Ernest Calderdn, Member; Michael
DeMuro, Member; Elizabeth Finn, Member; David Gass, Member; Wayne
George, Member; Brandon Goad, Member; Bill Hardin, Member; Melissa Ho,
Member; and, Cecil Patterson, Member

Absent: None

Also

Present: Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, and Carolyn Augustyn - Mayor Greg
Stanton’s Office; Janet Smith, Human Resources Director, Tiana Roberts,
Management Assistant Il (Recording Secretary), and Theresa Faull,
Administrative Assistant Il - Human Resources Department; and Daniel L. Brown,
Acting Chief Counsel — Law Department

1. Callto Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force met on Monday, October 15, 2012, in the Council
Chambers located at 200 West Jefferson, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Rick Romley, Task Force
Chairperson, opened the meeting at 4:32 p.m.

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes from October 1, 2012

A MOTION was made by Mr. Goad and SECONDED by Ms. Ho to approve the meeting

minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (8-0). Mr. Patterson noted he abstained from
voting on the minutes because he was not present at the last meeting.

3. Presentation from Mike Hutchinson

Mr. Romley introduced Mr. Mike Hutchinson, noting that Mr. Hutchinson was the former City
Manager for the City of Mesa, Arizona, and outlining Mr. Hutchinson’s career accomplishments.

Mr. Hutchinson opened his presentation by thanking the Task Force and outlining the City of
Mesa’s efforts to develop an ethics program. He explained Mesa adopted its first code of ethics
in 1996, which was driven by the desire to have more organizational awareness about ethics
and align conduct with the City’s values. Mr. Hutchinson outlined the components of Mesa’s
handbook and discussed the implementation of the ethics program which included publicity,
such as employee newsletters and staff meetings, training, such as new employee orientation,
and that ethics was incorporated into the performance evaluation system. He stated the
handbook was revised in 2000, soon after Mr. Hutchinson was appointed as City Manager.

Mr. Hutchinson added that an ethics handbook for elected officials and city advisory board
members was developed in 1998.

Mr. Hardin joined the meeting.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 15, 2012
Page 2 of 7

Mr. Hutchinson explained that the handbook was developed by an Ad Hoc Committee after
extensive deliberation and careful consideration of the issues, such as: general character,
conflicts of interest, legal compliance, open meeting law, attendance at meetings, political
activities, use of city equipment, expense reports, travel and reporting procedures, and
penalties and sanctions for those elected or appointed officials. He stated the code was
adopted initially through a resolution but city charter changes required a public vote, which
occurred in March 2000. He explained the approved charter changes allowed for sanctions for
elected officials: Section 206-B of the Mesa City Charter gives the City Council the option to
suspend, censure, reprimand, impose a monetary penalty, letter of warning, or other form of
discipline or combination of the above on the affirmative vote of five out of seven members; and
Section 207 of the charter outlines the review process and the rights of those accused. He
added that the Mesa City Attorney’s office provided ongoing training for new councilmembers
and advisory board members.

Mr. Hutchinson expressed the following observations in regards to ethics: leadership has to
come from the top of the organization, e.g. “model the way”; provide ongoing training; include
ethical standards as an integral part of the performance evaluation system; establish a strong
audit function; apply consistent discipline procedures and sanctions; adjust to changes in
technology and discuss the appropriate use of new technology; and, provide a clear and simple
reporting mechanism to report unethical situations.

Mr. Hutchinson asked for questions from the Task Force.

In response to a question from Mr. Romley, Mr. Hutchinson stated elected officials had to follow
state law regarding conflicts and gifts, but a code of ethics was not adopted until 2000. He
added that once adopted, the ethics policies were generally consistent with the policies that
applied to employees. He explained the Ad Hoc Committee of citizens looked at different
standards and heard various experts and believed it was important to have consistency.

Mr. Burke asked for two or three examples of the most common ethics lapses observed among
City officials and employees. Mr. Hutchinson replied that occasionally there was not an
understanding of conflict of interest in terms of voting and land use/zoning issues. He
explained that staff would advise officials about conflict of interests and declaring a conflict,
noting that the issues were sometimes complex and hard to understand. He added there were
occasional travel, entertainment and gift issues, most of it minor; and issues in public safety
regarding inappropriate behavior, which was related to character and standards in performance.

Mr. DeMuro asked why elected officials required a separate handbook from City employees if
the policies were consistent. Mr. Hutchinson explained there were two distinct roles that
required separate handbooks.

Mr. Calderon asked if an employee could be terminated at the first instance of dishonesty; could
that work in a city and, if not, why? Mr. Hutchinson stated most cities had well-established
personnel systems and rules and there were different levels of discipline. He explained
terminating on the first offense would depend on the degree of dishonesty and would need to
be determined on a case-by-case basis.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 15, 2012
Page 3 of 7

Mr. Goad asked how often Section 206 has been invoked to which Mr. Hutchinson stated Mesa
has not had to invoke it at all, as there has not been any serious issues to address.

Mr. Goad asked how the process works and how issues are brought before the City Council for
review. Mr. Hutchinson explained the City Attorney’s Office addresses questions of ethics and
hires an independent investigator, whose report is then shared with the City Council. He added
the process has a mechanism to allow the accused redress and an opportunity for a public
hearing.

In response to a question by Mr. Goad regarding a similar process for Phoenix, Mr. Brown said
there was not one for elected officials.

Mr. Romley inquired whether a charter amendment would be required. Mr. Brown replied not
necessarily for Boards and Commissions as there was language in the City code.

4. Public Comment

Mr. Romley explained that the first few meetings of the Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force were
designed to listen and learn from experts in the field, including City management and union
representatives. He expressed the Task Force also wanted to provide an opportunity for the
public to address the Task Force, which was the purpose of tonight's meeting. He added that
the amount of time for each comment had been increased from the City Council standard of two
minutes to four minutes. In response to a question from Mr. Romley, Mr. Brown stated the Task
Force could respond to questions from the public in this format.

Members of the public providing comment:

Greta Rogers

Ms. Rogers stated she had no objections to the Task Force but did not know why the Task
Force was formed. She expressed that the City of Phoenix did not have a systemic or endemic
ethics problem to her knowledge and if it did, she would be aware of it. Ms. Rogers stated she
was not discouraging the Task Force, but found no foundation or need for the review and noted
this was a solution looking for a problem. Mr. Rogers referenced handbooks given to
employees and board/commission members when asked to serve.

Mr. Gass joined the meeting.

Mr. DeMuro stated the Task Force was formed because it had been a period of time since the
present policy had been developed. He explained that one issue, social media, had evolved
through technology and may require policies to be clarified or modified. He added it was
possible the current handbook could be revised.

John Rusinek

Mr. Rusinek discussed an issue he had with the City regarding two houses in his neighborhood,
one involving several vehicles on a non-dust proof driveway and the other involving animals.
Mr. Rusinek discussed meetings he has had with the City where he believes false accusations
were made against him and noted the City surveyed his house and property in an effort to

3



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 15, 2012
Page 4 of 7

guash complaints. Mr. Rusinek stated he felt discriminated against by the City. He added that
Judy Wallace, City Inspector, measured his property and found nothing wrong. Mr. Romley
invited Mr. Rusinek to provide copies of written documents and comments to the Task Force.

Joseph “Pat” Vint

Mr. Vint expressed he could not give his comments in five minutes. He stated the City’s charter
was 100 years out of date and, for 40 years, Phoenix was controlled by 40 businessmen. Mr.
Vint stated the City should operate very simply, with a Mayor/Council developing the rules and
ordinances, and a City Manager managing the departments, but he did not believe the City was
well-managed. Mr. Vint discussed a shopping center he owned and built in 1980 and criticized
comments and actions by former Mayor Paul Johnson. Mr. Vint stated he was confronted by a
City employee at a separate City meeting. Mr. Romley stated he understood the issues were
very personal and invited Mr. Vint to provide written comments to the Task Force. Mr. Vint
stated the visions and values noted on the back of City business cards were written by a few
employees to get Phoenix an award and that nobody read them.

Gail LaGrander
Mr. LaGrander stated she would submit her comments in writing.

Roy Miller

Mr. Miller stated there was a problem with ethics in Phoenix, but not necessarily worse than
anywhere else. He appreciated this issue being addressed and noted the way to address
honesty and ethics was through standards. He stated programs, policies, and seminars were
approaches that were unsuccessful and instead recommended reviewing organizations that
have had success, such as service academies. He explained high standards were the only way
to ensure ethical behavior. He expressed if an employee lies in an official capacity, the
employee should be terminated; this would cause behavior to change. Mr. Miller stated he
would like to see the City be a leader in ethics and discussed recent statistics from military
academies regarding honor violations. Mr. Romley stated the Task Force will be looking at best
practices and asked staff to review practices at military academies.

Paul Barnes

Mr. Barnes stated the ethics issue was mainly with perception and provided the City’s zoning
hearing officer process as an example. He explained the City no longer staffs the meetings
with paid City employees but instead uses non-paid zoning attorneys which gives the
perception of a conflict of interest. He added that more than one attorney was needed because
some attorneys declare conflicts. Mr. Barnes questioned whether that process was best. He
expressed concern with e-mail addresses of Village Planning Committee members not being
available; however, zoning attorneys were able to reach committee members. He stated either
e-mail lists should be made available or the zoning attorney should be limited from lobbying.
Mr. Barnes noted two cases where individuals had to recuse themselves and stated the City
should be looking more closely at who is appointed to zoning boards. He thanked the Task
Force and stated it was a good step forward.

George Pauk
Mr. Pauk stated he was a retired physician with a background in academic medicine and
practice, and expressed his appreciation for the Task Force’s efforts. Mr. Pauk asked the Task

4



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 15, 2012
Page 5 of 7

Force to not overlook large ethical dilemmas, such as health care. He explained thousands of
people die unnecessarily each year due to inadequate healthcare and thousands of others
suffer from problems with health that are unmet. He stated most personal bankruptcy cases
were caused by healthcare issues. Mr. Pauk expressed that for-profit insurance was a failure
and a national health plan was needed. He stated many progressive cities have created
resolutions based on the ethics of this problem and he would provide copies of those
resolutions. Mr. Pauk requested the Task Force consider this an ethical problem.

Mr. DeMuro asked if Mr. Pauk believed the City should take an official position on national
health care to which Mr. Pauk replied it should at least be a resolution by the City Council. In
response to a question by Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Brown stated it is something the City Council is
authorized to do under the City Charter, if they so choose.

Diane Harris

Ms. Harris stated one aspect of ethics was transparency and she would have preferred to know
the meeting start time instead of the time for public comment. She expressed the City’s website
was difficult to browse and she must frequently call to find information. She stated members of
boards/committees are often the same people and the City needs fresh voices and no conflicts
of interest. Ms. Harris asked why the text amendment process was removed from the Village
Planning Committee and noted the current process for text amendments is not subject to Open
Meeting Law. Ms. Harris expressed concern with police officer salaries and stated salaries
should increase and police academies reopen so the City can hire more officers. She
expressed concern with the redistricting plan and stated there was not enough public input or
vetting on the final plan. She stated even though the Department of Justice approved the plan,
it did not appear ethical. Ms. Harris expressed there was bad faith in pension reform regarding
employee pension benefits; employee pensions were costly to the City and the pension system
needed to be reinvented to not burden the taxpayer.

Mr. Romley stated pension reform was a different committee and noted the Village Planning
Committee was subject to Open Meeting Law. Mr. Romley directed staff to obtain information
on the change of policy regarding the text amendment process and Village Planning
Committee.

John Boggs

Mr. Boggs provided his background and noted the City states they are dedicated to serving
customers; however, he would rather be called a citizen rather than a customer. Mr. Boggs
provided comments regarding information on several pages of the City’s Ethics Handbook:
page three did not speak to evaluation comments; page six spoke of gifts, however, he stated
there were some gifts that must be accepted, because if not, would be considered an insult in
some cultures; and page 16 did not address purposeful false accusations. He questioned what
would happen if someone made a false accusation. Mr. Boggs stated if the Task Force
intended to research the military to look at service Inspector Generals rather than the military
academies. He explained Inspector Generals deal with civilian issues, whereas academies
deal with uniform code of justice and rules of evidence do not apply.

Luis Acosta
Mr. Acosta stated he is a former employee with the City of Phoenix and a resident. He

5



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 15, 2012
Page 6 of 7

explained at a prior Task Force meeting, he discussed the City’s unethical practices and what
he refers to as bullying by the City. Mr. Acosta referred to two e-mails outlining an employee
grievance he had regarding longevity and stated he retired out of fear. He explained he has 16
years of documents. Mr. Acosta stated he was always found guilty of discipline and believes it
was because he was a “whistleblower”. He stated he received four suspensions and will be
defending his actions on a website to be developed. Mr. Acosta expressed concern that
documents he previously provided were not included in the prior meeting’s minutes to which Mr.
Romley explained the minutes reflect that Mr. Acosta’s documentation was provided to the Task
Force and is available to the public upon request. Mr. Acosta expressed concern that his
documents could have been edited prior to submission to the Task Force. Mr. Romley invited
Mr. Acosta to provide any written documents to the Task Force and if Mr. Acosta believes the
documents are not provided to the Task Force, to let him know.

Rachel Phillips

Ms. Phillips expressed her appreciation to speak to the Task Force. She stated this is a state
where an individual can be terminated without reason, which she considered unethical. Ms.
Phillips provided her background as a former employee with the City Parks and Recreation
Department and a volunteer advocate teaching children. She provided examples of what she
believed to be unethical behavior while she worked for the City. She explained when she
reported an employee for removing an under-aged student from a program without notifying the
parent, she was asked to leave the program. She stated she was terminated for being
outspoken and reporting a co-worker’s driving incident. Mr. Romley stated Ms. Phillips could
provide her comments in writing to the Task Force.

Bev Konik

Ms. Konik discussed transparency in zoning and development. She stated informal decisions
made by zoning hearing officers become unpublished precedents. Ms. Konik stated she
inquired why they were not published and was told there was a limit on what could be put on
the servers. Ms. Konik emphasized her concerns with transparency in conflicts of interest. She
expressed that volunteer zoning hearing officers were from an industry (attorneys) where there
could be an inherent conflict of interest. Ms. Konik stated text amendments are zoning
decisions that apply to the entire city and she was told those meetings are not open to the
public. Mr. Romley asked Mr. Brown if the text amendment committee is open to the public to
which Mr. Brown stated there are various working groups and committees and Law would have
to review and report back to the Task Force.

Dianne Barker

Ms. Barker noted she previously worked for City contractors where she received repercussions
for complaining about not being promoted. Mr. Barker said she has not been heard in Court or
given the right to sue. Mr. Romley thanked Ms. Barker for her comments.

Tony Bracamonte

Mr. Bracamonte thanked the Task Force for the opportunity to speak before it. He requested
the Task Force provide straightforward direction regarding SB 1070 and review the
Intergovernmental Agreement for county jail services between Maricopa County and the City,
which outlines how the City refers criminals, and determine how ethics policies impact that
agreement.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 15, 2012
Page 7 of 7

Mr. Romley concluded the public comment by thanking all attendees.
5. Future Agenda Items

Mr. Romley noted the next Task Force meeting is scheduled for October 29, 2012 at 4:30 p.m.
He requested presentations by Human Resources regarding best practices for employees and
staff, and by Law regarding best practices for elected and appointed officials.

Mr. Romley stated he had identified two subcommittees and will be asking Task Force
members which subcommittee or subcommittees on which they would like to serve. He
explained the Task Force will not meet the following two meetings after October 29" so that the
subcommittees can meet to develop recommendations.

In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Romley stated the November 13th meeting would
not be held. Mr. Gass asked if proposed revisions to ethics policies and procedures would be
drafted by the subcommittees to which Mr. Romley stated it was too early to determine.

Mr. Romley stated the Task Force may focus on major issues that need to be addressed; and,
regarding policies, such as the draft social media policy, the Task Force may complement those
efforts by providing areas for staff to review. Mr. Romley reminded the Task Force also has a
charge from the Mayor to look at specific areas.

Mr. Gass suggested considering the issue of volunteers (e.g., zoning hearing officers), and how
policies affect them, and what happens when a City employee makes a false accusation.

6. Call to the Public
Mr. Luis Acosta expressed that all the meetings should be held in the Council Chambers, to
which other members of the public concurred. Mr. Romley stated he will attempt to have

meetings in the Council Chambers.

Mr. Vint provided additional comments to the Task Force regarding a shopping center he owns
and asked for the e-mail addresses of all Task Force members.

Ms. Finn requested clarification about the subcommittees to which Mr. Romley stated
information would be provided at the next meeting.

7. Next Meeting Date
The next meeting date is October 29, 2012.
8. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Mr. Patterson and SECONDED by Mr. Burke to adjourn the meeting.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (10-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 6:42 p.m.






MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
Monday, October 29, 2012

Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix

Present: Rick Romley, Chair; Tim Burke, Member; Michael DeMuro, Member; Elizabeth
Finn, Member; David Gass, Member; Brandon Goad, Member; Bill Hardin,
Member; Melissa Ho, Member; and, Cecil Patterson, Member

Absent: Ernest Calderon, Wayne George (resigned from Task Force effective 10/29/12)
Also
Present: Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, and Carolyn Augustyn - Mayor Greg

Stanton’s Office; Janet Smith, Human Resources Director, Kathy Haggerty,
Deputy Human Resources Director, Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant |l
(Recording Secretary), and Theresa Faull, Administrative Assistant Il - Human
Resources Department; and Daniel L. Brown, Acting Chief Counsel — Law
Department

1. Callto Order
The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force met on Monday, October 29, 2012, in the Adams Street
Training Center located at 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Rick Romley, Task Force

Chairperson, opened the meeting at 4:34 p.m.

Mr. Romley noted Mr. George will be resigning from the Task Force as he will be unable to
attend several upcoming meetings.

2.  Approval of Meeting Minutes from October 15, 2012

A MOTION was made by Mr. Burke and SECONDED by Mr. Goad to approve the meeting
minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (6-0).

3. Presentation on Best Practices Pertaining to Elected Officials and Board and
Commission Members — Law Department

Judge Finn joined the meeting.

Mr. Brown stated his presentation was meant to be a catalyst for questions and was broken into
the following major jurisdictions: municipal (Phoenix and Mesa), state, and federal (Department
of Defense). The following items were addressed during Mr. Brown’s presentation:

e Phoenix City Code, Section 2-52, which sets out the City of Phoenix Ethics Policy.

¢ Enforcement of Ethics Policy — employees are under the jurisdiction and authority of the
City Manager; Section 2-53 outlines specific practice for Boards and Commissions.
Absent is enforcement related to elected officials. Under the Charter, there is broad
authority for the City Attorney or City Manager to enforce violations of the Charter and
ordinances, but it is not specific to ethics.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 29, 2012
Page 2 of 6

City of Mesa — single ethics policy applies to elected officials, boards and commissions
and employees. Mr. Brown explained Mesa amended its charter to allow the Mesa City
Council to impose enforcement of ethical violations by elected officials. He stated the
Phoenix City Charter did not contain language that allowed for removal of an elected
official and to do so, would require a Charter amendment; however, the addition of
censure or some form of discipline would only require an ordinance or revision to City
Code. Mr. Romley inquired if Administrative Regulations (ARs) applied to City of
Phoenix elected officials to which Mr. Brown stated they did not. Ms. Smith stated ARs
include components of the City’s ethics policy. Judge Patterson inquired if ARs were
managed by the City Manager and did not apply to elected officials, to which Ms. Smith
affirmed. Mr. Hardin inquired how Mesa amended its charter and who referred it to the
ballot, to which Mr. Brown replied the answer could be researched. Mr. Hardin inquired
what the process would be for Phoenix, if the Task Force recommended an amendment
to the Phoenix City Charter, to which Mr. Brown replied the recommendation would go to
City Council and then referred to the ballot.

Judge Gass joined the meeting.
Mr. DeMuro joined the meeting.

Arizona Legislature — Arizona Revised Statute (ARS) 38-519 establishes an Ethics
Committee with regard to the Senate and House (Senate Rule 29 and House Rule 34),
but it is silent with regard to the Executive Branch. Mr. Brown explained the rules were
very specific and contained guidelines for enforcement, whereas city codes were very
broad and general statements. The rules included references to gifts, financial benefit,
the exercise of discretion, and disclosure of information. Mr. Brown stated, according to
an individual in the Attorney General’s Office, there was not one code of ethics
applicable to everyone in the State. He added the Governor and Attorney General had
their own Executive Branch policies.

State Boards and Commissions — the only law located was ARS 38-501, which was a
general statement. Mr. Romley stated it just covered conflicts of interest, to which Mr.
Brown concurred. Mr. Brown outlined the definition of gift under the State Legislature.
Judge Gass stated there was a gift ban from lobbyists although it was not applied
equitably between the Senate and House and their respective members and staff. Mr.
Brown stated the law did not contain an enforcement component, which was the problem
with taking action related to the Fiesta Bowl. Mr. DeMuro inquired if the statute filtered
down to all agencies of the State and whether there were any State statutes regarding
gifts to elected officials or employees. Mr. Brown stated there was not a State law that
determines what gifts are prohibited relative to the City of Phoenix. In response to a
question from Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Brown concurred the City’s gift policy was derived from
the Phoenix City Charter. Judge Finn stated the language under the gift definition
includes an exception regarding “not provided to members of the public at large”. Judge
Gass provided reasoning for why that exception was included in the definition.

Congress - Code of Ethics for Government Service — very straightforward statement and
code; adopted in 1958 and, from there, developed the House Ethics Rules and
Commission and enforcement policies. Mr. Brown outlined the best practices and stated
they were broad general statements and allowed each branch of government to enforce
and apply it to their particular area.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 29, 2012
Page 3 of 6

e House Committee on Ethics — the United States Constitution has an article that
authorizes each house to punish members and includes expelling and removal from
office. Mr. Brown explained the enforcement mechanism in the House is the Standards
Committee and reporting of substantial violations requires approval of the House or two-
thirds of the Standards Committee. In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Brown
affirmed staff has been involved with City ethics policies. Mr. Brown stated he works
with the City Council Chief of Staff and references Section 2-52 of the City Code, noting
that section states: “avoid any improprieties in their roles as public servants and never
use their City position or powers for improper personal gain.” Mr. Brown described
scenarios that frequently arise for discussion and noted the review is very fact-intensive.

¢ Military Code of Ethics- Specific Department of Defense regulation which was recently
changed. Mr. Brown explained general statements were replaced with several pages of
human goals, general ethical values, primary ethical values, and ethical decision-making;
and, it contained enforcement regulations. He added there was also a committee for
complaints and investigation.

Mr. Brown stated the Task Force had requested a matrix and he provided a one-page matrix as
hand-out to Task Force members (also included as a slide in the presentation).

Mr. Brown concluded his presentation stating generally, the same ethical code applied to all
three groups (elected officials, employees, and boards/commissions) and on the elected official
side, enforcement was by peer review. He explained most jurisdictions allowed peers to work
with staff to advise the body as necessary. He reminded that for Phoenix, a Charter
amendment would be required to recommend removal of an elected official, although other
remedies may be adopted by ordinance.

Judge Gass stated volunteers were addressed under State law and gifts were defined very
specifically.

Mr. Romley inquired if ARs could be applied to elected officials and if any jurisdictions impose
an outright ban on gifts. Mr. Brown replied he has seen outright bans on employees or
boards/commissions, but not an outright ban with regard to elected officials. He added he has
generally seen a list of gifts and exclusions or reasonable delineations. He expressed one of
the reasons was access to constituency.

Mr. DeMuro stated there were legitimate reasons for certain events and he inquired if officials
could have their own fund as it would remove the conflict or appearance of conflict. Mr. Romley
stated that option was not available at the County. He provided an example of situations in
which an elected official receives an award and the agency may offer to pay for expenses so
the elected can travel to receive the award.

Mr. Burke expressed the individual needs to determine if there is some quid pro quo. He added
if the individual is going to accept a gift, there has to be clearly no quid pro quo; that decision is
made by the employee or elected official, but guidance should be made available.

Mr. Hardin expressed there may need to be a more rigorous public disclosure process, which
makes it easier to draw a line closer to a complete ban.

3



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 29, 2012
Page 4 of 6

Judge Patterson agreed with Mr. Hardin and emphasized the importance of disclosure.

Judge Finn provided an example where an organization may have the expectation of having
access to an elected official following an event to which the official was invited. She added
disclosure does not solve the problem regarding perception.

Mr. Burke provided an example of federal officials including a budget to educate lawyers, such
as lawyers with the Arizona Bar Association. He explained the federal officials would not
accept paid invitations to speak at conventions in order to avoid the appearance of a conflict of
interest.

Judge Gass stated two different definitions of gift caused problems with the Fiesta Bowl
incident. He expressed a zero tolerance policy could prevent the attendance of the Mayor or
Council at some events in which their attendance would be beneficial for the City. He added if
funds were established to pay expenses of officials at these events, it would create perception
issues.

Mr. Brown responded to a previous question by Mr. Romley by stating that ARs can apply to
elected officials if Council adopts them. He cautioned that the application of all ARs, such as
the gift policy, could be problematic if applied to elected officials.

4. Presentation on Best Practices Pertaining to Employees and Volunteers — Human
Resources Department

Ms. Smith introduced Kathy Haggerty, Deputy Human Resources Director of Support Services.
The following items were addressed during Ms. Smith’s presentation:

e Ethical Violations — State of New York Information Technology official; Fiesta Bowl; Bell,
California salary issues; and Baltimore Transportation employees gambling and drinking
on the job.

o City of Phoenix Headlines — two recent headlines: one regarding inappropriate behavior
and another regarding an employee diverting City funds to a contractor for personal gain.
Ms. Smith stated the employee has since retired, was arrested and charged.

¢ Disciplinary actions — over the last 3 years (total 14,000 employees) approximately 1,800
disciplinary actions were imposed, of which 360 violations might be considered ethics
violations. Mr. Smith explained 271 were related to wasting City resources or using
inappropriate language and she provided examples of taking too long during a break or
taking a City vehicle home for personal use. She added there were a handful of
violations regarding anti-harassment policies (sexual harassment or racial
discrimination), falsifying records (employees failed to submit a leave slip or inflated
overtime hours), conflicts of interest, and stealing or unauthorized possession. She
explained discipline ranges from written reprimand to termination.

e Best Practices identified by the Ethics Resource Center (ERC) include vision and value
statements which define behavior expected in the organization; ethics committee that
oversees policies, looks for trends; ethics officer whom employees can report
wrongdoing and seek guidance on policy interpretation; strong communication strategy

4



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 29, 2012
Page 5 of 6

and training, including required training; ethics help line; measurements and rewards,
which many include in performance evaluations; monitoring and tracking compliance;
and, ethical leadership by setting the example and tone.

In response to a question from Mr. Romley regarding social media, Ms. Haggerty discussed the
City’s draft social media policy and the items that were considered in developing the policy. Ms.
Smith noted the City was holding off on publishing the policy until the Task Force had a chance
to review.

5. Discussion of Subcommittee Work

Mr. Romley noted two Subcommittees have been developed: one for employees and one for
elected officials and input has been requested from Task Force members.

Judge Finn stated a reminder was sent regarding the Employees Subcommittee dates which
are November 8, 15, and 19 at 3:30 p.m.

Mr. Romley outlined the timeline for the remainder of the Task Force’s meetings and stated the
meetings on November 5 and 8 for the Elected Officials Subcommittee will be devoted to
developing basic philosophical points to include in a report. He explained a written report is due
from each subcommittee by November 19 and the reports should be in a semi-final format. He
added the reports will be discussed at the full Task Force meeting on November 26; where the
Task Force will begin deliberations to create one final report due by the end of December. Mr.
Goad stated he may be able to conference call-in for some subcommittee meetings.

Judge Finn confirmed the Employee Subcommittee members include Tim Burke, Bill Hardin
and Cecil Patterson and noted the preference was to have the meeting location downtown.

Judge Finn stated the social media policy is the most difficult. She added First Amendment
rights are not broad. Judge Finn noted concerns with employees not understanding
progressive discipline. She stated the Task Force heard from the public that it is not a clear
message and the issue needs to be addressed.

6. Future Agenda ltems

Review draft Subcommittee recommendations at next full Task Force meeting.

7. Call to the Public

A call to the public was made and no comments were received.

8. Next Meeting Date

The next meeting of the full Task Force was announced as Monday, November 26. In the

interim, subcommittees will be meeting three times and possibly more depending on decision of
the chairs. The Subcommittees will come to the November 26 meeting prepared with a report.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
October 29, 2012
Page 6 of 6

9. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Judge Patterson and SECONDED by Mr. Hardin to adjourn the
meeting. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (9-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m.



MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS
Monday, November 5, 2012

Conference Room, 7" Floor, Public Tranist Building, 302 North 1 Avenue,
Phoenix

Present: Rick Romley, Chair; Ernest Calderon, Member; David Gass,
Member; and Melissa Ho, Member

Absent: Michael DeMuro, Member
Also
Present: Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor, Mayor’s Office, Carolyn

Augustyn- Mayor Greg Stanton’s Office, and Daniel L. Brown,
Acting Chief Counsel- Law Department, Bill Greene, City Auditor,
Penny Parrella, Executive Assistant to the City Council

1. Call to Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and
Boards and Commissions Members met on Monday, November 5, 2012, in the
7" Floor Conference Room located in the Public Transit Building at 302 North 1°t
Avenue, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Rick Romley, Task Force Chairperson, opened the
meeting at 4:39 p.m.

2. Discussion of the Applicability of Administrative Regulations for
Elected Officials

Mr. Romley began the meeting by encouraging an open discussion of the
meeting topics. He went on to clarify that while the City of Phoenix’s Ethics
Handbook does apply to Elected Officials and Boards and Commissions
Members, Administrative Regulations (ARs) do not necessarily apply. Mr.
Romley asked Mr. Brown to review the Administrative Regulations that apply to
ethical issues within the City.

Mr. Brown specified that he chose twelve Administrative Regulations for the
Subcommittee to consider and review. Mr. Brown began with AR 1.63- Electronic
Communications and Information Acceptable Use. He clarified that this AR
discussed the use of electronic communication, especially emails, and
employees’ entitlement to the use of this means of communication. Mr. Brown
advised that parts of this regulation could apply to Elected Officials and noted
that this Administrative Regulation was heavily used by the City as it is the
definitive AR with regards to electronic use.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes
November 5, 2012

In response to Mr. Romley’s question, Mr. Brown replied stating that it was his
understanding that another AR would be passed specifically to cover social
media concerns and work in conjunction with AR 1.63.

Mr. Brown continued the discussion by moving on to summarize AR 1.64- City
Policy on Cellular Equipment and Service. He noted that while parts of the
language were dated, the Subcommittee should be aware of the City’s policy with
regards to cell phone cost management, cellular plans for departmental use, and
employee use of personal cell phones for city business. The regulation also
states that the Information Technology Department oversees all cell phone usage
by City employees.

Mr. Romley asked for further clarification on the matter of employees purchasing
a personal phone and being reimbursed for cell phone use for City business on
the personal device.

In response to Mr. Romley’s question, Mr. Brown acknowledged that the City did
have a number of allowances available, including communication allowances or
reimbursement plans. Mr. Brown stated that this was a complex matter and
varied on a case-by-case basis.

In response to a follow up question from Mr. Romley, Mr. Brown noted that City
business conducted on a personal device (computer or phone) could become
subject to public record, as dictated in AR 1.63- Electronic Communications and
Information Acceptable Use.

Mr. Brown went on to discuss AR 1.90- Information Privacy and Protection, which
requires staff and employees to protect confidential information and prevents the
release of information to 3" party individuals, outside of public records requests.
He stated that AR 1.91- Information Privacy and Protection Supplement- Data
Shared with Third Parties was a supplement to AR 1.90 and included similar
language with regards to 3" party individuals.

Mr. Brown discussed AR 1.92- City of Phoenix Presence on the Public Internet
and the direct effect this AR would have on elected officials. The regulation limits
the use of the City of Phoenix’s logo, City servers and other internet web pages.
Elected officials are not allowed to utilize City internet presence for personal
campaign matters.

Mr. Brown continued the discussion with the summarization of AR 2.33-
Solicitation by or of City Employees During Working Hours, which prohibits the
use of City resources to raise money. Mr. Brown stated that this could be
applicable to elected officials or board members.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes
November 5, 2012

Mr. Brown then reviewed AR 2.62- Work Notices for Outside Employment, Mr.
Brown clarified that this regulation requires the disclosure of outside employment,
in an effort to diminish conflicts of interest. The related regulation, AR 2.91-
Conflicts in Employment, Supervisory and Contractual Relationships, covers
other conflicts of interest. Mr. Brown referred to a previous presentation made by
Janet Smith, Human Resources Director, and restated that the City’s definitions
of conflicts went beyond that of Arizona State Statutes.

Mr. Brown moved on to AR 2.93- City Employee Gift Policy. He stated the
regulation maintained that no City employee can accept any gift, service, or favor
that would lead towards favoritism, regardless of gift value.

Mr. Romley suggested the possible need for a de minimis amount for disclosure
of gifts but also suggested the possibility of denying all gifts, as referenced in Mr.
DeMuro’s submitted written comments. Mr. Brown admitted that a set de minimis
value for gifts would make legal sense but banning gifts all together would create
administrative issues rather than solving ethical issues. He suggested that
accepting gifts over the de minimis value would require disclosure of the gift.

Mr. Calderdn suggested a de minimis value for elected officials of $50.

In response to a clarification request from Mr. Romley, Mr. Brown noted that
disclosure of gifts is generally up to the employee but usually employees are
advised to submit a written form for City files. He also noted that current AR

literature requires disclosure within two days of acceptance of the gift.

Mr. Romley stated that transparency was a major concern and suggested that
there be some sense of immediacy for disclosure for gifts and possibly an online
record search available to the public. Mr. Calderén agreed that this was a good
idea and would ensure that elected officials would act ethically. Mr. Calderén also
suggested there be a public awareness that all gifts over the de minimis value
would have to be reported by the elected official.

Ms. Ho suggested that elected officials should perhaps be required to sign an
affirmation stating the dedication to stay impartial in all decision making following
the acceptance of the gift, along with the submitted gift disclosure form. Mr.
Calderon agreed with Ms. Ho'’s idea, stating the signing of a letter is a strong and
conscious statement towards ethical action.

Mr. Brown warned Task Force members that this affirmation idea could become
legally difficult if future actions change and the acceptance of a gift becomes a
conflict of interest. Mr. Romley responded with the suggestion that if future
conflicts occur, the elected official would be required to file an updated disclosure
form. Mr. Brown responded to this comment by saying this would be difficult
because the official doesn’t always know what is going on with other



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes
November 5, 2012

organizations or possess all of the information. Mr. Brown concluded by stating
the need to encourage officials to disclose all gifts but reconsider the affirmation
idea.

Mr. Romley and Mr. Brown at this point asked Penny Parrella, Executive
Assistant to City Council, for her input with regards to council. Ms. Parrella noted
that a given council member could be in office for twelve years and council staff
changes regularly. She worried that council staff would have a hard time keeping
track of all signed affirmations and wouldn’t always know all of the details for past
trips that occurred previous to staff being hired. Mr. Romley suggested the idea
of electronic filing, which would allow for the parties to be involved to be tracked
or searched for at a later date.

Mr. Brown at this point noted that council members all have different and
complicated City business and each councilmember maintains a “running list” of
relatives or other relations so all actual conflicts are known about up front, in
accordance to state law. The legal department alerts council members if City
business is involved with a member of the list, so the given councilmember is
aware of any potential conflict or appearance of conflict. The City Ethics Code
prohibits the appearance of favoritism, so council members are encouraged to
avoid the appearance of conflicts as well.

Mr. Brown returned back to the list of twelve Administrative Regulations to
summarize AR 5.14- Use of City Property by Elected Officials of Other Political
Jurisdictions, an AR that does apply to elected officials outside of the City of
Phoenix council. Mr. Brown also summarized AR 6.11- City-Owned Motor
Vehicles and Other Fleet Equipment which restricts city staff from using vehicles
for personal use. Finally, Mr. Brown touched upon AR 6.21- Use of Privately
Owned Vehicles and Aircraft on City Business, which allows for the possibility of
travel allowances or reimbursement.

Mr. Brown noted that the most relevant regulations to the Mayor’s charges for the
Task Force included AR 1.63- Electronic Communications and Information
Acceptable Use, AR 2.91- Conflicts in Employment, Supervisory and Contractual
Relationships, and AR 2.93- City Employee Gift Policy.

Mr. Romley asked the members of the subcommittee if the ethics handbook, as
well as the Administrative Regulations, should be applicable to elected officials
and boards and commissions members. Ms. Ho and Mr. Calderdn agreed that it
should be. Mr. Romley agreed with this decision, stating leadership should want
to follow the same regulations as employees in an effort to maintain strong
leadership skills.

In response to a question from Mr. Romley, Mr. Brown clarified that staff is not
allowed to accept a gift of any amount or perceived value if there is any



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes
November 5, 2012

perception of favoritism. Mr. Romley posed the following question to the
members: should elected officials be held to the same standards? Can an
elected official avoid influence entirely?

Mr. Brown stated that adopting the employee’s gift rule exactly as written to
elected officials would not be advisable but did suggest a threshold amount be
the guiding rule for gifts. Mr. Romley agreed, stating that a no-tolerance policy
would be impractical for elected officials.

Mr. Romley, Mr. Calderén, and Ms. Ho agreed to a suggestion that elected
officials should report any gift over $50 in value, regardless of the gift itself, within
two days of accepting the gift. They suggested this should be done electronically
in the interest of transparency and ease of public record requests.

Mr. Brown then posed the following question to the subcommittee: how long after
an elected official’s term expires should the disclosed reports be kept on record?
Mr. Brown notes that state legislature has a similar provision and reports are kept
for one year after expired terms. Mr. Romley suggested to the subcommittee that
these reports should be held on record for two years following the expiration of a
councilmember’s term. Mr. Calderén and Ms. Ho agree to this suggestion.

Mr. Brown went on to ask the subcommittee to further define gifts and exactly
what the term “gifts” will include (food, for example). He notes that state law
excludes food as a gift item, for example.

Judge Gass joined the meeting.

Mr. Calderén and Ms. Ho both agree that food should be considered a gift, which
would help officials be very clear about the acceptance of gifts.

In a response to a question from Judge Gass, Mr. Brown verifies that gifts from
familial relations or significant others are not required to be disclosed. Mr.
Romley, Mr. Calderdn, Judge Gass, and Ms. Ho agree that this exemption
should hold for elected officials.

Judge Gass brings up the issue of lobbyist relations, especially if a family
member or significant other is a lobbyist. Mr. Romley suggests that in this
instance disclosure of any gift should be required. Mr. Brown notes that there is a
City lobbyist provision that requires the disclosure of any gift, irrespective of
value, even if spouse is a lobbyist. The subcommittee agrees to add the lobbyist
provision to apply to elected officials.

Judge Gass proposes a discussion point to the subcommittee to consider
whether the proposed regulations for elected officials should also apply to the



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes
November 5, 2012

officials’ family members. The subcommittee agrees to keep this point in mind
and will discuss at further meetings.

Mr. Romley suggests to the subcommittee that a standing ethics review
committee should continue to review the City’s ethics codes in the future. Mr.
Calderon agrees with this, stating a review committee should at the minimum be
commissioned every ten years. Mr. Romley went on to suggest that perhaps a
different group be commissioned to handle boards and commissions ethics
issues separately, as the subcommittee is not as well versed in the intricacies of
certain boards, like the Village Planning Commissions. This item will be
discussed at future meetings.

Mr. Brown brought up the issue of corporations or LLCs being treated as a
person with regards to the gift policy. Mr. Romley asserted that transparency is of
the utmost importance and that this issue will need to be considered further.

The subcommittee reviewed anonymous comments and questions received by
Human Resources staff. Mr. Romley asked that the subcommittee take the
comments received into consideration.

Mr. Romley again suggested that the Task Force suggest to the Mayor the
commission of a separate group to handle the specific needs of these other
commissions, making note of the number of public comments regarding the
Village Planning Commissions the Task Force has received. Mr. Romley also,
again, suggested a standing need for routine review of the City’s ethics.

Mr. Stapleton suggested a continual review once every four years, ensuring a
review with each new administration. He noted that San Jose, CA has a similar
review process that meets every two years. Judge Gass and Mr. Calderén agree
that this idea makes sense and is a valid suggestion.

3. Discussion of Potential Enforcement Mechanisms

Mr. Romley began a discussion on the possible enforcement methods for elected
officials. Mr. Brown stated that the City Charter allows for most punishment for
ethical or legal violations, except for the removal of an official. He went on to
explain that City Council can be removed from office for violations to City
Charter, but not for City Code.

Mr. Romley goes on to open a discussion for the need of an independent
standing body that would review violation cases. He maintained that there is a
need for independence and is necessary in ensuring cases are handled ethically
and suggested that the board would investigate the issue and forward
recommendations on to City Council for final decisions. Mr. Calderén agreed with



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes
November 5, 2012

this idea, citing the independent complaint review committee that exists for the
state bar.

Mr. Romley suggested that appointments to this board could be made by a
variety of sources; from the Mayor, from the City Manager, from the Ethics Task
Force, among other departments. Mr. Calderén went on to suggest that a citizen
also serve on this independent review board. Judge Gass and Ms. Ho agreed to
the independent board idea.

Judge Gass brought up the issue of public records with regards to complaints
brought to the independent review board. Mr. Calderdn stated that he believed
complaints should not be open to the public until probable cause is decided. Mr.
Brown noted that the City’s policy is similar to this issue and situations under
investigation are not released to the public until after the investigation is complete
and recommends the proposed independent review board follow this guideline
and make complaints public following the termination of the investigation.

Mr. Romley suggests allowing a councilmember or mayor involved in a complaint
the opportunity to go to a court and argue for the complaint to not be released as
a public record. He asserted that this would not be at cost to the City’s budget;
the council member would have to pay for their own counsel. Mr. Brown shared
his concerns with this matter, stating that conflicts between council members
could make the situation very difficult. He asserted that it would be a conflict
between one council member’s use of City funded legal counsel and the other
member being forced to fund his or her own legal counsel. Mr. Brown finished by
saying this would be a difficult position to pass as the issue varies from case to
case.

Mr. Calderdn agreed that Mr. Romley’s ideas had some merit but also
acknowledged that Mr. Brown’s position made more practical sense. Judge Gass
commented that by not releasing information to the public, the public loses faith
in the competency or ethics of the elected officials.

Mr. Brown suggests that council follow the same investigation rules and
regulations that already exist and that the subcommittee not codify council’s right
to challenge the release of the investigation or complaint. Mr. Romley agrees that
this will need to be visited again at future meetings and the wording of this given
action would need to be given serious consideration.

Ms. Ho exited the meeting.
Mr. Brown clarified for Judge Gass that approving the removal of City Council

members would require an amendment to City Charter and would have to be
approved by City Council. Mr. Calderén and Judge Gass both supported this



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes
November 5, 2012

measure to move forward to the subcommittee’s recommendations and Mr.
Romley acknowledged the need to discuss this matter further in future meetings.

4. Discussion of Additional Subcommittee Work

Mr. Romley asserted that the subcommittee should continue to consider the
issues brought up at the November 5" meeting and to be ready to discuss the
topics further. Mr. Romley asked the subcommittee to especially consider how an
independent review board could function and to come prepared with thoughts on
this matter.

5. Future Agenda Iltems

Mr. Romley stated that further discussion on the issues from this meeting will be
continued at the next subcommittee meeting, including further discussion with
regard to enforcement methods.

6. Next Meeting Date

The next meeting date is Thursday, November 8, 2012.

7. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Mr. Gass and SECONDED by Mr. Calderén to adjourn
the meeting, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (3-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 6:32 p.m.



MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS
Thursday, November 8, 2012

Executive Training Room, 5th Floor, Personnel Building, 135 North 2nd Avenue, Phoenix,

Arizona
Present: Elizabeth Finn, Subcommittee Chair; Tim Burke, Member; and Cecil Patterson,
Member
Absent: Bill Hardin, Member
Also
Present: Janet Smith, Human Resources Director, Kathy Haggerty, Deputy Human

Resources Director, and Theresa Faull, Administrative Assistant Il (Recording
Secretary) - Human Resources Department

1. Call to Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing
Officers met on Thursday, November 8, 2012, in the Executive Training Room located on the
5™ Floor of the Personnel Building, 135 North 2" Avenue. Judge Finn, Subcommittee
Chairperson, opened the meeting at 3:54 p.m.

2. Presentation on Civil Service Board

Ms. Smith began her presentation by explaining the purpose of civil service systems and the
protections they provide to employees. She explained the City’s civil service system was a
merit system established in 1924 and part of the City Charter. She stated while the majority of
City employees were in “classified” positions and covered under civil service rules, there were
“non-classified” positions such as trainees, attorneys, and executives that were considered at-
will employees who work under the discretion of the City Manager.

In response to a question by Mr. Burke, Ms. Smith replied all City attorneys worked at-will and
added that staff members within the elected officials’ offices were non-classified employees.

Ms. Smith explained the City’s practice of progressive discipline. She stated it included
imposing the lowest level of discipline to correct behavior and the gravity of the infraction
determined the level of penalty.

In response to a question by Judge Finn, Ms. Smith replied “coaching” was not considered
discipline. She added a written reprimand was the first level of discipline.

Ms. Smith explained discipline was rarely issued for performance, and, repeated performance
issues were often due to an employee’s lack of skills to perform a particular job rather than lack
of effort. She added in these types of cases an employee may voluntarily demote into a more
suitable position, if one is available.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 2 of 7

Ms. Smith described the role and makeup of the Civil Service Board. She explained Board
members were volunteers appointed by the Mayor. She stated employees in classified service
can appeal discipline to the Board.

In response to a question by Mr. Burke, Ms. Smith replied Board members were not necessarily
trained in Human Resources (HR).

In response to a question by Judge Finn, Ms. Smith replied an employee is served discipline by
his/her department; however, the discipline must be approved by HR and Law. She added an
employee may appeal discipline at the suspension to termination level.

In response to a question by Mr. Burke, Ms. Haggerty replied the City is represented by its
counsel and employees may also be represented by counsel or act as their own counsel. She
added the process for an appeal is a Hearing Officer will hear the case, write a report, and
make a recommendation to either sustain or reduce the discipline. She stated the report goes
to the Board for a final decision on the matter.

Mr. Burke asked if an employee has the right to a hearing before the Board, to which Ms. Smith
replied not at present.

Mr. Burke asked if an employee can respond to the Hearing Officer, to which Ms. Haggerty
replied in the affirmative, at the business meeting. She added if the employee disagrees with
the Board’s decision, there is no appeal process; rather, the employee must file in court.

Judge Patterson joined the meeting.

In response to a question by Mr. Burke, Ms. Haggerty replied there were three Hearing Officers
and they were not full-time positions.

Ms. Smith explained the role of Secretary to the Board. She stated the Secretary staffed the
meetings, provided orientation materials and training to Board members, and responded to
guestions relative to citywide matters and policies. She added the Secretary was a non-voting
member of the Board.

Ms. Haggerty explained the Secretary often reminded the Board of Open Meeting Law
requirements.

In response to a question by Mr. Burke, Ms. Haggerty explained the Board is represented by its
counsel, which is chosen by the Board but paid for by the City. She added because the Board
is a quasi-judicial board, it and its members can be sued.

In response to a question by Judge Finn, Ms. Smith replied supervisors receive mandatory
training regarding discipline and the Civil Service Board, but typically employees do not receive
this training.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 3 of 7

Judge Finn expressed often an employee’s first experience with civil service rights is when a
notice of discipline is issued.

Ms. Smith suggested perhaps on-line training or resources regarding progressive discipline and
the Civil Service Board could be provided which employees could reference when needed.

3. Presentation on Social Media

Ms. Haggerty explained the draft social media policy was developed by a task force in response
to the growth of social media being used by the City and the need to identify guidelines for both
official and personal use by City employees. She stated the task force’s approach was to create
a policy that focused on authorized professional use of social media; protected employees and
the City; and supported existing policies, personnel rules, and technical standards and
procedures. She stated the NLRB (National Labor Relations Board) has ruled ‘unlawful’ a
number of social media policies established in the private sector. She explained that policies
are viewed as too restrictive if they prohibit the use of a company name and discussion about
policies, pay, benefits, and treatment of employees in general. She added the NLRB does not
govern City practices and unions.

Ms. Smith noted although the NLRB does not apply to the City of Phoenix, the City’s Phoenix
Employee Relations Board often considers the NLRB’s position on similar issues.

Judge Patterson stated the Peoria Police Department had a prohibition that employees cannot
identify themselves in their city uniform.

Ms. Haggerty stated some situations are not delineated such as when an employee in uniform
(e.g. police officer) receives an award or medal at an event and wants to post the picture taken
with family on a Facebook page.

Ms. Haggerty explained when supervisors “Friend” their subordinates it can create potential
problems. She provided an example of a supervisor learning of inappropriate behavior on a
subordinate’s Facebook page and the supervisor was put in a position where he/she must now
act on that information. She added a flyer, note or verbal negative action about a protected
category can also be disciplined.

Ms. Smith explained the City can advise or caution supervisors on “Friending” subordinate
employees but the City could not prohibit supervisors from being a “Friend”.

Judge Patterson expressed that First Amendment issues come into play.
Judge Finn inquired on the status of the draft social media policy, to which Ms. Smith replied
the policy was in its final draft form but was not being published until this subcommittee could

review it and provide input.

Judge Finn recommended the subcommittee focus on looking closer at recent NLRB rulings
and how its rulings could impact Phoenix. She also suggested providing more specific

3



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 4 of 7

guidelines or examples in the policy.

4. Ethics Gap Analysis

This item was tabled to a future meeting agenda.
5. Presentation on Zoning Hearing Officers

A MOTION was made by Mr. Burke and SECONDED by Judge Patterson to take this item out
of order. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (3-0).

This item was presented after Item 2.

Derek Horn, Planning and Development Department Director, presented an overview of Zoning
Hearing Officers. He explained the difference between Variances and Use Permits. He stated
City Council, elected officials or City staff cannot get involved in the decision of Hearing
Officers. He added a Hearing Officer can make a finding and add stipulations. He explained
appeals of a Hearing Officer’s decision are heard by the Board of Adjustment. He stated an
appeal can be made by the applicant, any party to the matter, or any citizen, even if the citizen
is unrelated to the case.

Judge Finn expressed that some citizens voiced concern, during a previous public comment
session, over Hearing Officers also holding positions as land attorneys in private practice.
Judge Finn asked if Hearing Officers were voluntary attorneys, unpaid. Mr. Horn responded in
the affirmative.

Mr. Horn explained at present there were four Hearing Officers; three land use attorneys, and
one retired Zoning Administrator from the city of Glendale.

Judge Finn expressed the roles of the Hearing Officers were significant because in one role
they sit as a judge and in the other they are advocating for who they represent.

Mr. Horn explained the Hearing Officers do not want to be in a situation where a potential
conflict exists; therefore, they recuse themselves as necessary.

Judge Finn explained some citizens believed that by Hearing Officers having to recuse
themselves it gave a perception issue of unfairness.

Mr. Horn explained Hearing Officers were paid contractors until March 2010, when due to
budgetary issues a transition was made to use volunteer Hearing Officers. He added the
budgetary solution saved two Planning Department positions.

Judge Finn left the meeting.

In response to a question by Ms. Smith, Mr. Horn replied Hearing Officers are not a budgeted
item and on occasion staff will fill in as a Hearing Officer.

4



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 5 of 7

In response to a question by Judge Patterson, Mr. Horn replied he is not aware of any
complaints regarding the use of staff as Hearing Officers, although it does create a workload-
management issue.

In response to a question by Mr. Burke, Mr. Horn replied in the past Hearing Officers were paid
and served in that capacity for a number of years.

Judge Finn rejoined the meeting.

Mr. Burke inquired whether there were any marked changes in the decisions of the volunteer
Hearing Officers, to which Margaret Wilson, Assistant City Attorney, replied opinion findings
were better when written by the volunteer attorneys, since they were more accustomed to that
type of thinking.

Mr. Burke inquired whether there were any complaints that the decisions were not fair, to which
Ms. Wilson replied there have been no observed problems with the decisions.

Judge Finn expressed it appeared to be a perception issue, as one day the volunteer attorney
is serving as a Hearing Officer and the next day representing clients with zoning cases. She
inquired whether a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) has ever been performed and if so, what
type of response was received.

Mr. Horn explained there was an RFQ in 2008, although the insurance requirements and cost
was a deterrent for responders.

Judge Finn expressed to obtain a larger pool of responders, perhaps consideration could be
given to releasing a new RFQ with the City paying for the insurance.

Mr. Burke expressed that regardless of the process to obtain volunteer Hearing Officers, it is
almost impossible to eliminate the perception issue.

Ms. Wilson explained the City solicits individuals to serve on Boards and Commissions who
have experience in the area of the respective Board or Commission.

Mr. Burke suggested applying rules of professional conduct for Hearing Officers and he
provided an example of how the judicial cannon prohibits even the appearance of a conflict.

Judge Patterson expressed the judiciary continually focuses on education and discusses
conflicts.

Judge Finn expressed there was no easy balance between using a volunteer Hearing Officer
whose expertise is in land use and creating an appearance that no conflict of interest exists
because they practice in the land use arena.

Judge Patterson stated a retired zoning administrator who is also a lawyer would serve as the
perfect Hearing Officer. He suggested focusing on education and information about the

5



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 6 of 7

problem of the perception of conflicts.

Mr. Burke suggested in advance of the hearings, publish on a site the cases and which Hearing
Officer will hear them and allow the public to request a different Hearing Officer if the public
member believes there is a conflict.

Mr. Horn replied that Hearing Officers were unpaid volunteers and putting a cumbersome
process in place could discourage participation in this voluntary process. He added any third
party, regardless if they live in the neighborhood, can file appeals of Hearing Officers’ decisions.

Judge Finn inquired if that was in the City Ordinance, to which Ms. Wilson replied in the
affirmative.

Judge Finn expressed some citizens had concerns about unpublished precedents and she
requested an explanation of this subject, to which Ms. Wilson explained there were two types of
zoning administrative actions: interpreting and resolving single property issues.

Mr. Burke left the meeting.

Ms. Wilson explained there are about 100 decisions a month made about properties and most
are not published; however, citywide items are written down and soon will become published on
the Planning and Development Department’s website. She explained when an interpretation of
a zoning ordinance comes before a Hearing Officer, precedent is reviewed. She stated the
interpretations are currently available in hard copy. She added variances are site specific and
do not have precedent.

Judge Finn inquired how other cities handle the issue of Zoning Hearing Officers, to which Ms.
Wilson replied they do not have the volume that Phoenix has and she provided Scottsdale as
an example with only one to two variances a month. She added Phoenix also has a large mix
of commercial property.

Judge Finn inquired whether there was any existing statement or code of conduct, to which Ms.
Wilson replied no, although the attorneys have copies of the attorney ethical code.

Judge Finn suggested making the public aware of the standards attorney are required to meet,
perhaps using language from the professional rules that govern attorneys, City requirements,
and State Bar requirements.

Ms. Wilson inquired whether the language should be brought back to this subcommittee at a
future meeting, to which Judge Finn replied in the affirmative.

6. Future Agenda Items

Judge Finn expressed the Ethics Gap Analysis presentation would be considered on the next
agenda. She also requested further discussion regarding the City’s draft social media policy.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 7 of 7

7. Next Meeting Date
The next meeting date is November 15, 2012.
8. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Judge Patterson to adjourn the meeting. A quorum was not present
at the end of the meeting.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:00 p.m.






167195

MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS
‘Thursday, November 8, 2012

Conference Room, 7" Floor, Public Tranist Building, 302 North 1% Avenue,

Phoenix
Present. - Rick Romley, Chair; David Gass, Member; and Melissa Ho,
Member
Absent: Ernest Calderén, Member; Michael DeMuro, Member

Also

Present: Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor- Mayor Greg Stanton’s Office;
Carolyn Augustyn- Mayor Greg Stanton’s Office; and Daniel L.
Brown, Acting Chief Counsel- Law Department

1. Call to Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and
Boards and Commissions Members met on Thursday, November 8, 2012, in the
7" Floor Conference Room located in the Public Transit Building at 302 North 1
Avenue, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Rick Romiey, Task Force Chairperson, opened the
meeting at 5:13 p.m.

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 5, 2012

A MOTION wasvmade by Ms. Ho and SECONDED by Judge Gass to approve
the meeting minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (2-0). ‘

3. Discussion of Potential Enforcement Mechanisms

Mr. Romley opened the meeting by reviewing the enforcement mechanism ideas
from the previous meeting. He clarified that the subcommittee had decided that
an independent review body was critical to handle any potential ethical disputes
concerning elected officials and boards and commissions members serving the
City of Phoenix. He went on to ask the subcommittee to consider how the
independent board would operate and function.

Mr. Romley began by introducing his plan, based on previous meeting
discussions and similar to the procedures used by the Arizona Bar Association.
‘Mr. Romley noted that once a complaint was brought to the attention of the
independent review board, the case would enter into the investigative stage.
During this stage the board first hears the facts of the case before rendering a



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 2 of 7

decision to conduct a more thorough investigation. If there are merits of truth, the
board would then appoint an impartial investigator to further investigate the
claims brought before the board. The investigator represents the board and
reports all findings to the board. He shared that an unbiased attorney would work
well for the investigator role.

In response to a clarification from Judge Gass, Mr. Romley stated that a given
case could be dismissed at any point in the proceedings if the board deemed the
information to be frivolous or outside of the City’s interests.

Mr. Romley continued, saying that once the appointed investigator had
completed the investigative routine, the accused party would be brought in to
enter a negotiation stage. The reports of the findings would be made known to
the accused individual, at which point he or she could admit to any wrong doing
and receive sanctions from City Council. If he or she did not admit to the results
or disputes the investigations findings, a hearing for further investigation into the
matter could be requested. The ethical violation case would become public
information following the investigative and negotiation process.

Judge Gass clarified at this point, making sure that the accused party would be
able to provide input into the investigation and would be able to make
statements. Mr. Romley agreed with this statement and stated that the accused
individual could also have a legal representation at this point; however, the
attorney fees would not be covered by the City. Mr. Romiey further noted
however, that beyond the independent review body phase, reimbursement for
attorney fees for the accused party may be considered by the City Council if it is
found the accused party is ultimately found to not be in violation of the charges.

Mr. Romley explained his ideas for a hearing process, in which a hearing officer,
appointed by the review board, would hear the case made by the investigator,
representing the independent review board, and from the accused party. Mr.
Romley felt that having the multiple investigative layers and steps would help to
ensure impartial and fair results for possible ethical violations within the city.

In response to a clarification item from Judge Gass, Mr. Romley said that the
hearing officer would make a recommendation for sanction to the City Council
but would not be the ultimate enforcement mechanism. City Council would be the
only group that would approve sanctions, including removal.

Judge Gass agreed with Mr. Romley’s ideas, stating that this process set the
standards high, which the public would ultimately feel more comfortable with.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 3 of 7

Mr. Romiey moved back to the independent ethical review board creation and
posed the following question to the subcommittee; how would the Clty select
members for this board?

Mr. Romley and Ms. Ho suggest the board should consist of five members.

The subcommittee felt it would be necessary to label the different chair
categories so new members could be more easily identified and selected. Mr.
Romley suggested having one retired judge member (from the superior court
level or higher), one citizenry member with noted ethical background, and one
former elected official. He stated the other two positions could be filled by general
citizens selected by the three appointed members.

Judge Gass stated his concerns with the broad “elected official” term, noting that
there were many positions available that might not fit the review board’s needs.
Mr. Romley agreed, further suggesting the clarification of a former City Mayor or
City Councilmember. Judge Gass then suggested that these officials should be
from another city within Maricopa County sc that certain local nuances could be
better understood.

Mr. Romley brought up concerns to the subcommittee with regards to who would
appoint the members to this board. Judge Gass postulated that interested parties
could self-nominate, with certain standards and regulations, so as to create a
qualified pool. Judge Gass moved that perhaps one appointment could be made
by the mayor and one appointment could be made by majority vote of City
Council, etc.

Judge Gass went on to suggest that perhaps the mayor could select the
individual for the ethicist position, the municipal court judge could select the
retired judge position and the city council, by majority vote, could select the
former elected official for the board.

Ms. Ho agreed with this idea, stating that this provided enough layers to diminish
bias in the process. Mr. Romley also agreed with this selection process, further
suggesting that the chair of the independent review board would be selected by
the board itself.

In response to a question from Mr. Stapleton, Mr. Romley stated that the board
would fill vacancies on the board in the case of resignation or termination. He
added that the board would become self-sustaining in order to remain more
unbiased.

With regards to the idea of term limits, Mr. Brown suggested a five year term,
with staggered term end dates so the board would remain full. Ms. Ho suggested



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 4 of 7

a three year term, which Mr. Romley agreed with. Rotating out members would
be determined by drawing lots.

The subcommittee agreed that the complaints should be heard within ninety
days, so as to conduct the most accurate investigation. The identifying
information would be kept private so the board could discuss the cases. Mr.
Brown noted that the board would be better served by entering into executive
session so specific details of the private case would not be made known to the
public before the investigative process was completed. Judge Gass suggested
that identifying each case should be done by code (ex. Case PHX001).

Mr. Romley at this point noted that the ethics task force was creating the
framework for ethical accountability and was not an extensive overview of every
possible ethical issue. He again urged for continual ethical review and reiterated
that this review should take place every four years, at the minimum.

The subcommittee reviewed the gift regulations for elected officials, as discussed
at previous meetings, and the group again agreed on a $50 de minimis reporting
value.

In response to a question from Mr. Brown, Judge Gass explained that state law
requires elected officials to file an annual disclosure for gifts exceeding a
collective total of $500, including gifts received by household members. He went
on to say that the elected official would need to file a disclosure each time a gift
over $50 is received, however, the entire household would need to file a
disclosure statement at the end of the year for all gifts totaling more than $500
within the given year.

The subcommittee agrees to adopt the language from AR 2.91- Conflicts in
Employment, Supervisory, and Contractual Relationships with regards to what
qualifies as a familial relation, including roommates and significant others.

In response to a clarification from Mr. Stapleton, Judge Gass stated that elected
official business ownership would need to be disclosed, as per state law, and
suggested that a note on this matter be added to the recommendation being
drafted by Mr. Brown.

4. Discussion of Additional Subcommittee Work
Mr. Romiey stated that Mr. Brown would provide the subcommittee with the
proposed changes to the legal literature and the subcommittee would need to

have these changes read before the next meeting for discussion.

5. Future Agenda ltems



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 8, 2012

Page 5 of 7

Mr. Romley noted the need for discussion of the proposed legal language, as
drafted by Mr. Brown, at the next meeting. The proposed changes will also need
to be approved by the subcommittee before being presented to the full task force.
6. Next Meeting Date

The next meeting date is Monday, November 19, 2012.

7. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Ms. Ho and SECONDED by Judge Gass to adjourn the
meeting, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (2-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 6:10.






MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS
Thursday, November 15, 2012

Executive Training Room, 5th Floor, Personnel Building, 135 North 2nd Avenue, Phoenix,

Arizona
Present: Elizabeth Finn, Subcommittee Chair; Tim Burke, Member; and Cecil Patterson,
Member
Absent: Bill Hardin, Member
Also
Present: Janet Smith, Human Resources Director, Kathy Haggerty, Deputy Human

Resources Director, Gary Verburg, City Attorney, Law Department, and Theresa
Faull, Administrative Assistant Il (Recording Secretary) - Human Resources
Department

1. Call to Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing
Officers met on Thursday, November 15, 2012, in the Executive Training Room located on the
5™ Floor of the Personnel Building, 135 North 2" Avenue. Judge Finn, Subcommittee
Chairperson, opened the meeting at 3:49 p.m.

2.  Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 8, 2012

Judge Patterson moved to amend the minutes to clarify his comments in Item 3, Presentation
on Social Media. He stated “Peoria” should read “the Peoria Police Department”.

A MOTION was made by Mr. Burke and SECONDED by Judge Patterson to approve the
meeting minutes as amended. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (3-0).

3. Social Media Discussion

Ms. Haggerty stated a citywide task force was developed to create a City policy on Social
Media. She explained the task force reviewed policies from numerous other jurisdictions and
determined the City policy should focus on City spokespersons and their responsibilities. She
highlighted that all employees should abide by the following guidelines:

e Employees must not appear to represent the City on their own personal social
media sites, to include being in City uniform or City vehicles shown in the
background;

e Employees must not post any confidential or personal-identifiable information on
social media;

e Employees may not access or post to a personal media site at work or on City
time;

¢ A social media posting that relates to coworkers or supervisors can become part



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 15, 2012

Page 2 of 6

of human resource or equal opportunity investigations; and

e Even if an employee posts to a personal site at home, on their own time, if the
posting violates the City’s Civil Treatment or anti-harassment standards, the
employee can be held accountable.

Ms. Haggerty explained that often the City learns of inappropriate postings from an employee’s
coworkers. She stated supervisors had additional guidelines which included not asking
subordinates to provide their passwords to personal sites and being cautious about becoming
their “Friends” on social media sites. She added if inappropriate comments are made or
pictures posted by an employee on his/her personal site, the supervisor may have a duty to act
depending on the content.

Judge Finn stated there were two separate scenarios: a prospective employee and a hired
employee. She questioned whether it would be beneficial for an employer to be able to view a
prospective employee’s social media site as another form of reference check.

Mr. Verburg stated the private sector was different than the public sector and while that may be
a practice in the private sector, he cautioned that First Amendment rights could come into play.

Ms. Smith expressed that, as an employer, the preference would be not to require supervisors
to access a prospective employee’s social media site but instead to use other means to
determine whether the prospective employee is a good fit for the organization such as
reference and background checks and testing instruments.

Mr. Verburg stated if a supervisor learns of a group of employees engaging in discriminatory or
racial behavior about another employee, then disciplinary action can be taken. He added
consideration could be given to requiring the employees engaged in the alleged inappropriate
behavior to allow supervisors access to their sites.

Ms. Smith stated most often a coworker will print and submit copies of the offending pictures or
statements.

Mr. Verburg suggested adding language to the policy that stated if reasonable cause existed to
believe an employee was in violation of other City policies due to posting on the employee’s
personal social media site then the employee must grant supervisory access to the site.

Judge Finn summarized the subcommittee’s recommendation on this topic:

e Not to establish a policy statement that requires an employee to provide his/her
supervisor access to the employee’s social media site.

¢ [f information is brought to the City’s attention that an employee has engaged in a
potential violation of City policy, then an employee must allow his/her supervisor
access to the employee’s social media site.

e A hiring authority is allowed to search for information about a prospective
employee on a public domain and take the information under consideration as one
component of the selection process.

2



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 15, 2012

Page 3 of 6

Judge Patterson and Mr. Burke concurred with Judge Finn’s summation of their discussion.

Judge Finn recommended having language that stated an employee may not access social
media sites on City time, to which Ms. Smith replied the changes would be incorporated into the
policy draft.

4. Ethics Gap Analysis

Ms. Smith stated a review of best practices revealed a recommendation to include ethics into
the selection process. She suggested the City include ethic-related questions into the interview
selection process or use an assessment testing tool such as a Personal Selection Inventory
(PSI).

In response to a question by Judge Finn, Ms. Smith replied the PSI was used in finalist
selections after determining a candidate’s eligibility for hire.

Mr. Burke stated he was familiar with PSIs and believed them to be a useful test.

Judge Finn expressed concern over the cost of requiring every employee to complete a PSI, to
which Ms. Smith replied that at present PSIs were available to departments that chose to use
them. She added PSls were especially useful for departments experiencing heavy turnover or
lower entrance requirements.

Judge Patterson stated he believed PSls would be useful to understand a prospective
employee’s viewpoint on ethical-related issues.

Judge Finn summarized the subcommittee’s recommendation to allow City departments the
option to either include ethical questions into the hiring process or use an instrument such as a
PSI.

Judge Patterson and Mr. Burke concurred with Judge Finn’s summation of their discussion.

Judge Finn inquired whether the City had adequate policies in regards to Leave Management,
to which Ms. Smith replied in the affirmative.

Ms. Smith explained an area in which the City may be able to improve was in ethics training for
employees. She stated as part of New Employee Orientation (NEO) employees receive
approximately two hours of training; however, she inquired whether the subcommittee believed
mandatory ethics training on a routine basis should occur.

Judge Finn stated a newly hired employee initially receives an enormous amount of information
and periodic training would allow the City to discuss ethics in relation to new
information/technology. She suggested the training could also be conducted on-line.

Mr. Burke stated as employees get more experience in the workplace, ethics training becomes

3



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 15, 2012

Page 4 of 6

more meaningful to them.
Judge Finn suggested covering the Top 10 ethical areas every two years.

Judge Patterson stated it was important for employees to receive reinforcement that the
organization is a quality organization and this can be done through routine ethics training.

Judge Finn stated Court employees were schooled in ethics training at levels that most City
employees do not receive; therefore, she suggested it would be beneficial to include court
employees into classes with non-court City employees.

Judge Patterson agreed with Judge Finn’s suggestion and stated ethics was second nature to
court employees.

Mr. Burke expressed he cannot overstate the importance of the City having a culture where
employees exercise the option to consult others.

Ms. Smith explained the City conducts an annual Employee Opinion Survey and a significant
finding was when employees were asked the questions “Do most of those in my workgroup
display honesty and integrity in the workplace,” and “My supervisor displays honesty and
integrity in the workplace,” the affirmative responses were 88% and 86%, respectively. She
added the percent has been consistent over the past five years and was reflective of the City’s
culture of ethics and integrity.

Mr. Verburg stated part of the ethics training could be avenues and resources available to
employees.

Ms. Smith suggested an Ethics Resource page could be developed which would include
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and contact numbers.

Judge Patterson expressed his favor for this concept and Mr. Burke concurred.

Ms. Smith stated the webpage could include information on the Civil Service Board process and
describe roles and responsibilities of individuals that serve on and provide support to the Board.

Judge Finn suggested adding a section regarding the purpose of progressive discipline and
explaining it is not always used for punitive reasons but rather a tool to offer improvement to the
employee. She added this also serves to notify the public about disciplinary practices used in
the City.

Ms. Smith inquired if there was anything in the Ethics Handbook the subcommittee believed
needed to be changed or revised.

Mr. Verburg stated he encounters a reoccurring problem in which employees discern a conflict
in the handbook about accepting gifts. He explained that in one area they are told they cannot
engage in any conduct of favoritism, but in another area they are told that as long as they

4



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 15, 2012

Page 5 of 6

disclose a gift they can accept it.
Mr. Burke highlighted the pros and cons on a zero tolerance policy.

Judge Finn described situations in which an employee may be the recipient of an award and the
grantor provides a meal or travel expenses.

Mr. Verburg explained a zero tolerance policy may be easier to apply to employees than
elected officials who are often asked to speak at dinner events.

Mr. Burke stated perhaps consideration be given to allowing acceptance of a gift if an employee
speaks at a public body and the City benefits from the employee’s presentation.

Judge Finn provided an example that as a judge she cannot be honored at a fundraiser event
but can speak at events that educate.

Mr. Burke inquired whether the City had problems in this area that were considered severe, to
which Ms. Smith replied no, although more oversight or perhaps some level of review such as
supervisory approval before a gift can be accepted may be helpful.

Judge Finn stated if a supervisor was required to review and approve potential gifts then the
matter would be escalated to a higher level.

Mr. Verburg stated a good measuring tool is often whether the matter or action passes the
headline test.

Judge Patterson questioned whether a dollar figure should be recommended.

Ms. Smith described situations in which large numbers of employees receive trinkets from
vendors such as during benefits open enroliment sessions.

Mr. Burke stated the assumption should be there is no City business between the donor and
recipient. He added if a gift is being reported, the person approving needs to use discretion.

Mr. Verburg recapped that he understood the subcommittee’s recommendation to be that part
of the reporting requirement would be obtaining supervisor approval.

Judge Finn clarified that no dollar limit was being applied at this time.

Judge Patterson inquired whether the current gift policy contained a form, to which Mr. Verburg
replied in the affirmative and stated it gets filed with the City Clerk Department.

Judge Finn commented on Ms. Smith’s open enroliment example and recommended adding
language that gifts offered to a broad group were allowable.

5. Future Agenda Items



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 15, 2012

Page 6 of 6

Judge Finn identified that at the next meeting a draft report of the subcommittee’s
recommendation would be presented.

6. Next Meeting Date
The next meeting date is November 19, 2012.
7. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Mr. Burke and SECONDED by Judge Patterson to adjourn the
meeting. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (3-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 5:25 p.m.



MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING OFFICERS
Monday, November 19, 2012

Executive Training Room, 5th Floor, Personnel Building, 135 North 2nd Avenue, Phoenix,

Arizona
Present: Judge Elizabeth Finn, Subcommittee Chair; Tim Burke, Member; and Judge Cecil
Patterson, Member
Absent: Bill Hardin, Member
Also
Present: Janet Smith, Human Resources Director, Kathy Haggerty, Deputy Human

Resources Director, Gary Verburg, City Attorney, Law Department, and Tiana
Roberts, Management Assistant Il (Recording Secretary) - Human Resources
Department

1. Callto Order
The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing
Officers met on Monday, November 19, 2012, in the Executive Training Room located on the 5™

Floor of the Personnel Building, 135 North 2" Avenue. Judge Finn, Subcommittee
Chairperson, opened the meeting at 3:43 p.m.

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 15, 2012

A MOTION was made by Judge Patterson and SECONDED by Mr. Burke to approve the
meeting minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (3-0).

3. Review of Public Comments from Previous Meeting

Ms. Roberts noted that no comments were received for review by the Subcommittee from Ms.
Barker following the meeting on November 15.

4. Volunteer Discussion

Ms. Smith introduced Cynthia Aguilar, Volunteer Program Coordinator in the City Manager’s
Office to provide information on the City’s Volunteer Program. Ms. Roberts noted staff had
developed a recommendation for the Subcommittee’s consideration: add a statement to the
Volunteer Program’s website and to the volunteer application regarding adherence to the City’s
ethical standards.

Ethics training was noted as another option to consider for ongoing volunteers. Ms. Smith
noted online training would be a good option. Ms. Aguilar stated some departments have
formal training for volunteers while others do not and agreed online training would be
convenient. It was discussed and agreed that training would not be required for individuals who
volunteer for one-time events.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 19, 2012

Page 2 of 3

Ms. Aguilar noted that the Volunteer Program will be upgrading to new computer software in
early 2013 and it would be easy to add language to the volunteer application and the Volunteer
Program’s website.

Ms. Smith restated the recommendations would be to make online training available to
volunteers regarding ethics, include an ethics statement on the volunteer website, and include
an ethics statement on the volunteer application.

In response to a question from the Subcommittee, Ms. Aguilar noted that close to 30,000
individuals volunteered last year with a value to the City at approximately $13 million. Judge
Finn stated there needs to be a distinction between one-time volunteers versus longer term
volunteers. Ms. Smith stated the language could reference frequency of service and/or minimal
contact. Judge Finn stated it is not frequency; rather, it is about access to City buildings and
equipment opposed to someone performing manual labor.

In response to a question from the Subcommittee, Ms. Aguilar stated probationers fall under a
separate agreement with Maricopa County. She also noted there is language that distinguishes
between on-going and one-time volunteers. Judge Finn noted the need is to target ongoing
volunteers as opposed to a one-time group volunteers or an individual volunteer.

Ms. Aguilar stated the City only requires church groups, school groups, or other groups to
provide the name of the group and a contact name, but they do not go through full registration
or a background check process. She also stated the enhanced website, launching early next
year, will include the option to identify the frequency of volunteering. Judge Patterson noted
that will give the City the ability to decide if an individual is volunteering more than once and,
therefore, requires ethics training. Ms. Smith stated frequency could be included in the
application process and if it is more than a one-time event, then the ethics statement will apply
and ethics training could be required. Ms. Aguilar stated the new software would be able to
produce a report to see who has not checked the ethics field. She added February 2013 is the
expected launch date of the new software.

A MOTION was made by Judge Patterson and SECONDED by Mr. Burke to require ongoing
volunteers to indicate they intend to volunteer more than a certain number of hours and comply
with the City’s ethics requirements, which will include a statement on the City’s Volunteer
Program website and the volunteer application; and, there will be monitoring to ensure
volunteers complete online ethics training. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (3-0).

5. Review and Adoption of Subcommittee Recommendations

A copy of the draft Subcommittee recommendations was provided to members to review. The
initial seven draft recommendations identified below:

e The Task Force recommends updates to the City’'s Human Resources website to include
ethics-related resources.

e The Task Force recommends adding mandatory and periodic ethics training to the
employee training curriculum.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers
Minutes

November 19, 2012

Page 3 of 3

e The Task Force recommends updates to the City’s Human Resources website to include
information regarding the Civil Service Board and progressive discipline.

e The Task Force recommends adding website language regarding the ethical standards
Zoning Hearing Officers are required to meet.

e The Task Force recommends revising the City’s Ethics Handbook for employees and
revising the City’s gift policy.
The Task Force recommends changes to the City’s draft policy on social media.
The Task Force recommends adding ethics-related components into interview and
selection processes.

Revisions were made to the detailed verbiage in the gift policy recommendation following
discussion regarding token gifts; and, revisions were made to the draft policy on social media
recommendation following discussion on the components of the draft policy.

An eighth recommendation regarding City volunteers, noted below, was added to the draft
report:

e The Task Force recommends the City’s volunteer website and volunteer application
include a statement acknowledging adherence to the City’s ethics policies. Ongoing
volunteers will be required to participate in ethics training. Staff will monitor compliance
with the City’s ethics training requirements.

A MOTION was made by Judge Patterson and SECONDED by Mr. Burke to adopt the
Subcommittee recommendations as revised on screen during the meeting. MOTION CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY (3-0).

6. Next Meeting Date

The next meeting date for the full Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force is November 26, 2012.
7. Adjournment

A MOTION was made and approved by all Subcommittee members to adjourn the meeting.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:05 p.m.






MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELECTED OFFICIALS AND
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS MEMBERS
Monday, November 19, 2012

Conference Room, 7" Floor, Public Transit Building, 302 North 1 Avenue,
Phoenix

Present: Rick Romley, Chair; Michael DeMuro, Member; David Gass,
Member; Melissa Ho, Member

Absent: Ernest Calderon, Member
Also
Present: Brandon Goad, Member; Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor-

Mayor Greg Stanton’s Office; Carolyn Augustyn- Mayor Greg
Stanton’s Office; and Daniel L. Brown, Acting Chief Counsel- Law
Department

1. Callto Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and
Boards and Commissions Members met on Monday, November 19, 2012, in the
7th Floor Conference Room located in the Public Transit Building at 302 North
1st Avenue, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Romley, Task Force Chairperson, opened the
meeting at 5:13 p.m.

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 8, 2012

A MOTION was made by Judge Gass and SECONDED by Mr. DeMuro to
approve the meeting minutes MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (2-0).

3. Presentation and Discussion on Subcommittee’s Draft
Recommendations

Mr. Romley opened the meeting by presenting the draft recommendations to the
members and inviting Mr. Brown to walk the subcommittee through each
proposed recommendation. He asked the subcommittee members to propose
additions or changes as the group moved through the draft report.

Mr. Brown began by encouraging all comments from the subcommittee and
started the review process with the cover letter. Mr. DeMuro stated that the cover
letter was a good snapshot of the work done by the task force. He suggested
adding the total number of meetings the task force and subcommittees had to the
summary so that council could truly understand the amount of work that was



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 19, 2012

Page 2 of 7

completed in the limited timeframe available to the group. Mr. Romley and Judge
Gass agreed that this was a good addition to the cover letter.

At this point Mr. Brown noted that all supplemental materials, including agendas,
meeting minutes, and a detailed list of task force members and their positions
held, would be attached items in the appendix. The subcommittee agreed that
this was a good idea and would help preserve the work done by the task force.
Mr. Romley also noted that these additions would help to create a living
document for the City.

In the table of contents, Mr. Romley suggested the glossary of definitions should
occur sooner in the report, for the ease and understanding of the reader. Mr.
DeMuro supported this suggestion.

Mr. Brown noted the final product would include the complete report, with
recommendations from the task force, and would be accompanied by a reference
guide, with all supplemental materials. This reference guide would be divided into
tabbed sections in a three ring binder.

For the acknowledgements page, Judge Gass proposed a wording change to
acknowledge how ethics deeply matter to City employees, officials, and residents
alike.

Mr. DeMuro suggested that a separate tab be created in the reference guide with
the recommendations made by the task force. He felt this would be helpful for
reference after the report has been read. Judge Gass agreed with this point but
reiterated that the recommendations also remain in the final report for City
Council.

Mr. Brown went on to propose a “findings” section to the report, which would
include the major findings from the task force. As an example, he noted that one
finding would be that there is currently no enforcement process for elected
officials. Mr. Romley stated that adding this subsection in the introduction section
might make the report harder to follow and Mr. Goad suggested that perhaps
these findings could be added to the executive summary. The subcommittee
ultimately agreed with Mr. DeMuro’s suggestion to have the findings subsection
immediately precede the recommendations.

Judge Gass stated that he would submit any grammar or technical changes he
found to Mr. Brown via email for the ease of revision.

The subcommittee, led by Mr. Brown, then went through each recommendation
created with regards to elected officials and board members.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 19, 2012

Page 3 0of 7

The first recommendation, regarding the applicability of the City’s ethics code to
all city employees, officials, and board members, suggested equality in ethical
standards. Judge Gass suggested the recommendation use the word “equitable”
rather than “equal” to account for differences in job responsibilities and positions.
Mr. Romley stated that the recommendation was two-fold; first, everyone was to
be held to an ethical standard, and two, the subcommittee recommends that a
separate Elected Officials City Ethics Handbook be created to reflect the unique
job position for elected persons.

Mr. Brown moved on to the next recommendation, regarding the necessity for a
continual review, meeting to review every four years, at the minimum. Mr.
Romley restated the importance of an ongoing process and acknowledged the
impossibility of meeting every single possible ethical violation. Mr. DeMuro
agreed with Mr. Romley and added that an ongoing review process would be
necessary to evolve to the changing culture in Phoenix. Judge Gass
recommended that this recommendation be further broken down into two parts;
first, to acknowledge the need for continual review, and second, to suggest a
review occur every four years, at a minimum.

Mr. Brown then directed the subcommittee to the third recommendation, which
recommended the institution of a gift policy for elected officials. This policy would
require an elected official to file a disclosure of gifts received costing more than
fifty dollars ($50). Mr. Romley asked that a 48-hour window for acceptable
reporting be added to the recommendation, as in the City employee regulations.

Judge Gass moved that the gift recommendation be divided into subsections.
First, a section would detail the gift policy as it applies to elected officials;
second, a section would be drafted to explain the disclosure process; and finally,
a section would be devoted to explain the maintenance and posting of disclosure
forms, extending for two years after the officials’ period of public service was
completed. The subcommittee agreed with this suggestion and asked to have the
revised draft reflect this idea.

In response to a question from Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Brown clarified that according to
state statutes, which the City of Phoenix follows, elected officials are not allowed
to accept entertainment gifts, with certain exceptions (ex. being honored at the
event, speaking at an event, etc.).

At this point the subcommittee began to review the recommendation for an
investigative process for potential ethical violations. Mr. Romley clarified that the
ethicist position on the independent review board should be a Phoenix resident
and not an individual who has held office or been appointed to a previous board
or commission.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 19, 2012

Page 4 of 7

Ms. Ho entered the meeting.

In response to a question from Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Romley explained that member
terms would be staggered so the independent board would not be missing too
many members at any given time. He also noted that at the beginning, shorter
terms will be used to institute the rotating term expiration. As such, Mr. Romley
moved to have the initial judge role be a two-year commitment and the initial
elected official role be a one-year commitment. All citizen roles would be able to
fulfill the proposed three-year term from inception.

Mr. Romley stated that the independent board would be appointed members,
however, after the initial creation, the board would be self-sustaining and Council
and the Mayor would have limited appointment rights.

Mr. DeMuro noted that the recommendations should reflect the need for the City
of Phoenix to pay for investigative costs. Mr. Romley agreed to this and further
suggested that the language read “pay for all reasonable investigative costs.”

In response to a question from Judge Gass, Mr. Romley stated that he felt the
reasonable costs for the review board members (such as mileage or parking)
should also be covered by the City.

Mr. DeMuro left the meeting.

Mr. Stapleton noted that current commissions and boards do not reimburse for
mileage. Mr. Romley suggested that this provision stand and acknowledged that
Council could make the final decision on this matter.

Mr. DeMuro entered the meeting.

In response to the sanction recommendations, Mr. Goad stated that removal as a
potential punishment mechanism was essential in order to make sure elected
officials understand how seriously the City deems ethical decisions. All
subcommittee members agreed that removal should absolutely be a sanction
option for elected officials with poor conduct.

Mr. Brown stated that the City offers a fine as a current sanction option and
asked the subcommittee to consider an upper limit to apply to elected officials.
Mr. Romley suggested the fine should not exceed $10,000 per expense. The
subcommittee agreed with Mr. Romley’s suggestion. Mr. Brown did note that this
fine implementation would require a charter amendment.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 19, 2012

Page 5 of 7

Following a clarification from Judge Gass, the subcommittee agreed that
violators should be required to pay a fine and reimburse costs, not either or as
previously stated in the draft recommendations.

Mr. Goad left the meeting.

Mr. Brown noted that he had used the State Bar investigation process as a model
for the suggested investigation process for the City of Phoenix.

Mr. Goad entered the meeting.

Mr. Romley reviewed the process, as proposed at previous subcommittee
meetings, for Mr. Goad and Mr. DeMuro.

In response to a question from Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Romley verified that dropped
cases, or those cases that are deemed to not have clear and convincing
evidence, would be open to public records in accordance to Arizona law.
However, Mr. Romley noted that these cases would have record of the reasoning
behind the dismissal.

Mr. Romley noted that the City Clerk would not receive anonymous complaints
and that this wording should be included in the recommendation. Judge Gass
also added that language was needed to specify exactly when a case would
become open and would no longer be confidential. He stated that after the case
would be kept confidential for the duration of the investigation only.

In response to a question from Mr. Goad, Mr. Romley clarified that all voting with
regards to an open investigation would need to be done in public, in accordance
to Open Meeting Laws, and executive sessions could be used by the
independent review board to enter private discussions. Mr. Brown stated he
would work on creating the language necessary to clarify the use of executive
sessions.

Mr. Romley voiced some concern with the matter of responding to a filed
complaint. He stated that it was not clear that the respondent would be the only
one responding to the filing by the investigation. Judge Gass also voiced concern
with the wording, suggesting that responding should only be required if an
investigation is going to be pursued. The subcommittee agreed with this, noting
that frivolous charges would not have to be addressed as it would be
unnecessary.

Judge Gass volunteered to work with Mr. Brown on drafting the revision
suggestions made by the subcommittee so the recommendations are as clear as
possible.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 19, 2012

Page 6 of 7

Mr. Romley noted the necessity for language that would allow for the commission
to remain stayed until after a given investigation is complete if a crime has been
committed. He stated that this would allow for each case to be given its fair due
and would protect the purity in the investigation process. Judge Gass suggested
to the subcommittee that this become a separate subsection for added clarity.

In response to the formal hearing process outline, Ms. Ho noticed the lack of
discussion on what occurs if the accused party enters into a consent decree. She
suggested that language be added to explain the consent decree process. Mr.
Romley agreed and moved that this section be added to the recommendation.
He also stated that a consent agreement should not be offered to any case
where there is significant probable cause. This would require an investigation to
occur before any negotiations can be made. Mr. Brown will make changes to the
recommendations to reflect this change. Judge Gass also suggested that Mr.
Brown refer to Arizona Senate and House of Representatives investigation
process language for additional assistance.

The subcommittee asked City staff to create a flow chart for the investigation
process so that all parties, even those without a legal background, could easily
understand the proposed investigative process.

Ms. Ho noted that language was needed for the recommendations to prohibit the
petition for review upon entering the consent. She also stated that it should be
made known that all consent agreements must pass through Council.

Mr. Romley finished the review of the recommendations draft presented by Mr.
Brown by stating the need for another task force or group to look into the
numerous complaints brought forward during public comment session in previous
meetings. He stated that there was significant concern raised by these comments
and his task force simply did not have the time to devote to these numerous
concerns.

4. Adoption of Subcommittee Recommendations

No motion to adopt subcommittee recommendations was made as significant
revisions were needed before a vote could be passed.

5. Future Agenda Iltems

Mr. Romley noted that the next meeting would be a meeting with the full task
force. He stated that the bulk of the meeting’s agenda would be centered around
presenting the work done by each subcommittee on the draft report. The group
will review all recommendations made as a whole beginning at the next meeting.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Minutes

November 19, 2012

Page 7 of 7

6. Next Meeting Date

No future meeting date for the subcommittee was established. The next meeting
date of the full Task Force is Monday, November 26, 2012.

7. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Mr. DeMuro and SECONDED by Judge Gass to
adjourn the meeting, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (3-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 7:00 p.m.






MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
Monday, November 26, 2012

Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix

Present: Rick Romley, Chair; Tim Burke, Member; Ernest Calderon, Member; Michael
DeMuro, Member; Elizabeth Finn, Member; David Gass, Member; and, Cecll
Patterson, Member

Absent: Brandon Goad, Member; Bill Hardin, Member; Melissa Ho, Member

Also

Present: Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor - Mayor Greg Stanton’s Office; Janet Smith,
Human Resources Director, Kathy Haggerty, Deputy Human Resources Director,
Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il (Recording Secretary), and Theresa
Faull, Administrative Assistant Il - Human Resources Department; and Daniel L.
Brown, Acting Chief Counsel — Law Department

1. Callto Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force met on Monday, November 26, 2012, in the Adams
Street Training Center located at 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Rick Romley, Task
Force Chairperson, opened the meeting at 4:45 p.m.

2.  Approval of October 29, 2012, Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Meeting Minutes

A MOTION was made by Judge Finn and SECONDED by Judge Patterson to approve the
meeting minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (6-0).

3. Approval of November 19, 2012, Subcommittee on Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Members Meeting Minutes

A MOTION was made by Mr. DeMuro and SECONDED by Mr. Calderon to approve the
meeting minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY AMONG THE SUBCOMMITTEE
MEMBERS PRESENT (3-0).

4. Approval of November 19, 2012, Subcommittee on Employees, Volunteers and
Hearing Officers Meeting Minutes

Judge Finn moved to amend the minutes to correct the reference to the meeting date, replacing
“Thursday” with “Monday”.

A MOTION was made by Judge Finn and SECONDED by Judge Patterson to approve the
meeting minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY AMONG THE SUBCOMMITTEE
MEMBERS PRESENT (3-0).

Judge Gass joined the meeting.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
November 26, 2012
Page 2 of 7

Mr. Romley thanked staff for their work on the subcommittees and noted presentations will be
made by each subcommittee about the specific recommendations.

5. Presentation of Employees, Volunteers and Hearing Officers Subcommittee
Recommendations

Judge Finn, Subcommittee Chairperson, presented information on the work of the Employees,
Volunteers and Hearing Officers Subcommittee. The presentation included information and
discussion on the following items:

e Charge of the Subcommittee: ldentify gaps between the application of ethical standards
and best practices as it applies to employees, volunteers and hearing officers.

e Subcommittee members: Judge Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson; Tim Burke, Member; Bill
Hardin, Member; and Judge Cecil Patterson, Member.

e Subcommittee meeting dates: November 8, November 15, and November 19.

RECOMMENDATIONS
e Update City’s HR website to include ethics-related resources.
o This information would include Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs), ethical dilemmas,
ethics-related policies and procedures, and contact information.

e Add mandatory and periodic ethics training.
o Training would occur every two years and include the then current Top 10 ethical
dilemmas and/or changes (e.g. information and technology)
o0 Classes would be compiled of both court and non-court employees

In response to a question from Mr. Romley regarding training for supervisors, Ms. Smith
stated new supervisors are required to participate in supervisory training within two years
of appointment to a supervisory position. Ms. Smith also noted any City-wide ethics
training would include supervisors as well as rank and file employees. Judge Finn stated
the Subcommittee did not make a distinction between supervisors and line staff in applying
the training recommendation, but noted enhanced ethics training could be developed for
supervisors and above. Mr. DeMuro asked if the supervisor training would be focused on
understanding the ethics rules or how supervisors should enforce the rules, to which Ms.
Smith stated the training would encompass both. Mr. DeMuro recommended a narrow
approach on the supervisory latitude, e.qg. if the supervisor has doubts they should take it
to another level, such as Human Resources (HR). Judge Gass stated there should be a
point of contact that supervisors can call with ethics-related questions.

e Update the City’'s HR website to include information regarding the Civil Service Board

(CSB) and progressive discipline.

0 Judge Finn noted this recommendation addresses comments from union
representatives regarding the CSB and understanding protocol and the discipline
process. Judge Patterson stated the roles and relationships of CSB members and staff
should be included on the site. Judge Finn stated she believed progressive discipline

2



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
November 26, 2012
Page 3 of 7

needed to be explained to employees, noting that not all progressive discipline is
negative but often includes management’s commitment to assist the employee.

e Add information to the Planning and Development Department (PDD) website regarding
ethics standards for Zoning Hearing Officers.

o Judge Finn stated this is a very narrow portion of the law that requires specific
expertise and there are only certain people who have that knowledge who can serve as
hearing officers. She explained professional responsibility standards govern lawyers
and they are held to a much higher standard. She stated this information needs to be
added to the website so the public will know there are two other entities (Supreme
Court and State Bar) which govern the conduct of these hearing officers.

o Judge Finn stated precedent was noted as an issue by citizens. She explained the
Subcommittee discussed developing a publication of zoning opinions on the website
but noted this is already in development by PDD with an expected implementation date
of early next year.

Mr. Romley stated the City previously paid for hearing officers but now utilizes volunteers
which can give rise to perception issues, regardless of whether there is an actual conflict
of interest. Mr. Romley noted this information could potentially be joined with the work of
the Elected Officials Subcommittee regarding hearing officers. Judge Finn stated the
perception issue was discussed among the Subcommittee and although the perception
issue may still be there, the public will be informed. Mr. Romley stated paid hearing
officers are one way of minimizing the perception.

Judge Gass stated the Elected Officials Subcommittee focused on transparency and
recommended anyone serving as a hearing officer provide a list of active matters pending
before the City in the zoning area. Judge Finn stated the Subcommittee addressed that
issue. Mr. Burke explained most lawyers cannot mention matters they are working on and
much of the work in this area is done in advance of formal filings. Judge Patterson stated,
pending a formal filing, an attorney will not disclose his/her cases.

Mr. DeMuro asked if previously the hearing officer was a full-time paid position, to which
Ms. Haggerty confirmed and clarified the position was not an attorney. She added due to
budget issues and lower caseload volume, the paid position transitioned to a voluntary
position. Mr. DeMuro proposed asking the City to revisit this as a budgeted position.
Judge Finn stated the option of a part-time position with the individual agreeing not to work
in the zoning area; although she noted an individual may not desire to give up practicing in
the area because it is so specialized and lucrative. Mr. Burke stated that although hearing
officers who are zoning attorneys act in good faith to make fair decisions, they will likely be
influenced by the history of their practice and their clients; therefore, it may not be possible
to get the impartiality this job requires. He added this will require revisiting the budget
issue. Judge Patterson stated it could be among the recommended options as a high
priority. Mr. Calderon recommended the Task Force make a direct recommendation
without regard to the budget. Mr. Romley noted the next draft of the report will include a
recommendation that the City return to paid hearing officers in addition to the
recommendations regarding developing professional responsibility standards and formal
zoning interpretations.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
November 26, 2012
Page 4 of 7

¢ Revise the City’s Ethics Handbook and gift policy.

0 Judge Finn stated this recommendation includes updated information regarding new or
revised policies, supervisory approval on receipt of gifts, with supervisory judgment on
conflict or appearance of conflict, and token gifts of minimal value allowed to groups.
Mr. DeMuro stated employees should not have a broader policy than elected officials;
rather, the policies should be consistent. Mr. Romley stated elected officials are
prohibited by state law to accept event tickets. Mr. Burke asked about a gift to an
employee from someone not doing business with the City and stated there may be
some gray area about whether an appearance of a conflict is present and if there is no
conflict, it should not prohibit the receipt of the gift. Mr. Romley noted the Task Force’s
final report should recite the City’s current gift policy regarding declining gifts that give
the appearance of a conflict. Judge Finn reiterated token gifts of minimal value
provided to large groups of employees would be allowed.

e Change the draft social media policy.

o0 Judge Finn discussed the guidelines that would be provided to employees regarding
social media. She addressed the types of posting violations on an employee’s
personal social media site that would constitute allowing a supervisor access to the site
for investigation purposes. The Task Force had a discussion regarding the legality of
requiring employees to provide access to their personal social media site upon
determination of a policy violation and/or postings that could create liability for the City.
Ms. Smith stated the City trains supervisors that they have a duty to act if policy
violations are brought to their attention. Judge Finn noted the City should be able to
investigate issues when they are aware of violations. Judge Gass noted judges are
responsible for their employees’ social media activities. Mr. Brown stated there should
be a distinction between criminal and non-criminal investigations.

e Add ethics-related questions to interview selection process or use assessment tool.
o0 Judge Finn noted there are many assessment tools available; however, at a cost
therefore departments should have flexibility to use questions or an assessment tool.

¢ Add ethics requirements for volunteers.

o Judge Finn explained this recommendation includes adding an ethics statement to the
volunteer website and volunteer application; requiring ongoing volunteers to participate
in ethics training; and, monitoring compliance with the ethics training requirement. In
response to a question from Mr. Romley regarding whether there are different ethics
standards for volunteers versus staff, Judge Finn noted the intent was that the same
standards would apply to both. Mr. Romley stated that information should be included
in the report.

6. Presentation of Elected Officials and Boards and Commissions Members
Recommendations

Mr. Romley, Subcommittee Chairperson, presented information on the work of the Elected
Officials and Boards and Commissions Members Subcommittee. The presentation included
information and discussion on the following items:

4



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
November 26, 2012
Page 5 of 7

e Charge of the Subcommittee: Provide clarity on questions regarding ethical standards for
elected officials and board/commission members; enforcement of those standards;
process for reporting and enforcement; and, types of penalties for violations.

e Recommendations organized by the following categories: general principles; gift policy;
ethics committee/enforcement mechanism; and, addressing future ethical issues.

RECOMMENDATIONS

e General Principles

0]

Mr. Romley stated ethics standards must apply as equally as possible to all officials,
board members, employees and volunteers. He added this recommendation includes
publishing a new, separate ethics handbook for elected officials and boards and
commission members.

e Gift Policy for Elected Officials

o

Mr. Romley noted gifts over $50 shall be disclosed within 48 hours of receipt and
subsequently searchable in an online database. He added disclosures for gifts
received will remain on file during the official’s full term in office and for two years after
leaving office. Mr. Romley noted there is no disclosure requirement for gifts under $50.
Mr. DeMuro stated everyone should be held to the same standard and the Task Force
should remove any obvious contradictions in the recommendations of the two
subcommittees. Mr. Romley noted recent examples in the headlines that create
perception issues. Judge Finn stated the proposal for employees was not different
from the proposal for elected officials. The Task Force discussed similarities between
this proposal and the proposal for employees. Mr. Burke stated under the Employee
Subcommittee recommendation, employees cannot accept gifts if there is a conflict.
He added if no conflict exists and the employee wants to accept a gift, supervisory
approval is required regardless of the dollar amount with the exception of token gifts
given to a large group. Mr. DeMuro asked if sporting/athletic or entertainment events
would be removed from the Ethics Handbook as allowable declared gifts, to which
other Task Force members concurred noting tickets are not considered token gifts.

e Ethics Committee

o

Mr. Romley stated the purpose of the Committee is to oversee investigation and
enforcement of Ethics policy applicable to elected officials and boards/commissions
members. He added the Committee should have ability to appoint an independent
investigator and hearing officer.

Mr. Romley explained the Committee should be truly independent and void of politics.
He outlined the makeup of the independent five-member Commission: 1 member
appointed by the Mayor, 1 member appointed by the City Council, 1 member
appointed by the Presiding Judge and those three members select 2 citizen members
who are residents of Phoenix. He stated members will have staggered 3-year terms,
with service unpaid, but reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred. Mr.
Romley stated a change to the original recommendation to have vacancies filled by
the existing membership is to have vacancies filled using the same process that
currently exists for appointment of judicial officers.

5



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
November 26, 2012
Page 6 of 7

e Charter Amendments and Council Action
o Mr. Romley explained that some recommendations that may require Charter

Amendments or Council action include the City bearing all reasonable commission
costs related to an investigator and hearing officer, allowing removal of an elected
official for an ethics violation and allowing the commission to impose a fine in an
amount of $10,000 per ethics violation. Mr. Burke stated a fine of that magnitude
almost reflects a criminal violation occurred and if the violation is that serious, those
fines can already be imposed through criminal prosecution. Mr. Romley stated
$10,000 does not have to be the final amount. Judge Finn stated imposing any fine
could be problematic. Judge Gass clarified the commission can only recommend
action, Council would have to approve the action. Mr. Calderon expressed he
supported the large financial fine. The Task Force discussed requirements for paying
the fine, such as it cannot come from a campaign account, or, if the fine is not paid the
official cannot run for office again. Mr. Burke stated the Arizona Bar can collect costs
and obtain restitution if a lawyer has caused damage, but no fine is included in the
discipline.

e Enforcement Mechanism

o Mr. Romley discussed the need for a process by which a complaint would be heard
and addressed. Mr. Romley referred the Task Force to a schematic outlining the
complaint process. Regarding rules of evidence, Judge Finn indicated rules of
evidence should apply if an elected official can be censured, fined, or removed. The
Task Force discussed the applicability of rules of evidence and clear and convincing
evidence. Mr. Romley stated the item could be modified through a motion upon
review of the final report by the Task Force. Judge Gass stated if a special action is
brought, does it stay the action, to which Mr. Romley concurred it would be staid. Mr.
Romley further stated if the matter is potentially criminal, it should be referred to the
appropriate agency for investigation and the matter would be staid until the criminal
matter is concluded. In response to a question by Mr. DeMuro regarding the number
of Council members required for approval of a commission recommendation, Mr.
Brown replied that for Council majority, in general, the City Charter says two-thirds.

e Addressing Future Ethical Issues for the City of Phoenix
o Mr. Romley stated the City should conduct an ethics review every four years; and this
should be an ongoing process. He added this Task Force created a framework that
can be built upon.

Separate from the presentation, Mr. Romley asked the Task Force if social media needs to be
addressed for elected officials. Upon a question from Mr. DeMuro regarding why social media
rules for elected officials would be different from employees, it was noted that some difference
is necessary because elected officials need to reach out to constituents using social media.
Judge Gass recommended including a statement that items discussed in executive session
cannot be placed on social media. Mr. Romley stated staff will outline the obvious social media
guidelines in the report.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
November 26, 2012
Page 7 of 7

7. Future Agenda Iltems

The Task Force concurred the next meeting will be December 10, 2012 in order to have time to
review the draft report and provide feedback. Any comments on the report should be sent to
Dan Brown. Judge Patterson noted he will not be present at the December 10th meeting but
will attempt to teleconference into the meeting. Final adoption of the report will occur at the
December 17, 2012 meeting.

Judge Gass stated the report should include wording that recommendations do not reflect
individual opinion; rather, it is the work of the entire Task Force. Judge Gass commended the
Employee Subcommittee on their work. Mr. Romley invited the Task Force members to attend
the presentations at City Council and/or City Council Subcommittee meetings, the dates for
which are in the process of being determined.

Judge Finn asked if Mesa’s policy had been sent to the Task Force. Mr. Brown stated he will
re-send the Mesa information to the Task Force.

8. Call to the Public

No comments were received.

9. Next Meeting Date

The next meeting date is December 10, 2012.
10. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Judge Finn and SECONDED by Mr. Burke to adjourn the meeting.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (7-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 6:50 p.m.






MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
Monday, December 10, 2012

Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix

Present: Rick Romley, Chair; Tim Burke, Member; Ernest Calderon, Member; Michael
DeMuro, Member; Elizabeth Finn, Member; Brandon Goad, Member; Melissa Ho,
Member; and, Cecil Patterson, Member (via teleconference)

Absent: David Gass, Member; Bill Hardin, Member
Also
Present: Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor and Carolyn Augustyn - Mayor Greg

Stanton’s Office; Janet Smith, Human Resources Director, Kathy Haggerty,
Deputy Human Resources Director, Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant |l
(Recording Secretary), and Theresa Faull, Administrative Assistant Il - Human
Resources Department; and Daniel L. Brown, Acting Chief Counsel — Law
Department

1. Call to Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force met on Monday, December 10, 2012, in the Adams
Street Training Center located at 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Rick Romley, Task
Force Chairperson, opened the meeting at 4:32 p.m.

2. Approval of November 26, 2012, Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Meeting Minutes
Judge Finn moved to amend the minutes to correct page 3, changing the term “Superior Court”
to “Supreme Court”, in reference to one of the entities which govern the conduct of hearing

officers.

A MOTION was made by Judge Finn and SECONDED by Mr. DeMuro to approve the amended
meeting minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (7-0).

3. Review of Draft Version Report of Task Force Recommendations

Mr. Romley thanked Mr. Brown for his work on the draft Task Force Report. The Task Force
reviewed the report with discussion/changes noted below by topic and page:

Cover Letter

Mr. Romley explained the sunset date for the Task Force has been extended for the purpose of
obtaining input from City Council, City management and staff. He stated the input would be
provided to the Task Force for consideration. He noted because of this, the reference to
thirteen public meetings will need to be modified, as there may be as many as fifteen meetings.

Mr. Brown noted the reference to thirteen meetings was inclusive of meetings through
December 17.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
December 10, 2012
Page 2 of 5

Acknowledgements
No changes were noted.

Table of Contents

Mr. Brown stated page 9 was missing from the Table of Contents and he would update this
area upon finalization of the report. Mr. Romley recommended, and the Task Force concurred,
major topic areas be noted on a separate, new page.

Mr. Brown stated the reference to additional notebooks from the appendices area was removed
due to discussion about publishing the report online with potential links to the appendices and
one hard copy of the report would be available. Mr. Romley noted the report should be made
available to the public in as simple a form as possible.

Executive Summary
Page 1: No changes were noted.

Page 2: In reference to the first bullet point, Ms. Faull stated there is currently no ethics training
in place for volunteers. Mr. Romley requested a sentence be added to that effect.

Page 3: No changes were noted. Mr. Romley asked to return to page 3 during the page 4
discussion and stated there is a contradiction regarding paid hearing officers versus volunteer
hearing officers (last bullet point on page 3) which he would discuss in more detail during
review of the specific recommendation.

Page 4: No specific changes were noted; however, Mr. Brown stated he will modify any
repetitive statements.

Judge Patterson joined the meeting via teleconference. In response to a question from Mr.
Romley, Judge Patterson stated he had no recommended changes prior to page 4.

Glossary
Page 5: No changes were noted. Mr. Romley stated he had asked Mr. Brown to change all

references, throughout the report, from “officials” to “elected officials” for clarification.

Introduction
Page 6: No changes were noted.

Page 7: After discussion regarding the date reference in the fourth paragraph, it was decided
no changes were needed to text; however, Mr. Brown stated the topic area for “Task Force: Its
Charge, Approach, and Findings” will move to a new page.

Task Force: Its Charge, Approach and Findings

Page 8: Mr. Romley stated the reference to the sunset date in the first paragraph should be
clarified to note the extension of the sunset date by the Mayor. Grammatical corrections to date
references were made under Section B, “Approach”.

Ms. Faull noted the reference to a Phoenix City Council subcommittee should include the term

2



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
December 10, 2012
Page 3 0of 5

“Veterans”, e.g. Public Safety, Veterans, Transparency, and Ethics Subcommittee. This
correction will be made throughout the report.

Page 9: Discussion occurred regarding Section 1, Conflicts of Interest-Different Standard for
Relationships. It was decided, in reference AR 2.91, a sentence(s) would be added to clarify
the Phoenix Charter allows a broader definition than state law and that AR 2.91 expanded the
scope for employees, but not for elected officials. It was also noted the final date for report
adoption, noted at the top of the page, should be revised to state “to be determined.”

Page 10: Mr. Romley stated supervisory training should be mentioned in Section 5.

Recommendations for the Entire Organization
Page 11: No changes were noted.

Recommendations for Elected Officials and Board Members

Page 11: “Elected” was added to “official” on the second line of Recommendation No. 2. Mr.
Romley asked for input from the Task Force on whether social media should be included as a
recommendation for elected officials. After discussion, it was determined a recommendation
would be added for further review of social media related to elected officials.

Page 12: The Task Force discussed using the Judicial Selection Advisory Board (JSAB) as an
alternative for selecting Ethics Commission Members. It was determined the JSAB would be
utilized for making recommendations to the City Council on Ethics Commission Members; the
criteria for members would not change.

Page 13: Mr. Romley recommended grammatical changes to Recommendation No. 9.
Following discussion regarding imposing a fine in Recommendation No. 10, it was determined
the fine amount would remain in the draft report. Mr. Goad recommended removing “or board
member for an ethics violation” from the last sentence in Recommendation No. 11, since a
provision already exists in the City Charter for the City Council to remove board members.

Pages 13-16: After discussion of Recommendation No. 12, Sections 1 through 7, regarding
filing a charge and the review/investigation process, the Task Force agreed the flow of the
process needed to be fine-tuned. Mr. Brown stated he would work on modifying the process
based upon the Task Force’s discussion and he would provide a flow chart after the meeting.
Judge Finn raised the question whether the rules of evidence needed to be applied in the
process. After discussion, the Task Force concurred rules of evidence should apply and to
establish criteria stating the Hearing Officer must be a good standing member of the Arizona
Bar Association. Mr. Calderon recommended, and the Task Force concurred, in Section 7,
Council Review and Action, all references to “90 days” be changed to “30 days”. Also, in this
section, the Task Force discussed the issue of whether a Council vote by “two-thirds” be
changed to a different ratio. Mr. Brown stated two-thirds was consistent with the City Charter at
times when a supermajority is required and it was also best practice.

Mr. Calderon left the meeting

The Task Force agreed to change the language to state the “majority” of vote excluding the

3



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
December 10, 2012
Page 4 of 5

respondent(s).

In response to a question by Mr. Goad, Mr. Brown stated the City Manager sets the agenda for
City Council Formal meetings and Executive Sessions and the report would go on the Formal
Agenda.

Recommendations for Employees and Volunteers

Mr. Goad expressed he would like the report to contain a recommendation the City review the
policy of employees not being allowed to participate in elections. Ms. Smith stated the premise
behind the policy of not allowing employees to get involved in City elections is to protect
employment based on the individual’s merit rather than political affiliation, support or influence.

Mr. DeMuro left the meeting.

Mr. Goad stated a Citizen United ruling allows others, within a limited capacity, to get involved
in elections and he believed a recommendation for review should be included in this report. In
response to a question by Mr. Romley requesting clarification of which type of elections the City
policy applied to, Ms. Smith stated City elections. Judge Finn stated this topic was not
discussed or evaluated during the subcommittee meetings. She recommended this topic be
forwarded to the League of Cities and Towns, which may be a more appropriate body to
evaluate it from a statewide perspective. Mr. Burke stated he believed it should be reviewed
but not necessarily as an ethics issue but rather an employee rights issue. He agreed another
body may be more suited to evaluate this topic. Mr. Romley stated since this topic was not
considered earlier in the subcommittee discussions and other issues may be tied to it, he was
not in favor of adding it to the report.

Page 16: No changes were noted.

Page 17: Mr. Romley stated Recommendation 4 needed greater clarity, as it appeared there
was an inconsistency in the recommendation. Mr. Brown stated he could separate the
language into two separate recommendations: the first one being to have paid zoning hearing
officers, and the second one being the website language if zoning hearing officers are not paid.
Page 18: No changes were noted.

Page 19: No changes were noted.

Conclusion
Page 20: No changes were noted.

Appendices
Page 21: No changes were noted.

4. Future Agenda Items

Mr. Romley stated the Mayor has continued the charge of the Task Force. Mr. Stapleton stated
the new sunset date is February 28, but to conduct a review of feedback received by January

4



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
December 10, 2012
Page 5 of 5

28. Mr. Romley explained the December 17 meeting has been cancelled and the next meeting
date will be January 7, at which time he expects the Task Force to review the received input.

5. Call to the Public

Comments were received from Mr. John Rusinek. He provided his background as a 35 year
employee of Salt River Project (SRP) as a power plant maintenance manager. He stated an
area he has not heard discussed was the process for when an infraction occurs and the
severity of discipline. He provided an example of the process used at SRP, which included
arbitration and costs being shared 50/50 between the union and company. He expressed the
process being discussed by the Task Force appeared cumbersome. Mr. Romley thanked Mr.
Rusinek for his comments.

Comments were received from Mr. Pat Vint. He provided his background as a Phoenix resident
for 60 years and in business for 56 years. He expressed concern at City Council members
either not remaining until the end of City Council meetings to hear citizen comments or not
being allowed to respond to comments. He stated he cannot carry a cane because he has
been perceived as a threat to certain individuals and he now has a police record. He expressed
frustration over not being provided police records he has requested. He thanked the Task
Force for its work. Mr. Romley thanked Mr. Vint for his comments.

6. Next Meeting Date

It was noted a meeting would not be held on December 17. The next meeting date is January
7, 2013. The meeting will be held at 4:30 p.m. at the Adams Street Training Center.

7. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Mr. Burke and SECONDED by Ms. Ho to adjourn the meeting.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMQUSLY (6-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 6:47 p.m.






MEETING MINUTES
ETHICS REVIEW AD HOC TASK FORCE
Monday, January 7, 2013

Adams Street Training Center, 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix

Present: Rick Romley, Chair; Tim Burke, Member; Ernest Calderon, Member; Michael
DeMuro, Member; Elizabeth Finn, Member; David Gass, Member; Brandon Goad,
Member (via teleconference); Bill Hardin, Member; Melissa Ho, Member; and
Cecil Patterson, Member (via teleconference)

Absent: none

Also

Present: Jeff Stapleton, Senior Policy Advisor and Carolyn Augustyn - Mayor Greg
Stanton’s Office; Janet Smith, Human Resources Director, Kathy Haggerty,
Deputy Human Resources Director, Tiana Roberts, Management Assistant Il, and
Theresa Faull, Administrative Assistant Il (Recording Secretary) - Human
Resources Department; and Daniel L. Brown, Acting Chief Counsel — Law
Department

1. Call to Order

The Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force met on Monday, January 7, 2013, in the Adams Street
Training Center located at 304 West Adams Street, Phoenix, AZ. Mr. Rick Romley, Task Force
Chairperson, opened the meeting at 4:38 p.m.

2. Approval of December 10, 2012, Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Meeting Minutes

A MOTION was made by Mr. DeMuro and SECONDED by Ms. Ho to approve the meeting
minutes. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (7-0).

3. Discussion of City Budget Process

Mr. Romley explained why this item was added to the agenda and stated City staff will provide
detailed information on the City’s budget process and review the budget documents provided to
Task Force members. Mario Paniagua, Budget and Research Department Director, introduced
himself and Jeff DeWitt, Chief Financial Officer and Finance Department Director.

Judge Finn joined the meeting.

Mr. Paniagua explained, at the highest level, City budget and spending is dictated by the
Arizona State Constitution and Article 9 states all tax dollars must have a public purpose. He
added the City Charter reiterates this language.

Mr. Calderon joined the meeting.

Mr. Paniagua stated the gift clause noted in Article 9 includes similar language. He explained
the City Charter outlines spending and items requiring City Council approval, to include



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
January 7, 2013
Page 2 of 8

payments of $8,600 which are approved by ordinance. He stated Titles 9 and 42 of Arizona
State law have charter provisions regarding how budgets are approved at the city and state
levels. He added the processes are required to be very open and the public must be notified.

Judge Gass joined the meeting.

Mr. Paniagua referred Task Force members to a document in their packets related to the 3 + 9
technical review that occurs three months into the fiscal year. He stated the City, including the
Mayor’s Office and the City Council, goes through a very extensive and detailed budget review.
He explained each department starts every line item at zero dollars. He stated each City
Council office has a “miscellaneous” line item which has been referred to as a discretionary
budget. He explained this line item does not necessarily have a specific allocation each year
but, instead, is used for citizen outreach or business travel with a public purpose.

Mr. DeWitt addressed the Task Force regarding purchasing controls and stated the Finance
Department has internal controls in place to ensure the gift clause is not violated and
expenditures meet public spending requirements. Mr. DeWitt noted Michelle Kirby, City
Controller, was also present at the Task Force meeting.

Mr. DeWitt explained the process and types of documents departments used for purchases
under and over $1,000. He stated each department has authorized signers who approve
purchases and for the City Council and Mayor’s Office it is the Executive Assistant to the
Council and Mayor’s Chief of Staff, respectively. He described the process for ensuring
signatures are appropriate. He added if Finance staff has questions about a department’s
purchase, such as what is the benefit to the City for this purchase, then it is returned to the
department.

Mr. DeWitt stated a purchase of $8,600 or more requires a payment ordinance approved by the
City Council at a formal Council meeting. He added these invoices are not paid unless City
Council approval is obtained.

Mr. DeWitt explained Administrative Regulation (A.R.) 3.10 outlines the general purchasing
procedures whereas A.R. 3.41 outlines the procedures for business travel. He described the
approval process for City business travel. He explained the process for reimbursement of
expenses: receipts must be submitted, alcohol is not reimbursable, appropriate food amount,
and the room rate must be within the Federal Government’s General Services Administration
(GSA ) rate, or an exception must be provided if not within GSA rate (e.g. conference hotel.).
He stated every receipt is checked to make sure it is appropriate and receipts are reconciled to
the travel form. He added travel is one of the most heavily reviewed expenses in the City.

Mr. Calderon inquired, for example, whether the City Manager would approve a travel request
to Dubai and a stay in a luxury hotel by the Mayor. Mr. DeWitt replied the City Manager would
need to review the request for appropriateness, such as whether the trip was required for
economic development. He added Finance would request an explanation for a hotel rate
beyond the GSA rate. He explained Ms. Kirby often responds to public records requests for
copies of every travel receipt, which are kept on file for five years. He added the Arizona
Republic requests quarterly reports on expenses.

2



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
January 7, 2013
Page 3 of 8

In response to a question from Mr. Calderon regarding whether the City Manager has ever
turned down a request, Mr. DeWitt replied he did not know. He explained if no travel paperwork
is filled out there would be no record of the request.

Mr. Calderon asked Mr. Brown if a denied travel request is public record, to which Mr. Brown
confirmed if the City had the record and it was created in the course of public administration, it
would be a public record. Mr. Romley noted there are certain requirements to keep these types
of documents and would assume the City would maintain the documents.

Mr. Romley inquired if the $8,600 approval limit is cumulative or for individual expenditures, to
which Mr. DeWitt stated it is one payment to a single vendor.

Mr. Romley inquired whether Phoenix was identified as the city purchasing monogrammed
shirts, to which Mr. Stapleton stated it was the City of Surprise, not Phoenix.

In response to a question from Mr. Romley, Mr. DeWitt stated staff does reject purchases and a
common rejection is food purchases.

Mr. DeMuro inquired why the discretionary budget amounts noted in the newspaper article
differed for the Mayor’s Office compared to the City Council offices, to which Mr. Paniagua
replied the difference could be due to constituent outreach events. In follow-up, Ms. Smith
confirmed the amounts noted are total annual budgets. Mr. Paniagua explained not all City
Council offices have the same level of miscellaneous funds; each Council office opts to take
budget cuts in different ways, some will reduce staffing and others will reduce miscellaneous
spending.

In response to a question from Mr. DeMuro, Mr. Paniagua confirmed each Council district has a
different budget.

Mr. DeMuro stated public perception is an issue and the objective is to ensure the public has
confidence in what is being done at the City, and, the intent is to make the process transparent.

Mr. Romley noted the newspaper article was not flattering and asked if staff has
recommendations on how to deal with these types of perception issues. Mr. Paniagua stated
the City has done a very good job of keeping controls in place but, unfortunately, when cities
are lumped together in one newspaper article it can affect the public’s perception. He added
these areas in the City Council budget are frequently reviewed by reporters and are very
transparent; there is nothing hidden.

Mr. DeWitt stated both he and Mr. Paniagua report to the City Manager and they are free to
guestion the City Council on items they believe are in appropriate. He expressed the budget
gets a very hard review, the process is very thorough and scrutiny is high.

Judge Finn inquired whether a list was available of those items that are appropriate for public
funding. Ms. Kirby replied there is not a particular list. Mr. DeWitt stated staff has clarified
appropriate spending when required, but there is not a list of everything that can be purchased

3



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
January 7, 2013
Page 4 of 8

with City funds.

In response to a follow-up question from Judge Finn, Mr. DeWitt stated the travel A.R. (3.41)
does list out appropriate expenditures; however, the procurement A.R. (3.10) is broader. Judge
Finn stated a list of the typical, common types of things public money can be used for may
assist with the perception issue and would probably not require a change in current processes.

Mr. Romley inquired if it is against the City Charter for City Council members to influence the
employment of public staff, to which Mr. Brown replied in the affirmative. Ms. Smith clarified
both, the Mayor’s Chief of Staff and the Executive Assistant to the City Council report to the City
Manager.

Judge Gass questioned whether the Task Force needed to review how the provision for non-
city funded travel in the travel A.R. (3.41) applies.

4. Review of Edits to the Draft Report of Task Force Recommendations

Mr. Romley introduced Mr. Brown to review and discuss revisions to the draft report of Task
Force Recommendations.

Executive Summary
Page 1: The reference to volunteers in the fourth bullet point was removed.

Page 3: Under “Recommendations for Elected Officials and Board Members”, the word
“impose” was replaced with “recommend” in the fifth bullet. A MOTION was made by Mr.
Romley, and SECONDED by Mr. Calderon, to keep this bullet as written regarding the fine
amount. The MOTION CARRIED (7-3).

Page 3: A MOTION was made by Judge Finn and SECONDED by Mr. Romley to revise the
sixth bullet to allow suspension as an option for an ethics violation in regard to elected officials
or board members. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (10-0).

The Task Force concurred the sixth bullet should be changed to note the Commission can
‘recommend” to the City Council suspension or removal, not “impose” suspension or removal,
of an elected official or board member.

Page 3: Under “Recommendations for Employees and Volunteers”, the word “bi-annual” was
changed to “biennial” in the second bullet point.

Page 4: Mr. Goad recommended adding a bullet point stating the City should re-examine
employees being allowed to participate in City election activities. Mr. Brown was assigned to
develop specific language to that effect.

Mr. Calderon left the meeting.

Mr. DeMuro asked whether the City would still fall within state law if that policy changed. Mr.
Brown stated additional research would be needed; however, in general, employees cannot use

4



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
January 7, 2013
Page 5 of 8

public property or conduct election activities on City time. He added, currently City employees
cannot sign a petition for re-election or recall. Mr. Romley stated he would support re-
examination of the issue by a body other than the Task Force.

Page 4: The words “strongly recommends” were added to the sixth bullet point regarding
hearing officers in reference to the Task Force’s opinion that hearing officers for zoning and
planning matters should be paid. Also, the phrase “appearance of undue influence” was
replaced with “perception of a conflict of interest”.

Mr. Calderon rejoined the meeting.

Introduction
Page 6: Minor grammatical changes were made to the first paragraph.

Page 9: The last sentence of the second full paragraph which referenced a publishing date of
the Task Force Report that was no longer accurate was removed.

Page 10: The word “volunteers” was removed from the end of the first paragraph, top of page.

Page 10: The first sentence of the first paragraph under “Lack of an Ethics Investigation and
Enforcement Process for Elected Officials” was modified by replacing the phrase “to remove an
elected official from office, if necessary, for ethics violations,” with “nor a process by which
progressive sanctions can be imposed.”

Page 11: In the first paragraph under “Lack of Ongoing Training and a Comprehensive Ethics
Website as a Resource”, “volunteers” was removed, and, “including supervisors” was added

after “employees”. Also, the term “mandatory” was added to the sentence regarding follow-up
or supplemental training for ethics (e.g., follow-up and supplemental training is available, but it

is not mandatory).

Recommendations for the Entire Organization
Page 14: Recommendations 11 and 12 will be reworded to conform to changes agreed to
under the Executive Summary.

Page 15: Change all references to “allegations” to “request for inquiry” and delete “with
prejudice” in Recommendation 13.

Mr. Hardin left and, shortly after, rejoined the meeting.

Page 16: Paragraph 3b and the first paragraph under Section 4 will be revised to conform to
changes agreed to on Page 15, e.g. changing “allegations” to “request for inquiry”.

Page 18: Under “Council Review and Action”, a phrase was added at the end of the first
paragraph at the top of page 18 stating “and the matter shall be dismissed”.

Page 18: Recommendation 14 was deleted from the report.



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
January 7, 2013
Page 6 of 8

Page 19: “Periodic” was replaced with “biennial” in Recommendation 2 regarding ethics
training for employees.

Page 23: Mr. Brown will develop wording, following the first paragraph, stating the Task Force
has developed an ethics review process; however, elected officials should develop the ethical
standards.

The Task Force reviewed and discussed the Proposed Ethics Investigation and Enforcement
Process flow chart. The term “allegations” on the flow chart will be replaced with “request for
inquiry”. It was recommended the title be changed to clarify the flow chart applies only to
elected officials, boards and commissions members and not to employees. For the boxes that
state “Less than majority remand to Commission”, the phrase “for further consideration” will be
added.

5. Review of Feedback Received on Draft Recommendations

During his discussions with Council members, Mr. Romley stated he received an inquiry about
whether a Council member can file a complaint against a City employee who makes allegations
against an elected official. In response to the inquiry, Mr. Romley explained the City Manager
oversees the disciplinary process for employees. Judge Gass inquired whether it would require
a City Charter change, to which Mr. Brown responded possibly.

Ms. Smith relayed feedback received on the social media recommendation regarding
employees being required to give supervisors access to their accounts. She explained it would
be rare that it would be necessary since, in most cases, the documents or information in
guestion have already been provided to the Human Resources (HR) Department or HR liaison.
Judge Finn suggested reviewing that area again to clarify the language.

Regarding supervisors checking publicly-available social media sites during pre-employment
background screening, Ms. Smith stated supervisors would need training to ensure they
consider only job-related information when reviewing those sites.

Recommendation 7, Social Media Policy, on page 21 was revised to clarify the components of
the recommendation, which are outlined by bullet point, are simply noted for the City’s
consideration. Also, revisions were made to the sixth bullet point under this recommendation
regarding HR'’s role and when information might be requested of employees’ personal social
media sites.

Mr. DeMuro stated he believes the Task Force has gone beyond where some may have
thought and is concerned the Task Force’s recommendations/report may be scrutinized to the
point of not being accepted.

Mr. Hardin left the meeting.

Mr. DeMuro stated he believes this review was taken very seriously by the Task Force and
would like that point conveyed to the Mayor and Council. He suggested the full Task Force
make a presentation to the City Council to appropriately convey the ethics review process and

6



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
January 7, 2013
Page 7 of 8

subsequent recommendations.
Ms. Ho left the meeting.

Judge Finn suggested asking the City Council to report its progress with regard to implementing
the recommendations included in the Task Force’s report.

Mr. Romley expressed Phoenix falls behind other jurisdictions with regard to ethics enforcement
for elected officials. He added a presentation will be made before a televised subcommittee.

He suggested the Task Force draft a letter to the City Council, provide a presentation and
request the Task Force be kept informed of Council’s progress.

Judge Patterson suggested going forward with a vote, providing a formal presentation to the
Council subcommittee, and ensure Task Force members are available at the subcommittee
meeting to answer questions by the Council.

Judge Gass requested clarification of the Council subcommittee process, to which Mr. Brown
explained the Council subcommittee makes a recommendation(s) to the full City Council and
the item is placed on a future City Council agenda. He stated there is a cover letter to the Task
Force’s report to which further comments can be added.

Mr. Romley recapped the recommendation to modify the cover letter, request a presentation
before the subcommittee, and request to be kept informed of Council’s progress; and, Task
Force members will be available to answer questions.

6. Potential Adoption of Draft Report

A MOTION was made by Mr. Romley to adopt the report as amended, including all conforming
technical requirements as ascertained by Mr. Brown and as provided here; the cover letter be
modified to capture the three points outlined above; and, all signatures be included on the cover
letter. However, the cover letter will not be finalized until final review and approval by the Task
Force Chair.

The Task Force discussed and agreed to January 14, 2013 as the completion date to provide
comments to the cover letter.

Mr. Brown stated he will incorporate the Task Force members’ comments on the cover letter
and reminded the Task Force not to “reply to all” with their e-mail comments.

Mr. Burke SECONDED the MOTION.

Judge Finn requested further clarification, to which Mr. Brown replied if there are conflicts
between the Task Force members’ comments to the cover letter he will contact the Chair and
make the appropriate edits.

The MOTION was AMENDED by Mr. Romley to reflect the completion date of January 14 and
Judge Finn SECONDED the AMENDED MOTION. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (8-0).

7



Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Minutes
January 7, 2013
Page 8 of 8

Mr. Romley thanked the members for their participation on the Task Force. He requested Task
Force members attend the City Council subcommittee presentation when it is scheduled.

Judge Gass applauded Mr. Romley for his leadership chairing the Task Force.

7. Future Agenda ltems

None.

8. Call to the Public

Comments were received by Mr. Luis Acosta. He thanked the Task Force and expressed
frustration about the three minute time limit for comments and being required to wait until the
end of the meeting to provide comments. Mr. Acosta also provided comments about the City’s
purchasing process and expressed concerns with previous City purchases.

Comments were received by Ms. Dianne Barker regarding gifts. She expressed concerns with
not being allowed to provide input on the report’'s recommendations. She also expressed

concerns about not being allowed to comment during a specific agenda item.

Mr. DeMuro stated items in the Task Force’s report were a direct result of input received from
the public.

9. Next Meeting Date
No future meetings scheduled.
10. Adjournment

A MOTION was made by Mr. Romley and SECONDED by Mr. Burke to adjourn the meeting.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMQOUSLY (8-0).

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:18 p.m.



Draft Prepared By Phoenix Law Dept.
Version 1 — Draft 7/25/2012

&

City of Phoenix
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
To: Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Date: July 25, 2012
From: Daniel L. Brown, Acting Chief Counsel

Subject:  City of Phoenix Ethics Legal Framework

The attached Phoenix City Charter and City Code Sections constitute the legal
frame work for City of Phoenix ethics policies:

Exhibit A: Phoenix City Charter XI, Section 1. - Conflict of Interest.

« Adopts Arizona Revised Statutes for conflicts of interest found in
A.R.S. Sections 38-501 and following.

Exhibit B: Phoenix City Code Section 2-52 — City of Phoenix Ethics Policy.

« Applicable to all city officers, and employees, and members of
city boards, commissions, committees, and city council.

Exhibit C: Phoenix City Code Section 2-563 — Complaints of Ethics Policy
Violations by Board, Commission or Committee Members.

« Not applicable to employees or officers.

Exhibit D: Phoenix Gity Code Chapter 2, Article XXX, Sections 2-1000 and
following — Lobbyists.

« A.R.S. Section 41-1232.08 also applies to the City of Phoenix
as a political subdivision of the State.

DLB/ms: 987037v1



Page 2

EXHIBIT A



o

" Charter Chapter XI : . Page lof 1

(4 hits)

CHAPTER XI. CONFLICT OF INTEREST; DISCRIMINATION

1 Provisions of State law to apply.

The provisions of the state law governing conflict of interest of officers and employees
shall apply.

(Election of 11-9-1971)
State law reference—Conflicts of interest, A.R.S. § 38-501 et seq.
2 Discrimination.

No person shall be appointed to, removed from or in any way favored or discriminated
against with respect to any City position because of race, color, ancestry, national origin,
sex, political or religious opinions or affiliations.

(Election of 11-9-1971)

State law reference—Employment discrimination, A.R.S. § 41-1451 et seq,

The Phoenix Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance City Website: hitp://phoenix.gov/
G-5697, passed April 18, 2012, {http//phoenix.gov/)
Disclaimer: The City Clerk's Office has the official version of the Phoenix City Telephone: (602) 262-6811
Charter and City Code. Users should contact the City Clerk's Office for Code Publishing Company
ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. (http:/www.codepublishing.com/)

ekibrary

(http:/iwww.codepublishing.com/elibrary.htm)

http://www.codepublishing.com/dtSearch/dtisapi6.dll‘?cn1d=getdoc&DocId=2728&Index=D... 7/9/2012



38-601. Application of article

A. This article shall apply to all public officers and employees of incorporated cities or fowns, of political
subdivisions and of the state and any of ils departments, commissions, agencies, bodies or boards.

B. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, or the provisions of any charter or ordinance of any
incorporated city or town to the contrary, the provisions of this article shall be exclusiirely applicable to all officers and
employees of every incorporated city or town or political subdivision or the state and any of its departments,
commissions, agencies, bodies or boards and shall supersede the provisions of any cther such law, charter provision of

ordinance. .
C. Other prohibitions in the state statutes against any specific conflict of interests shall be in addition o

this article if consistent with the intent and provisions of this article,



38.502. Definitions

In this article, unless the context ctherwise requires:

4. "Compensation® means money, a langible thing of value or a financial benefit.

2. "Employee" means all persons who are not public officers and who are employed on a fulk-time, part-time

or contract basis by an incorporated city or town, a political subdivision or the state or any of its departments,
commissions, agencies, bodies or boards for remuneration.

3. "Make known" means the filing of a paper which is signed by a public officer or employee and which

fully discloses a substantial interest or the fiing of & copy of the official minutes of a public agency which fully
discloses @ substantial interest. The filing shall be in the special file established pursuant to section 38-509.

4. "Official records” means the minutes or papers, records and documents maintained by a public agency for
the specific purpose of receiving disclosures of substantial interests required to be made known by this article.

5. ‘"Political subdivision” means all political subdivisions of the state and county, including all schoo! districts.
6. "Public agency” means:

{a) Al courts.

{b) Any department, agency, board, commission, institution, instrumentality or legislative or administrative body
of the stale, a county, an incorporated fown or city and any other poliical subdivision.

(¢} The state, county and incorporated cities or towns and any other political subdivisions.

7. “Public compelitive bidding" means the method of purchasing defined in titte 41, chapter 4, article 3, or
procedures substantially equivalent to such method of purchasing, or as provided Dy local charter or ordinance.

B. "Public office” means ali elected and appointed officers of a public agency established by charter,
" ordinance, resofution, state constitulion or statute,

9. "Relative” means the spouse, child, child's child, parent, grandparent, brother or sister of the whole or
half blood and their spouses and the parent, brother, sister or child of a spouse.

10. "Remote interest® means:

(a) That of a nonsalaried officer of a nonprofit corporation.

{b) " That of a landlord or tenant of the contracting party.

(c} That of an attorney of a contracting party.

(d} That of a member of a nonprofit cooperative marketing association.

(e) The ownership of lass than three per cent of the shares of a corporation for profit, provided the total
annual income from dividends, including the value of stock dividends, from the corporation does not exceed five per
cent of the total annual income of such officer or employee and any other payments made to him by the corporation
do not exceed five per cent of his total annual income.

(h That of a public officer or employee In being reimbursed for his aclual and necessary expenses incurred
in the performance of official duty.

(gy That of a recipient of public services generally provided by the incorporated city or town, politicat
subdivision or state department, commission, agency, body or board of which he is a public officer or employee, on
the same terms and conditions as if he were not an officer or employee.

() That of a public school board member when the relative involved is not a dependent, as defined in
section 43-1001, or a spouse.

(i) That of a public officer or employee, or that of a relative of a public officer or employes, unless the
contract or decision involved would confer a direct economic benefit or detriment upon the officer, employee or his
relative, of any of the following:

(i) Another political subdivision.

(i) A public agency of another political subdivision.

(i) A public agency except if it is the same governmental entity.

(i) That of a member of a trade, business, cccupation, profession or class of persons consisting of at least
ten members which is no greater than the interest of the other members of that trade, business, occupation, profession
or class of persons.

11. "Substantial interest" means any pecuniary or proprietary interest, either direct or indirect, other than a
remote interest.



38-503. Conflict of interest; exemplions; employment proh'ib'llion
A. Any public officer or employee of a public agency who has, of whose relative has, a substantial interest
in any contract, sale, purchase or service to such public egency shall make known that interest in the official records

of such public agency and shali refrain from voting upon or otherwise participaling in any manner as an officer or
employee in such contract, sale or purchase.

B. Any public officer or employee who has, or whose relative has, a substantial interest in any decision of
a public agency shall make known such interest in the official records of such public agency and shall refrain from
participating in any .manner as an officer or employee In such decision.

C. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections A and B of this section, no public officer or employes of 8
public agency shall supply lo such public agency any equipment, material, supplies or services, unless pursuant to an
award or contract let after public competitive bidding, except that:

1. A school district governing board may purchase, as provided in sections 15-213 and 15-323, supplies,
materials and equipment from a school board member.

2. Political subdivisions other than scheol districts may purchase through their goveming bodies, without using
public competitive bidding procedures, supplies, materials and equipment not exceeding three hundred dellars in cost in
any single transaction, not to exceed a total of one thousand dollars annually, from a member of the governing body
if the policy for such purchases is approved annually.

D. Notwithstanding subsections A and B of this section and as provided In sections 15-421 and 15-1441,
the governing board of a school district or a community college district may not employ a person who is a member
of the goveming board or who is the spouse of a member of the goveraing board.



38-504. Prohibited acts

A. A public officer or employee shall not represent another person for compensation before a public agency
by which the officer or employee is or was employed within the preceding twelve months or on which the officer or
employee serves or served within the preceding twelve months concering any matter with which the officer of
employee was directly concerned and in which the officer or employee personally participated during the officers of
employee's employment or service by a substantial and material exercise of administrative discration.

B. During the period of a public officer's or employee's employment or service and for two years thereafter,
a public officer or employee shali not disclose or use for the officer's or employee's personal profit, without appropriate
authorization, any informalion acquired by the officer or employee in the course of the officers or employee's official
duties which has been clearly designated to the officer or employee as confidential when such confidential designation
is wamanted because of the status of the proceedings or the circumstances under which the information was received
and preserving its confidentiality is necessary for the proper conduct of government business. A public officer or
employee shall hot. disclose or use, without appropriate authorization, any information that is acquired by the officer of
employee in the course of the officer's or employee’s official duties and that is declared confidential by law.

C. A public officer or employee shall not use or allempt to use the officer's or employee's official position
to secure any valuable thing or valuable benefit for the officer or employee that would not ordinarily accrue to the
officer or employee in the perfermance of the officer's or employee’s official duties if the thing or benefit is of such

character as lo menifest a substantial and improper influence on the officer or employee with respect o the officers
or employee's duties.



38-505. Additional income prohibited for services

A. No public officer or employee may receive or agree to receive directly or indirectly compensation other
than as provided by law for any service rendered or to be rendered by him personally in any case, proceeding.
application, or other matter which is pending before the public agency of which he is a public officer or employee.

B. This section shall not be construed to prohibit the performance of ministerial functions including, but not

fimited to, the filing, or amendment of tax returns, applications for permits and licenses, incorporation papers, and other
documents.



38-506. Remedies

A. In addition to any other remedies provided by law, any contract entered into by a public agency in
violation of this article is voidable at the instance of the public agency.

B. Any person affacted by a decision of a public agency may commence a civil suit in the superior court

for the purpose of enforcing the civii provisions of this article. The court may order such equitable relief as it deems
spproptiate in the circumstances including the remedies provided in this section.

C. The court may in its discretion order payment of costs, Including reasonable attorney's fees, to the
prevailing party In an action brought under subsection B.



38-507. Opinions of Ihe attomney general, county altorneys, city or town attorneys and house and
senate ethics committee

Requests for opinions from either the attorney general, a county attorney, a city or town attorney, the senats
ethics committee or the house of representalives ethics commitiee concerning viclations of this article shall be
confidentiai, but the final opinions shali be a matter of public record. The county aftomeys shall file opinions with the
county recorder, the city or town atorneys shall file opinions with the city or town clerk, the senale ethics committee
shall file opinions with the senate secretary and the house of representatives ethics committee shall file opinions with
the chief clerk of the house of representatives.



38-508. Authority of public officers and employees to act
A. |f the provisions of section 38-503 prevent an appointed public officer or a public employee from acting
as required by law in his official capacity, such public officer or employee shali notify his superior authority of the

conflicting interest. The superior authority may empower another to act or such authority may act in the capacity of
the public officer or employea on the conflicting matter.

B. If the provisions of section 38-503 prevent a public agency from acting as required by law in its official
capacity, such action shall not be prevented if members of the agency who have apparent conflicts make known their
substantial interests in the official records of their public agency.



38-509. Filing of disclosures

Every political subdivision and public agency subject 1o this anicle shall maintain for public inspection in 2
pursuant to this

special file all documents necessary to memctialize all disclosures of substantial interest made known

article.



38-510. Penalties
A. A person who:
1. Intentionally or knowingly violates any provision of sections 38-503 through 38-505 Is guilty of a class 6

felony.
2. Recklessly or negligently violates any provision of sections 98-503 through 38-505 is guilty of a class 1

misdermneanor.
B. A person found guilty of an offense described in subsection A of this section shall forfeit his public

office or employment if any.
C. it is no defense to a prosecution for a violation of seclions 38-503 through 38-505 that the public

officer or employee to whom a benefit is offered, conferred or agreed to be conferred was not qualified or authorized

to act in the desired way.
D. It is a defense to a prosecution for a violation of sections 38-503 through 38-505 that the interest

charged to be substantial was a remole interest.



.

Format Document " Pagel of 1

<.t Cancellation of political subdivision and state contracts; definition
A. The state, its political subdivisions or any department or agency of either may,
within three years after its execution, cancel any contract, without penalty or further
obligation, made by the state, its political subdivisions, or any of the departments or
agencies of either if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating,
securing, drafting or creating the contract on behalf of the state, its political
subdivisions or any of the departments or agencies of either is, at any time while the
contract or any extension of the contract is in effect, an employee or agent of anY]
other party to the contract in any capacity or a consultant to any other party of the
contract with respect to the subject matter of the contract.
B. Leases of state trust land for terms longer than ten years cancelled under this
section shall respect those rights given to mortgagees of the lessee by section 37-289
and other lawful provisions of the lease.
C. The cancellation under this section by the state or its political subdivisions shall be
effective when written notice from the governor or the chief executive officer or
governing body of the political subdivision is received by all other parties to the
fontract unless the notice specifies a later time.
D. The cancellation under this section by any department or agency of the state or its
Bo!itical subdivisions shall be effective when written notice from such party is received
y all other parties to the contract unless the notice specifies a later time.
E. In addition to the right to cancel a contract as provided in subsection A of this
section, the state, its political subdivisions or any department or agency of either may
recoup any fee or commission paid or due to any person significantly involved in
initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the contract on behalf of the
state, its Eolitical subdivisions or any dePartment or agency of either from any other
party to the contract arising as the result of the contract.
F. Notice of this section shall be inciuded in every contract to which the state, its
political subdivisions, or any of the departments or agencies of either is a party.
G. For purposes of this section, "political subdivisions” do not include entities formed
or operating under title 48, chapter 11, 12, 13,17, 18, 19 or 22.

http:// www.azleg.state.az.us/FormatDocument.asp?inDoc:/ars/ 38/00511 htm& Title=38&D... 7/9/2012



Page 3

EXHIBIT B



2-52 City of Phoenix Ethics Policy. - Page 1 of 1

(6 hits)

2-52 City of Phoenix Ethics Policy.

It is the policy of the City of Phoenix to uphold, promote and demand | - 1
the highest standards of ethics from all of its employees and [Eompile Chapter |
officials, whether elected or appointed. Accordingly, alt City officers

and empioyees, members of City boards, commissions and committees and members of
the City Council should maintain the utmost standards of personal integrity, truthfulness, .
honesty and faimess in carrying out their public duties, avoid any improprieties in their
roles as public servants, and never use their City position or powers for improper
personal gain. :

{Ord. No. G-3438, § 2)
Charter reference—Conflict of interest, ch. Xl.

Cross reference—Lobbyists, § 2-1000 et seq.; campaign finance and financial
disclosure, § 12-1300 et seq.

The Phoenix Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance ) Cily Website: hitp:/iphoenix.gav/
G-5718, passed June 13, 2012, {http://phaenix.gov/)
Disciaimer: The City Clerk's Office has the official version of the Phoenix City Telephone: (602) 262-6811
Charter and Gily Code. Users should contact the City Clerk's Office for Code Publishing Company
ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. ) (http:/www.codepublishing.com/)

' elLibrary

(http:h’www.codepublishing.com!elibrary.html)

http://www.codepublishing.com/dtSearch/dtisapi6.dll‘?cmd=getdoc&D0cId:349&Index:D... 7/25/2012



Page 4

EXHIBITC



2-53 Complaints of Ethics Policy violations by board, commission or committee members. Page 1 of 1

(6 hits)

2-53 Complaints of Ethics Policy violations by board, commission or committee
members.

A. Any person who is a resident of the City of Phoenix or who is T ”’f*‘“'——"“’“'
affected by the actions of a Gity board, commission, or commitiee !Complle Chapter |
may file with the City Clerk a written complaint containing specific

allegations of violations of the City’s Ethics Policy by any member of any board,
commission, or committee.

B. Within five days of receiving the complaint, the City Clerk shall forward the complaint
to the City Manager or his designee.

C. The City Manager or his designee shall appoint an independent Hearing Officer to
review the complaint and to conduct any hearings which may be necessary.

D After the conclusion of a hearing on a complaint alleging a violation of the City's
Ethics Policy by a member of a board, commission of committee, the Hearing Officer
shall prepare a written report with findings of fact and recommendations. The report shall

be provided to the City Manager or his designee for such action as he deems
appropriate.

E. Compliance with this Section is not required for the Council to take action pursuant
to Section 2-51

(Ord. No. G-3803, § 1; Ord. No. G-4832, § 2, adopted 10-18-2006, eff. 10-18-2006)

The Phoenix Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance City Website: http:/iphoenix.gov/
G-5718, passed June 13, 2012, {http:/fphoenix.gov)
Disclaimer: The Gily Clerk's Office has the official version of the Phoenix City Telephane: (602) 262-6811
Charter and Cily Code. Users should contact the City Clerk's Office for Code Pubtishing Company
ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above, (http:/Awww codepublishing.com/)

eLibrary

{hitp:/fwww.codepublishing.com/elibrary.htmi)

http://www.codepublishing.com/ dtSearch/dtisapi6.dl1?cmd=getdoc&Docld=350&Index=D..

. 712512012



Page 5

EXHIBIT D



2-1000 Definitions. Page 1 of 2

(6 hits)

ARTICLE XXX. LOBBYISTS'
2-1000 Definitions.

1. Elected City official means the Mayor and members of the ‘ C ile Ch 3
Council of the City of Phoenix, whether serving by election or l_g,r.n_pi__afm_r
appointment.

2. Expenditure means a payment, distribution, loan, advance, deposit or gift, and
includes a promise or agreement, whether or not legally enforceable, to make an

expenditure that provides a benefit to an elected City official that is incurred by or on
behalf of a lobbyist.

3. Fémﬂy gift means a gift to an elected City official or a member of his household from
a lobbyist who is a relative of the elected City official or a member of his household if the
donor is not acting for someone not covered by this paragraph.

4. Gift means money, real property or tangible personal property. Far purposes of this
article, gift does not include:

(a) A gift or inheritance from a spouse, child, parent, grandparent, grandchild,
brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, nephew, niece, aunt,
uncle or first cousin or any such person’s spouse if the donor is not acting for
someone not covered by this paragraph and gifts of a personal nature were
customarily received from such persons before becoming an elected City official.

(b) The value of meals, entertainment or lodging that is reported or exempt from
reporting under this article.

(c) Salary, compensation or employer reimbursed expenses lawfully paid to an
elected City official.

(d) The value of professional or consulting services not rendered to obtain a
benefit for any lobbyist or lobbyist's client.

(e) Expenses relating to an event to which all members of the City Council or any
Council committee or subcommittee are invited.

(fy A plague or similar item given to an elected City official in recognition of service
or notable accomplishment.

(g) Informational material such as books, reports, pamphlets, tapes, calendars or
pericdicals.

(h) An unused item that is returned to the donor or delivered to a charitable
organization within fifteen days of receipt and is not claimed as a charitable
contribution for tax purposes.

hito://www.codepublishing.com/dtSearch/ dtisapi6.dll?7cmd=getdoc&Docld=104&Index=D... 712512012



2-1000 Definitions. ' : Page 2 0of 2

(i} A campaign contribution that is properly received and reported as required by
law.

(i) Anitem given to an elected City official if an item of similar value is given by the
elected City official at the same time, or on a similar occasion under similar
circumstances.

5. Lobby means communication with any elected City official for the purpose of
influencing officia! action. '

6. Lobbyist means any person who is compensated to lobby for a person other than
himself.

7. Official action means the action or non-action of the City Council.

8  Person means an individual, partnership, committee, association, limited liability
company or corporation and any other organization or group of persons.

9. Personal hospitality means meals, beverages, transportation or lodging furnished
noncommercially by a person on his or his family’s property or facilities.

10. Public official means a person holding an elected government office.
(Ord. No. G-3680, § 1)

Cross reference—Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2.

1Editor':-; note—Ord. No. G-3680 and Ord. No. (3-3700 both contained provisions
numbered as article XXX and sections 2-1000 and 2-1001, resulting in duplicate
numbering. The numbering is set forth as enacted.

Cross reference—Ethics policy, § 2-52.

State Law reference—Lobbyisis, A.R.S. § 41-1231 et seq.

The Phoenix Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance City Website: http://phoenix.gov/
G-5718, passed June 13, 2012, (http:/fohaenix.govl)
Disclaimer: The Gity Clerk's Office has the official version of the Phoenix City Telephone: {602) 262-6811
Charter and City Code. Users should contact the Gity Clerk's Office for Code Publishing Company
ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. (http:/www.codepublishing.com/)

eLibrary

(nttp:/iwww.codepublishing.com/elibrary htmi) -

http://www.codepublishing.com/dtSearch/ dtisapi6.di?cmd=getdoc&Docld=104&Index=D... 7/25/2012



2-1001 Registration; reports. Page 1 of 2
(5 hits)
2-1001 Registration; reports.
1. Lobbyists shall register prior to lobbying, or within five business | c " C—h |
days after first lobbying, by filing a statement disclosing the L_o_mi)',e,-.___a_mfﬂ

fallowing:

(@) Ifthe lobbyist is an individual, the name and business address of the lobbyist
and any employee of the lobbyist who acts as a lobbyist, provided that an individual
who is included as a lobbyist on the registration of an entity under paragraph (b) of
this subsection need not register separately.

(b) If the lobbyist is an organization, the name and business address of the entity,
its chief executive officer and all its officers and employees who act as lobbyists,
who shail be notified by the organization in writing that they have been listed as
iobbyists, provided that the entity need not register as a lobbyist if all its officers and
employees who act as lobbyists are individually registered as lobbyists under
paragraph (a) of this subsection.

(c) The name and business address of all persons by whom the lobbyist is
compensated to lobby and all persons on whose behalf lobbying is performed. Any

change in the information required by this paragraph shall be reported to the City
Clerk within thirty days.

2. At the time of registration or any time thereafter a lobbyist may file a statement
certifying that the lobbyist intends to make no expenditures reportable under this article.
Upon filing this statement the lobbyist shall be exempt from the expenditure reporting
requirements of this section, so long as no expenditures are made. If a lobbyist who has
signed an exemption statement subsequently makes any reportable expenditure that
lobbyist shall notify the City Clerk of such expenditure within ten days and shall thereafter
be subject to expenditure reporting requirements.

3. Lobbyists shall report expenditures quarterly. Expenditures over twenty-five dollars
shall be itemized separately, listing the date, amount and nature of the expenditure, the
name of the elected City official receiving or benefiting from the expenditure and the
person on whose behalf the expenditure was made. An aggregate of expenditures of
twenty-five dollars or less for each elected City official shall be reported. Expenditures for
the lobbyist's personal sustenance, family gifts, personal hospitality, preparation or
distribution of informational materials, campaign contributions, professional or consulting
services not made on behalf of another person for compensation, and not rendered
primarily for the benefit of an elected City official, office expenses, filing fees, legal fees,
employees, compensation, lodging and travel are not required to be reported.

4. Al expenditures for events to which all members of the Council or any committee or
subcommittee of the Council are invited shall be reported pursuant to subsection 3 of this
section. Such expenditures need not be allocated to individual Council members but the

http:z’/www.codepublishing.com/dtSearch/dtisapiG.dl1?cmd=getd0c&D0cId=l05&1ndex=D... 712512012



2-1001 Registration; reports. ' Page 2 of 2

date, location, total expenditures incurred-and a description of each such event shall be
reported.

5. A lobbyist who makes no reportable expenditures during a specified reporting period
may, in lieu of the report required by subsection 3 of this section, file a statement
certifying that there were no reportable expenditures during the period.

6. No person shali make a gift to, or expenditure on behalf of an elected City official

through another person to conceal the identity of the person making the gift or
expenditure.

7. No person shall give a gift to an elected City official for the performance of official

duties or if it may reasonably be interpreted to be offered in order to influence any action
or decision of an elected City official.

8. Registered City lobbyists must re-register annualily.

9. Each individual listed as a lobbyist on any lobbyist registration shall be responsible
for providing the information and filing the reports required by this section, provided that
individuals listed as lobbyists on the registration of an entity under subsection 1(b) of this
section may comply with this requirement through reports filed by the registered entity.

(Ord. No. G-3680, § 1 Ord. No. G-3804, § 1)

The Phoenix Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance - City Website: hitp://phoenix.gov/
G-5718, passed June 13, 2012, (http://phoenix.gov/)
Disclaimer: The City Clerk's Office has the official version of the Phoenix City Telephone: {602) 262-6811
Charter and City Code. Users should cantact ihe City Clerk’s Office for Code Publishing Company
ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. . {http:iwww.codepublishing.com/)

elibrary

{hllp:!!www.codepublishing.comlehbrary.hlm!)

hitn:// www.codepublishing.com/dtSearch/dtisapiG.dll?cmd=getdoc&DocId= 105&Index=D... 7/25/2012



2-1002 Exceptions. Page 1 of 1

(5 hits)

2-1002 Exceptions.

Section 2-1001 does not apply to:

[Compile Chapterg

1. A person who is not compensated for lobbying activity
other than reimbursement for actual expenses.

2. A person, acting in his own behalf, who appears before the City Council or
contacts an elected City official to support or oppose official action.

3. A public official, public employee or appointed member of a State, County or
local board, commission or council acting in his official capacity on matters
pertaining to his office, employment board, commission or council.

4, An expert introduced or identified by a registered lobbyist, or public official who
provides technical information or answers technical questions and makes no
expenditure required to be reported by this article.

5. A person who performs professional services in drafting legislation or in
advising and rendering opinions to clients as to the construction and effect of
proposed or pending legislation.

6. An attoméy who represents clients at any quasi-judicial hearing held by the City
Council. ‘

7. A person who contacts an elected City official solely for the purpose of
acquiring information.

8. A person who contacts an elected City official concerning any contract awarded
through competitive bidding.

(Ord. No. G-3680, § 1)

The Phoenix Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance City Website: hitp://phoenix.gov/
(G-5718, passed June 13, 2012, {http:/iphoenix.govl}
Disclaimer: The City Clerk's Office has the official version of the Phoenix City Telephone: {802) 262-6811
Charter and City Code. Users should contact the City Clerk's Office for Code Publishing Company
ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. (hitp:/Mwww.codepublishing.com/)

eLibrary

{hitp:/fwww.codepublishing.com/elibrary.htmi)

http://www.codepublishing.com/dtSearch/dtisapi6.dll‘?cmd=getdoc&D001d=106&Index=D... 7/25/2012



2-1003 Political contributions; reports. Page 1 of 1

(4 hits)

2-1003 Political contributions; reports.

Lobbyists who confribute to, or solicit contributions on behalf of, e ;
political campaigns of elected City officials, shall file quarterly Compile Chapteﬂ
reports, which shall be combined with expenditure reports when

applicable, identifying the lobbyist and disclosing the dates and amounts of contributions
made by or, if known, at the request of the lobbyist, the contributors’ names, addresses,

occupations and employers and the elected City officials to whom the contributions were
made.

(Ord. No. G-3680, § 1)

The Phoenix Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance City Website: hitp://phoenix.gov/
G-5718, passed June 13, 2012. {http:iphoenix.gov/}
Disclaimer: The Cily Clerk's Office has the official version of the Phoenix City Telephone: (602) 262-6811
Charter and City Code. Users should contact the City Clerk's Office for Code Publishing Company
ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. (hitp:fiwww.codepublishing.com{)

elibrary
{hitp:/hwww.codepublishing.com/elibrary.html}

hitp://www.codepublishing.com/dtSearch/dtisapi6.dl?cmd=getdoc&Docld=107&Index=D... 7/25/2012



2-1004 Forms, filing. Page 1 of 1

(4 hits)

2-1004 Forms, filing.

All statements and reports required by this article shall be under iC ile Chapt !
oath, on forms prescribed by the City Clerk and filed in the office of | ompfle MhaPe
the City Clerk.

(Ord. No. G-3680, § 1)

The Phoenix Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance City Website: http://phoenix.gov/
G-5718, passed June 13, 2012, (http://phoenix.gov/)
Disctaimer: The City Clerk’s Office has the official version of the Phoenix City Telephone: {602) 262-6811
Charter and City Code. Users should contact the City Clerk’s Office for Code Publishing Company
ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. {htip://www.codepublishing.com/)

elibrary

{hitp:/iwww.codepublishing.com/elibrary.html)

httr Harww codentiblishine com/dtSearch/dtisam6. dil?emd=getdoc&Docld=108&Index=D... 7/25/2012



© 21005 Prohibited lobbying; classification. Page 1 of 1

(6 hits)

2-1005 Prohibited lobbying; classification.

A. A person commits prohibited lobbying by: - !
P P ying by Compile Chapter |

1. Retaining or employing another person to promote or

oppose official action for compensation contingent in whole or in part on the

passage or defeat of any official action; or

2. Accepting employment or rendering service as a lobbyist for compensation
contingent in whole or in part on the passage or defeat of any official action.

B. Prohibited lobbying is a Class 1 misdemeanor.

(Ord. No. G-4620, § 2, adopted 6-23-2004, eff. 7-23-2004)

The Phoenix Charter and City Code are current through Ordinance City Website: hittp://phoenix.gov/
G-5718, passed June 13, 2012, : {hitp:/fphoenix.govl)
Disclaimer: The City Clerk's Office has the official version of the Phoenix City Telephone: {602} 262-6811
Charter and City Code. Users should contact the City Clerk's Office for : Code Publishing Company
ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. {http:/fwww.codepublishing.com/)

' elibrary

{http:/iwww.codepublishing. com/elibrary htmT}

hitnfwww codenublishing.com/diSearch/dtisapi6.dll?emd=getdoc&Docld=109&Index=D... 7/25/2012



41-1232.08. Entertainment ban; state and political subdivisions; exceplions; definition

A. A principal, designated lobbylst, authorized lobbyist, lobbyist for compensation, public body, designated
public lebbyist or authorized public lobbylst or any other person acting on that person's behalf shall not make an
expenditure or single expenditure for enterlainment for a state officer of state employee. A state officer or state
employee shall not accept an expenditure or single expenditure for entertalnment from a principal, designated lobbyist,

authorized lobbyist, lobbyist for compensation, public body, designated public lobbyist or authorized public lobbyist or any
other person acting on that person's behalf.

B. A person who for compensation attempts to influence the passage or defeat of legislation, ordinances,
rues, regulations, nominations and other matters that are pending or proposed or that are subject to formal approval
by the corporation commission, a county board of supervisors, a city or town governing body or a school district
governing board or any person acting on that person's behalf shall not make an expenditure or single expenditure for
entertainment for an elected or appointed member of the corporation commission, a county board of supervisors, a city
or town governing body or & school distict gaverning board. An elected or appointed member of the "corporation
commission, a county board of supervisors, & city or fown governing body or a school district governing board shall
not accept an expenditure or single expenditurs for entertainment from a person who for compensation attempts to
influence the passage or defeat of legislation, ordinances, rules, regulations, nominations and other matters that are
pending or proposed or that are subject to formal approval by the corporation commission, a county board of
supervisors, a city or town governing body or a school district governing board.

C. This section shali not apply to:

1. Entertainment in connection with a special event propery reporied pursuant to this article.

2. Entertainment that is incidental to a speaking engagement.

3. The following persons while attending or participating in any sporiing or cultural event or activity,
sponsored by the board, district or insfitution, in a facility that is owned or operated by the board, district or
institution:

(a) Employees of a school district governing board.

{b) Employees of a community college district governing board.

(c) Employees of any Institution under the jurisdiction of the Arizona board of regents.

D. The provisions of this article that define special events for legislators apply to special events for
members of the Arizona board of regents. '



City of Phoenix




Call 602-495-7778/voice or 602-261-8687/TTY number to receive this
brochure in alternative format: braille, large print, audio cassette, or
computer diskette.



CITY OF PHOENIX
VISION AND VALUES

We are dedicated to serving our customers.
We value and respect diversity.
We work as a team.

We each do all we can.

We learn, change, and improve.
We focus on results.

We work with integrity.

WE MAKE
PHOENIX BETTER!

\

Ower 1000 City of Phoenix
employees participated in the
development of our Vision and
Values. The City’s Vision and Values
give us a focus, something we all can
support and understand. Operating under
the principles of our Vision and Values is hard
work, but it will establish the City of Phoenix as
an organization where every one of us % ~
has the power to make a difference. A o
This book has been developed to help & N
you understand how important your
contribution is to the City and to help
you make the decisions that will keep f
Phoenix the Best-Run City in the World. %




TABLE OF CONTENTS

[.  CITY OF PHOENIX ETHICS POLICY .............c.oo ... 1
II. APPLICABLE LAWS ANDPOLICIES ................. ... 2
A. Attendance ... 2
B. Conflicts of Interest . .........covuiiieiinenen... 3
C. Contracts with the City .. ... 3
D. Disclosure of Confidential Information ................... 4
E. Discrimination ........ ..., 4
F. Employment ... 5
1. Incompatible Employment ......................... 5
2. Representing Private Interests Before City Agencies . . ... 5
3. Employment of Relatives . .......................... 6
4. Discussion of Future Employment .................... 6
G. Gifts, Favors and Extra Compensation .................. 6
H. Political Activity . ....ooount i 8
I.  Public Access: Open Meetings and Public Records ... ...... 9
J.  Use of City Equipment, Facilities or
Personnel for Private Gain . ........ ... ... .. ... ..... 9
K. Software Management .......... .. ..., .. 10
L. ElectronicMail ......... ... . ... . 11
M. Federal Transit Administraton Standards of Conduct ... ... 12
[II. PROCEDURES ... ...ttt 13
A. How to Declare a Possible Conflict of Interest .. .......... 13
B. Where to Report Improper Behavior ................... 13
1. CityEmployees ... 13
2. Members of City Boards, Commissions, Committees
and the City Council .......... ... .. ... ... ... .. ... 14
C. The Integrlty Line ..ot 14
1. What is the Integrity Line? ........... 0. /g ..... 14
2. What types of concerns should be rep % / ,
through the Integrity Line? . ... Q. W0 o Al gl L. 15
3. Information to be provided to Integr Line ... / 15
IV. PENALTIES AND SANCTIONS ... 700 ... ... .. < 16
APPENDIX A: EXAMPLES ............. Voo g\ 19
A. Conflicts of Interest (/' V\\V 19
B. No Conflict of Interest Exists ........" l ......... 21

APPENDIX B: ARIZONA STATUTES RE: CONFLICT OF
INTEREST OF OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES ....23

APPENDIX C: ARIZONA STATUTE RE:

EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES ............... 31

APPENDIX D: ARIZONA STATUTE RE:
ENTERTAINMENT BAN ..................... 32
APPENDIX E: KEYCITY LAWS .. ..o 33
APPENDIX F: DECLARATION OF GIFTS .................... 35
1. Sample Declaration Form ............................ 35

2. Sample List of Tickets to Declare ...................... 36



I. CITY OF PHOENIX ETHICS POLICY

It is the policy of the City of Phoenix to uphold, promote and demand the
highest standards of ethics from all of its employees and officials, whether
elected, appointed or hired. Accordingly, all City employees and members
of City boards, commissions, committees and the City Council should
maintain the utmost standards of personal integrity, truthfulness, honesty
and fairness in carrying out their public duties, avoid any improprieties in
their roles as public servants, and never use their City position or powers
for improper personal gain. See City Code, Ch. 2, Art. II, § 2-52*.

Comment: The proper operation of municipal government
requires all City employees and members of City boards,
commissions, committees and the City Council remain
independent, impartial, and responsible only to the public.
You hold office or were hired for the public’s benefit, and it
is your responsibility to uphold the Constitution of the
United States and the Arizona Constitution. In your offi-
cial acts, you are bound to observe the highest standards of
morality, and discharge faithfully the duties of your office
or position regardless of personal considerations, recogniz-
ing that the public interest must be your primary concern.

Democratic government can function properly only when
the citizenry has confidence in how its government is run.
Public trust is built largely upon the perceptions that citi-
zens have regarding their City employees, City Council
members, and members of City boards, commissions and
committees. Once public confidence is destroyed, it is diffi-
cult to re-establish. As a result, a public agency may not be
able to function effectively. Moreover, individual careers or
reputations may be irreparably damaged. Hence it is imper-
ative for you to foster the highest standards of personal
integrity and honesty in discharging your public duties.

You should remind yourself constantly of the civic trust

that you hold by reason of your position. You should never

compromise your honesty or integrity for personal gain or
\“ advancement. Always remain sensitive to the values

§ ;‘“ of the public you serve.

*Because the City has adopted this policy as an ordinance, all City employees and
members of City boards, commissions, and committees, and the City Council must
obey it.

* 1% ]



II.  APPLICABLE LAWS AND POLICIES

A. Attendance

1. Boards, Commissions and Committees. The City’s attendance
policy for members of boards, commissions and committees pro-
vides that, if a member fails to attend three consecutive regular
meetings, or more than fifty percent of all meetings of such groups
held over a calendar year period, the City Council may declare the
seat vacant and appoint a replacement. See City Code, Art. 1 § 2-40.

Comment: Members of City boards, commissions and
committees are expected to attend all regularly scheduled
meetings and should make every effort to do so. The City
Council appointed you for your experience, background
and perspective in a particular policy area, and wants the
benefit of your consideration and judgment. Moreover,
your board, commission or committee cannot conduct any
business unless a quorum is present. Accordingly, if you
must miss a meeting because of business, vacation or ill-

ness, please advise the chairperson of your board, commis- U///
sion or committee in advance of the meeting. Ry —
- ——

2. Employees are expected to begin and end work at assigned times
and to adhere to lunch and rest break times as defined by their
position. See A.R. 2.14. Carelessness or not observing work
schedules or break rules can lead to disciplinary action. In addi-
tion, City employees are expected to be productive during work
time. Loafing, tardiness and abuse of paid time destroy the public
respect and trust for what we do.

Comment: Each employee when hired is given a schedule

which specifies the work week, including beginning and

ending times, lunch length and time, and rest break infor-

mation. Employees who qualify for overtime will receive
compensatory time off or extra pay according to the spe-

cific rules governing the position. Most professional, super-

visor, and managerial staff do not receive compensatory

time or paid overtime. Check with your supervisor to see if

you are eligible to receive compensation for overtime

worked. Supervisors are understanding of the occasional
unpredictable events which cause employees to be late or \/
absent. Unexplained and excessive absences or tardiness //
are not easily excused. "& (el

=
[1[{[ %2 %



B. Conflicts of Interest

Pursuant to Chapter 11, Section 1 of the City Charter, Phoenix has
adopted Arizona’s Conflict of Interest Laws. The full text of those statutes
appears in Appendix B.

Comment: City employees and members of City boards,
commissions, committees and the City Council must be
constantly on guard against conflicts of interest. In short,
you should not be involved in any activity which might be
seen as conflicting with the responsibilities of your position
with the City. The people of Phoenix have a right to
expect that you act with independence and fairness toward
\ \ all groups and not favor a few individuals or yourself.
\\\ | Appendix A of this Handbook presents various examples of
_\\_ ;“ how the Conflict of Interest Laws operate.

C. Contracts with the City

Arizona law prohibits any employee, City Council Member, or member of
a board, commission or committee who has “a substantial interest in any
contract, sale, purchase or service to such public agency” from participat-
ing in any way with the transaction. See A.R.S. § 38-503(A) (reprinted
in Appendix B). Also, Arizona law has a flat prohibition against any City
employee or anyone officially representing the City from providing certain
goods and services to the City without competitive bidding. See A.R.S. §
38-503(C). Two other statutes prohibit municipal and public officers from
being personally involved in housing or redevelopment projects. See

ARS. § § 36-1406 and 36-1477.

Comment: As with other conflicts of interest, any City
employee or member of a City board, commission, commit-
tee or the City Council in such a situation must (i) make
known the substantial interest involved and (ii) refrain
from voting upon or otherwise participating in the transac-
tion or the making of such contract or sale. Also, you can-
not provide certain goods and services to the City—even if
you do not participate in the process—unless the competi-
\“ tive bidding process is used. Other prohibitions may apply

if federal funds are involved.
\\ L" / 4
\ 4
N ¥
——,

X3 % e

My

i"'



D. Disclosure of Confidential Information

Arizona law provides that, during a person’s employment or service with
the City and for two years thereafter, no City employee or member of a
City board, commission, committee or the City Council may disclose or
use confidential information without appropriate authorization. See

A.R.S. § 38-504(B) (reprinted in Appendix B).

Comment: City employees and members of City boards,
commissions, committees and the City Council often have
access to important non-public information regarding the
property, operations, policies or affairs of the City. Such
information may concern real estate transactions, expan-
sion of public facilities or other City projects. The leaking
of this inside information may benefit a few at the expense
of a possible monetary loss to the City and a deterioration
of public confidence. If you are privy to confidential infor-
mation, you may not disclose that information to any pri-

vate citizen and should disclose it to other public ”///
employees only if appropriate. o —
a—
E. Discrimination

Chapter XI, Section 2 of the City Charter provides: “No person shall be
appointed to, removed from or in any way favored or discriminated against
with respect to any city position because of race, color, ancestry, national
origin, sex, political or religious opinions or affiliations.” Discrimination
on the basis of sexual orientation is also prohibited.

Harassment on the basis of sex is a violation of Title VII of the U.S. Civil
Rights Act of 1964, as amended. The United States Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission (EEOC) defines sexual harassment as “unwel-
come” sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or phys-
ical conduct of a sexual nature when: 1) submission to such conduct is
made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual’s
employment; or 2) submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the
basis for employment decisions affecting an individual; or 3) such conduct
has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work
environment.

iz,

(TN * 4%



Comment: All people must be recognized, honored and
mutually respected. The United States and Arizona Con-
stitutions, as well as numerous federal, state and local laws,
outlaw various forms of discrimination. You should make
available to every person—whether they are applying for a
City service, job or position—every consideration, treat-
ment, advantage or favor that is the general practice to
make available to all citizens. The equality of opportunity
both to enter into public service, besides being the object
of various federal, state and local laws, is a central factor in
achieving efficient public service and good morale. It is
the responsibility of all City employees, members of boards,
commissions and committees and the City Council to help
create an environment where all members, employees and
citizens are respected and valued.

Employment

Incompatible Employment. City employees may have outside
employment, so long as it does not interfere with City employ-
ment and is approved in writing by the Department head. (See

City Policy A.R. 2.62.)

Comment: As a City employee you must avoid engaging
in or accepting private employment or rendering service for
private interests when such employment or service is
incompatible with the proper discharge of your official
duties or would tend to impair your independence or judg-
ment or action in the performance of those official duties.
For example, a City right-of-way agent who has knowledge
of the City’s plans to purchase particular property cannot
first purchase that property for another person or company.

Representing Private Interests Before City Agencies. For twelve
months following a person’s employment or service with the City,
Arizona law prohibits City employees and members of City boards,
commissions, committees and the City Council from representing
another person for compensation before a public agency concern-
ing any matter with which that officer or employee

was directly concerned and personally partici- ' ‘ / ,
pated in by a substantial and material exercise \ b

of administrative discretion. See A.R.S. § 38- \ \
504(A) (reproduced in Appendix B). 4

* 5 % *“ d



Comment: City employees and members of City boards,

commissions, committees and the City Council may appear

before City agencies on behalf of constituents in the course

of performing duties as a representative of the electorate or

in the performance of public or civil obligations, as long as I,

they are not representing any private person, group or inter- ///

est for compensation that is contingent on such activity. "’: E

3. Employment of Relatives. Arizona law prohibits City employees

and members of City boards, commissions, committees and the
City Council from being involved in the appointment, hiring or
supervision of a relative. See A.R.S. § 38-481 (reproduced in
Appendix C), and A.R. 2.91.

Comment: Because hiring and supervising a relative is a “//
. . . . . g, //
special type of a conflict of interest, it must be avoided.
- —

4. Discussion of Future Employment. When a City employee has
been offered or is discussing future employment with a person,
firm or any other business entity that is presently dealing with the
City concerning matters within the employee’s current official
duties, that person should disclose such possible future employ-

ment to the City Attorney’s Office. (See A.R. 4.01).

Comment: City employees should be aware that they are
vulnerable to offers of future employment by private parties
in exchange for favors and/or information obtained
through the person’s position. 2=

G. Gifts, Favors and Extra Compensation

1. The City’s Gift Policy (A.R. 2.93) provides that “No City
employee shall accept any gift, service or favor which would lead
toward favoritism or the appearance of favoritism in any way.”

Additionally, Arizona law prohibits City employees and members
of City boards, commissions, committees and the City Council
from receiving anything of value or any compensation other than
their normal salary for any service rendered with the City. See

' A.R.S. § 38-505(A) (reproduced in Appendix B).
Wiz,

7,

\

3

* 6 %



|

W
-

Comment: City employees and members of City boards,
commissions, committees and the City Council should not
accept any gifts (monetary or otherwise, such as a service,
loan, thing or promise), gratuities, or favors from anyone
other than the City for the performance of acts within the
regular course of official duties. You should refuse any gifts
or favors which reasonably may be interpreted to be offered
in order to influence a municipal decision. Compensation
for performing your public duty is limited to salaries, fringe
benefits and any personal satisfaction that you may derive
from doing a good job.

While you are the first to decide whether to accept any gift,
you must recognize that others will decide if there is “the
appearance of favoritism” for your having accepted a gift.

Finally, you should be wary of accepting any gifts or bene-
fits from individuals doing business with the City or whose
financial interests are affected by City action.

The Mayor and members of the City Council are prohibited by
state law from accepting any entertainment paid for by anyone
who is compensated to attempt to influence the passage or defeat

of any matter coming before the council. See A.R.S. § 41-
1232.08. (Reproduced in Appendix D).

In the context of this prohibition entertainment is defined by

A.R.S. § 41-1231(5) as follows:

“5. “Entertainment” means the amount of any expenditure
paid or incurred for admission to any sporting or cultural
event or for participation in any sporting or cultural activity.”

Comment: The Mayor and members of the City Council
cannot accept tickets to attend or participate in any sport-
ing or cultural event or activity, that are paid for by anyone
who is compensated to attempt to influence the passage or
defeat of any matter coming before the council. This is a
total prohibition regardless of the amount of the expendi-
ture and regardless of whether or not there is any intent or
the appearance of any intent to influence a municipal
decision. The exception to this prohibition in
ARS 41-1232.08.(c) would have limited "‘ / ,
the City Council, since this subsection is
directed to state officers and employees.

|7 % A d

application to the Mayor and members of \\\



While city employees and city officers in appointed posi-

tions are not subject to this state prohibition, they are still

subject to the other limitations on accepting things of

value as discussed in this section. Therefore they must give

careful consideration, as discussed in subsection 3 below, to

the general limitations on the acceptance of gifts whenever “///
an offer of entertainment is made to them. 1% -

3. City employees and members of City boards, commissions and com-
mittees must consider ethical principles before accepting personal gifts
of entertainment and sports/athletic activities.

Comment: After the above gift policy is applied, if you
accept the entertainment or sports/athletic activity gift and
do not pay for it, you must declare the gift with the City
Clerk Department, within two working days, using the
“Declaration Form.” Gifts should be declared regardless of
whether or not the gifts are used by the employee. See
Appendix F for a copy of the Declaration Form and exam-
ples of such gifts.

There are three examples of gifts that do not require decla-
ration:

1. A personal gift from a friend or relative.

2. Winning or receiving a promotional gift from a commu-
nity business, where the opportunity to win/receive the
gift is open to the community in general.

3. Employees who pay for the ticket or elect to make a
charitable contribution in the name of the donor for the
face value of the gift do not need to file a declaration.

All other gifts accepted should be declared regardless of “ ///
whether or not you use the gift. "’, -
H. Political Activity

Chapter XXV, Section 11 of the City Charter prohibits any person
holding a position with the City from participating in political

" , campaigns for City elective office in any way beyond
\‘ / voting and privately expressing personal opinions. See
74 AR.2.16.
el

—

\\ * 8%



Comment: As citizens, City employees and members of
City boards, commissions, committees and the City
Council can and should exercise their rights to register and
vote in all elections including City elective offices. The
City Attorney, in Opinion No. 90-012, determined that
the provisions of Chapter XXV, Section 11 of the City
Charter, do not apply to citizen members of City board
and commissions and, therefore, they may participate in
political campaigns for City elective office. City Council
members are specifically excluded from the provisions of
this Section of the Charter. Although other City officers
and City employees may participate as private citizens on
‘ campaigns for non-City offices and issues, they may not
\b\\ participate in or contribute to political campaigns for City
=& elective offices.
— 3 elec

I Public Access: Open Meetings and Public Records

Numerous Arizona and City laws require that meetings of public bodies be
open to the public and that public records be available for inspection. See
Open Meetings Laws (A.R.S. § § 38-431 through 431.09 and City Char-
ter Ch. 4, § 5) and Public Records Laws (A.R.S. § § 39-121 through 121.03
and City Charter, Ch. 4, § 21).

Comment: As declared in state statute, it is the official
public policy of Arizona that meetings of public bodies
be conducted openly. Also, Arizona law allows broad
access to public records. Open government gives the
public confidence that public affairs are being performed
properly. The City has published a separate brochure on
\\“ this subject for your use that is available from the City

§ % Clerk's office (602-262-6811).
J. Use of City Equipment, Facilities or Personnel for Private
Gain

City employees and members of City boards, commissions, committees and
the City Council should not use City facilities, equipment, personnel or
supplies for private purposes, except to the extent they are

lawfully available to the public. \\ "‘ / ,
\ |

”

.

* 9 %

d



Comment: Public respect for its government is weakened
when City-owned facilities and equipment are used by City
employees and members of City boards, commissions, com-

mittees

and the City Council for personal gain. City office

supplies, work materials, vehicles and equipment are to be
used only for City work. Taking City goods for private use
is not a “fringe benefit;” it is stealing. See A.R.S. § § 13-

1802. Also, it is improper (and maybe unlawful) for super-

visors to use subordinates for their personal benefit. 1/ /
Finally, you should avoid waste of public supplies and ", -
equipment. [l

K. Software Management

City of Phoenix employees, members of boards, commissions, and com-
mittees and the City Council should not make, use, accept or install ille-

gal copies

of computer software, documentation, or templates. See A.R.

1.86 and O.P. 6.401.

Examples of software copyright violations are:

installing a single-user copy of a software program on several
computers,

allowing six or more employees to concurrently use a five-user
licensed LAN software package,

borrowing a copy of a single-user licensed program without that
person removing it from their computer for the duration of the
loan,

loaning a person a copy of a single-user licensed software pro-

gram as an evaluation copy without removing it from your
computer for the duration of the evaluation,

making more back up copies of the software than allowed in
the license agreement.

The City Auditor Department conducts periodic audits to insure compli-
ance with City policies on software.

Wiz,

>

>

—
(T, *10 %



Comment: The legality of software is ideally established by
possession or accountability of the following five items: the
original software diskettes, the License, the original manu-
als, documented evidence of purchase, or copy of the com-
pleted product registration.

The illegal copying of software for personal or commercial
use is commonly referred to as “piracy.” Simply put, piracy
\“ is stealing. Piracy can result in civil and criminal penalties
\ s“ and disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.
)

e

L. Electronic Mail

Electronic mail systems, including internet, should be used only for City
business unless otherwise authorized. All electronic mail is considered
official City business and must be retained for one month in accordance
with the City’s Records Management Program. In general, electronic mail
communications are Public Records and subject to disclosure under the

Public Records Law ARS 39-101 et. seq. See A.R. 1.63.

Comment: The City will not read electronic message con-
tent as a routine matter, but reserves the right to do so
without prior notification. The City may electronically
\\“ scan mail messages for the presence of specific content such
- s“ as viruses or passwords and to maintain system integrity.

M. Federal Transit Administration Standards of Conduct

No employee, officer, agent, immediate family member, or Board member
of the grantee (City of Phoenix) shall participate in the selection, award,
or administration of a contract supported by Federal Transit Administra-
tion funds if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved.

Such a conflict would arise when any of the following has a financial or
other interest in the firm selected for award:

The employee, officer, agent, or Board member,

Any member of his/her immediate family,

His or her partner, or

e An organization that employs, or is about \\ "‘ / ,
\ 4

to employ, any of the above.

~
e M



The grantee’s (City of Phoenix) officers, employees, agents, or Board mem-
bers will neither solicit nor accept gifts, gratuities, favors, or anything of
monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or parties to sub-
agreements.

N. Safeguarding Public Assets

City employees and members of City boards, commissions, committees and
the City Council are responsible for safeguarding public assets/equipment
form loss or theft. Responsibility also exists for tracking and reporting lost,
stolen, and recovered property in accordance with A.R. 5.132.

Comment: It is the responsibility of City employees to
protect and safeguard public assets and to report any
\\\“ missing, lost, or stolen items in accordance with the
S ;s“ administrative regulation.
==

L" 4
) / //‘A
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIlIﬁ *12 %



III. PROCEDURES

A. How to Declare a Possible Conflict of Interest

If you think that a conflict of interest (or even a possible conflict) exists,
then you simply should announce that fact as soon as the possible conflict
comes to your attention. For example, as soon as members of City boards,
commissions, committees and the City Council realize that a conflict
exists on a given matter, they should fully disclose the conflicting interest
on the record for the minutes. From that point on you may not participate
in any manner (by discussing, questioning or voting) in that matter.
Although you are not required to leave the meeting, you cannot be
counted for purposes of constituting a quorum.

When the minutes of the meeting are available, the staff will send a copy
to the City Clerk’s Office with a note explaining that a conflict of interest
was declared.

You should not feel bad about declaring a conflict and not participating.
Indeed, members of the City Council often declare possible conflicts to
avoid any hint of impropriety.

If you are unsure whether a particular situation is considered a conflict of
interest, the safest course of action is simply to declare that a conflict may
exist that prevents you from participating. This is better than taking the
risk of inadvertently violating the law. Indeed, if there is a consistent
theme to this Handbook, it would be: “If in doubt, don’t.”

B. Where to Report Improper Behavior

City employees as well as members of City boards, commissions, commit-
tees and the City Council have a duty to prevent any improper govern-
mental actions. Hence, there is no shame in being a “whistleblower” if
another employee or appointed or elected officer is acting improperly.
Moreover, you should never attempt to use your authority or influence for
the purpose of intimidating, threatening, coercing, commanding or influ-
encing any person with the intent of interfering with that person's duty to
disclose such improper activity.

1. City Employees -

The first course of action when you discover someone may have
violated a law or city policy is to report wrong doings to supervi-
sors and/or management within the department it is occurring. If
you are not satisfied with the response or are not comfortable
reporting to department management, the issue should be reported
to one of the following areas for further investigation:

*13 % T



Issue

Refer issue to

Hiring process, recruitments, employee
qualifications, performance evaluations

Department Personnel Officer or
Personnel Department @ 262-6609 or
261-8687 (TTY)

Sexual Harassment (A.R. 2.35A) or
Protected Category Harassment

(AR.2.35B)

Department Personnel Officer or
Equal Opportunity Department’s
Compliance and Enforcement Division

@ 262-7486 or 534-1557 (TTY)

Discrimination/denial of equal
employment opportunities (A.R. 2.35)

Department Personnel Officer or
Equal Opportunity Department’s
Compliance and Enforcement Division

@ 262-7486 or 534-1557 (TTY)

Fraud or unethical behavior not
detailed above

Integrity Line* @ 261-8999 or
534-5500 (TTY)

* See further discussion of Integrity Line at C below.

2. Members of City Boards, Commissions, Committees and the

City Council -

Contact the

City Attorney’s

(602-262-6761). If you are uncertain about whether a conflict of
interest or other ethical problem exists, you should contact an
attorney in the City Attorney’s Office, identify yourself and
explain the situation. If time permits, please submit your request
in writing to the City Attorney directly. If your request relates to
a conflict of interest, A.R.S. § 38-507 requires that the request be
confidential, although the official opinion of the City Attorney is
required by this law to be a public record.

C. The Integrity Line

1. What is the Integrity Line?

The Integrity Line was established to provide employees with a
way to report fraudulent and unethical behavior of city employ-

ees.

It is used when an employee feels that they can not report

the problem to their department management or if they feel
department management has not acted adequately. Itis NOT the
source to report general complaints, suggestions or personnel
issues (see table at Bl. for guidance on where to report various

issues).

Wiz,

A
>
-]

EERRRR DAL T

* 14 %

Office



To report a compliant/issue, call 602-261-8999 (534-5500 TDD).
Callers are encouraged to provide a contact telephone number, as
there is often a need to gather additional information as the com-
plaint is reviewed. The information gathered from the call is
reported directly to the Integrity Line Committee, comprised of
the City Auditor, the City Attorney and the Assistant City
Manager. The Committee maintains strict standards of confiden-
tiality (to the extent permitted by law), and will not voluntarily
release information about an inquiry. The Committee will review
all complaints received and will advise callers on the Committee’s
findings at the conclusion of their review.

It is frequently necessary to consult administrative regulations,
personnel rules and departmental directives to determine whether
a particular action is allowable. The Integrity Line Committee
has the authority to clarify policy ambiguities and to investigate
allegations of improper conduct.

What types of concerns should be reported through the
Integrity Line?

The types of concerns that can be reported to the Integrity Line
include, but are not limited to violations of laws or regulations,
embezzlement, contract fraud, vendor kickbacks, loss or waste of
city money or property, falsified documents and specific danger to
public health or safety. As stated in B.1., the first course of action
when you discover a wrong doing is to report it to supervisors
and/or management within your own department.

Information to be provided to Integrity Line

The more information a caller has when contacting the Integrity
Line, the better an investigation can be conducted. The follow-
ing is a list of information that would be helpful to report:

e Circumstances of the incident and details of how fraud/
inappropriate action took place

e Names of all persons involved, including division and
department

e Date(s), time(s) and location(s) the event(s) took place
¢ [f missing funds, identify source of funds and how much

¢ Identify any evidence or documentation that is available
e Names of credible witnesses

e Any other information that may be helpful in an
investigation

*15 % LT



IV. PENALTIES AND SANCTIONS

Violations of the law and any of the policies set forth in this Ethics Hand-
book may expose a City employee or member of a City board, commission,
committee and the City Council to a variety of penalties—including rep-
rimand, removal from office, termination of employment and criminal
prosecution.™

In the case of a City employee, any disciplinary action must be conducted
in conformance with the procedures established by the City Charter and
in accordance with personnel rules and regulations. Additional penalties
authorized by law also may be imposed.

In the case of City board, commission and committee members, § 2-51 of
the City Code makes the violation of any policy set forth in the Handbook
sufficient cause for removal from office.

In the case of a member of the City Council, not only could they be sub-
jected to a recall movement, but also they could suffer civil and criminal
penalties authorized by law.

City employees and members of City boards, commissions and committees
and the City Council must recognize the serious consequences of violating
some of the laws set forth in this Ethics Handbook. For example, inten-
tional violation of the “Conflict of Interest Laws” constitutes a Class 6
felony, which is punishable upon conviction by imprisonment for up to
one and one-half years and/or a fine of up to one hundred fifty thousand
dollars. Negligent violation of the law constitutes a Class 1 misdemeanor,
which is punishable by imprisonment for up to six months and/or a fine of
up to two thousand dollars. In addition, a person found guilty of violating
the law automatically forfeits their public office.

Ultimate responsibility for complying with the law rests with individual
members of public bodies. Therefore, in situations involving potential
conflicts of interest, doubts as to the application of the law should be
resolved by disqualification rather than by participation.

* For example, the penalties for violating Arizona’s Open Meetings laws include nullifi-
cation of action taken [A.R.S. § 38-431.05], removal from office, a civil penalty of up
to $500, an assessment of all costs and attorney’s fees incurred in the lawsuit and such
other equitable relief that the court deems appropriate. A.R.S. § 38-431.07(A).

ol 7y

A

-
(T, * 16 %









APPENDIX A: EXAMPLES

The following examples are provided to give you an idea how Arizona’s
Conflict of Interest Laws would be applied. Of course, each situation
will be decided upon the unique fact circumstances involved. The
goal of these examples—and indeed this entire Handbook—is to help
develop greater sensitivity to ethical considerations. If you are in
doubt of what you should do, opt not to participate.

A.

Conflicts of Interest

Listed below are illustrative examples of situations involving potential vio-
lations of Arizona’s Conflict of Interest statutes. (All of the examples
assume that the City employee or officer is a member of the public agency
that is reviewing the matter in question.)

1.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) owns property in such
close proximity to property that is the subject of a zoning or
license application that the granting or denial of the application
could affect the value of the employee’s or member’s property.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) has done work in the
past for a firm seeking a City contract and anticipates doing fur-
ther work for the firm in the future. A potential conflict exists
regardless of whether the work involves the matter that is the sub-
ject of the contract. (However, mere past association does not of
itself constitute a conflict if the business relationship is not a con-
tinuing one.)

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) is an officer of a corpo-
ration that operates a chain of stores. An application by a
competitor seeks zoning approval for a store within the service
area of one of the stores owned by the member’s corporation.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) is a developer who files
an application for approval of a project. Not only must the City
employee or member disqualify himself from consideration of the
application, the member also may not participate in the matter by
personally presenting the application to the public body. (How-
ever, someone else may present the application on behalf of City

*19 % T



10.

employees and members of City boards, commission and commit-
tees and the City Council.)

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) is a realtor who has had
discussions concerning a listing agreement with the owner of
property that is the subject of a zoning application. If the City
employee or member of a City board, commission, committee or
the City Council wishes to pursue the agreement, he should dis-
qualify himself from considering the application. If the City
employee or member of a City board, commission, committee or
the City Council does not disqualify himself, he should not sub-
sequently enter into the listing agreement.

A proposed amendment to the City Code seeks to regulate a spe-
cific type of business activity. The City employee or member of a
City board, commission, committee or the City Council (or a rel-
ative) has an exclusive franchise or right to conduct the activity
in the City.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) has an interest in prop-
erty that will be uniquely affected by a proposed land use plan,
and the adoption of the plan could affect the value of the prop-
erty (e.g., the plan confers special benefits on the property that
are not applied to other similarly situated properties).

The close relative of a City employee or a member of a City board,
commission, committee or the City Council is in business with a
person whose application or contract is being considered by the
public agency.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council receives more than five percent of his
total annual income from a corporation that has an application or
a contract pending before the public body.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council is seeking the award of a professional
services contract from the City, unless the contract will be
awarded through competitive bidding to the lowest bidder. A
conflict of interest exists in the absence of competitive bidding
regardless of whether the City employee or member of a City

% 20 *



11.

B.

board, commission, committee or the City Council participates in
awarding the contract. In other words, a City employee or mem-
ber of a City board, commission, committee or the City Council
is prohibited from contracting with the City unless the contract
will be awarded through competitive bidding.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a close relative) is a paid employee
of an organization which receives funds appropriated by the City
council, including federal and state funds administered by the City.

No Conflict of Interest Exists

Following are illustrative examples of situations that do not constitute vio-
lations of the Conflict of Interest Laws. (Again, all examples assume that
the City employee or member of a City board, commission, committee or
City Council is a member of the public agency that is reviewing the mat-
ter in question.)

1.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) is a member of a trade
association that has applied for an amendment to the City Code
that is being considered by the public agency.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) owns a property in an
area that is included in a proposed land-use plan that is being con-
sidered by the public body (unless that plan would uniquely affect
the property of the City employee or a member of City board,
commission, committee or the City Council).

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) is the nonsalaried offi-
cer of a nonprofit corporation that has an application that is being
considered by the public body.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council is a tenant of a property owner who is
seeking a City contract (unless the contract would affect the
pecuniary or proprietary interests of the City employee or mem-
ber of a City board, commission, committee or the City Council).

%21 % T



5.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council is the attorney for a contracting party
(as long as the City employee or member of a City board, com-
mission, committee or the City Council does not represent the
person in regard to the contract).

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council owns less than 3% of the shares of a
corporation that has an application being considered by the pub-
lic body. The City employee or member of a City board, com-
mission, committee or the City Council does not have a conflict
if the total annual income from dividends, including the value of
stock dividends from the corporation, does not exceed 5% of the
total annual income of the City employee or member of a City
board, commission, committee or the City Council and any other
payments made to him by the corporation do not exceed 5% of
his total annual income.

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council is an advocate for or against a matter
before the public agency and has publicly stated that he will or
will not support the matter (unless the matter will affect the pecu-
niary or proprietary interest of the City employee or member of a
City board, commission, committee or the City Council).

The City employee or member of a City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council (or a relative) contracts to purchase
services or goods from a firm that does business with the City (as
long as the contract is unrelated to official actions taken by the
City employee or member of the City board, commission, com-
mittee or the City Council, and the City employee or member of
a City board, commission, committee or the City Council
receives no benefit from the firm as a result of official action).

* 22 %



APPENDIX B:

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
/ OF OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

§ 38-501. Application of article

( ARIZONA STATUTES RE:

A. This article shall apply to all public officers and employees of
incorporated cities or towns, political subdivisions and of the state and any
of its departments, commissions, agencies, bodies or boards.

B. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, or the provi-
sions of any charter or ordinance of any incorporated city or town to the
contrary, the provisions of this article shall be exclusively applicable to all
officers and employees of every incorporated city or town, or political sub-
division or the state and any of its departments, commissions, agencies,
bodies or boards and shall supersede the provisions of any other such law,
charter provision or ordinance.

C. Other prohibitions in the state statutes against any specific con-
flicts of interest shall be in addition to this article if consistent with the
intent and provisions of this article.

§ 38-502. Definitions

In this article, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. “Compensation” means money, a tangible thing of value or a
financial benefit.

2. “Employee” means all persons who are not public officers and who
are employed on a full-time, part-time or contract basis by an
incorporated city or town, a political subdivision or the state or
any of its departments, commissions, agencies, bodies or boards
for remuneration.

3. “Make known” means the filing of a paper signed by a public offi-
cer or employee which fully discloses a substantial interest or the
filing of a copy of the official minutes of a public agency which
fully discloses a substantial interest. The filing shall be in the spe-
cial file established pursuant to § 38-509.

%23 % T



10.

“Official records” means the minutes or papers, records and docu-
ments maintained by a public agency for the specific purpose of
receiving disclosures of substantial interests required to be made
known by this article.

“Political subdivision” means all political subdivisions of the state
and county, including all school districts.

“Public agency” means:
(a) All courts.

(b)  Any department, agency, board, commission, institution,
instrumentality, or legislative or administrative body of the
state, a county, an incorporated town or city and any other
political subdivision.

(c) The state, county and incorporated cities or towns and any
other political subdivisions.

“Public competitive bidding” means the method of purchasing
defined in title 41, chapter 4, article 3, or procedures substantially
equivalent to such method of purchasing or as provided by local
charter or ordinance.

“Public officer” means all elected and appointed officers of a pub-
lic agency established by charter, ordinance, resolution, state con-
stitution or statute.

“Relative” means the spouse, child, child’s child, parent, grand-
parent, brother or sister of the whole or half blood and their
spouses and the parent, brother, sister or child of a spouse.

“Remote interest” means:

(a) That of a nonsalaried officer of a nonprofit corporation.

(b)

(c) That of an attorney of a contracting party.
)

d

That of a landlord or tenant of the contracting party.

That of a member of a nonprofit cooperative marketing
association.

(e) The ownership of less than three percent of the shares of a
corporation for profit, provided the total annual income
from dividends, including the value of stock dividends, from
the corporation does not exceed five percent of the total
annual income of such officer or employee and any other

% 24 %



payments made to him by the corporation do not exceed
five percent of his total income.

(f)  That of a public officer or employee in being reimbursed for
his actual and necessary expenses incurred in the perfor-
mance of official duty.

(g)  That of a recipient of public services generally provided by
the incorporated city or town, political subdivision or state
department, commission, agency, body or board of which he
is a public officer or employee, on the same terms and con-
ditions as if he were not an officer or employee.

(h) That of a public school board member when the relative
involved is not a dependent, as defined in § 43-1001, or a
spouse.

(i)  That of public officer or employee, or that of a relative of a
public officer or employee, unless the contract or decision
involved would confer a direct economic benefit or detri-
ment upon the officer, employee or his relative, or any of
the following:

(i)  Another political subdivision.
(ii) A public agency of another political subdivision.

(iii) A public agency except if it is the same governmental
entity.

(i) That of a member of a trade, business, occupation, profes-
sion or class of persons consisting of at least ten members
which is no greater than the interest of the other members
of that trade, business, occupation, profession or class of
persons.

11. “Substantial interest” means any pecuniary or proprietary interest,
either direct or indirect, other than a remote interest.

§ 38-503. Conflict of interest; exemptions; employment prohibition

A. Any public officer or employee of a public agency who has, or
whose relative has, a substantial interest in any contract, sale, purchase or
service to such public agency shall make known that interest in the official
records of such public agency and shall refrain from voting upon or other-
wise participating in any manner as an officer or employee in such con-
tract, sale or purchase.

* 25 % T



B. Any public officer or employee who has, or whose relative has, a
substantial interest in any decision of a public agency shall make known
such interest in the official records of such public agency and shall refrain
from participating in any manner as an officer or employee in such deci-
sion.

C. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections A and B of this
section, no public officer or employee of a public agency shall supply to
such public agency any equipment, material, supplies or services, unless
pursuant to an award or contract let after public competitive bidding,
except that:

1. A school district governing board may purchase, as provided in
§ § 15-213 and 15-323, supplies, materials and equipment from a
school board member.

2. Political subdivisions other than school districts may purchase
through their governing bodies, without using public competitive
bidding procedures, supplies, materials and equipment not
exceeding three hundred dollars in cost in any single transaction,
not to exceed a total of one thousand dollars annually, from a
member of the governing body if the policy for such purchases is
approved annually.

D. Notwithstanding subsections A and B of this section and as pro-
vided in § § 15-421 and 15-1441, the governing board of a school district
or a community college district may not employ a person who is a member
of the governing board or who is the spouse of a member of the governing

board.
§ 38-504. Prohibited acts

A. No public officer or employee may represent another person for
compensation before a public agency by which he is or was employed
within the preceding twelve months or on concerning any matter with
which such officer or employee was directly concerned and in which he
personally participated during his employment or service by a substantial
and material exercise of administrative discretion.

B. During the period of his employment or service and for two years
thereafter, no public officer or employee may disclose or use for his per-
sonal profit, without appropriate authorization, any information acquired
by him in the course of his official duties which has been clearly designated

[ * 26 %



to him as confidential when such confidential designation is warranted
because of the status of the proceedings of the circumstances under which
the information was received and preserving its confidentiality is necessary
to the proper conduct of government business. No public officer or
employee shall disclose or use, without appropriate authorization, any
information acquired by him in the course of his official duties which is
declared confidential by law.

C. No public officer or employee may use or attempt to use his offi-
cial position to secure any valuable thing or valuable benefit for himself
that would not ordinarily accrue to him in the performance of his official
duties, which thing or benefit is of such character as to manifest a sub-
stantial and improper influence upon him with respect to his duties.

D. Notwithstanding subsection A, neither the director of the depart-
ment of gaming nor any other employee of the department of gaming may
be employed within the gaming industry or represent another person for
compensation before the department of gaming for a period of two years from
the last day of the person’s employment with the department of gaming.

§ 38-505. Additional income prohibited for services

A. No public officer or employee may receive or agree to receive
directly or indirectly compensation other than as provided by law for any
service rendered or to be rendered by him personally in any case, proceed-
ing, application, or other matter which is pending before the public agency
of which he is a public officer or employee.

B. This section shall not be construed to prohibit the performance of
ministerial functions including, but not limited to, the filing, or amend-
ment of tax returns, applications for permits and licenses, incorporation
papers and other documents.

§ 38-506. Remedies

A. In addition to any other remedies provided by law, any contract
entered into by a public agency in violation of this article, is voidable at
the instance of the public agency.

B. Any person affected by a decision of a public agency may com-
mence a civil suit in the superior court for the purpose of enforcing the
civil provisions of this article. The court may order such equitable relief as
it deems appropriate in the circumstances including the remedies provided
in this section.

%27 % T



C. The court may in its discretion order payment of costs, including
reasonable attorney’s fees, to the prevailing party in an action brought
under subsection B.

§ 38-507. Opinions of the attorney general, county attorneys, city or
town attorneys and house and senate ethics committee

Requests for opinions from either the attorney general, a county attorney,
a city or town attorney, the senate ethics committee or the house of repre-
sentatives ethics committee concerning violations of this article shall be
confidential, but the final opinions shall be a matter of public record. The
county attorneys shall file opinions with the county recorder, the city or
town attorneys shall file opinions with the city or town clerk, the senate
ethics committee shall file opinions with the senate secretary and the
house of representatives ethics committee shall file opinions with the chief
clerk of the house of representatives.

§ 38-508. Authority of public officers and employees to act

A. If the provisions of § 38-503 prevent an appointed public officer
or a public employee from acting as required by law in his official capacity,
such public officer or employee shall notify his superior authority of the
conflicting interest. The superior authority may empower another to act
or such authority may act in the capacity of the public officer or employee
on the conflicting matter.

B. If the provisions of § 38-503 prevent a public agency from acting
as required by law in its official capacity, such action shall not be prevented
if members of the agency who have apparent conflicts make known their
substantial interests in the official records of their public agency.

§ 38-509. Filing of disclosures

Every political subdivision and public agency subject to this article shall
maintain for public inspection in a special file all documents necessary to
memorialize all disclosures of substantial interest made known pursuant to
this article.

§ 38-510. Penalties

A. A person who:

1. Intentionally or knowingly violates any provisions of § § 38-503
through 38-505 is guilty of a class 6 felony.

[ * 28 %



2. Recklessly or negligently violates any provision of § § 38-503
through 38-505 is guilty of a class 1 misdemeanor.

B. A person found guilty of an offense described in subsection A of
this section shall forfeit his public office or employment if any.

C. It is no defense to a prosecution for a violation of § § 38-503
through 38-505 that the public officer or employee to whom a benefit is
offered, conferred or agreed to be conferred was not qualified or authorized
to act in the desired way.

D. It is a defense to a prosecution for a violation of § § 38-503
through 38-505 that the interest charged to be substantial was a remote
interest.

§ 38-511. Cancellation of political subdivision and state contracts;
definition

A. The state, its political subdivisions or any department or agency
of either may, within three years after its execution, cancel any contract,
without penalty or further obligation, made by the state, its political sub-
divisions, or any of the departments or agencies of either if any person sig-
nificantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating
the contract on behalf of the state, its political subdivisions or any of the
departments or agencies of either is, at any time while the contract or any
extension of the contract is in effect, an employee or agent of any other
party to the contract in any capacity or a consultant to any other party of
the contract with respect to the subject matter of the contract.

B. Leases of state trust land for terms longer than ten years canceled
under this section shall respect those rights given to mortgagees of the
lessee by § 37-289 and other lawful provisions of the lease.

C. The cancellation under this section by the state or its political
subdivisions shall be effective when written notice from the governor or
the chief executive officer or governing body of the political subdivision is
received by all other parties to the contract unless the notice specifies a
later time.

D. The cancellation under this section by any department or agency
of the state or its political subdivisions shall be effective when written
notice from such party is received by all other parties to the contract unless
the notice specifies a later time.

%20 % T



E. In addition to the right to cancel a contract as provided in sub-
section A of this section, the state, its political subdivisions or any depart-
ment or agency of either may recoup any fee or commission paid or due to
any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, draft-
ing or creating the contract on behalf of the state, its political subdivisions
or any department or agency of either from any other party to the contract
arising as the result of the contract.

F. Notice of this section shall be included in every contract to which
the state, its political subdivisions, or any of the departments or agencies
of either is a party.

G. For purposes of this section, “political subdivisions” do not
include entities formed or operating under title 48, chapter 11, 12, 13, 17,
18, 19 or 22.

[mnm * 30 %



APPENDIX C:

ARIZONA STATUTE RE:
EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES

/

§ 38-481. Employment of relatives; violation; classification; definition

A. It is unlawful, unless otherwise expressly provided by law, for an
executive, legislative, ministerial or judicial officer to appoint or vote for
appointment of any person related to him by affinity or consanguinity
within the third degree to any clerkship, office, position, employment or
duty in any department of the state, district, county, city or municipal gov-
ernment of which such executive, legislative, ministerial or judicial officer
is a member, when the salary, wages or compensation of such appointee is
to be paid from public funds or fees of such office, or to appoint, vote for
or agree to appoint, or to work for, suggest, arrange or be a party to the
appointment of any person in consideration of the appointment of a per-
son related to him within the degree provided by this section.

B. Any executive, legislative, ministerial or judicial officer who vio-
lates any provision of this section is guilty of a class 2 misdemeanor.

C. The designation executive, legislative, ministerial or judicial offi-
cer includes all officials of the state, or of any county or incorporated city
within the state, holding office either by election or appointment, and the
heads of the departments of state, county or incorporated cities, officers
and boards or managers of the universities.

*31 % Hmnn



APPENDIX D:

ARIZONA STATUTE
RE: ENTERTAINMENT BAN

ARS § 41-1232.08. Entertainment ban; state and political
subdivisions

A. A principal, designated lobbyist, authorized lobbyist, lobbyist for
compensation, public body, designated public lobbyist or authorized public
lobbyist or any other person acting on that person’s behalf shall not make
an expenditure or single expenditure for entertainment for a state officer
or state employee. A state officer or state employee shall not accept from a
principal, designated lobbyist, authorized lobbyist, lobbyist for compensa-
tion, public body, designated public lobbyist or authorized public lobbyist
or any other person acting on that person’s behalf an expenditure or single
expenditure for entertainment.

B. A person who for compensation attempts to influence the passage
or defeat of legislation, ordinances, rules, regulations, nominations and
other matters that are pending or proposed or that are subject to formal
approval by the corporation commission, a county board of supervisors, a
city or town governing body or a school district governing board or any
person acting on that person’s behalf shall not make an expenditure or sin-
gle expenditure for entertainment for an elected or appointed member of
the corporation commission, a county board of supervisors, a city or town
governing body or a school district governing board. An elected or
appointed member of the corporation commission, a county board of
supervisors, a city or town governing body or a school district governing
board shall not accept an expenditure or single expenditure for entertain-
ment from a person who for compensation attempts to influence the pas-
sage or defeat of legislation, ordinances, rules, regulations, nominations
and other matters that are pending or proposed or that are subject to for-
mal approval by the corporation commission.

C. This section shall not apply to entertainment in connection with

a special event properly reported pursuant to this article or if the enter-
tainment is incidental to the speaking engagement.

I {{[[]]] %32 %



APPENDIX E:
KEY CITY LAWS

/

Political Activity:

Chapter 25, Section 11 of the Phoenix City Charter, which provides:

1. No officer or employee of the City shall directly or indirectly
solicit or receive or be in any manner concerned in soliciting or
receiving any assessment, subscription or contribution on behalf
of any candidate for City of Phoenix elective office from any per-
son holding a position with the City.

2. No person holding a position with the City, except elected offi-
cials, shall take any part in political management, affairs or cam-
paigns in any election for City of Phoenix elective office further
than to vote and privately express opinions.”

Employment Relationship of Family Members:

City of Phoenix Administrative Regulation 2.91 provides:

Definition

For purposes of this policy, “relative” means the spouse, child, child’s child,
parent, grandparent, brother or sister of the whole or half-blood and their
spouses, and the parent, brother, sister, or child of a spouse. A court-
appointed legal guardian or an individual who has acted as a parent sub-
stitute is also included within this definition.

Policies
(a) Appointment of Relatives to City Employment

No officer or employee of the City of Phoenix shall appoint any
relative, as defined above, to any position within the City. Offi-
cers and employees within the City authorized to make appoint-
ment shall disqualify themselves from considering or making
appointments, or from participating in the appointment process.
Written notice of such disqualification shall be forwarded to the

*33 % T



(b)

(c)

City Manager. Consideration and appointment of candidates
shall be in accordance with the directions of the City Manager.

Immediate Supervisory Relationships

No officer or employee shall be permitted to directly supervise a
relative as defined above. Department heads are responsible for
enforcing this policy. Every attempt should be made to reassign
or transfer employees who may find themselves by reason of mar-
riage, promotion, or reorganization, in an immediate supervisory
relationship with a relative. As a last resort, the layoff rule shall
be utilized.

By way of example, direct or immediate supervision includes, but
is not limited to, any participation in the hiring decision, promo-
tional decision, work assignment decision, shift assignment deci-
sion, disciplinary decision, or the evaluation process of another
employee. Irrespective of the immediate supervisory relationship,
no officer or employee shall participate in any manner in a deci-
sion involving the pecuniary interest of a relative as defined
above, including hiring, promotion(s), discipline, and merit
increase(s). In addition, no officer or employee shall in any way
attempt to influence others in the decision regarding the pecu-
niary or employment (assignments, shifts, discipline, etc.) inter-
ests of a relative.

Disclosure of Relationship

An officer or employee, in addition to disqualifying himself/her-
self from participation in any decision regarding the pecuniary or
employment interest of a relative, shall make known the exis-
tence of the relationship and the interest by filing, in writing,
with the City Clerk a paper disclosing the relationship and the
interest involved.

% 34 %



APPENDIX F:
DECLARATION OF GIFTS

1. SAMPLE DECLARATION FORM
This form should be used to declare the acceptance of a gift of
entertainment and/or sports/athletic activities.

=

GIFT OF A SPORTING/ATHLETIC ACTIVITY
OR ENTERTAINMENT EVENT

Your Name Work Phone
Department

Event/Activity

Date of Event Monetary Value

Name of Person or Business Gift is from

Address of the Person or Business Listed Above

cc: Department Head

NN



2. SAMPLE LIST OF TICKETS TO DECLARE

SAMPLE LIST OF
SPORTS/ATHLETIC EVENT GIFTS TO DECLARE

Arizona Cardinals Football Game
Arizona State University Games
Boxing Events

Coyotes Hockey Games

College Bowl Games
Diamondback Baseball Games
Fiesta Bowl

LPGA

Masters Golf

National Finals Rodeo

NBA All Star Games

NCAA Final Four Games
Phoenix Roadrunner Games
Phoenix Suns Tickets

Phoenix International Raceway
Events

Phoenix Open Golf Tournament

Phoenix Regional Rodeos
Professional Bowling

Tournaments where fees are
charged

Rattler’s Football Games
Rounds of Golf
Special Closed Circuit
TV Sporting Events
where fees are charged
Spring Practice League Games
Spring Baseball Games
Summer Games
Super Bowl
U.S. Open Golf
U.S. Open Tennis
University of Arizona Games

World Series

Any gift of sports/athletic events
with a monetary value

HE HITnmm



SAMPLE LIST OF
ENTERTAINMENT GIFTS TO DECLARE

Amusement Park Tickets

Arizona Jewish Theatre
Company

Arizona Shakespeare Festival
Arizona Theatre Company
Arizona Ballet

Arizona State University Plays,
Concerts, Ballets, Operas

Botanical Gardens
Desert Stages
Gammage Broadway Series

Helen K. Mason Center for
Performing Arts

IMAX Theatre
Little Theatre Tickets

Miniature Golf Tickets

Museum Tickets

TN

Red River Opry

Phoenix Theatre Tickets
Phoenix Zoo Tickets
Renaissance Festival

St. George Productions, Inc.

Sundome Center for Performing
Arts

Symphony Hall Performances
Theatrical Agencies Productions
Theme Park Tickets

University of Arizona Plays,
Concerts, Ballets, Operas

Water Amusement Parks
Zoo Tickets

Any gift of entertainment with a
monetary value



CERTIFICATION OF PERSONAL COMMITMENT

l, , hereby certify that | have read the foregoing

City of Phoenix Ethics Handbook (dated ) and | agree to be bound by the applicable laws and

policies—including specifically the City of Phoenix Ethics Policy—to the best of my abilities.

(signature)

Date:




oy

City of Phoenix

REVISED JULY 2005






ETHICS AD HOC TASK FORCE
SUMMARY OF CITY OF PHOENIX ETHICS POLICIES
August 2012

Ethics Handbook

The City’s Ethics Handbook, which is available in both hard copy and on the City’s intranet, was originally
developed by an ad-hoc committee comprised of City staff, an official with the State Solicitor General’s
Office, and local businesspeople. Approved by the City Council in 1991, the Handbook became the catalyst
for over 500 training sessions delivered to City employees over the next two years. Ethics was also added
to the City’s New Employee Orientation program and an Ethics Hotline was available for employees to
receive guidance on ethics-related issues. In 1997 the Handbook was revised to reflect new City policies
and provide practical examples of situations that might arise regarding use of ethical standards. Refresher
training was once again delivered City-wide. Other changes since 1997 include the development of a
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) guide, video training for members of boards, commissions and
committees, and handbook revisions reflecting changes in City, State and federal regulations. Methods for
reporting of improper behavior include the City’s Integrity Line, formerly called the Management Audit
Control, or “MAC” Line, established to provide employees with a way to report unethical behavior.
Currently, staff provides customized refresher courses to departments as needed; and, Ethics training
continues to be a significant component of new employee training programs.

The City’s policy is that it uphold, promote and demand the highest standards of ethics from all of its
employees and officials, whether elected, appointed or hired. The Handbook outlines applicable laws and
policies which cover the following categories:

e Attendance

e Conflicts of Interest

e Contracts with the City of Phoenix

e Disclosure of Confidential Information

e Discrimination

e Employment

e Gifts, Favors and Extra Compensation

e Political Activity

e Public Access: Open Meeting and Public Records

e Use of City Equipment, Facilities or Personnel for Private Gain
e Software Management

e Electronic Mail

e Federal Transit Administration Standards of Conduct

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

Electronic Communications and Information Acceptable Use (Administrative Regulation 1.63)

This policy governs the acceptable use of City of Phoenix information systems, electronic communication
channels, and Internet access; and restricts personal use of City property or resources. Section V.5 of this
policy specifically outlines what is considered “unacceptable use” of City information systems.




Summary of City of Phoenix Ethics Policies
Page 2 of 3
August 2012

Political Activity — Time Off to Vote (Administrative Regulation 2.16)

This policy defines allowable and prohibited political activities for City employees and establishes that
employees may not engage in certain activities while on duty, on any City property, or when in a City
uniform. This policy also outlines the requirements for an employee interested in running for an elected
office.

Solicitation By or Of City Employees During Work hours (Administrative Regulation 2.33)

This policy defines the types of solicitations that are permitted and those permitted. The purpose of this
policy is to ensure employees focus on performing City work, and, ensure employees are not pressured to
contribute financially to any outside enterprise while at work.

Sexual Harassment (Administrative Regulation 2.35A)

This regulation defines sexual harassment and reaffirms the City’s policy prohibiting sexual harassment and
its commitment to providing a harassment-free environment for all employees. Page 2 outlines examples
of prohibited conduct.

Protected Category Harassment (Administrative Regulation 2.35B)

This regulation defines protected category harassment, outlines responsibilities for compliance, and
clarifies complaint procedures and investigative processes. Protected category harassment is behavior
based upon an individual’s gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability, national origin,
genetic information or any other legally protected basis that is not welcome, offensive, demoralizing,
and/or interferes with work effectiveness. Page 2 outlines examples of prohibited conduct.

Work Notices for Outside Employment (Administrative Regulation 2.62)

This policy establishes the City’s position on outside employment by City employees. Outside employment
is defined as all non-City employment, including self-employment. Page 2 outlines unacceptable work
situations. Employees desiring to engage in outside employment must complete a Notice of Outside
Employment form (sample form is included with the policy).

Conflicts in Employment, Supervisory and Contractual Relationships (Administrative Regulation 2.91)
This policy addresses contractual relationships among family members. In compliance with Arizona Revised
Statute Section 38-502, relatives are defined as the spouse, child, child’s child, parent, grandparent, brother
or sister of the whole or half-blood and their spouses, and the parent, brother, sister, or child of a spouse.
Other relationships may also create the appearance of a conflict. This policy restricts employees from
appointing, supervising, and participating in contracts, sales, or purchases where an identified conflict
exists. A Disclosure Form (sample form included with the policy) is required of employees where a conflict
exists.

Contracts With or Re-employment of Retirees (Administrative Regulation 2.92)
This policy establishes policies and procedures to be followed when it is determined that contracting with
or rehiring a retired City employee is necessary to continue the delivery of City services. The policy




Summary of City of Phoenix Ethics Policies
Page 3 of 3
August 2012

specifically prohibits the immediate rehiring of a retired City employee, and also prohibits making a
commitment to future employment prior to retirement or within the first six months after retirement.
Individuals who retire under the provisions of a City retirement plan may not be reemployed into another
regular full-time position covered by the same retirement plan.

City Employee Gift Policy (Administrative Regulation 2.93)

This policy states that no City employee shall accept a gift, service, or favor which would lead toward
favoritism or the appearance of favoritism. This policy does allow for the acceptance of token gifts if they
are of minimal value, can be shared with the entire work unit and will not be perceived as influencing
decisions. This policy includes a Declaration Form and lists examples of gifts that must be declared if
accepted by the employee.

I:\Admin Jobshare\Ethics Committee\Ethics Ad Hoc Task Force - Summary of Policies.doc






(

City of Phoenix

A.R. NUMBER

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 1.63 Revised

FUNCTION
Information Technology

SUBJECT Page 1 of 6

v EFFECTIVE DATE
ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS AND March 12, 2012

INFORMATION ACCEPTABLE USE | REVIEW DATE

Transmittal Message

Email questions about this Administrative Regulation (A.R.) to the Information Technology Services,
Information Security & Privacy Office at ISPO@phoenix.gov.

Summary of Changes

This Administrative Regulation has been updated to remove information that is now contained in A.R. 1.92, as
well as to address the use of mobile devices. Additionally, it

Removes the definition of "transient record" to avoid confusion.
Clarifies language to make it clear that city business should not be conducted on personal email
accounts.
Adds the definition of Criminal Justice Information (CJI)

o Clarifies verbiage that prohibits members of the city workforce from using their city email accounts to
post or email personal information on public websites

. PURPOSE

The purpose of this A.R. is to govern the acceptable use of City of Phoenix (City) information systems,
electronic communication channels, and Internet access in support of City business requirements. The
elements in this A.R. provide measures that

e Protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of City information and help preserve the public
trust

¢ Increase the City workforce’s effectiveness by promoting efficient, clear, and accurate electronic
business transactions and communications
Minimize security incidents
Emphasize the public record aspects of electronic information, and
Protect the City from legal liability.

Il. SCOPE

This A.R. applies to all members of the City workforce.




AR. 163
Information Technology
Page 2 of 7

lll. DEFINITIONS

V.

1

City business — All work performed on an electronic device that has a direct relation to the City's
operation and activities. City business includes any work performed where non-transient public records
may be created, transmitted, or stored using a personal mobile device.

City workforce — Anyone authorized to access City information systems and information including,
without limitation, City employees, non-City employees, business partners, contractors, volunteers, and
temporary workers.

Criminal Justice Information (CJI) — Data provided by the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) for law
enforcement agencies to perform their mission and enforce the laws. CJI includes biometric, identity
history, person, organization, property, and case/incident history data.

Electronic communications — Any software or electronic information or telecommunications system
including email and voice mail systems, instant and text messaging systems, facsimile machines,
video-conference devices, software for net-meetings, webcasting, and other collaborative Web
technologies.

Information system — Any hardware, software, or electronic system that the City owns, operates,
maintains, or provides and authorizes for use in storing, accessing, analyzing, and manipulating
business information. These systems include business application systems, databases, Internet and
intranet sites, file servers, document management systems, and their infrastructure.

Personal device — Any electronic storage or multi-function computing and communications device
capable of hosting a broad range of applications for both business and consumer use that is not owned
by the City, but owned or provided by City workforce. Personal devices include, but are not limited to
USB sticks, removable hard drives, personal digital assistants (PDAs), smartphones, and tablet, pad,
desktop, and laptop computers.

. ROLES and RESPONSIBILITIES

Department Heads are responsible for assuring their department complies with this A.R.
The Chief Information Security Officer or designee is responsible for interpreting and revising this A.R.

The City workforce is responsible for understanding and complying with this A.R and for annually
acknowledging their compliance with City information security policies.

POLICY STATEMENTS

City Workforce Accountability. All members of the City workforce are accountable for the security of
their user IDs and passwords, and for all actions performed by their computer accounts. City workforce
members may not use another’s user ID and password, nor allow another to use their user ID and
password.

Privacy Expectations. The City workforce has no expectation of privacy for any electronic information
created, received, stored in, or transmitted on the City’s electronic property or electronic communication
systems.

In accordance with Arizona’s Public Records Law, the public may request all information made or received
by City workforce in performance of their jobs. The City workforce must consider all information, including




AR. 1.63
Information Technology
Page 3 of 7

email and City information residing on personal devices, open to public view unless the Law Department
determines there is a specific legal confidentiality requirement.

Use of Personal Devices. As described below, the City workforce may use personal devices for work
involving information classified as public. Reference: s1.9 Information Classification Standard.

City workforce members performing any work on personal devices are encouraged to connect to the City’s
network using the City’s remote access facility to best protect City information. To help assure compliance
with Public Records Law, the City workforce should not store any City information on a personal device or
system.

While City workforce members may use personal devices to access their City email as stated below, they
should not conduct City business using personal email accounts.

City workforce members may not use personal devices for work involving any personal identifying
or restricted City information that may result in a critical breach of information security. Reference:
A.R. 1.90 Information Privacy and Protection.

The City workforce may not use personal devices to access Criminal Justice Information unless specifically
authorized by the City’s Criminal Justice Information Services (CJIS) Officer. The CJIS Officer must
approve and authorize any access, processing, storage, or transmission of Criminal Justice Information
using personal devices.

3.1 Use of Personal Devices for Messaging. The City workforce may use personal devices, such as
smartphones for telephone, texts, and email related to City business. While the City workforce must
comply with all other provisions in this A.R., no additional approvals are required.

3.2 Use of Personal Devices for Messaging and Offline Work. The City workforce may use personal
devices, such as pad and/or tablet computers for texts, email, and work related to City business without
connecting to the City’s network. This includes accessing email via a web browser. While the City
workforce must comply with all other provisions in this A.R., no additional approvals are required.

3.3 Use of Personal Devices Connecting to City Network. The City workforce may use personal
devices, such as pad, tablet, laptop, or desktop computers to connect to the City’s network with
approval from their department’s information security liaison and with the understanding that the City
may require City-provided and monitored management software to assure compliance with City
policies.

Personal Use. The City workforce may use City information systems for incidental personal use as long
as it

e Consumes only a minimal amount of computer system resources or staff time

e Does not interfere with productivity or any business activity

e Does not cause the City to incur additional costs

o Does not require repeated and ongoing use or registration of their City email account, as City workforce
members should not use their City email address as their primary personal email account

o Does not violate any City A.R. or standard, or any applicable law or regulation, and

¢ Would not adversely affect the reputation of the City, its citizens, or its employees.




10

11

AR. 1.63
Information Technology
Page 4 of 7

Unacceptable Use. The City workforce must use City information systems in compliance with this A.R.
Examples of unacceptable use include, but are not limited to the following:

e To transmit or display offensive, derogatory, defamatory, improper, harassing, sexually explicit,
pornographic, obscene, vulgar, or profane messages or materials, even in a joking manner

e To access restricted-content Web sites, such as sexually explicit, pornographic, racist, or hate sites
City workforce members must immediately disconnect from any Web site they have inadvertently
connected to that contains sexually explicit, racist, violent, or otherwise inappropriate content. The

ability to connect with a specific Web site does not in itself imply that the City workforce is permitted to
visit that site.

e To copy or disseminate copyrighted materials, such as articles, movies, music, or computer software, in
a manner that is inconsistent with applicable copyright laws or licensing agreements

e To use their City email account to post or email their personal information on public Web sites, blogs, or
other external destinations, including online auctions

Members of the City workforce should not appear to be representing the City of Phoenix when
conducting personal business.

Only authorized and approved members of the City workforce may write, publish, or post official City
information on social media sites.
e For personal gain or for personal businesses

s For political purposes, including campaigning and voting, except as provided in A.R. 2.16 Political
Activity — Time off to Vote ‘

e To use unapproved peer-to-peer or other software, such as LimeWire, BitTorrent, or KaZaA, or

e To transmit or forward chain letters, third-party advertisements, or third-party solicitations.

Required Training. The City workforce must complete all applicable information security awareness
training within the timeframes that the City establishes. This includes, but may not be limited to new hire
and annual training.

Security Software. The City workforce must not disable or circumvent any software or controls intended
to safeguard City information systems.

Unattended Devices. The City workforce must appropriately protect all unattended information systems
and promptly report any suspicious activity that may affect information security, or the loss or theft of a
device containing City information to their department’s information security liaison.

Authorized Software. The City workforce must use only City-authorized software on City-owned devices.
The City workforce may neither use nor distribute unauthorized software in the course of performing City
business. Reference: A.R. 1.86 Legal Use of Software.

Copyrights and Licensing. The City workforce must always comply with all applicable copyright and
license requirements. Reference: A.R. 1.86 Legal Use of Software.

Records Management. The City workforce must comply with all records retention policies and schedules.
The City workforce must not delete and/or modify any electronic records in a manner that violates their
approved retention periods and/or any other legal requirements. For example, members of the City




AR. 1.63
Information Technology
Page 5 of 7

workforce must not empty their email system trash or modify activity logs. Reference: A.R. 1.61 Records
Management Program.

12 System Use. The City workforce must use City information systems and protect City information in
accordance with all A.R.’s and standards. Reference: A.R. 1.84 Information Security Management.

13 Ownership. The City owns all information residing on its information systems. Upon termination of City
employment, contract, or agreement, City workforce members must return all equipment, software, and
information, whether in electronic form or otherwise.

VI. PRIVACY AND MONITORING

The City reserves the right to monitor systems, electronic communications, and usage to support operational,
maintenance, auditing, security, and investigative activities, including enforcement of this policy, legal requests,
public record requests, and to help assure and to verify compliance, confidentiality, integrity, and availability of
information systems used to conduct City business. This A.R. does not prohibit technical staff from monitoring
departmental workstations and servers for the purpose of maintaining overall system reliability, availability, and
security. Unauthorized accessing, monitoring, or reading of electronic communication systems or their
contents violates this City policy.

City departments are responsible for handling public requests for their electronic information, including email
messages, and for working with their legal, human resources, City Clerk, and Public Information Office
representatives, as needed, before making the records available to the public.

City Department Heads may approve initiating an investigation of their workforce’s compliance with this A.R.
“and must coordinate the investigation with the Human Resources (HR) Director and the department’s legal
representative. The HR Director may authorize access and monitoring of email based on Department Head
requests. If authorized, the HR Director will forward requests to Information Technology Services, or the Police
Department for Police staff, to process email requests and maintain them. The HR Director may consult with
the Chief Information Officer for technical advice and/or assistance in the course of a lawful investigation.

Vil. COMPLIANCE

All City workforce members agree to abide by and comply with this A.R. The City workforce must consider all
information, including email and City information residing on personal devices, open to public view unless the
Law Department determines there is a specific legal confidentiality requirement. The City Auditor Department
may conduct periodic audits to evaluate compliance with the responsibilities set forth in this A.R.

A violation of this A.R. may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. In the
case of contractors and temporary workers who violate this policy, the City may revoke any and all system
access and use privileges and terminate the third-party contract(s).

All exception requests must follow the authorized waiver procedure.

VIIl. RELATED POLICES, STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES

A.R. 1.61 Records Management Program

A.R. 1.73 Control of Communication Services and Systems
A.R. 1.84 Information Security Management

A.R. 1.86 Legal Use of Software




AR. 1.63
Information Technology
Page 6 of 7

A.R. 1.90 Information Privacy and Protection

A.R. 1.91 Information Privacy and Protection Supplement — Data Shared With Third Parties
s1.1 Virus Protection »
s1.2 Web Filtering

s1.3 Identity Management

s1.4 Remote User Access

s1.5 Password Management

s1.7 Media Retention/Removal

51.8 Internet Email Content Security

s1.9 Information Classification

51.10 Collaborative Web Technologies Usage

s1.2.1 Requesting Access to Blocked Web Sites

b1.3 Waiver Standard

DAVID CAVAZOS, City Manager

By Mﬂ]/@ﬁ N

Lisa Takata
Assistant to the City Manager




CITY OF PHOENIX

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS AND
INFORMATION ACCEPTABLE USE

CITY WORKFORCE RECEIPT

A.R. 1.63
Information Technology
Page 7 of 7

This form must be signed by each current and new member of the City workforce.

| acknowledge that | have received A.R. 1.63, Electronic Communications and Information Acceptable
Use. | recognize that as a user of City information, electronic communications, and computer systems |
am responsible for following the provisions outlined in this policy. | understand that if | am found to be in

violation of this written policy, | may be subject to disciplinary action.

Name (printed)

Signature Date

c: Copy to individual member of the City workforce

Original to department file







wlld

City of Phoenix

A.R. NUMBER

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 2.16 revised

FUNCTION
Human Resources

SUBJECT Page 1 of 6

EFFECTIVE DATE

POLITICAL ACTIVITY - TIME OFF TO VOTE February 16, 2008

REVIEW DATE
July 16, 2010

INTRODUCTION
Transmittal Message

The Sections "Laws" and "Coverage" in this Administrative Regulation (AR) have been revised to
identify the specific applicable laws and statutes. Questions regarding this AR should be directed to
the Support Services Division in the Human Resources Department at 262-7770.

Purpose

The purpose of this AR is to define allowable and prohibited political activities for City employees,
and to establish regulations for time off to vote in city and state elections.

Public Policy
It is the public policy of the City, reflected in this AR, that:

o City programs be administered in an unbiased manner and without favoritism for or against
any political party or group or any member in order to promote public confidence in
government, governmental integrity, and the efficient delivery of governmental services;

All employees be free from any express or implied requirement or any political or other
pressure of any kind to engage or not engage in any activity permitted by this AR;

Employees not engage in activities that are inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or
harmful to their duties as City employees.

This AR shall be construed according to this public policy statement.

Nothing contained in this AR shall be construed as denying employees of their civil or political
liberties as guaranteed by the United States and Arizona Constitutions.

Laws

Limitations on the political activities of City employees can be found in Chapter XXV, section 11 of
the Phoenix City Charter, Phoenix City Code §§ 12-217 and 12-218, and Personnel Rules 4b and
4c¢. This AR explains permitted and prohibited activities and is based on those provisions.




A.R. 2.16 revised
Human Resources
Page 2 of 6

Coverage

Employees in activities which are funded in whole or in part by federal funds are covered by the
Hatch Act (5 USC §§1501-1508), a federal statute that sets forth specific limitations on the political
activities of some public employees. Departments or employees who have questions regarding
whether an employee is covered by the Hatch Act should contact the Human Resources Department
at 262-6608. Departments may also consult with the Law Department with questions about the
specific limitations of the Hatch Act for covered employees.

Permitted Activities

A. City Elections
Activities listed in this section apply to City of Phoenix elections, including recall elections, for
Mayor and City Council, and to elections for charter amendments, bond issues, referenda, or
issues of similar character. These activities are permitted for an individual on his or her own time
but are not permitted while on duty, on any City property, or when the individual is in a uniform
normally identified with the City of Phoenix. However, in some cases, a polling location may be
located on City property. In this instance, uniformed employees may vote at this location with
supervisory approval.
City of Phoenix employees may:
1. Register and vote in any City election.
2. Privately express an opinion on candidates for Mayor and City Council.

3. Be politically active in connection with a charter amendment, bond issue, referendum, or
issue of similar character.

B. National, State, County Elections
Activities listed in this section apply to national, state, and county elections, and to municipal
elections outside the City of Phoenix. They are permitted for an individual on his or her own time
but are not permitted while on duty, on any City property, or when the individual is in a uniform
normally identified with the City of Phoenix. However, in some cases, a precinct polling place may

be located on City property. In those instances, uniformed employees may vote at those locations
with supervisory approval.

City of Phoenix employees, including employees in activities financed through federal funds, may:
1. Register and vote in any election.
2. Solicit votes in support of or in opposition to a political candidate or issue.

3. As an individual, privately and publicly express an opinion on political subjects and
candidates.

4. Sign, initiate, or circulate a political nomination or recall petition.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

A.R. 2.16 revised
Human Resources
Page 3 0of 6

Take an active part in the management of political campaigns.

Display bumper stickers, posters, or pamphlets on private property for the endorsement of
candidates or issues.

Be politically active in connection with a constitutional amendment, bond issue, referendum,
or issue of a similar character.

Directly or indirectly solicit, receive, or account for funds for a political purpose except as
prohibited by this AR.

Make a financial contribution to a political party or candidate.

Be a member of a political party and participate in its activities consistent with this AR.

Serve as a delegate, alternate, or proxy to a political party convention.

Serve as an officer of a political party; a member of a national, state, or local committee of a
political party; an officer or member of a committee of a partisan political club; or be a

candidate for any of these positions.

Endorse or oppose a candidate for public office or political party office in a political
advertisement, broadcast, campaign literature, or similar material.

Drive voters to the polls on behalf of a political party or candidate.

Prohibited Activities

Activities permitted in the section entitled Permitted Activities above are prohibited when an employee
is on duty, including break periods. They are also prohibited on City property or when an employee is
in a uniform normally identified with the City of Phoenix. However, in some cases, a precinct polling

place may be located on City property. In those instances, employees may vote at those locations
with supervisory approval.

For all elections, certain activities are prohibited. City employees:

1.

May not use any official City authority or influence for the purpose of interfering with or
affecting the results of an election.

May not solicit funds or receive contributions from other employees for political purposes.

May not engage in political activities involving City of Phoenix municipal elections, including
recall elections, for Mayor and City Council except as listed previously in the section entitled
“Permitted Activities.”

May not sign nomination or recall petitions for the Mayor of Phoenix and Phoenix City
Council.




A.R. 2.16 revised
Human Resources
Page 4 of 6

May not participate in any way whatsoever in campaign activities for candidates for the
Mayor of Phoenix and Phoenix City Council including, but not limited to, making financial
contributions to candidates.

May not display bumper stickers and posters on City vehicles or display bumper stickers,
posters, pamphlets, buttons, or other campaign material on City property or at their individual
work sites.

May not use an official City title or designate employment with the City in political
advertisements, endorsements, or speeches.

Activities prohibited for an individual employee are also prohibited for groups or organizations of
employees, even though the specific activities are being performed by a non-employee as a
representative of the employee group.

Candidate for Elective Office

A. An employee may not be a candidate for election to Mayor or City Council of the City of Phoenix.

B. An employee covered by the Hatch Act may not be a candidate for election to a partisan political
office. Such employee may not be granted a leave of absence for the purpose of becoming a
candidate for election.

C. An employee may be a candidate to a partisan political office not covered by paragraphs A and B
in this section. He must notify the director of his department in writing of the candidacy and the
political office sought. Consideration will be given to the circumstances of the election and whether
such office is inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or is harmful to his duties as a City
employee. The department head will forward this information to the City Manager's Office for
review. The City Manager's Office will determine the impact of the candidacy on the City.

s

If the City Manager’s Office finds the partisan political office is not inconsistent, incompatible,
in conflict with, and is not harmful to duties of the employee, the City Manager's Office may
allow the employee to be a candidate for the partisan office and continue his City
employment. The employee may not use an official City title in political campaigning, nor
should official authority be used to affect the result of the election.

If the candidacy or the partisan political office is inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or
is harmful to the employee’s duties, the City Manager will determine whether the employee
can continue City employment. Based on the circumstances of the employee’s job and the
public policy concerns of this AR, the City Manager may:

a. Place the employee on an unpaid leave of absence from the date nomination papers for
candidacy are filed until the completion of the elective process. The employee may not

use an official City title in political campaigning nor should official authority be used to
affect the result of the election.

b. Impose lesser restrictions that remove the inconsistency, incompatibility, conflict, or




A.R. 2.16 revised
Human Resources
Page 5 of 6

harmful effect of the candidacy or partisan political office on the employee’s job duties as
a City employee. The employee may not use an official City title in political campaigning
nor should official authority be used to affect the result of the election.

c. Require the employee to terminate City employment upon the filing of nomination papers
for candidacy or publicly holding himseif out as a candidate, if the operations of the City
are interfered with or undermined.

D. Except for City of Phoenix elections, an employee may be a candidate for a non-partisan elective
position.

Elected Positions

An employee may be elected to a political office and maintain his City employment unless it is
determined by the City Manager that such elective office is inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with,
or is harmful to duties as a City employee. Consideration shall be given to the circumstances of the
election and whether such office is inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict with, or is harmful to his
duties as a City employee. The City Manager may require that the employee be placed on a leave of
absence, or lesser restrictions be imposed. If the public policy concerns of the City are undermined,
the employee may be required to terminate City employment prior to assuming the elected position.

Prohibition Against Using City Resources

The use of City resources or employees to influence the outcome of elections is prohibited by state
law. ARS § 9-500.14. This prohibition has been interpreted to prohibit the use of any City funds or
resources to advocate for or against a measure that will be on the ballot. The obvious exception to
this general prohibition is when the City Council proposes a measure that will appear on the ballot.
But even then, the use of City funds and resources is limited to informing the public of this action. City
funds and resources cannot be used to “campaign” in support of the measure.

Moreover, while the City is permitted to respond to citizen inquiries, it must do so in neutral manner
that does not urge support or opposition to the measure. The information provided by the City must
therefore be “full and impartial” and cannot “amount to improper campaign activity.” Ariz Op Atty
Gen. No. 100-020 (09/11/2000).

Time Off to Vote

City employees who are registered voters may be allowed time off to vote in city and state elections.
This does not apply to elections that are limited to bond issues, referenda, or similar issues. The
maximum paid time off allowed will be the time necessary to provide three consecutive free hours
between the opening of the polis and the start of work, or the end of work and the closing of the polls.

To qualify for this time off, the employee must:

1. Be a registered voter.

2. Request permission in writing from his supervisor, if possible, at least three days prior to the
day of the election. However, under current state law, employees have the right to request time




A.R. 2.16 revised
Human Resources
Page 6 of 5

off to vote the day prior to Election Day.

. If requested by the supervisor, provide the supervisor with a current residence address and the
location of the polls.

. Take the time to vote during the period designated by the supervisor, either at the beginning or
at the end of the shift.

. Go to the polls and vote.

DAVID CAVAZOS, City Manager

oy V7 Ondas)—

Lisa Takata
Executive Assistant To The City Manager




(

City of Phoenix

A.R. NUMBER

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 2.33 Revised

FUNCTION
Human Resources and Payroll

SUBJECT Page 1 of 2

EFFECTIVE DATE
SOLICITATION BY OR OF CITY EMPLOYEES DURING September 22, 2004

REVIEWED DATE
WORKING HOURS May 17, 2010

Transmittal Message
This Administrative Regulation has been revised to reflect the policies and practices that have
evolved since its original issue date in 1960.

Summary of Changes
Categories of solicitations are described in this regulation along with examples of what is and is
not permitted at the work site.

1.

Purpose
While at work, City employees should be focused primarily on performing the work they have

been hired and assigned to complete. In addition, employees should not feel pressured to
contribute financially to any outside enterprise while at work, whether it is a for-profit or non-
profit enterprise.

Community Service Fund Drive

Once a year, City of Phoenix employees are authorized by the City Manager to conduct
fundraising activities on City time, for the purpose of contributing to the annual Community
Service Fund Drive. The City’s voluntary program allows employees to choose which non-
profit agency or agencies to contribute funds to, and permits employees to contribute through
payroll deduction.

Non Profit Fund Raisers
Non-profit fundraising activities fall into one of two categories, and must be approved by the
Department Director in advance.

A. Department-sponsored fund raising - Department Directors may authorize fund-raising
activities that support employee morale such as holiday activities, employee luncheons,
retirement or other recognition events, or expressions of support for employees who
have experienced a death in the family. In addition Department Directors may authorize
employees to solicit contributions for non-profit or community agencies such as Adopt-a-
Family programs, or food drives, keeping in mind that employees should not feel
pressured by co-workers or supervisors to contribute or purchase items. Employees
may be allowed minimal City time to work on department-sponsored fund-raising
activities such as food and clothing drives, and information about the fund-raising activity
may be shared using the City’s e-mail system.




A.R. 2.33 Revised
Human Resources and
Payroll

Page 2 of 2

B. Non-Department Sponsored Fund Raisers —Employees may wish to solicit on behalf of
their children’s schools, scouting programs, or other not-for-profit purpose. Employees
must obtain permission from their Department Director prior to the solicitation, and
restrict their activities such as money collection and product distribution, to lunch breaks,
before or after work. The solicitation must be passive in nature; for example, the City’s
interoffice and e-mail systems may not be used to communicate information about the
fund-raising activity. Employees may post sales information on employee bulletin
boards, in lunchrooms or break rooms.

4. For-Profit Solicitation
For-profit solicitations among City employees during working hours are prohibited.
Employees who wish to sell anything for a profit must comply with AR 2.62 Work Notices for
Outside Employment and submit a Notice of Outside Employment form to their first-line
supervisor. Department Directors may authorize employees to post sales information on
employee bulletin boards, in lunchrooms or break rooms. Passive solicitation of City
employees is permitted only during non-working hours such as lunch breaks, before, or after
work. Active solicitations such as one-on-one sales, routing a catalog from desk to desk, or
use of the City’s interoffice and e-mail systems, are not allowed. Employees may not display
items for sale at their desks or in their offices.

5. Enforcement
Department Directors may create and distribute policies consistent with this Administrative
Regulation regarding solicitations within their departments. Management reserves the right
to deny or revoke any employee’s approval to solicit if the employee has violated this
regulation, if the solicitation interferes with the work performance of a group or individual, if
the solicitation involves offensive material, or for any other reason.

DAVID CAVAZOS, City Manager

By: i ,mb \// Iht//’

Lisa Takata
Executive Assistant to the City Manager




(

City of Phoenix

A.R. NUMBER

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 2.35 (A) Revised

FUNCTION
Human Resources

SUBJECT Page 1 0of 6

EFFECTIVE DATE

SEXUAL HARASSMENT March 22, 2005

REVIEWED DATE
July 19, 2010

STATEMENT OF COMMITMENT

The City of Phoenix is committed to providing a harassment-free environment for all
employees. The City will not tolerate sexual harassment in the workplace.

PURPOSE

This regulation defines sexual harassment, reaffirms the City's policy prohibiting sexual
harassment, outlines City department responsibilities for cormpliance with this policy, and
clarifies complaint procedures and investigative processes for employees and job
applicants who wish to pursue sexual harassment complaints.

See Administrative Regulation 2.35 for discrimination issues and Administrative
Regulation 2.35(B) for protected category harassment.

DEFINITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Sexual harassment is behavior directed at an individual due to gender that is not
welcome, that is offensive, demoralizing, and/or interferes with work effectiveness. It may
be conduct toward an individual of the opposite sex or the same sex and it may occur
between peers or between individuals in a hierarchical relationship.

Sexual harassment does not refer to occasional compliments or personal interactions of a
general socially acceptable nature. Determining whether specific conduct constitutes
sexual harassment depends upon the facts and the context in which the conduct occurs.
It should also be understood that certain behaviors that do not fit the definition of sexual
harassment may nevertheless be unprofessional and inappropriate in the workplace and
are also prohibited under other City policies and regulations.

There are two forms of sexual harassment:

Quid Pro Quo occurs when a supervisor or other person in authority conditions the
granting of an economic or other job benefit, such as a raise or advancement, upon
the receipt of sexual favors from a subordinate, withholds such benefits, or punishes
that subordinate for refusing sexual favors.




A.R. 2.35 (A) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 2 of 6

Hostile Environment is created by persons in the workplace through unwelcome
sexual advances or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that has the
purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance
or job conditions.

IV. POLICY

The City of Phoenix will not tolerate sexual harassment in the workplace. No employee,
either male or female, should be subject to unwelcome verbal or physical conduct that is
sexual in nature or that shows hostility to the employee because of the employee's gender.
No employee of the City is permitted to engage in sexual harassment. This includes
supervisors, managers, and executives, who are entrusted with authority to enforce and
uphold the policies of the City. Supervisors, managers, and executives are required to take
proactive steps to prevent sexual harassment and to take prompt corrective action
whenever it occurs.

V. EXAMPLES OF PROHIBITED CONDUCT
Examples of conduct prohibited by this policy include:

e Offering or implying an employment-related reward or opportunity, such as a merit
pay increase or promotion, in exchange for sexual favors or submission to sexual
conduct.

e Threatening, verbally or physically, or taking a negative employment action such as
termination, demotion, denial of a leave of absence, merit pay increase, or
withholding any other benefit of employment if sexual conduct is rejected.

e Unwelcome intentional touching, hugging, or holding of another person, or other
unwanted intentional physical contact (including patting, pinching, brushing against
another person's body, or blocking of physical movement).

¢ Unwelcome non-verbal/non-physical conduct such as whistling, staring, or leering at
another person.

e Asking unwelcome questions or making unwelcome comments about another
person's sexual activities, dating, personal or intimate relationships, or appearance.

e Sending unwelcome sexually suggestive or flirtatious letters, gifts, notes, or voice
mail.

e Sending unwelcome sexually suggestive letters, notes, and jokes on e-mail,
including pictures, photographs or graphics that may or may not be sent as
electronic attachments or copied from electronic messages.

e Saying unwelcome sexual jokes, pranks, teasing, obscenities or rude gestures or
noises, slurs, derogatory or abusive names.




AR. 2.35 (A) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 3 of 6

e Displaying or circulating pictures, objects, or written materials of a sexual nature
(including graffiti, cartoons, photographs, pinups, calendars, magazines, figurines,
novelty items).

e Engaging in other unprofessional conduct that technically may not be considered
"sexual harassment" but may have a similar effect on the work environment. While it
is not possible to provide an exhaustive list, such conduct might include verbal or
physical nonsexual conduct that denigrates or shows hostility toward an individual
because of his or her gender, jokes including derogatory slurs, improper
relationships between supervisors and subordinates, profane or vulgar language, or
improper sexual behavior in the workplace.

o Retaliating against a person for opposing, reporting, or threatening to report
harassment, or for participating in an investigation, proceeding or hearing
conducted by an investigating agency.

V. WHAT TO DO IF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OCCURS

1. Tell the offending person to stop. An employee who believes that he or she has
been subjected to sexual harassment by anyone is encouraged — but not required —
to promptly tell the person that the conduct is unwelcome and ask the person to
stop the conduct. A person who receives such a request must immediately comply
with the request and must not retaliate against the employee for rejecting the
conduct.

2. Duty to report. The City requires all employees to report conduct which is
prohibited by this policy whether or not they are personally involved. Any employee
who believes s/he has been harassed on the job based on gender or subjected to
conduct prohibited by this policy, or is aware of others who have been harassed or
subjected to prohibited conduct, needs to report the behavior immediately. (See
Section VII [3] entitled, “How to Make a Report.”) Failure to report harassment can
be a serious offense and may be grounds for disciplinary action.

Supervisors, managers, and executives are required to monitor their respective
workplaces and immediately intervene if they determine sexual harassment has
occurred. They are also required to report any suspected sexual harassment even if
the person or persons engaged in the conduct are not their subordinates, or they
have not received a complaint. The failure of a supervisor, manager, or executive to
monitor, intervene, or report sexual harassment as set forth below can be a serious
offense and will result in discipline.

Vil. REPORTING HARASSMENT

If you believe you are a victim of sexual harassment, you should use the procedure
outlined in this policy to file a complaint and have it investigated.

1. When to make a report. Any employee who believes s/he has been subjected to
sexual harassment by anyone must report it immediately. Any employee or supervisor




A.R. 2.35 (A) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 4 of 6

who knows or believes that sexual harassment is occurring, or has occurred, also must
file a report immediately.

2. Where to make a report. Any employee who believes s/he has been subjected to
sexual harassment should report the harassment to the immediate supervisor,
department management, department Personnel Officer/Equal Opportunity Liaison, or
to the Equal Opportunity Department’'s Compliance and Enforcement Division at (602)
262-7486 (voice) or (602) 534-1557 (TTY). Complaints must be filed within 180
days of the alleged act(s) of sexual harassment.

Any employee or supervisor who knows, or believes, that sexual harassment is
occurring, or has occurred, must report that information immediately to the respective
department Personnel Officer/Equal Opportunity Liaison or to the Equal Opportunity
Department's Compliance and Enforcement Division at (602) 262-7486 (voice) or (602)
534-1557 (TTY).

Applicants for employment should file their complaints or discuss their concerns with
the Equal Opportunity Department. Complaints must be filed within 180 days of the
alleged act(s) of sexual harassment.

If there is uncertainty as to whether or not a situation constitutes sexual harassment,
the concerned individual is encouraged to discuss the matter with the Personnel
Officer/Equal Opportunity Liaison or Equal Opportunity Department before determining
whether or not to file a formal complaint.

An employee or applicant may choose to raise the complaint with a state or federal
agency without first pursuing it through City channels. Pursuant to state and federal
law, complaints may also be filed with the Civil Rights Division of the Arizona State
Attorney General's Office (ACRD) at (602) 542-5263 (voice) or (602) 542-5002 (TTY),
or the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) at (602) 640-5000
(voice) or (602) 640-5072 (TTY).

3. How to make a report. All employees have a right to redress for prohibited sexual
harassment. In order to secure this right, the employee should provide a complaint,
preferably in writing and as soon as possible following the incident, to any of the
following City of Phoenix staft:

Supervisor or another person in the chain of command

Department Personnel Officer

Department Equal Opportunity Liaison, or

Equal Opportunity Department, Compliance and Enforcement Division

VIII. INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS

All incidents of harassment that are reported will be investigated. The following procedures
will be followed when a report of sexual harassment is made:

1. Department investigation. When an employee or applicant reports a possible sexual
harassment concern to a City department, the department may, if it has the resources




A.R. 2.35 (A) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 5 of 6

and expertise to do so, conduct its own investigation. In such an instance, the
investigation must be done in consultation with the Equal Opportunity Department and
in a manner that is generally consistent with the procedure outlined below for the Equal
Opportunity Department.

. Equal Opportunity Department investigation. When a possible sexual harassment

concern is brought to the Equal Opportunity Department, the Compliance and
Enforcement Division will help evaluate the situation and decide on a proper course of
action. Among the actions that can be taken are:

a.

The Equal Opportunity Department can facilitate an informal resolution between the
parties if it deems it appropriate after reviewing the complaint. This can include
consulting with the parties involved to settle the issue.

If a formal complaint is filed, the Equal Opportunity Department will:

i. Notify the appropriate Deputy City Manager, Department Head, and Equal
Opportunity Liaison of the complaint; and

ii. Immediately initiate an investigation to gather all relevant facts concerning the
complaint.

The Equal Opportunity Department may:

i. Schedule interviews with various employees, supervisors, witnesses, or
officials. Interviews may be tape-recorded or a written statement of the
testimony may be provided for the signature of the witness;

ii. Review personnel records or other documents;

iii. Make site visits to acquire pertinent facts; and

iv. Require employees to participate in an investigation either by submitting to an
interview or providing documents or other relevant information; failure to
participate may result in disciplinary action.

The Equal Opportunity Department will work with the department(s) involved to
obtain and evaluate all relevant evidence with respect to what has occurred.

The Equal Opportunity Department will analyze all pertinent information and reach a
conclusion as to whether or not a violation of this policy has occurred.

Notice of the conclusion of the investigation will be given to the complainant, the
appropriate Deputy City Manager, the Department Head, the department Equal
Opportunity Liaison, and the respondent.

. All persons involved in an investigation of discrimination must attempt to keep the

matter confidential; failure to do so may result in disciplinary action. This
admonition does not apply to speaking with an attorney functioning within the
attorney-client relationship. In addition, employees who receive a “notice of
investigation” or “notice of inquiry” are permitted to consult with their union or
association representative.




IX.

Xl

A.R. 2.35 (A) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 6 of 6

RESOLUTION OF COMPLAINTS

If the City determines that harassment has occurred, it will take remedial action
commensurate with the circumstances. Appropriate action will also be taken to deter any
future harassment.

An employee who engages in sexual harassment is acting contrary to City policy and will
be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

1. When it is determined that this policy has been violated, the Equal Opportunity
Department will make recommendations for resolution of the complaint.

2. Management personnel will take prompt corrective action. If warranted, verbal
counseling up to and including involuntary termination will be imposed. Other
appropriate actions will be taken to correct problems caused by the conduct.

3. A finding that the conduct does not constitute sexual harassment does not limit a
department's right and responsibility to discipline or take remedial action for
unacceptable conduct that may amount to conduct unbecoming a City employee and/or
is in violation of any other City policy or regulation.

NON-SEXUAL HARASSMENT INCIDENTS

Alleged acts of unfair or unequal treatment that do not involve discrimination, sexual
harassment, or other protected category harassment should be addressed through the
established grievance procedure and other provisions outlined in Administrative Regulation
2.61.

RETALIATION

1. No supervisor, manager, executive, or coworker may retaliate against an employee
who makes a report of sexual harassment or cooperates with an investigation.
Retaliation is unlawful and will not be tolerated. Retaliation must be reported and
handled in the same way as complaints of sexual harassment. Retaliation is a serious
offense that may result in discipline up to and including termination.

2. A person found to have retaliated in response to a charge of sexual harassment will be
subject to discipline. Exoneration on the underlying sexual harassment complaint will
have no effect on the investigation of or possible discipline imposed for retaliation.

David Cavazos, City Manager

Lisa Takata
Executive Assistant to the City Manager




(

City of Phoenix
A.R. NUMBER
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION AR 2.35 (B) Revised
FUNCTION
Personnel and Payroll
SUBJECT Page 1 of 7

EFFECTIVE DATE
March 22, 2005

PROTECTED CATEGORY HARASSMENT REVIEWED DATE
March 3, 2010

STATEMENT OF COMMITMENT

The City of Phoenix is committed to providing a harassment-free environment for
employees. The City will not tolerate prohibited harassment of any kind in the
workplace.

PURPOSE

This regulation defines the City’s policy prohibiting protected category harassment,
outlines City department responsibilities for compliance with this policy, and clarifies
complaint procedures. It also outlines investigative processes for employees and job
applicants who wish to pursue harassment complaints based upon gender, race,
color, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability, national origin, genetic information, or
any other basis made unlawful by an applicable law or ordinance or regulation. It also
protects employees from harassment based on their record of a disability, because
they are regarded as having a disability or have a relationship with a person who has
a disability.

See Administrative Regulation 2.35 for discrimination issues and Administrative
Regulation 2.35(A) for sexual harassment issues.

DEFINITION OF PROTECTED CATEGORY HARASSMENT

The following defines the protected category harassment covered by this
administrative regulation. The terms “protected category harassment” and
“harassment” have the same meaning and application in this Administrative
Regulation.

“Protected category harassment” or “harassment” is behavior based upon an
individual’'s gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability, national
origin, genetic information or any other legally protected basis, that is not welcome,
that is offensive, demoralizing, and/or interferes with work effectiveness.

“Protected category harassment” or “harassment” as used in this Administrative
Regulation is not:

e Discriminatory acts covered in Administrative Regulation 2.35;




A.R. 2.35 (B) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 2 of 7

e Sexual harassment covered in Administrative Regulation 2.35(A);

e Acts of unfair or unequal treatment or acts which may appear to be
harassing in nature if they are not based upon an individual’'s gender, race,
color, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability, national origin, genetic
information or any other protected basis.

While this administrative regulation does not cover this behavior, it should
be understood that it might nevertheless be unprofessional and
inappropriate in the workplace. Such behavior should be addressed
through established grievance procedures and other procedures outlined in
Administrative Regulation 2.61.

2. Protected category harassment is evaluated from the victim's perspective.
Individuals vary in their views of what is offensive. What may not be offensive to one
person may be offensive to another. Determining whether specific conduct
constitutes protected category harassment depends upon the facts and the context
in which the conduct occurs as well as the severity or frequency of that conduct.
Any employee who engages in behavior that is not of a generally socially
acceptable nature runs the risk of committing protected category harassment.

POLICY

The City of Phoenix will not tolerate protected category harassment in the workplace.
No employee should be subject to unwelcome verbal or physical conduct that is
harassing in nature or that shows hostility to the employee because of the employee's
gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability, national origin, genetic
information or any other protected basis. Likewise, no employee should be subject to
unwelcome verbal or physical conduct that is harassing in nature or that shows hostility
to the employee based on the race, color, religion, gender, age, disability, sexual
orientation, genetic information or national origin of a person with whom s/he
associates.

No employee of the City is permitted to engage in harassment directed at another
based on the other person’s protected category.

This policy also applies to supervisors, managers, and executives, who are entrusted
with the authority to enforce and uphold the policies of the City. This policy requires
supervisors, managers, and executives to take proactive steps to prevent protected
category harassment and to take prompt corrective action whenever it occurs.

EXAMPLES OF PROHIBITED CONDUCT
Examples of conduct prohibited by this policy include:
e Producing or displaying derogatory posters, photography, cartoons, drawings,

messages, notes, novelty items, etc., that tend to alienate or discriminate against
persons because of their gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion, age,




VI.

A.R. 2.35 (B) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 3 of 7

disability, national origin, genetic information, or any other basis made unlawful by
any applicable law, ordinance or regulation.

e Producing or displaying unwelcome messages that contain jokes, pictures,
photographs, graphics or other written materials that tend to alienate or discriminate
against persons because of their gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion,
age, disability, national origin, genetic information, or any other basis made unlawful
by any applicable law, ordinance or regulation that may or may not be sent as
electronic messages or attachments or copied from electronic messages.

e Physical conduct such as blocking normal movement, making offensive gestures,
offensive pranks, destruction of property, sabotaging or interfering with work.

e Verbal conduct such as telling unwelcome jokes, spreading rumors, teasing,
obscenities, slurs, epithets or unwelcome and inappropriate questions or comments
about an individual’'s gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability,
genetic information, or national origin.

e Retaliating for opposing, reporting, or threatening to report harassment or for
participating in an investigation, proceeding or hearing conducted by an
investigating agency.

e Non-verbal/non-physical conduct such as intimidating, hateful looks,
unresponsiveness, or overbearing presence.

e Engaging in other unprofessional conduct that may not technically be considered
harassment, but may have a similar effect on the work environment. While it is not
possible to provide an exhaustive list, such conduct might include verbal or physical
conduct that denigrates or shows hostility toward an individual because of his or her
gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability, national origin,
genetic information, or any other protected basis, including derogatory slurs,
profane or vulgar language, or improper negative behavior in the workplace.

WHAT TO DO IF HARASSMENT OCCURS

Duty to report. The City requires all employees to report conduct which is
prohibited by this policy whether or not they are personally involved. Any employee
who believes s/he has been harassed on the job based on a protected category or
subjected to conduct prohibited by this policy, or is aware of others who have been
harassed or subjected to prohibited conduct, needs to report the behavior
immediately. (See Section VII [3] entitled, “How to Make a Report.”) Failure to report
harassment can be a serious offense and may be grounds for disciplinary action.

Supervisors, managers, and executives are required to monitor their respective
workplaces and immediately intervene if they determine protected category
harassment has occurred. They are also required to report any such suspected
harassment even if the person or persons engaged in the conduct are not their
subordinates, or they have not received a complaint. The failure of a supervisor,




VII.

A.R. 2.35 (B) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 4 of 7

manager, or executive to monitor, intervene, or report protected category
harassment as set forth below can be a serious offense and will result in discipline.

REPORTING HARASSMENT

1. When to make a report. Any employee who believes s/he has been harassed on
the job because of gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability,
national origin, or any other protected basis must report it immediately. Any
employee or supervisor who knows or believes that harassment is occurring, or has
occurred, also must file a report immediately.

2. Where to_make a report. Any employee who believes s/he has been subjected to
protected category harassment should report the harassment to the immediate
supervisor, department management, department Personnel Officer/Equal
Opportunity Liaison, or to the Equal Opportunity Department’'s Compliance and
Enforcement Division at (602) 262-7486 (voice) or (602) 534-1557 (TTY).
Complaints must be filed within 180 days of the alleged act(s) of harassment.

Any employee or supervisor who knows, or believes, that protected category
harassment is occurring, or has occurred, must report that information immediately
to the respective department Personnel Officer/Equal Opportunity Liaison or to the
Equal Opportunity Department's Compliance and Enforcement Division at (602)
262-7486 (voice) or (602) 534-1557 (TTY).

Applicants for employment should file their complaints or discuss their concerns
directly with the Equal Opportunity Department. Complaints must be filed within
180 days of the alleged act(s) of harassment.

An employee or applicant may choose to raise a complaint with a state or federal
agency without first pursuing it through City channels. Pursuant to state and federal
law, complaints may also be filed with the Civil Rights Division of the Arizona State
Attorney General's Office (ACRD) at (602) 542-5263 (voice) or (602) 542-5002
(TTY), or the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) at (602)
640-5000 (voice) or (602) 640-5072 (TTY).

3. How to make a report. All employees have a right to redress for prohibited
harassment. In order to secure this right, the employee should provide a complaint,
preferably in writing, as soon as possible following the incident to any of the
following City of Phoenix staff:

Supervisor or another person in the chain of command

Department Personnel Officer

Department Equal Opportunity Liaison, or

Equal Opportunity Department, Compliance and Enforcement Division




VIII.

A.R. 2.35 (B) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 5 of 7

INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS

All incidents of protected category harassment that are reported will be investigated.
The following procedures will be followed when a report of protected category
harassment is made.

1. Department _investigation. When an employee or applicant reports a concern
about possible protected category harassment to a City of Phoenix department, the
department may, if it has the resources and expertise to do so, conduct its own
investigation. In such an instance, the investigation must be done in consultation
with the Equal Opportunity Department and in a manner that is generally consistent
with the procedure outlined below for the Equal Opportunity Department.

2. Equal Opportunity Department Investigation. When a possible protected
category harassment concern is brought to the Equal Opportunity Department, the
Compliance and Enforcement Division will evaluate the situation and decide on a
proper course of action. Among the actions that can be taken are:

a. The Equal Opportunity Department can facilitate an informal resolution between
the parties if it deems it appropriate after reviewing the complaint. This can
include consulting with the parties involved to settle the issue.

b. If a formal complaint is filed, the Equal Opportunity Department will:

i.  Notify the appropriate Deputy City Manager, Department Head, and Equal
Opportunity Liaison of the complaint; and

ii. Immediately initiate an investigation to gather all relevant facts concerning
the complaint.

c. The Equal Opportunity Department may:

I.  Schedule interviews with various employees, supervisors, witnesses, or
officials. Interviews may be tape-recorded or a written statement of the
testimony may be provided for the signature of the witness;

ii. Review personnel records or other documents;

iii.  Make site visits to acquire pertinent facts; and

iv.  Require employees to participate in an investigation either by submitting to
an interview or providing documents or other relevant information; failure to
participate may result in disciplinary action.

d. The Equal Opportunity Department will work with the department(s) involved to
obtain and evaluate all relevant evidence with respect to what has occurred.

e. The Equal Opportunity Department will analyze all pertinent information and
reach a conclusion as to whether or not a violation of this policy has occurred.

f. Notice of the conclusion of the investigation will be given to the complainant, the
appropriate Deputy City Manager, the Department Head, the department Equal




XI.

A.R. 2.35 (B) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 6 of 7

Opportunity Liaison, and the respondent.

g. All persons involved in an investigation of discrimination must attempt to keep
the matter confidential; failure to do so may result in disciplinary action. This
admonition does not apply to speaking with an attorney functioning within the
attorney-client relationship. In addition, employees who receive a “notice of
investigation” or “notice of inquiry” are permitted to consult with their union or
association representative.

RESOLUTION OF COMPLAINTS

If the City determines that harassment has occurred, it will take remedial action
commensurate with the circumstances. Appropriate action will also be taken to deter
any future harassment.

An employee who engages in protected category harassment is acting contrary to City
policy and will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

1. When it is determined that this policy has been violated, the Equal Opportunity
Department will make recommendations for the resolution of the complaint.

2. Management will take prompt corrective action. If warranted, verbal counseling up
to and including involuntary termination will be imposed. Other appropriate actions
will be taken to correct problems caused by the conduct.

3. A finding that the conduct does not constitute protected category harassment does
not limit a department’s right and responsibility to discipline or take remedial action
for unacceptable conduct that is in violation of other City policies or regulations.

NON-HARASSMENT INCIDENTS

Alleged acts of unfair or unequal treatment, which do not involve discrimination or are
not based upon an individual’s gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion, age,
disability, national origin, genetic information, or any other protected basis, should be
addressed through the established grievance procedure and other provisions outlined
in Administrative Regulation 2.61.

RETALIATION

1. No supervisor, manager, executive, or coworker may retaliate against an employee
who makes a report of protected category harassment or cooperates with an
investigation. Retaliation is unlawful and will not be tolerated. Retaliation must
be reported and handled in the same way as complaints of harassment. Retaliation
is a serious offense that may result in discipline up to and including termination.




A.R. 2.35 (B) Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 7 of 7

2. A person found to have retaliated in response to a charge of harassment will be
subject to discipline. Exoneration on the underlying charge of harassment will have
no effect on the investigation of or possible discipline imposed for retaliation.

3. No supervisor, manager, executive, or coworker may retaliate against an employee
who has participated in an interactive process for a reasonable accommodation
under the Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act. Retaliation is a serious
offense that may result in discipline up to and including termination.

David Cavazos, City Manager

By: ﬁ”fu%/ffZ/

Lisa Takata
Executive Assistant to the City Manager







(

City of Phoenix

A.R. NUMBER

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 2.62 revised

FUNCTION
Personnel and Payroll

SUBJECT Page 1 of 3

EFFECTIVE DATE
WORK NOTICES FOR OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT November 18, 2008

REVIEW DATE

TRANSMITTAL MESSAGE
AR 2.62 has been revised to incorporate additional elements from the City's Ethics Policy.
Questions regarding this A.R. should be directed to the Personnel Department at (602) 262-7552.

SUMMARY OF CHANGES
This Administrative Regulation was last revised in 1997. This revision includes a requirement to

seek approval prior to beginning the outside employment. Unacceptable work situations have
been further defined in accordance with the City’s Ethics Policy.

1. PURPOSE

This regulation establishes the City’s position on outside employment by City employees.
Outside employment is defined as all non-City employment, including self-employment.

2. GENERAL POLICY

A. Outside employment by City employees is permissible if it does not adversely impact the
employee’s City work and if it does not create a conflict of interest or the appearance of
a conflict of interest, with the employee’s City job or the mission of the employee’s
assigned department.

B. Departments may establish additional guidelines provided they do not diminish the
standards contained in this regulation.

C. Employees who are unable to perform their City jobs because of illness or injury
sustained from outside employment activities do not qualify for paid sick leave or City
worker’'s compensation. Absences caused by these illnesses or injuries must be
charged to accrued vacation, personal leave, compensatory time, or leave without pay.

D. Employees must seek approval from their supervisors prior to engaging in outside
employment.




AR. 2.62 Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 2 of 3

3. UNACCEPTABLE WORK SITUATIONS

A. The following outside work situations are considered as interfering with and in conflict
with, City employment, and no City employee shall engage in such work situations:

(1) Performing work which the employee or his immediate associates will subsequently
be required to act upon in an official City capacity, or any other work which would
constitute a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest.

(2) Performing research, investigative, consultative, or other work in which the City
employee has access to City records or correspondence which is not otherwise
generally available to the public

(3) Accepting or starting work in an establishment when there is a recognized labor-
management dispute in progress. If employed before a recognized labor-management
dispute, the employee will not increase the hours of work at the establishment or
absorb new duties or responsibilities during the term of the labor dispute.

(4) Performing work that results in excessive employee absences, tardiness, a general
decline of City job performance, or reduced usefulness or efficiency of the employee
on the City job.

(6) Working at any location or employment which may bring the City into disrepute.

(6) Working in any situation which would require the employee to be in conflict with
another governmental agency or the mission of the employee’s assigned department.

(7) Conducting any outside employment related business and/or activity on City time and
using City equipment, facilities, supplies, or other City staff members’ time.

(8) Working for a firm which provides goods or services to the City directly or indirectly,
without a competitive bidding process.

4. DEPARTMENT AND FUNCTION HEAD RESPONSIBILITY

A. Department and function heads shall have primary responsibility for preventing outside
employment in conflict with City employment.

B. All department and function heads are granted the authority to deny outside work when
such employment interferes with, or is in conflict with, City employment.

5. OUTSIDE WORK BY EXECUTIVES AND MIDDLE MANAGERS

Executive and middle management employees shall not engage in any outside employment
unless specifically approved by the City Manager’s Office.




AR. 2.62 Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 3 of 3

NOTIFICATION PROCESS

A

G.

All employees who wish to engage in outside employment shall complete and submit a
Notice of Outside Employment form (150-49D Rev. 1/97), submit it to their department or
function head, and get proper approval prior to starting the outside work.

The Notice of Outside Employment form can be obtained from Central Stores. A copy of
the revised form is attached to this regulation.

Department and function heads shall thoroughly review the employment request and
determine if it will interfere with the employee’s City work or if it will result in a conflict of
interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest.

Requests for outside work authorization from executive and middle management

employees will be forwarded to the City Manager's Office with the department or function
head’s recommended action.

All employees who are engaged in outside work shall submit a new Notice of Outside
Employment form during January of each year or when engaging in new outside
employment.

Departments should review the status of outside employment during the annual employee
evaluation process.

If the conditions of the outside employment change, the employee shall submit this new
information within ten working days of the change.

New employees should be informed of this regulation at the time of hire and should be
questioned about outside work they may be performing.

DISCIPLINE

An employee who engages in outside employment without approval, or who continues in outside
employment after the request is denied, is subject to disciplinary action.

FRANK FAIRBANKS, City Manager




CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

NOTICE OF OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT
(Refer to AR 2.62)

INSTRUCTIONS:

Employee 1. Complete the form (refer to AR 2.62 for details). Send completed and signed form to your
department head for review.

Department 1. Review the request and determine if outside employment represents a conflict of interest or if the
hours of work will impact the employee’s effectiveness on the City job.
2. Requests from middle managers or executives require recommendation of the department head and
approval of the City Manager's Office.
3. After action is complete, keep the original in the department, and give a copy to the Employee.

EMPLOYEE NAME 2. DEPARTMENT/DIVISION 3. SECTION

EMPLOYEE ID # 5. JOB TITLE 6. CURRENT DATE

NAME AND ADDRESS OF OUTSIDE EMPLOYER

DESCRIBE YOUR OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT DUTIES, HOURS OF WORK, AND RELATIONSHIP OF THIS WORK TO YOUR CITY JOB AND YOUR
DEPARTMENT'S ACTIVITIES. DO YOU OR THE FIRM DO ANY WORK WITH CITY DEPARTMENTS, OR REQUIRE CITY APPROVAL OR
LICENSING TO CONDUCT THIS WORK?

§ CERTIFY THAT | HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 2.62-AND THAT THIS WORK WILL NOT INTERFERE
WITH MY TY DUTIES AND DOES NOT CAUSE ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST WITH MY CITY EMPLOYMENT. | UNDERSTAND THAT |
MUST INFORM MY DEPARTMENT IF MY OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS CHANGE. | UNDERSTAND THAT MY CITY JOB IS MY
PRIMARY EMPLOYMENT AND IF MY DEPARTMENT DETERMINES THAT MY OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT IS INTERFERING WITH MY CITY JOB,
THAT | MUST STOP MY OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT OR LEAVE MY CITY EMPLOYMENT. | ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT INJURIES RECEIVED IN
OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT DO NOT QUALIFY FOR PAID SICK LEAVE OR CITY WORKER'S COMP. BENEFITS.

Signature of Employee

10.

| HAVE REVIEWED THIS REQUEST AND HAVE DETERMINED THAT IT DOES NOT REPRESENT A CONFLICT OF INTEREST.
RESTRICTIONS (if any):

Department Approval _City Manager's Office Approvat (only if required by AR 2.62)

150-490 Rev. 708




(

City of Phoenix
A.R.NUMBER
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION Eosﬂcﬁgﬂsed
Personnel and Payroll
SUBJECT Page 1 of 4
CONFLICTS IN EMPLOYMENT, SUPERVISORY AND EFFECTIVE DATE
CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIPS Eg\‘/’;m%%é& 2008

Transmittal Message

AR 2.91 has been revised to address concems and practices that have evolved since the original

issue date in 1986. Questions regarding this AR should be directed to the Personnel Department at
(602) 262-7552.

Summary of Changes

In addition to employment and supervisory relationships, the AR has been revised to address
contractual relationships involving family members. All employee disclosure forms will now be
maintained in the department personnel file instead of submitted to the City Clerk. Disclosure
forms for City Council, board and commission members will continue to be submitted to the City
Clerk. Relationships to be considered under this AR have been expanded beyond the definition
provided in Arizona Revised Statutes.

(1) Purpose

The purpose of this regulation is to communicate a Citywide policy regarding employment,
supervisory and contractual relationships among family members.

(2) Definition

Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-502 defines "relative" as the spouse, child, child's
child, parent, grandparent, brother or sister of the whole or half-blood and their spouses, and
the parent, brother, sister, or child of a spouse.

For purposes of administering this city policy, managers may also consider other
relationships that can create the appearance of a conflict. Such relationships may include a
court-appointed legal guardian, an individual who has acted as a parent substitute, and/or a
person residing in the employee’s household as a member of the family. Roommates or
other individuals who share a substantial financial interest with the employee should also be
disclosed to avoid the appearance of a conflict.




(3)

AR. 2.91 Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 2 of 4

Policies

(a) Appointment to City Employment

(b)

(c)

No officer or employee of the City of Phoenix shall appoint any individual who may have
a conflict with the officer or employee as defined in Section 2, to any position within the
City. Officers and employees within the City authorized to make appointments shall
disqualify themselves from considering or making appointments, or from participating in
the appointment process. Written notice of such disqualification should be forwarded to
the Department Head where the appointment is being made. In situations where an
individual is under consideration for promotion or hiring and there is a potential conflict
with an individual in an executive or middle management position in the same
department, or in the City Manager's Office, the Personnel Director will review the hiring
or promotion process and make a determination on the decision.

Immediate Supervisory Relationships

No officer or employee shall be permitted to directly supervise a relative or other
individual as defined in Section 2. This includes direct supervision as well as lead
assignments. Department heads are responsible for enforcing this policy. Every
attempt should be made to reassign or transfer employees who may find themselves
by reason of marriage, promotion, or reorganization, in an immediate supervisory
relationship with a relative. As a last resort, the layoff rule shall be utilized.

By way of example, supervision includes, but is not limited to, any participation in the
hiring decision, promotional decision, work assignment decision, shift assignment
decision, disciplinary decision, or the evaluation process of another employee.

Irrespective of the immediate supervisory relationship, no officer or employee shall
participate in any manner in a decision involving the pecuniary interest of a relative or
other individual as defined in Section 2, including hiring, promotion(s), discipline, and
merit increase(s). In addition, no officer or employee shall in any way attempt to
influence others in the decision regarding the pecuniary or employment (assignments,
shifts, discipline, etc.) interests of a relative or other individual as defined in Section 2.

Disclosure of Relationship

An officer or employee, in addition to disqualifying himself/herself from participation in
any decision regarding the employment or supervisory interest of a relative(s) or other
individual(s) as defined in Section 2, the officer or employee shall make known the
existence of the relationship and the interest by filing, in writing, a form disclosing the
relationship and the interest involved (see attached). The form will be maintained in
the officer or employee’s department personnel file. The officer or employee is
responsible for updating the information on file as changes occur; however,
departments should, at a minimum, request updates from staff on an annual basis.




A.R. 2.91 Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 3 of 4

Because of their broader management responsibilities, all executives and middle
managers must notify their department head or Deputy City Manager in writing of the
name(s) of the relative(s), or other individual(s) defined in Section 2 working in any
department in the City and the defined relationship. Due to the nature of work, some
departments may require broader notification requirements than those contained in
this regulation.

(d) Contractual Relationships

Any officer or employee who has, or whose relative has, a substantial pecuniary or
proprietary interest (as defined in Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-502), in any
contract, sale, purchase or service to the City of Phoenix, shall refrain from voting
upon or otherwise participating in any manner as an officer or employee in such

contract, sale or purchase.
/g///%/ —fgjﬂw

Frank Fairbanks, City Manager




AR.291
Personnel and Payroll

Page 4 of 4
City of Phoenix
CONFLICTS IN EMPLOYMENT, SUPERVISORY AND
CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIPS DISCLOSURE FORM
(Refer to ALR. 291)
Name:
Job Title:
Department/Division:
Name(s) of the relative(s) or individual{sy working for the City with whom | may have a conflict:
Name Department Job Title Relationship

Other Potential Conflicts:

Please use the space befow to declare other employment, supervisory, and/or contractual confiicts as noted in A.R. 2.91.

Signature:

Print Name:

Supervisor’s Signature:

Print Name:

Department Head's Signature:

Original: Department Personnel File
Copy: Employee

Print Name:

60-601D New 1108




(

City of Phoenix

A.R. NUMBER
2.92 Revised

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION

FUNCTION
Human Resources and Payroll

SUBJECT Pagi’] of 5

EFFECTIVE DATE
CONTRACTS WITH OR REEMPLOYMENT OF RETIREES October 20, 2009

REVIEW DATE
June 26, 2012

INTRODUCTION

Transmittal Message

This AR has been revised to update department names, titles, and the contact phone number.
Questions regarding this AR should be directed to the Human Resources Department at (602) 262-
6608.

The City is experiencing many retirements. If little or no notice is provided by a highly skilled
employee of his intent to retire, it can be challenging to continue effective day-to-day operations
without the position being filled. This Administrative Regulation (AR) establishes the policies and
procedures to be followed when it is determined that contracting with or rehiring a retired City
employee is necessary to continue the delivery of City services. The policies and procedures in this
AR are intended to comply with current federal tax and employment laws. Any changes in these laws
will require updates to this AR.

The immediate rehiring of a retired City employee to perform part, or all, of their previous job
duties is prohibited. Also, a commitment to future employment cannot be made prior to retirement,
nor within the first six months after retirement and termination of employment.

1. Definitions
The following definitions apply to the provisions of this regulation:

City Retirement Plan means the City of Phoenix Employees’ Retirement System (COPERS) as
set forth in Chapter XXIV, Article Il, of the Phoenix City Charter, or the Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System (PSPRS) as set forth in ARS Section 38-841 et seq.

Contract with means to enter into a written agreement with a retired employee to perform a
defined scope of work as an independent contractor pursuant to the provisions of this AR.

Reemploy means to appoint a retired employee into a City position whether full-time, part-time,
seasonal, or temporary, pursuant to the provisions of this AR.

2. Policy
Individuals who retire under the provisions of a City retirement plan may not be reemployed
into another regular full-time position covered by the same retirement plan.




A.R. 2.92 Revised
Human Resources and Payroll
Page 2 of 5

However, it may be appropriate to reemploy a retiree when this person possesses specialized
knowledge and skills that are needed for a short period of time. It is not appropriate to contract
with or reemploy a retiree in order to avoid a regular, competitive selection process, or to
authorize a retiree to indefinitely perform his same duties and receive a salary or contract
payment.

Pre-approval by the Human Resources and Budget and Research Directors is required to
reemploy a retiree. Departments must consult with the City Attorney as necessary. Pre-
approval by the Human Resources and Budget and Research Directors and the City Attorney
(or their designees) is required to contract with a retired City employee.

. Requirements for Reemploying or Contracting With Retirees
In reviewing requests to reemploy or contract with retirees, the following requirements must be
met in order to comply with federal tax and employment law:

e Was there an advance agreement for future employment? A commitment to future
employment (either by contract or through rehiring) cannot be made prior to retirement, nor
during the period of time between retirement and re-employment or contract initiation.

e How long was the break between the termination of employment and the commencement
of work? With limited exception, at least six months must elapse between retirement
and an agreement or contract for reemployment.

o Are the retiree’s duties substantially the same as they were before retirement? The retiree
cannot be rehired for the sole purpose of performing the same job duties as performed
before retirement.

¢ Is the work to be performed related to a specific project? Specific projects with defined
scopes of work and deadlines may be appropriate.

e |s the work to be performed that which is typically done by a City employee7 A retiree
cannot indefinitely replace an authorized full-time position.

o What is the length of the contract? A contract with a retiree cannot continue |ndef|n|tely,
and is limited to a one-year contract.

o |s the retiree receiving any benefits based on credited past service? There cannot be
accrual of leave or reliance on prior seniority for benefits.

"o Were all benefits paid out at the time of termination? This would identify a person who has
retired.

e Is the retiree acting as an independent contractor? Are the manners, means, and mode of
completing the work under the sole control of the retiree? A contract cannot be used if the
person is performing the same duties assigned prior to retirement, is using work and
parking space and related equipment, and has similar work hours.

Any questions regarding these requirements should be forwarded to the Human Resources
and Law Departments.

. Contracts with Retirees

After meeting all of the requirements in Section 3 above, City departments may request
approval to employ retirees through employment contracts when the scope of the contract falls
into one of the following two categories:




A.R.2.92 Revised
Human Resources and Payroll
Page 3 of 5

A. Performance During Recruitment — The retiree may be contracted to perform the full
range of duties associated with the retiree’s pre-retirement assignment for a limited amount
of time when a recruitment effort must be extended to find a replacement. If a current
eligible list for the employee’s classification is available, this type of contract is not
appropriate. At least 30 days must have elapsed between the employee’s retirement
date and the initiation of a contract. Written approval from the Human Resources
Director is required prior to initiating a contract with a retiree for the purpose of performing
duties during a recruitment effort.

The life of the contract may not exceed one year. There cannot be a commitment to a
future job as described in Section 3 above.

B. Performance on a Specific Project — The retiree is contracted to perform work that is
described in a detailed Scope of Work document. This work is usually for a specific project
or to perform specific tasks comprising less than the full range of duties associated with a
City position. Compensation should be based on clearly identified deliverables with
deadlines, and not solely on an hourly rate. At least six months must have elapsed
between the employee’s retirement and the initiation of a contract.

The life of the contract should not exceed one year with one additional year of renewal.
There cannot be a commitment to a future job as described in Section 3 above.

Any contract with a retired employee must clearly establish that the employment relationship
with the retiree is as an independent contractor, and not as a City employee. In that regard,
there is a strong preference to require the contracted retiree to provide his own facilities and
materials to avoid an appearance that the person is a City employee. Any facilities or materials
provided to the contracted retiree by the City should be specified in the contract.

Additionally, the contract must make it clear that the City does not have the right to control the
procedures for accomplishing the contracted services. It is recommended that the contracted
retiree formalize his own business by filing an assumed name certificate, having a letterhead
and/or business card, opening a bank account in the business name, or providing an
appropriate business license, and following all other requirements for doing business with the
City.

A sample contract can be provided by contacting the Law Department’s, Employment Law
section, or the Human Resources Department.

. Reemployment of Retirees

Retirees may be reemployed into authorized non-pension eligible positions as described
below. These positions are limited to either temporary/part-time, or temporary/full-time
positions without benefits. COPERS retirees may not be hired into benefit-eligible positions,
including job share positions. At least six months must elapse between the retiree’s
retirement date and the date of reemployment.

A. Positions Authorized for Performance in a Similar Capacity — In this instance, the
retiree is reemployed to perform the same or similar work that was performed before
retirement. For example, a Senior Human Resources Clerk is reemployed one year after




6.

AR. 2.92 Revised
Human Resources and Payroll
Page 4 of 5

he retired, to assist a different City department with payroll during a payroll clerk’s maternity
leave; or a retired Customer Service Clerk is reemployed to assist with a forecasted peak
workload for a 45-day period.

Assignments for work in a similar capacity may not exceed 120 days or 1000 hours per
calendar year. The rate of pay shall not exceed the maximum established for the
classification.

Positions Authorized for Performance in a Different Capacity - In this instance, the
retiree is reemployed to perform completely different work from that performed prior to
retirement, on a part-time basis. For example, a retired Groundskeeper is reemployed as a
Meal Delivery Aide, or a retired Secretary Il is reemployed to work as a part-time Library
Clerk.

If the work to be performed is substantially different, the retiree may continue working
indefinitely in the part-time capacity.

Additional Procedures

A.

AR 3.10 requires City departments to receive approval in the form of a Letter of Exception,
if a personal service contract exceeds $40,000 in value, and if the department does not
intend to issue a request for proposals or request for qualifications.” Exceptions to this
process must be approved by the department director. Documentation of that approval
must be maintained by the department.?

The Phoenix City Charter, Article XIX, Section 1, requires all City contracts be in writing
under the supervision of the City Attorney, executed by the City Manager, and
countersigned by the City Clerk.>

The reemployment of retirees, whether they are participants in the COPERS or PSPRS
plan, is subject to the normal qualification, certification, and employment provisions of the
Personnel Rules.

The Personnel Rules allow the employment of individuals into the COPERS who have
retired under the PSPRS. A PSPRS retiree may be reemployed into a full-time
COPERS-eligible position following a 60-day break in service, provided that the
duties of the COPERS position are significantly dissimilar from the retiree’s pre-
retirement classification. These individuals shall be treated as new employees with
regard to rate of pay, all other compensatory payments, employee benefits, rate of leave
accrual, and seniority.

The hiring of a COPERS participant into a temporary non-fringe benefit position is subject
to the normal operating procedures, budget, and fiscal approvals for such temporary
positions.

In all cases, if the reemployed retiree is receiving the benefits of a disability pension or long
term disability benefits, the hiring department must inform the appropriate pension board or
the Human Resources Department, Benefits Section in writing. The hiring department is also
required to provide to the appropriate pension board or the Human Resources Department,
Benefits Section all information necessary to determine the effect of the reemployment on the
disability pension or disability benefits received.

" AR 3.10 Section I1I(2)(A)(2); Z AR 3.10 Section (3)(A);  See also AR 4.21




AR. 2.92 Revised
Human Resources and Payroll
Page 5 of 5

7. Effective Date of Reemgloyment

Arizona state statutes that govern conflicts of interest may prohibit a retiree from working for a
contractor in an area in which the employee personally participated during his employment.’
Work pursuant to a contract cannot commence until approvals are received and any potential
conflict of interest has been assessed. Appointments of retirees to City positions cannot be
effective until all approvals are received from the Human Resources and Budget and Research
Directors.

8. Exceptions
The City Manager may grant specific exceptions or variances to the provisions of this AR in

extreme and unusual circumstances.

DAVID CAVAZOS, City Manager

by Lisa Takata
Deputy City Manager

' ARS § 38-504; see also City’s Ethics Policy







P

City of Phoenix

A.R. NUMBER
A.R. 2.93 Revised

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION

FUNCTION
Miscellaneous
PAGE 1 OF 4

SUBJECT

EFFECTIVE DATE

CITY EMPLOYEE GIFT POLICY September 9, 1996

PURPOSE

To reinforce the already strong policy for employees receiving gifts from persons.or
entities who conduct business, or could potentially conduct business, with the City of
Phoenix.

POLICY

City employees must consider ethical principles before accepting personal gifts. No
City employee shall accept any gift, service, or favor which would lead toward favoritism
or the appearance of favoritism in any way. Generally, token gifts such as food and
plants can be accepted if they are of minimal value, can be shared with the entire work
unit, and will not be perceived as influencing decisions. The City of Phoenix Ethics
Handbook (available from Personnel) discusses in greater detail the ethical
considerations of accepting gifts.

If an employee concludes that he or she may accept an entertainment or sports/athletic
event gift (usually in the form of tickets), the employee must declare the gift with the
City Clerk Department using the “Declaration Form” (attached). A list of examples of
such gifts is listed in Appendix A and B. A declaration must be made regardless of
whether or not the gift is used by the employee. A personal gift from a friend or family
member or winning a promotional gift where the opportunity is open to the general
public does not require declaration. Employees who pay for the ticket or elect to make
a charitable contribution in the name of the donor for the face value of the gift do not
need to file a declaration. Employees should declare gifts within 2 working days of
acceptance.

VIOLATION OF GIFT POLICY
Any employee in violation of this policy will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.

FRANK FAIRBANKS, City Manager

by_w

Marsha Wallace, Assistant to the City Manager




APPENDIX A
AMPLE LIST OF SPORTS/ATHLETIC GIFTSTO D RE

Any gift of sports/athletic event with a monetary value
Rounds of golf

Arizona State University games

Boxing events

Cardinals football games

Coyotes hockey games

Fiesta Bowl

Diamondbacks baseball games

Masters Golf Tournament

National Finals Rodeo

NBA All Star Games

NCAA Final Four Games

Phoenix Roadrunner games

Phoenix Suns tickets

Phoenix International Raceway events

Phoenix Open Golf Tournament

Phoenix and regional rodeos

Professional bowling tournaments where fees are charged
Rattler’s football games

Special closed circuit TV sporting events where fees are charged
Super Bowl

Spring Cactus League baseball

Firebirds baseball tickets

Summer games

U.S. Open Golf

U.S. Open Tennis

University of Arizona games

World Series




APPENDIX B
P IST OF ENTERTAINMENT GIFTS TO D

Any gift of entertainment with a monetary value
Arizona Jewish Theatre Company

Arizona Shakespeare Festival

Arizona Theatre Company

Arizona Ballet

Arizona State University plays, concerts, ballets, operas
Desert Stages

Gammage Broadway Series

Helen K. Mason Center for Performing Arts
IMAX Theatre

Phoenix Theatre tickets

Movie theater tickets

Museum tickets

Red River Opry

Renaissance Festival

St. George Productions, Inc. _

Sundome Center for Performing Arts
Symphony Hall performances

Theatrical agencies productions

Theme park tickets

University of Arizona plays, concerts, ballets, operas
Phoenix Zoo tickets




&

Cify of Phoenix

DECLARATION FORM
for
Entertainment or Sports/Athletic Event Gifts

Your Name Work Phone

Department
Event/Activity
Date of Event Monetary Value

Name of Person or Business Gift is from

Address of the Person or Business Listed Above

Comments/Explanation:

Employee’s Signature

Date

cc: Department Head

Please return form to the City Clerk Department



(

City of Phoenix
To: Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force Date: August 3, 2012

From:  Jeff Stapleton
Mayor's Office

Subject: RESEARCH - ETHICS POLICIES FROM PEER CITIES

The attached exhibits provide language used by other peer cities of similar size to

Phoenix with respect to how their codes define conflicts of interest, financial interests,
gifts, and lobbying. | |

Exhibit A: Conflict of Interest Definitions from Peer Cities including definitions
of a ‘financial interest’ or ‘substantial economic interest’

ExhibitB: Definitions of a ‘gift’ from Peer Cities

Exhibit C: Definition of ‘Lobbying’ and ‘Lobbyist’ from Peer Cities



Exhibit A

Contained in this exhibit is a sampling of conflict of interest definitions from peer cities.
Our research yielded a couple cities that have explicit definitions of what constitutes a
conflict of interest. While a conflict of interest definition may be comprehensive, the
areas centering around ‘economic inferests’ ‘financial interests’ or ‘economic benefits’
often require further definition or explicit terms to add sufficient strength to the code. For
this reason, Exhibit A also includes examples from peer cities as to how varying terms
such as an ‘economic interest’ a ‘financial interest’ or ‘economic benefit’ are defined.

Conflict of Interest Deﬁnitions Included:
| Dallas, TX
San Antonio, TX
Indianapolis, IN / Marion County, IN

" San Francisco, CA City/County (w/ accompanying state definitions)

Definitions of a Financial Interest:

County of El Paso, TX

Baltimore, MD

Definitions applicable to Phoenix:

Contained in this binder within Section 3 ‘Ethics Legal Fram_ework’ isan
exhibit (see: ‘Exhibit A’) that contains the relevant state statutes with
respect o conflict of interest that Phoenix has adopted into the city
charter. '



Dallas, TX

Source: Dallas City Code

Chapter 12A: Code of Ethics
Article IL. Present City Officials and Employees

SEC. 12A-3. Improper Economic Benefit

(a) Economic interests affected. To avoid the appearance and
risk of impropriety, a city official or employee shail not take
any official action that he or she knows is likely to affect
particularly the economic interests of:

(1) the official or employee;

(2) the official’s or employee’s outside client;

(3) the official’s or employee’s outside employer;

(4) a business entity in which the official or employee
knows that he or she holds an economic interest;

(5) a business entity that the official or employee knows
is an affiliated business or partner of a busiriess entity in which
he or she holds an economic interest;

(6) a business entity for which the city official or

- employee serves as an officer or director or in any other
policymaking position; or '

(7) a person or business entity:

(A) from whom, within the past 12 months, the official
or employee, directly or indirectly, has: '

(i) solicited an offer of employment;

(ii) received and not rejected an offer of employment;
or

| (iii) accepted an offer of employment; or

(B) with whom the official or employee, directly or
indirectly, is engaged in negotiations pertaining to a business
opportunity.

(b) Substantial economic interests affected. To avoid the
appearance and risk of impropriety, a city official or employee
shall not take any official action that he or she knows is likely
to affect particularly the substantial economic interests of:

(1) the official’s or employee’s parent, child, spouse, or
other family member within the first degree of consanguinity
or affinity; :

(2) the official’s or employee’s domestic partner;

(3) an outside employer of the official’s or employee’s
parent, child, spouse, or other family member within the first



degree of consanguinity or affinity, or domestic partner, but
only if the official or employee knows the family member or
domestic partner has a substantial economic interest in the
outside employer;

(4) a business entity in which the official or employee
knows that a

substantial economic interest is held by his or her:

(A) parent, child, spouse, or other family member .
within the first degree of consanguinity or affinity; or

(B) domestic partner; :

(5) a business entity that the official or employee knows
is an affiliated business or partner of a business entity in which
a substantial economic interest is held by his or her:

' (A) parent, child, spouse, or other family member
within the first degree of consanguinity or affinity; or

(B) domestic partner; or

(6) a person or business entity: _

(A) from whom, within the past 12 months, the

“official’s or employee’s spouse or domestic partner, directly or
indirectly, has: '

(1) solicited an offer of employment;

(ii) received and not rejected an offer of employment;
or

' (iii) accepted an offer of employment; or -

(B) with whom the official’s or employee’s spouse or
domestic partner, directly or indirectly, is engaged in
negotiations pertaining to a business opportunity.

URL: (http://www.dallascityhall.com/pdf/Ethics/CodeOfEthics.pdf)

Chapter 12A: Code of Ethics -
Article I: Definition of Policy

Sec. 12A-2. Definitions

(2) AFFECT PARTICULARLY AN ECONOMIC INTEREST or
AFFECT PARTICULARLY A SUBSTANTIAL ECONOMIC
INTEREST. An action is likely to “affect particularly an economic
interest” or “affect particularly a substantial economic interest,”
whichever is applicable, if it is likely to have an effect on the

* particular interest that is distinguishable from its effect on

members of the public in general or on a substantial segment of the
public.



(6) BENEFIT means anything reasonably regarded as pecuniary
gain or pecuniary advantage, including a benefit to any other

person in whose welfare the beneficiary has a direct and substantial
interest.

(17)

ECONOMIC INTERBST includes, but is not limited to,

legal or equitable property interests in land, chattels, and
intangibles, and contractual rights, having more than de minimis
value. Exceptions are as follows:

G1)

(A) Service by a city official or employee as an officer,
director, advisor, or otherwise active participant in an
educational, religious, charitable, fraternal, or civic
organization does not create for that city official or

employee an economic interest in the property of the.
organization,

(B) Ifacity official's pnmary source of employment is
with a governmental entity other than the city, such
employment by the governmental entity does not create for
that city official an economic interest in the property or

contracts of the governmental entity.

(C) Ownership of an interest in a mutual or common
investment fund that holds securities or other assets is not
an economic interest in such securities or other assets
unless the person in question part1c1pates in the
management of the fund.

SUBSTANTIAL ECONOMIC INTEREST.

(A) A person has a "substantial economlc mterest" ina
business entity if:

(i) the person owns 10 percent or more of the
voting stock, shares, or other ownership interest in
the business entity or owns either 10 percent or

more or $15,000 or more of the fair market value of
the business entity; or

(if)  funds received by the person from the
business entity exceed 10 percent of the person's
gross income for the previous year.



(B) A person has a "substantial economic interest" in real
property if the interest is an equitable or legal ownership
with a fair market value of $2,500 or more.

(C) For purposes of determining a "substantial economic
interest," ownership of an interest in a mutual or common
investment fund that holds securities or other assets does
not constitute direct or indirect ownership of such securities
or other assets unless the person in question participates in
the management of the fund. (Ord. Nos. 24316; 24485,
27748, 28020) :

URL: (http://www.dallascityhall.com/pdf/Ethics/CodeOfEthics.pdf)



San Antonio, TX

Source: San Antonio City Ethics Code

Section 2-43: Conflicts of Interesf

a.

“General Rule: To avoid the appearance and risk of impropricty, a
city official or employee shall not take any official action that he or
she knows is likely to affect the economic interests of:

1.
2

the official or employee;

his or her parent, child, spouse, or other family member
within the second degree of consanguinity or affinity;

3. his or her outside client;
4.

a member of his or her household,;
the outside employer of the official or employee or of his or
her parent, child (unless the child is a minor), spouse, or
member of the household (unless member of household is a
minor);
a business entity in which the official or employee knows
that any of the persons listed in Subsections (a)(1) or (a}(2)
holds an economic interest as that term is defined in
Section 2-42;
a business entity which the official or employee knows is
an affiliated business or partner of a business entity in
which any of the persons listed in Subsections (a)(1) or
(2)(2) holds an economic interest as defined in Section 2-
42,
a business entity or nonprofit entity for which the city
official or employee serves as an officer or director or in
any other policy making position; other than non-profit
boards to which the official or employee is appointed by
the City Council or city management as a non-voting
member to represent the best interests of the city; or
a person or business entity with whom, within the past
twelve months:
a. the official or employee, or his or her spouse,
directly or indirectly has
i. solicited an offer of employment for which
the application is still pending,
il. received an offer of employment which has
not been rejected, or
ili. accepted an offer of employment; or
b. the official or employee, or his or her spouse,

directly or indirectly engaged in negotiations

pertaining to business opportunities, where such

negotiations are pending or not terminated.”



URL: (http://www.sanantonio,gov/atty/ethics/codetext.htm#Section 2-43 Improper Economic Benefit)

Section 2-42: Definitions

(n). Economic Interest. “Economic interest” includes, but is not limited
to, legal or equitable property interests in land, chattels, and intangibles,
and contractual rights having more than de minimis value. Service by a
city official or employee as an officer, director, advisor, or otherwise _
active participant in an educational, religious, charitable, fraternal, or civic
organization does not create for that city official or employee an economic
interest in the property of the organization. :

Ownership of an interest in a mutual or common investment fund that
holds securities or other assets is not an economic interest in such
secutities or other assets unless the person in question participates in the
management of the fund. Ownership of stock in a publicly traded -
corporation does not constitute ownership for purposes of this code if the
employee or official owns less than 10% of the voting stock or shares of
the entity and the value of the stock is less than $15,000.

URL: (http://www.sanantonio.éovlattylethicslcodetext.htm#Section 2-42 Definitions)



Indianapolis, IN / Marion County, IN

Source: Revised Code of the Consolidated City and Countv of Indianapolis / Marion
County .

Chapter 293 — Ethics Code
Article IL. Standards of Ethical Conduct

Section 293-210- Conflicts of interest; discussion, decisions, and
voting, |

a. Atameeting held in accordance with IC 5-14-1.5, an
-official shall not participate in any decision or vote, and an
appointee or employee shall not participate in any
discussion, decision, or vote, if he or she has knowledge
that any of the following has a financial interest in the
outcome of the decision or vote: '

1. The official, appointee, or employee;

2. A member of the immediate family of the ofﬁmal
appointee, or employee;

3. A business organization in which the official,
appointee, or employee is serving as an officer, a
director, a trustee, a partner, employee or
subcontractor; or

4. Any person with whom the official, employee or
appointee is negotiating or has an arrangement
concerning prospective employment.

b. An official, appointee, or employee who identifies a
potential conflict of interest under this article shall recuse
himself or herself from further action on the matter, and
may seek an advisory opinion by filing a written
description detailing the nature and circumstances of the
matter and making full disclosure of any related financial
interest in the matter.

¢. When an advisory opinion is sought under this section, the
office of corporation counsel shall:

1. Assign the particular matter to another person and
implement all necessary procedures to screen the
official, appointee, or employee seeking an advisory
opinion from involvement in the matter; or

2. Make a written determination that the interest is not
so substantial that the office of corporation counsel

- considers it likely to affect the integrity of the
services that the city or county expects from the
official, appointee, or employee.



d. A written determination under subsection (c)(2) shall be
filed with the office of corporation counsel, and constitutes
conclusive proof that the potential conflict of interest is not
a violation of this chapter.

URL:
(http://www.indyfgov/eGov/City/OCClEthics/Documents/Ethics%ZOOrdinance.pdt)

Chapter 293 — Ethics Code
Article I1. Standards of Ethical Conduct

Section 293-211- Conflicts of Interest; contracts

a. Subject to subsection (b), an official, appointee, or
. employee, or a member of an official’s, appointee’s, or
employee’s immediate family, may not knowingly have a
" financial interest in a contract made by that official’s, -
appointee’s, or employee’s agency.
b. The prohibition in subsection (a) does not apply to:

1. An official, appointee, or employee who does not
participate in or have official responsibility for any
of the activities of the contracting agency, if:

a. The contract is made after public notice o,

 where applicable, through competitive bidding;

b. The official, appointee, or employee files with
the office of corporation counsel a statement
making full disclosure of all related financial
interests in the contract;

c. The contract can be performed without
compromising the performance of the official
duties and responsibilities of the official,
appointee, or employee; and

d. Inthe case of a contract for professional
services, the chief administrative officer of the
contracting agency makes and files a written
certification with the office of corporation
counsel that no other official, appointee, or
employee of that agency is available to perform
those services as part of his or her regular
duties;

2. An official, appointee, or employee who, acting in
good faith, learns of an actual or prospective
violation of the prohibition in subsection (a),
provided that, not later than thirty (30) days after
learning of the actual or prospective violation, the



official, appointee, or employee makes a full written
disclosure of any financial interests to the
contracting agency and the office of corporation
counsel, and terminates the financial interest.”

URL; : :
(http://fwww.indy. gov/eGov/City/OCC/Ethics/Documents/Ethics%ZOOrdinance.pdf)
Chapter 293 — Ethics Code

Article I. General Provisions

See. 293-102. Definitions.

Financial interest means an interest which will result in an
ascertainable increase or decrease in the income or net worth of the
councillor, official, appointee, or employee or a member of that
individual’s immediate family, but does not include an interest:

(1) Of a councillor, official, appointee, or employee in the
common stock of a corporation unless the combined
holdings in the corporation of the councillor, official,
appointee, or employee, that individual's spouse, and that
individual's dependent are more than one percent (1%) of
the outstanding shares of the common stock of the
corporation; or '

(2) That is held as an asset in a blind trust.

URL: | -
(http:/fwww.indy.gov/eGov/City/OCC/Ethics/Documents/Ethics%200rdinance. pdf)



‘San Francisco, CA / San Francisco County, CA

NOTE: San Francisco and other Califorrﬁa cities rely on State of California Government

Code to define what constitutes a financial interest. The applicable State of California
codes are included below.

Source: San Francisco Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code
Article III. CONDUCT OF GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES

Chapter 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND OTHER PROHIBITED
ACTIVITIES

"SEC. 3.206. FINANCIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST,

(a) Incorporat1on of the California Political Reform Act. No officer or
employee of the City and County shall make, partlclpate in making, or
seek to influence a decision of the City and County in which the officer or

* employee has a financial inferest within the meaning of California
Government Code Sectlon 87100 et seq. and any subsequent amendments
to these Sections.

(b} Incorporation of California Government Code 1090, et seq. No
officer or employee of the City and County shall make a contract in which
he or she has a financial interest within the meaning of California
Government Code Section 1090 et seq. and any subsequent amendments
to these Sections. '

(¢) Future Employment. No officer or employee of the City shall make,
participate in making, or otherwise seek to influence a governmental
decision, affecting a person or entity with whom the officer or employee is
discussing or negotiating an agreement concerning future employment.

SEC. 3.212. DECISIONS INVOI VING FAMILY MEMBERS.

(a) Prohibition. No officer or employee of the City and County may
make, participate in making, or otherwise seek to influence a decision of
the City and County regarding an employment action involving a relative.
Nothing in this Section shall prohibit an officer or employee from acting
as a personal reference or providing a letter of referenice for a relative who
is seeking appointment to a position in any City department, board,
commission or agency other than the officer or employee's department,
board, commission or agency or under the control of any such department,
board, commission or agency.

(b) Delegation. A Department Head who is prohibited under Subsection
(a) from participating in an employment action involving a relative shall



delegate in writing to an employce within the department any decisions
regarding such employment action.

(c) Definitions. For purposes of this Section, the term "employment
action” shall be limited to hiring, promotion, or discipline, and the term
"relative" shall mean a spouse, domestic partner, parent, grandparent,
child, sibling, parent-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, first cousin, and
includes any similar step relationship or relationship created by adoption.

SEC. 3.218. INCOMPATIBLE ACTIVITIES. -

(a) Prohibition. No officer or employee of the City and County may
engage in any employment, activity, or enterprise that the department,
board, commission, or agency of which he or she is a member or
employee has identified as incompatible in a statement of incompatible
activities adopted under this Section. No officer or employee may be
subject to discipline or penalties under this Section unless he or she has
‘been provided an opportunity to demonstrate that his or her activity is not
in fact inconsistent, incompatible or in conflict with the duties of the
officer or employee.

(b) Statement of Incompatible Activities. Every department, board,
comimission, and agency of the City and County shall, by August 1 of the
year after which this Section becomes effective, submit to the Ethics
Commission a statement of incompatible activities. No statement of
incompatible activities shall become effective until approved by the Ethics
Commission after a finding that the activities are incompatible under the
criteria set forth in Subsection (c). After initial approval by the Ethics
Commiission, a department, board, commission or agency of the City and
* County may, subject to the approval of the Ethics Commission, amend its
statement of incompatible activities. The Ethics Commission may, at any
time, amend the statement of incompatible activities of any department,
board, commission or agency of the City and County.

(¢) Required Language. Each statement of incompatible activities shall
list those outside activities that are inconsistent, incompatible, or in
conflict with the duties of the officers and employees of the department,
board, commission, or agency of the City and County. This list shall
include, but need not be limited to, activities that invelve: (1) the use of
the time, facilities, equipment and supplies of the City and County; or the
badge, uniform, prestige, or influence of the City and County officer or
employee's position for private gain or advantage; (2) the receipt or
acceptance by an officer or employee of the City and County of any
money or other thing of value from anyone other than the City and County
for the performance of an act that the officer or employee would be

- required or expected to render in the regular course of his or her service or
employment with the City and County; (3) the performance of an actin a
capacity other than as an officer or employee of the City and County that
may later be subject directly or indirectly to the control, inspection,



review, audit or enforcement of the City and County officer or employee's
department, board, commission or agency; and (4) time demands that
would render performance of the City and County officer or employee's
duties less efficient. The Ethics Commission may permit City boards and
commissions to exclude any required language from their statement of
incompatible activities if their members, by law, must be appointed in
whole or in part to represent any profession, trade, business, union or
association.

(d) Meet and Confer. No statement of incompatible act1v1tles or any
amendment thereto shall become operative until the City and County has
satisfied the meet and confer requirements of State law.

(e) Notice. Every department, board, commission and agency of the
City and County shall annually provide to its officers and employees a
copy of its statement of incompatible activities. _

(f)  Existing Civil Service Rules. Rules and Regulations relating to
outside activities previously adopted or approved by the Civil Service
Commission shall remain in effect until statements of incompatibie
activities are adopted pursuant to this Section

SEC. 3.222. PROHIBITING OFFICERS FROM CONTRACTING
WITH THE CITY AND COUNTY.

(a) Definitions, For purposes of this Section, the following definitions
shall apply:
(1) Business. The term "business" means any corporation,
partnership, sole proprietorship, firm, enterprise, franchise,
association, organization, or other legal entity or undertaking
organized for economic gain. '
(2) City and County. The term "City and County" includes any
commission, board, department, agency, committee, or other
organizational unit of the City and County of San Francisco.
(3) Contract. The term "contract" means any agreement other
than a grant or an agreement for employment in exchange for
salary and benefits.
(4) Subcontract. The term "subcontract” means a contract to
perform any work that a primary contractor has an agreement with
the City and County, the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency,
the San Francisco Housing Authority, the San Francisco Unified
School District, or the San Francisco Community College District
to perform.
(b)  Prohibition. During his or her term of office, no officer shall enter,
submit a bid for, negotiate for, or otherwise attempt to enter, any contract
or subcontract with the City and County, the San Francisco
Redevelopment Agency, the San Francisco Housing Authority, the San
Francisco Unified School District, or the San Francisco Community



College District, where the amount of the contract or the subcontract
exceeds $10,000.

(c) Exceptions. This Section shall not apply to the following contracts
or subcontracts:
(1) A contract or subcontract with a nonprofit organization;
(2) A contract or subcontract with a business with which an
officer is affiliated unless the officer exercises management and
control over the business. A member exercises management and
control if he or she is:
(A)  Anofficer or director of a corporation; -
" (B) A majority shareholder of a closely held corporation;
(C) A shareholder with more than five percent beneficial
interest in a publicly traded corporation;
(D) A general partner or limited partner with more than
20 percent beneficial interest in the partnership; or
(E) A general partner regardless of percentage of
beneficial interest and who occupies a position of, or
exercises management or control of the business;
(3) A contract or subcontract entered into before a member of a
board or commission commenced his or her service;
(4) Anagreement to provide property, goods or services to the
City and County at substantially below fair market value; or
(5) A settlement agreement resolving a claim or other legal
dispute.
(d) Waiver. The Ethics Commission may waive the prohibitions in this
section for any officer who, by law, must be appointed to represent any
profession, trade, business, union or association.
(e) Limitation. Failure of an officer to comply with this Section shall
not be grounds for invalidating any coniract with the City and County.

URL:

(http://www.amlegal. com/nxt/gateway dll?f=templates&in=default, htm&wd—amlegal sa
nfrancisco_ca)

Source.' State of California Government Code
TITLE 9. POLITICAL REFORM
CHAPTER 7. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Article 1. General Prohibition

§ 87100. Prohibition because of financial interest,




No public official at any level of state or local government shall
make, participate in making or in any way attempt to use his

- official position to influence a governmental decision in which he
knows or has reason to know he has a financial interest.

TITLE 9. POLITICAL REFORM
CHAPTER 7. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Article 1. General Prohibition

§ 87103. Financial interest.

A public official has a financial interest in a decision within the

 meaning of Section 87100 if it is reasonably foreseeable that the
decision will have a material financial effect, distinguishable from
its effect on the public generally, on the official, a member of his
or her immediate family, or on any of the following:

(a) Any business entity in which the public official has a direct or
indirect investment worth two thousand dollars ($2,000) or more,
(b) Any real property in which the public official has a direct or
indirect interest worth two thousand dollars ($2,000) or more.
(c) Any source of income, except gifts or loans by a commercial
lending institution made in the regular course of business on terms
available to the public without regard to official status, aggregating .
five hundred dollars ($500) or more in value provided or promised
~ to, received by, the public official within 12 months prior to the
time when the decision is made.
(d) Any business entity in which the public official is a duector
officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position of
management.
(€) Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift
or gifts aggregating two hundred fifty dollars ($250) or more in
value provided to, received by, or promised to the public official
within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made. The
amount of the value of gifts spemﬁed by this subdivision shall be
adjusted biernially by the commission to equal the same amount

determined by the commission pmsuant to subdivision (f) of
Section 89503.

For purposes of this section, indirect investment or interest means

any investment or interest owned by the spouse or dependent child
of a public official, by an agent on behalf of a public official, or by
a business entity or trust in which the official, the official's agents,



spouse, and dependent children own directly, indirectly, or
beneficially a 10-percent interest or greater.

URL: (http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=87001-
88000&file=87100-87105)



Further Language that Defines a ‘Financial Interest’

County of El Paso, TX -

Source: County of El Paso Code of Ethics:

2.16. Substantial financial interest means:

2.16.1. A person has a substantial financial interest in a business entity if:
2.16.1.1. the person owns ten percent (10%) or more of the voting stock or shares
of the business entity; owns either ten percent (10%) or more or 315,000 or more
of the fair market value of the business entity; or 2.16.1.2. funds received by the
person from the business entity exceed ten percent (10%) of the person's gross
income for the previous year. 2.16.2. A person has a substantial financial interest
in real propertyif the interest is an equitable or legal ownership with a fair
market value of $2,500 or more. 2.16.3. A local public officer is considered to
have a substantial financial interest under this section if a person related to the

public officer pursuant to the definition of “family member” herein, has a
substantial financial interest.

Baltimore, MD

Source: City of Baltimore Code.

Article 8 Section 2-16

a. “Financial interest”. “Financial interest” means ownership of:
i. (1) more than 3% of a business entity;
it (2) securities of any kind that represent or are convertible into
ownership of more than 3% of abusiness entily; or
iii. (3) any interest as the result of which the owner:
1. (i) received more than $1,000 in any 1 of the preceding 3
calendar years; or

2. (i) is entitled to receive more than 31,000 in the current or
any subsequent calendar year.
b, §2-19. “Interest”.
i (a)In general
1. “Interest” means, excepl as specified in subsection (b) of
this section, any legal or equitable economic interest,
whether or not subject to an encumbrance or a condition,
that is owned or held wholly or partly, jointly or severally,
or directly or indirectly.
ii. (b} Exclusions.
1. “Interest” does not include:



(1) an interest held in the capacity of a personal
representative, agent, custodian, fiduciary, or
trustee, unless the holder has an equitable interest
in the subject matter;

(2) an interest in a time or demand deposit in a
Sinancial institution;

(3) an interest in an insurance policy, endowment
policy, or annuity contract under which an insurer
promises to pay a fixed amount of money, either in’
a lump sum or periodically for sze or some other
specified period; or _
(4) a common trust fund or a trust that forms part of
a pension or a profit-sharing plan that:



Exhibit B

Contained in this exhlblt is a sampling of deﬁmtlons with respect to how a glft’ is
defined.

Definitions of * giﬁ’ includ_ed‘:
San Antbnio, TX
San Jose, CA
Jacksonville, FL
" Denver, CO

Definitions applicable to Phoenix:

Contained in this binder within Section 4 ‘City Ethics Practices and
Policies’ is the City of Phoenix Ethics Handbook which contains 2
appendices that provide 1anguage relevant fo City of Phoenix gift policies:

| Appendlx B (p.27): ARS 38-505: Additional Income Prohibited for
Services -

Appendlx D (p.32): ARS 41-1232.08 Entertainment ban: state and
political subdivisions;



San Antonio, TX

Source: San Antonio City Ethics Code

Section 2-45 Gifts

(a) General Rule.

(1) - A city official or employee shall not salicit, accept, or agree to.
accept any gift or benefit for himself or herself or his or her business:-
(A) that reasonably tends to influence or reward official conduct;
or ,
(B) that the official or employee knows or should know. is being
offered with the intent to influence or reward official conduct.

A city official or employee may accept a public award or reward
for meritorious service of professional achievement, provided that
the award or reward is reasonable in light of the occasion and it is
not prohibited under the Texas Penal Code Section 36.08.
(2) A city official or employee shall not solicit, accept, or agree to
accept any gift or benefit, from:
"~ (A) any individual or entity doing or seeking to do business with
the City; or
(B) any registered lobbyist or public relations firm; or
(C) any person or entity seeking action or advocating on zoning
or platting matters before a city body, save and except for
i) items received that are of nominal value; or
{i) meals in an individual expense of $50 or less at any
oceurrence, and no more than a cumulative vatue of $500
in a.single calendar year from a single source. '

Doing business with the city includes, but is not limited to,
individuals and entities that are parties to a discretionary contract,
individuals and entities that are subcontractors to a discretionary
contract, and partners and/or parents and/or subsidiary business
entities of any individuals and entities that arc parties to a
discretionary contract and individuals or entities that seek or have
low-bid contracts with the city.

(b) Special Applications. Subsection (a)(2) does not include:
(N a gift to a city official or employee relating to a special occasion,
such as a wedding, anniversary, graduation, birth, illness, death, or
holiday, provided that the value of the gift is fairly commensurate with the
occasion and the relationship between the donor and recipient;
(2) advancement for or reimbursement of reasonable expenses for

travel in connection with official duties authorized in accordance with city
policies; such payments must be disclosed in a travel report as required in



Section 2-76; payment for or reimbursement of expenses for travel in
excess of authorized rates under city policy will be treated as a personal
gift to the official or employee for any apphcable reporting requirements
under Sections 2-73, 2-74 or 2-78;

3 a public award or reward for meritorious service or professional
achievement, provided that the award or reward is reasonable in light of
the occasion and it is not prohibited under the Texas Penal Code Section

36.08; _

(4) a loan from a lending institution made in its regular course of
business on the same terms generally available to the public;

(% a scholarship or fellowship awarded on the same terms and based
on the same criteria that are applied to other applicants;

(6) any solicitation for civic or charifable causes;

(7 admission to an event in which the city official or employee is
participating in connection with his or her spouse’s position;

(8) ceremonial and protocol gifts presented to city officials from a

foreign government or international or muitinational organization and
accepted for the City of San Antonio;

(9) admission to a widely attended event, such as a convention,
conference, symposium, forum, panel discussion, dinner, viewing,

- reception or similar event, offered by the sponsor of the event, and
unsolicited by the City official or employee, if attending or participating in
an official capacity, including:

(A) the official or employee participates in the eventas a speaker
or panel participant by presenting information related to matters -
before the City; or _
(B) the official or employee performs a ceremomal function
appropriate to that individual’s position with the City; or
(C) attendance at the event is appropriate to the performance of
the official duties or representative function of the ofﬁeral or
employee;
(10) admission to a charity event provided by the sponsor of the event,
where the offer is unsolicited by the City official or employee;
(11) admission to training or education program, including meals and
refreshments furnished to all attendees, if such training is related to the

official or employee’s official duties and the training is in the interest of
the City.

() - Campaign Contribution Exception. The general rule stated in Subsection
(a) does not apply to a campaign contribution made pursvant to the Texas
Eleetlon Code.

(d)  Gifts to Closely Related Persons. A city official or employee shall take
reasonable steps to persuade:

(1) a parent, spouse, child, or other relative within the second degree
of consanguinity or affinity, or



@) an outside business associate not to solicit, accept, or agree to
accept any gift or benefit: '

3) that reasonably tends to influence or reward the city official’s or
employee’s official conduct, or

4) that the official or employee knows or should know is being
offered with the intent to influence or reward the city official’s or
employee’s discharge of official duties.

If a city official or employee required to file a financial disclosure report
under Division 7 (Financial Disclosure) knows that a gift or benefit
meeting the requirements of Subsections (d)(3) or (d)(4) of this rule has’

" been accepted and retained by a person identified in Subsections (d)(1) or
(d)(2) of this rule, the official or employee shall prompily file a report with
the Office of the City Clerk disclosing the donor, the value of the gift or
benefit, the recipient, and the recipient’s relationship to the official or
employee filing the report.

(e) Definitions. 7
(1)  For purposes of this rule, a person is an “outside business
associate” if both that person and the city official or employee own, with
respect to the same business entity: :
(A) ten (10) percent or more of the voting stock or shares of the
business entity, or
(B) ten (10) percent or more of the fair market value of the
business entity.
(2)  For purposes of this rule, a “sponsor” of an event is the person or
persons primarily responsible for organizing the event or sponsoring a
table or tables. A person who simply contributes money or buys tickets to
an event is not considered a sponsor.
(3) A “source” is the individual or entity that funds an expenditure or
series of expenditures. Expenditures made by multiple agents of the same
gsource are deemed to be expenditures from a single source.

(4)  Any item of "nominal value" is an item with a fair market value of
$50 or less. '

URL: (http://www.sanantonio. gov/atty/Ethics/éodetext.htm#Section 2-45 Gifts)



San Jose, CA

Source: San Jose Municipal Code

Title 12: Ethics Provisions
Chapter 12.08: Prohibition of Gifts

12.08.010 Gifts prohibited.
A. No officer or designated employee of the city or its redevelopment
* agency shall accept any gift, directly or indirectly, from any person who is
subject to the decision-making or recommending authority of such officer
or employee, except as specifically provided in this chapter.
B. “Person subject to the decision-making or recommending authority”
means any individual, firm or entity whose interest or whose employer's or
client's interest:
1. Has been materially affected by the work of such officer or
employee within the two years prior to the time the gift is given; or
2. In the future could reasonably be foreseen io be matetially
affected by the work of such officer or employee.
(Ords. 24499, 27258.) '

12.08.015 Political Reform Act requirements.

A. The reporting and disclosure of gifts shall be done in accordance with
the requirements of the Political Reform Act, California Government Code
Section 81000 et seq., as amended, and the requirements in this chapter.

B. The gift limitations and disqualification requlrements under the

political reform act are applicable to gifts which are not prohibited by this
chapter.

(Ord. 27258.)

12.08.020 Gift defined.
“Gift” means a voluntary transfer of any thing, service, payment or value
to the extent that legal consideration of equal or greater value is not
received.
A. As used in this chapter, the term “gift” includes:
1. Any rebate or discount in the price of any thing of value unless
the rebate or discount is made in the regular course of business to
members of the public.
2. An officer's or employee's community property interest, if any,
in a gift received by that individual's spouse,
~ 3. The provision of travel, including transportation,

accommodations and food, except as expressly permitted pursuant
to Section 12.08.030.

B. As used in this chapter, the term “gift” does not include:




1. Campaign contributions which otherwise comply with Title 12
of the San José Municipal Code and which are required to be

reported under Chapter 4 of the Political Reform Act of 1974 as
amended. '

2. Any devise or inheritance.
(Ords. 24499, 27258.)

12.08.030 Gifts not prohibited.

This chapter does not prohibit those gifts which strictly fall within the
exceptions enumerated herein:

A. Gifis with a value less than fifty dollars: Gifts, including meals and
beverages provided to an officer or employee in a business or social
setting, that have a value less than fifty dollars, as long as the total value

of all such gifts reccived from any one doner do not exceed fifty dollars in
any calendar year. '

~ B. Informational material: Informational material such as books, reports,

pamphlets; calendars, or periodicals or reimbursement for any such
expenses. Informational material does not include provision of educational
trips including transportation, accommodation and food.

C. Hospitality: Gifts of hospitality involving food, beverages or occasional
lodging provided to any officer or designated employee by an individual
in such individual's primary residence.

D. Reciprocal gifts: Gifts exchanged between any officer or designated
employee and an individual, other than a lobbyist as defined in Chapter

112.12, on holidays, birthdays, baby showers, or similar occasions provided

that the presents exchanged are not substantially disproportionate in value.
E: Panels and seminars: Free admission, food, beverages, and similar
nominal benefits provided to-an officer or employee at an event at which
the officer or employee speaks, participates in a panel or seminar or
performs a similar service, and reimbursement or advance for actual
intrastate travel or for necessary accommodations provided directly in
connection with such event.
F. Admission given by sponsor of an event: Admission to ceremonial,
political, civic, cultural or community functions provided by a sponsor of
the event for the personal use of the officer or employee. For example,
cultural events include theatrical productions and art exhibits; political
events include political fund raisers.
1. Admission to regularly scheduled athletic events, such as tickets
to professional sporting events, are not included as an exception to
prohibited gifts.
2. A sponsor of an event shall not include individuals, persons or
organizations whose sponsorship of the event is solely limited to
funding or monetary support such as the purchase of tickets.
G. Employment interview - government employer: Transportation,
accommodation, food and directly related expenses advanced or
reimbursed by a governmental agency in connection with an employment



interview, when the interview is conducted at least one hundred fifty miles
from San José and where the situs of the employment will be at least the
same distance from ihe city.

H. Employment interview - private employer: Transportation,
accommodation, food and directly related expenses incurred in connection
with an employment interview and a bona fide prospect of employment,
when the expenses are advanced or reimbursed to an officer or designated
employee by a potential employer, provided that the officer or designated
employee has not made or participated in the making of a governmental
decision materially affecting the financial interest of the potential
employer during the twelve months immediately preceding the time the
expenses are incurred or the offer of employment is made, whichever is
SOOner. -

I. Authorized travel; Transportation, accommodation, food and directly .
related expenses for any officer or designated employee which has been
authorized by a majority of the city council or redevelopment agency
board or which is pursuant to a written city or redevelopment agency
policy for intrastate or interstate travel regardless of the source of
payment.

J. City or redevelopment agency business: Transportation provided to an
officer or designated employee by a contractor or other person doing
business with the city or redevelopment agency, provided that such
transportation is related to city or redevelopment agency business which is
within the scope of employment or the duties of such officer or designated
employee, and further provided that such transportation is not in excess of
one hundred twenty-five miles one way. Nothing in this subsection shall
be interpreted to limit the city council's or redevelopment agency board's
discretion to approve travel under subsection 1. above.

K. Flowers: Flowers, plants or balloons which are given on ceremonial
occasions, to express condolences or congratulations, or to commemorate
special occasions.

L. Prizes and awards from bona fide competitions: A prize or award
received shall be reported as a gift unless the prize or award is received in
a bona fide competition not related to the recipient's status as a city or
redevelopment agency employee. If reported as a gift, the prize or award
must comply with the disclosure and disqualification requirements under
the Political Reform Act of 1974, as amended.

M. Wedding gifts: Wedding gifts from an individual other than a lobbyist
as defined in Chapter 12.12. '

(Ords. 24499, 27258.)

12.08.040 Acceptance of gifts.

A gift shall be deemed to have been accepted except where:

A. 1t is not used, and, within thirty days after reccipt, is returned to the
donor or delivered to a charitable organization without being claimed as a
charitable contribution for tax purposes.




B. It is treated as and remains the property of the city or the
redevelopment agency. - :

C. It is received by an officer or designated employee in his or her official
capacity or as a representative of the city or redevelopment agency, is

reported to the city council or agency board, and the council or board
approves the retention. -

(Ords. 24499, 27258.)

12.08.050 Reporting gifts to domestic partner, spouse and children.
A. At the time of filing the annual disclosure statement required by the
political reform act or any applicable conflict-of-interest code, each city
and redevelopment agency officer and designated employee shall file a
family sift report on a form to be provided by the city clerk. _
B. The officer or designated employee shall indicate on such report any
gifts known to have been accepted during the relevant repotting period by
such officer's or employee's domestic partner, spouse and any dependent
child where such gifts would have been prohibited to the officer or
employee. The value of any such gift and the donor must be disclosed. If
the officer or employee has no knowledge of any such gift having been
received, the report shall so state. ' '
C. For purposes of this section, "domestic partner” shall mean any person

registered as a domestic partner by an employee with the city of San José.
(Ords. 24499, 27258.) o

URL: (http:/lwww.sanjoseca.gov/Clerkfcommissionboard/Election/SJMCTitle12.pdt)



Jacksonville, FL

" Source: City of Jacksonville Ordinance Code

Title XVI: Judicial Code

| Chapter 602: Jacksonville Code of Ethics

Part 2: Definitions

Sec. 602.201. - Definitions,

(p) Gift

(1) Gift means that which is accepted by a donee or by another on
the donee's behalf, or that which is paid or given to another for or
on behalf of a donee, directly, indirectly, or in trust for his or her
benefit or by any other means, for which equal or greater
consideration is not given. Among other things, a gift may be:

(i) Real property;

(ii) The use of property;

(iii) Tangible or intangible personal property; _

(iv) The use of tangible or intangible personal property;

(v) A preferential rate or terms on a debt, loan, goods, or

services, which rate is below the customary rate and is not

either a government rate available to all other similar

situated government employees or officials or a rate which

is available to similarly situated members of the public by

virtue of occupation, affiliation, age, religion, sex, or

national origin;

(vi) Forgiveness of indebtedness;

(vii) Transportation, other than that provided to a public

officer or employee by an agency in relation to officially

approved governmental business, lodging or parking;

(viii) Food or beverage;

(ix) Membership dues;

(x) Entrance fees, admission fees, or tickets to events,

performance or facilities; '

(xi) Plants, flowers, or floral arrangements;

(xii) Services provided by persons pursuant to a

professional license or cettificate;

(xiii) Other personal services for which a fee is normally

charged by the person providing the services;

(xiv) Any other similar service or thing having an

attributable value not already provided for in this Section.
(2) Gift does not include:



(i) Salary, benefits, services, fees, commissions, or
expenses associated primarily with the donee's employment
or business, or provided to the donee as part of the donee's
bona fide fact finding efforts on behalf of his or her agency,
or provided to the donee by the city, and does not include
gifts provided by the City or any governmental agency, to
the extent that such gift is not inconsistent with the
applicable provisions of Section 112.3148, Florida Statutes;
(ii) Contributions or expenditures reported pursuant to F.S.
Ch. 106, campaign-related personal services provided
without compensation by individuals volunteering their
time, or any other contribution or expenditure by a political
party; -
(iii) An award, plaque, certificate, or similar personalized
~ item given in recognition of the donee's public, civic,
charitable, or professional service;
(iv) An honorary membership in a service or fraternal
organization presented merely as a courtesy by such
organization,;
(v) The use of a public facility or public property, made
available by a governmental agency, for a public purpose;
(vi) An honorarium or an expense related to an honorarium
event paid to a person or a person’s spouse; '
(vii) Transportation provided to an officer or employee by
an agency in relation to officially approved governmental
business.
(viii) Gifis provided directly or indirectly by a state,
regional or national organization which promotes the
‘exchange of ideas between, or the professional
development of, governmental officials, officers, or
employees, and whose membership is primarily
composed of elected or appointed officials, officers, or
staff, to members of that organization or officials, officers,
or staff of a governmental agency that is a member of
that organization.
(ix) Gifts solicited or accepted from a relative, as that term
is defined in F.S. § 112.312(21).
(3) For purposes of Section (1) above, intangible personal property
means property as defined in F.8. § 192.001(11)(b).

(q) Governimental action means any administrative or legislative action
other than an action which is ministerial or quasi-judicial in nature.

(r) Honorarium



(1) Honorarium means a payment of money or anything of value,
directly or indirectly, to a reporting individual or procurement
employee, or to any other person on his or her behalf, as
consideration for:
(i) A speech, address, oration or other oral presentation by
the reporting individual or procurement employee,
regardless of whether presented in person, recorded, or
broadcast over the media;
(ii} A writing by the reporting individual or procurement
employee, other than « book, which has been or is intended
to be published.
(2) The term honorarium does not include:
(i) The payment for services related to employment held
outside the reporting individual's public position which
resulted in the person becoming a reporting individual;
(ii) Any ordinary payment or salary received in
consideration for services related to the reporting
individual's or procurement employee's public duties;
(iii) A campaign contribution reported pursuant to F.S. Ch.
106
(iv) The payment or pr0v1s1on of actual and reasonable
transportation, lodging, and food and beverage expenses
related to the honorarium event, including any event or
meeting registration fee, fora reporting individual or
procurement employee and spouse.

URL: (http://www.coj.net/departments/ethics- -office/docs/ethics- code-chapter-602 -2012-

revisions.aspx)



(8) Gifts on special and infrequent occasions if the gift is
appropriate to the occasion. These occasions include
weddings, funerals, and illnesses,
(9) Gifts to commemorate a public event in which the
officer, official, or employee participated in an official
capacity, provided that the gift is appropriate to the
occasion. Such occasions include ground breaking
ceremonies and grand openings; '
(10) Memberships and passes from the Denver Art

' Museum, Denver Botanic Gardens, Denver Museum of
Nature and Science, and Denver Zoo; '
(11) Gifts from family members;
(12) Ttems which are similarly available to all employees of

the city or the general public on the same terms and
conditions.

{c) It shail not be a violation of this article for an officer, official,
or employee to solicit donations to the city or to solicit or redirect

- donations for charitable purposes to a 501(c) or other charitable
organization or to provide assistance to individuals affected by
illness, crime or disaster or who have educational or other
charitable needs, provided that solicitation and financial records
are maintained and provided that the soliciting person, or a
member of the soliciting person's immediate family does not keep
or use the gift or receive any monetary benefit therefrom.

(d) It shall not be a violation of this article for a member of an
officer's, official's or employee's immediate family to accept a gift -
which arises from an independent relationship of an adult member,
if:

(1) The officer, official or employee does not use the gift;
and '

(2) It cannot reasonably be inferred that the gift was
intended to influence the officer, official, or employee in
the performance of his or her duties.

(Ord. No. 96-01, § 1, 1-29-01; Ord. No. 523-02, § 2, 7-1-02; Ord. No. 931-04, §§ 8,9, 9-
7-04; Ord. No. 698-09, § 5, 11-30-09)

URL: (http:lflibrary.municode.com/index.aspx?clientld=10257)



Exhibit C
Contained in this exhibit is a samplmg of defmmons with respect to how ‘lobbying’ or

‘lobbylsts are defined

Definitions _of ‘lobbying’ or ‘lobbyist’ included:

Dallas, TX

V_San Jose, CA

S'eéttle, WA

Indianapolis, IN / Marion County, IN

Definitions applicable to Phoenix:

Contained in this binder within Section 3 ‘Ethics Legal Framework’ is an

exhibit (see: ‘Exhibit D) that contains the relevant city codes that define
‘lobbying’ and ‘lobbyist’



Dallas, TX

Source: Dallas City Code

Chapter 12A. Code of Ethics

‘Article III-A. Lobbyists

SEC. 12A-15.2. DEFINITIONS.

(9) LOBBYIST means a person who engages in lobbying, whether
directly or through the acts of another. If an agent or employee engages in
lobbying for a principal or employer, both the agent and the principal, or
the employee and the employer, are lobbyists.

(10) LOBBY or LOBBYING.

(A)

"Lobby or lobbying" means any oral or written

communication (including an electronic communication) to a city
official, made directly or indirectly by any person in an effort to
influence or persuade an official to favor or oppose, recommend or
not recommend, vote for or against, or take or refrain from taking

action

on any municipal question.

(B) "Lobby or lobbying" does not include a communication:

(i) merely requesting information or inquiring about the
facts or status of any municipal question, matter, or
procedure, and not attempting to influence a city official;

(i) made by a public official or employee (including, but
not limited to, an official or employee of the city of Dallas)
acting in his or her official capacity;

(iii) made by a representative of a media organization if
the purpose of the communication is gathering and
disseminating news and information to the public;

(iv) madein a speech, article, publication, or other
material that is distributed and made available to the public,
or through radio, television, cable television, or any other
medium of mass communication;

(v) made at a meeting open to the public under the Texas
Open Meetings Act;



URL:

(vi) made in the form of a written comment filed in the
course of a public proceeding or any other communication
that is made on the record in a public proceeding;

(vil) made in writing as a petition for-official action and
required to be a public record pursuant to established city
procedures; -

(viii) made in an oral or written response narrowly

tailored to address an oral or written request by a city
official for specific information,

{(ix) - the content of which is compelled by law;
(x) made in response to a public notice soliciting

communications from the public and directed to the official
specifically designated in the notice to receive such

. communications;

(xi) made on behalf of an individual with regard to that
individual's employment or benefits;

(xii) made by a fact witness orrexpert witness at an
official proceeding; or

(xiii) made by a person solely on behalf of that
individual, his or her spouse or domestlc partner, or his or
her minor ch11dren

(http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/T exas/dallas/volumel/prefacc'?f—templatcs$fn—
default.htm$3.08vid=amlegal:dallas tx)



San Jose, CA

Source: San Jose Municinal Code

Title 12; Ethics Provisions

12.12.180 Lobbying.

“Lobbying” means influencing or attempting to influence a city official or city
official-elect with regard to a legislative or administrative action of the city or
redevelopment agency. _
A, “Influencing” means the purposeful communication, either directly or
through agents, for the purpose of promoting, supporting, modifying,
opposing, causing the delay or abandonment of conduct, or otherwise
intentionally affecting the official actions of a city official or city official-
. elect, by any means, including, but not limited to providing or using
persuasion, information, incentives, statistics, studies or analyses.
B. “Legislative action” means the drafting, introduction, consideration,
modification, enactment or defeat of any resolution, ordinance,
amendment thereto, report, nomination or other action of the mayor, city
council, redevelopment agency of the city, or city board or commission, or
task force or any joint powers authority of which the city is a party.
C. “Administrative action” means the proposal, drafting, development,
consideration, advocacy, recommendation, adoption, amendment or
approval of any rule, regulation, agreement or contract, permit, license or
hiring action.
(Ord. 27221.)

12.12.190 Lobbyist.
“Lobbyist”, unless exempt under Section 12.12.300 means:
A. “Lobbyist (contract).” An individual who engages in lobbying on
behalf of one or more clients (acting individually or through agents,
associates, employeées or contractors) and who has received or has entered
into an agreement for compensation of one thousand dollars or more
(“threshold compensation™) for any services which includes engaging in
lobbying during any consecutive three-month period.
B. “In-house lobbyist™:
1. An individual who is an officer or employee of an organization
or association which has a membership and for which the officer or
employee is compensated for purposes of advancing the goals or
mission of the umbrella organization or association, such as a trade
association, and who engages in lobbying on its behalf in an
aggregate amount of twenty hours or more within any three-month
period; or
2. An individual who is an owner of a business or employed by a
business or organization and who is compensated more than one
thousand dollars in a month beyond reimbursement for their



reasonable travel, meals or incidental expenzes for engaging

specifically in lobbying, and whose duties as an employee include

lobbying on behalf of his or her employer, and who engages in

lobbying on its behalf in an aggregate amount of twenty hours or

more within any three-month period.
C. “Expenditure lobbyist.” A person who makes payments or incurs
expenditures of five thousand dollars or more during any calendar year in
connection with carrying out public relations, advertising or similar
activities with the intent of soliciting or urging, directly or indirectly, other
persons to communicate directly with any city official in order to attempt
to influence a legislative or administrative action. The five- thousand-
dollar threshold shall not include:

1. Compensation paid to contract lobbyists or employees for

lobbying; or o _

2. Dues payments, donations, or other economic consideration paid

to an organization, regardless of whether the dues payments,

donations or other economic consideration are used in whole or in

part to lobby.

(Ord. 27221.)



Seattle, WA

Source: City of Seattle Municipal Code

Title 2 - ELECTIONS

Chapter 2.06 - Lobbying Regulations

SMC 2.06.010 Definitions.

J. "Lobby" and "lobbying" each mean communications with city council

~ members, legislative department staff, the mayor or the mayor's staff in an
attempt to influence any of those individuals to develop, propose, draft,
consider or reconsider, promote, adopt, enact, reject, take favorable action
upon, approve, disapprove, veto, or fail to take action upon legislation.

"Lobby" and "lobbying" do not include the following:

1. Communications or other actions by any City officer or
employee or agent acting within the scope of his or her
employment authority or contract with the City;

2. Communications or other actions related to existing or proposed
collective bargaining agreement(s) with the City or other
legislation which could affect specific existing or proposed
collective bargaining agreements with the City;

3. Communications or other actions by members of the news
media related to news and feature reporting, commentary, and
editorial opinion in a regularly-published periodical, on television
or radio, or on a regularly-maintained Internet website or other
means of electronic communication devoted to the dissemination
of news or opinion and not created solely to influence a specific
piece of legislation.

K. "Lobbying entify“ means a law firm, consulting firm, public relations
firm, or other similar organization that engages in lobbying through its
employees or agents.

L. "Lobbyist" means any individual who lobbies for compensation, except
persons who are reimbursed for minor incidental personal expenses.

URL: (http://clerk seattle.gov/~scripts/nph-

brs.exe?d=CODE&s1=2.06.010.snum.&Sect5= CODEl&SectG—HITOFF&]—ZO&p 1&u
=/~public/codel htm&r=1&1{=G)



Indianapolis, IN / Marion County, IN

Source: Revised Code of the Consolidated City and County of Indzanapol:s / Marion
County

Title IV. Business and Commercial Regulation and Licenses

Chapter 909 ~ Lobbyists

Sec. 909-101 _ Definitions

‘Lobbymg activity’ means action or communication made to promote,
delay, oppose, or otherwise influence an agency action. The term does not
include any of the following:

(1) The application or negotiation of an award for any state or
federal grant;

(2) The resolution of any outstanding tax matter, including audits,
assessments, administrative appeals, claims for refund, or
collection activity;

(3) Communication regarding the award of incentives related to an
economic development project;

(4) Paid advertising communications that are disseminated to the
public by radio, television, or a newspaper or penod1cal of general
circulation;

(5) Any communications, including testimony submitted during
public hearing or submitted in writing, at a meeting conducted
pursuant to IC 5-14-1.5;

(6) A response to a request for proposal, a bid, a request for quote,
or other solicitation made by an agency in conformance with
applicable public works or procurement statutes or rules
promulgated thereunder;

(7) Other public or private testimony or communications solicited
by an agency;, or

(8) Action or communication made as a member of an advisory
body.

‘Lobbyist’ means any individual who is primarily employed and receives
payment, or who contracts for financial consideration, exceeding one
thousand dollars ($1,000) in any calendar year, for the purpose of
engaging in lobbying activity. The term does not include any of the
following;
(1) An ofﬁcxal appointee, or employee who attempts to influence
an agency action that 1s within the scope of the individual's official
duties or employment;

(2) An attorney or any other individual who represents a client in:
a. A public hearing; or



b. The investigation of a criminal or civil matter or
ordinance violation; _

(3) A person who represents a religious organization for the
purpose of protecting the organization's constitutional rights;
(4) Any newspaper or other periodical of general circulation, book
publisher, news wire service, or radio or television station
(including any individual who owns, publishes, or is employed by
any such newspaper or periodical or radio or television station) that
in the ordinary course of business publishes news items, editorials,
or other comments or paid advertisement that directly or indirectly
urge agency action if such newspaper, periodical, book publisher;
radio or television station, or individual engages in no additional
‘activities in connection with agency action;
(5) A person whose communication with an agency is for the sole
purpose of gathering information relating to a bid, procurement,
permit, or public work that is produced in a public record;
(6) An individual acting on his or her own behalf; or under Article
1, Section 31 of the Constitution of the State of Indiana who

- assembles together with other individuals for the common good or
petitions an agency for redress of grievances;
(7) An individual employed as a salesperson to sell goods and
services; or '
(8) An individual who is invited by an agency or an official for the
purpose of giving advice.

URL: (http://library.municode.com/index.aspx?clientld=12016)



Open Meeting Law

Joey Casto
City Clerk Department

THE ARIZONA OPEN MEETING LAW
IS

Mandated
by the
State of Arizona

A.R.S. § 38-431




" And Applies: ARS. 38-431.01

To All Public Bodies

(Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Subcommittees)

for all meetings:

= To any subcommittees formed by a board or
commission

= with less than a quorum if doing the
business of a subcommittee

= when business is discussed, not just when
action is taken

‘ Quorum
ARS.1-216

Number of members
required at a meeting
for the meeting to be
held

Meeting cannot start (or take place) unless a
quorum is present




| What if there is no quorum?

= It is Not a meeting
= No business can be discussed nor any
action taken

= A Quorum can be lost
a Through member leaving
o Member declaring Conflict of Interest

Meeting Agendas
A.R.S. 38-431.01 & A.R.S. 38-431.02

= Must be posted 24 hours E |1 TR
in advance { Mt

= Must be specific
o Public is entitled to know what
will take place 11
o Only listed items may be X ,
discussed _—
o Only items listed for action may
have an action taken




Methods of Voting

Roll Call - Voice Vote —
. Those in favor call
Individual names are out ‘aye’, those
called and each opposed call out ‘nay’
member states their
vote

Chair Announces the results of
the Vote

OML does not permit secret ballots nor
voting by proxy

Communication

(A.R.S 38-431.01 & 38-431.02)

At the meeting

Allowed:

o Discussion of the merits of an item listed on the
posted agenda

a Action on any item listed for action on the
posted agenda

Prohibited:

o Discussion or action for a topic not listed on the
posted agenda

o Discussion or action without a quorum present




Communication

(AR.S 38-431.01 & AZ Atty. Gen Op. 105-004)

Outside the Meeting

Allowed:

o Communication with staff for the purpose of clarification or
to request an item on a future agenda (other Commission
members should not be included in the communication)

Prohibited:

o Communication among Commission members (via phone,
fax, e-mail, or social media) on future action items to
circumvent OML

o Requesting staff to poll other members for their opinion on
an issue

If a Member has a
Conflict of Interest

On Conflict Items, the Member

o shall disclose conflict

o shall not discuss nor vote on matter
o shall not be counted for quorum

Conflicts must be recorded in minutes

A.R.S. 38-501 et seq.




Calls to the Public

A.R.S. 38-431.01
The Public can comment on non-agenda items,
but the Committee cannot discuss. They can:

o Direct staff to follow up or place on future
agenda

o Respond to Personal Attacks
o Impose reasonable time restrictions
o Have speaker fill out a card for the record

OML does not establish right to speak, but it is considered good
government

‘ Questions

I

-




Presented by
Daniel L. Brown, Acting Chief Counsel

City of Phoenix Law Department

Generally, the current legal framework governing the
ethics of City of Phoenix elected officials and employees
is a complex structure of State and City laws and
regulations. In other words, no single legal structure
governs all circumstances and conditions.




|gnific-ant Arizona Statutes Related to
Ethics Applicable to the City

* AR.S. § 38-481 - Employment of Relatives

* A.R.S. § 38-503 - Conflict of Interest

* A.RS. § 38-504 — Prohibited Acts

* A.RS. § 38-505 - Additional Income Prohibited
* A.RS. § 38-510 - Penalties

* A.RS. § 41-1232.08 - Entertainment Ban; State and
political subdivisions

A.R.S. 38-481 - Employment of relatives

A. It is unlawful, unless otherwise expressly provided by law, for an
executive, legislative, ministerial or judicial officer to af]F)point or
vote for appointment of any person related to him by affinity or
consanguinity within the third degree to any clerkship, office,
position, employment or duty in any department of the state,
district, county, city or municipal government of which such
executive, legislative, ministerial or judicial officer is a member, when the
salary, wages or compensation of such appointee is to be paid from public
funds or fees of such office, or to appoint, vote for or agree to appoint, or to
work for, suggest, arrange or be a party to the appointment of any person
in consideration of the appointment of a person related to him within the
degree provided by this section.

B. Any executive, legislative, ministerial or judicial officer who violates any
provision of this section is guilty of a class 2 misdemeanor.

C. The designation executive, legislative, ministerial or judicial officer
includes all officials of the state, or of any county or incorporated city
within the state, holding office either by election or appointment, and the
heads of the departments of state, county or incorporated cities, officers
and boards or managers of the universities.




A.R.S. 38-503 — Conflict of Interest

A.

Any public officer or employee of a public agency who has, or whose relative has, a
substantial interest in any contract, sale, purchase or service to such publicagency
shall make known that interest in the official records of such public agency and shall
refrain from voting upon or otherwise participating in any manneras an ogficer or
employee in such contract, sale or purchase.

Any public officer or employee who has, or whose relative has, a substantial interest in any

decision of a public agency shall make known such interest in the official records of such

public agency and shall refrain from participating in any manner as an officer or employee in
such decision.

Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections A and B of this section, no public officer or

employee of a public agency shall supply to such public agency any equipment, material,

supplies or services, unless pursuant to an award or contract let after public competitive
blgging, except that:

1. Aschool district governing board may purchase, as provided in sections 15-213 and 15-323,
supplies, materials and equipment from a school board member.

2. Political subdivisions other than school districts may purchase through their governing
bodies, without using public competitive bidding procedures, supplies, materials and
equipment not exceeding three hundred dollars in cost in any single transaction, not to
exceed a total of one thousand dollars annually, from a member of the governing body if
the policy for such purchases is approved annually.

Notwithstanding subsections A and B of this section and as provided in sections 15-421 and 15-

1441, the ioverning board of a school district or a community college district may not employ a

person who is a member of the governing board or who is the spouse of a member of the
governing board.

A.R.S. 38-504 (A) — Prohibited Acts

A.

A public officer or employee shall not represent another
person for compensation before a public agency by
which the officer or employee is or was employed within
the preceding twelve months or on which the officer or
employee serves or served within the preceding twelve
months concerning any matter with which the officer or
employee was directly concerned and in which the
officer or employee personally participated during the
officer's or employee's employment or service by a
substantial and material exercise of administrative
discretion.

No lobbying for hire on matter directly involved




A.R.S. 38-504(B) — Prohibited Acts cont’d

‘ No disclosure of confidential information ’

B. During the period of a public officer's or employee's employment or
service and for two years thereafter, a public o?fl“lcer or employee shall
not disclose or use for the officer's or employee's personal profit,
without appropriate authorization, any information acquired by the
officer or employee in the course of the officer's or emp(iloyee's official
duties which has been clearly designated to the officer or employee as
confidential when such congdential designation is warranted because
of the status of the proceedings or the circumstances under which the
information was received and preserving its confidentiality is
necessary for the proper conduct of government business. A public
officer or employee shall not disclose or use, without appropriate
authorization, any information that is acquired by the officer or
employee in the course of the officer's or employee's official duties and
that is declared confidential by law.

" A.R.S. 38-504(C) — Prohibited Acts

| No soliciting of bribes

C. A public officer or employee shall not use or
attempt to use the officer's or employee's official
Eosition to secure any valuable thing or valuable

enefit for the officer or employee that would not
ordinarily accrue to the officer or employee in the
performance of the officer's or employee's official
duties if the thing or benefit is of such character as to
manifest a substantial and improper influence on
the officer or employee with respect to the officer's
or employee's duties.




A.R.S. 38-505(A) — Additional Income Prohibited

A. No public officer or employee may receive or
agree to receive directly or indirectly
compensation other than as provided by law for
any service rendered or to be rendered by him
personally in any case, proceeding, application,
or other matter which is pending before the
public agency of which he is a public officer or
employee.

May not receive bribe
for pending matter

A.R.S. 38-510 — Penalties

A. A personwho:

1. Intentionally or knowingly violates any provision of
sections 38-503 through 38-505 is guilty of' a class 6 felony.

2. Recklessly or negligently violates any provision of
sections 38-503 through 38-505 is guilty of a class 1
misdemeanor.

B. A fperson found guil:y of an offense described in subsection A
of this section shall forfeit his public office or employment if
any.

C. Itis nodefense to a prosecution for a violation of sections
38-503 through 38-505 that the public officer or employee to
whom a benefit is offered, conferred or agreed to be conferred
was not qualified or authorized to act in the desired way.

D. Itisa defense to a prosecution for a violation of sections 38-503

through 38-505 that the interest charged to be substantial was a
remote interest.




A.R.S. 41-1232.08(B) —Entertainment Ban;
Political Subdivisions

B. A person who for compensation attempts to influence the
passage or defeat of legislation, ordinances, rules, regulations,
n}(l)minations and other matters that are pending or proposed or
that
are subject to formal approval by the corporation commission, a
county board of supervisors, a city
or town governing gody ora school district governing board or Lobbyist shall
any person acting on that person's behalf shall not make an t k d
expenditure or single expenditure for entertainment for an DI ELE

elected or appointed member of the corporation elected officials
shall not receive

commission, a county board of supervisors, a city or town
governing body or a school district governing board. An
elected or appointed rrtljeml()jer;)f the corporation expenditures for
commission, a county board of supervisors, a city or town .
governing body or a s}éhool districIt’goveming boZrd shall entertainment.
not accept an expenditure or single expenditure for
entertainment from a person who for compensation attempts
to influence the passage or defeat of legislation, ordinances,
rules, regulations, nominations and other matters that are
pending or proposed or that are subject to formal approval by the
corporation commission, a countg board of supervisors, a city or
town governing body or a school district governing board.

Significant City of Phoenix Ethics Laws and
Regulations:

¢ Charter Chapter XI, § 1 - State Conflict of Interest
Provisions apply.

* P.C.C. § 2-52 - City of Phoenix Ethics Policy

* P.C.C. § 2-53 — Complaints of Ethics Policy Violations

by Board, commission or committee
members

* P.C.C. § 2-1001 - Lobbyists

* Administrative Regulation 2.91 - Conflicts in Employment,
Supervisory and Contractual Relationships

* Administrative Regulation 2.93 - City Employee Gift Policy




Charter, Chapter XI § 1 — Conflict
of Interest; State law applies

The provisions of the state law
governing conflict of interest of
officers and employees shall apply.

P.C.C. § 2-52 - City of Phoenix Ethics Policy

Seminal provision of City ethics policy applies
to all elected officials and employees.

It is the policy of the City of Phoenix to uphold, promote and demand the highest standards of ethics
from all of its employees and officials, whether elected or appointed. Accordingly, all City officers and
employees, members of City boards, commissions and committees and members of the City Council
should maintain the utmost standards of personal integrity, truthfulness, honesty and fairness in
carrying out their public duties, avoid any improprieties in their roles as public servants, and never use
their City position or powers for improper personal gain.

Note:

Applies to
No remedy for
aviolation

elected officials,
board members,
and employees




P.C.C. § 2-53 - Complaints of Ethics Policy violations by
board, commission or committee members

A. Any person who is a resident of the City of Phoenix or who is affected by the actions of a
City board, commission, or committee may file with the City Clerk a written complaint
containing specific allegations of violations of the City’s Ethics Policy by any member of
any board, commission, or committee.

B. Within five days of receiving the complaint, the City Clerk shall forward the complaint to
the City Manager or his designee.

C. The City Manager or his designee shall appoint an independent Hearing Officer to
review the complaint and to conduct any hearings which may be necessary.

D. After the conclusion of a hearing on a complaint alleging a violation of the City’s Ethics
Policy by a member of a board, commission or committee, the Hearing Officer shall
prepare a written report with findings of fact and recommendations. The report shall be
provided to the City Manager or his designee for such action as he deems appropriate.

E. Compliance with this Section is not required for the Council to take action pursuant to
Section 2-51 .

Note: does not apply to elected officials or employees

P.C.C. § 2-1001(6)(7) - Lobbyists

6. No person shall make a gift to, or expenditure on
behalf of an elected City official through
another person to conceal the identity of the
person making the gift or expenditure.

7. No person shall give a gift to an elected City
official for the performance of official duties or
if it may reasonably be interpreted to be
offered in order to influence any action or
decision of an elected City official.




@

City of Phoenix

AR NUMBER ]
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 2.91 Revised

FUNCTION
Personnel and Payroll |

S Page 10f 4
A R 2 9 1 CONFLICTS IN EMPLOYMENT, SUPERVISORY AND EFFECTIVE DATE
CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIPS ;W"_Ew :wﬂ%ea’éa 2008

Transmittal Message

AR 2.91 has been revised to address concems and practices that have evolved since the original
issue date in 1986. Questions regarding this AR should be directed to the Personnel Department at
(602) 262-7552.

Summary of Changes

In addition to and ips, the AR has been revised to address
contractual relationships mvnlvmg 1amnly msmbsrs AAll employee disclosure forms will now be
maintained in the department personnel file instead of submitted to the City Clerk. Disclosure
forms for City Council, board and commission members will continue to be submitted to the City
Clerk. Relationships to be considered under this AR have been expanded beyond the definition
provided in Arizona Revised Statutes.

(1) Purpose

The purpose of this regulation is to communmale a Cnywnde pollcy regarding employment,
pervisory and among family me

(2) Definition

Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-502 defines "relative” as the spouse, child, child's
child, parent, grandparent, brother or sister of the whole or half-blood and their spouses, and
the parent, brother, sister, or child of a spouse.

For purposes of administering this city policy, managers may also consider other
relationships that can create the appearance of a conflict. Such relationships may include a
court-appointed legal guardian, an individual who has acted as a parent substitute, and/or a
person residing in the employee’s household as a member of the family. Roommates or
other individuals who share a substantial financial interest with the employee should also be
disclosed to avoid the appearance of a conflict.

AR. 291 Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page20f4

(3) Policies

(a) Appointment to City Employment

No officer or employee of the City of Phoenix shall appoint any individual who may have
a conflict with the officer or employee as defined in Section 2, to any position within the
City. Officers and employees within the City authorized to make appointments shall
disqualify themselves from considering or making or from in
the appointment process. Written notice of such disqualification should be forwarded to
the Department Head where the appointment is being made. In situations where an
individual is under consideration for promotion or hiring and there is a potential conflict
with an individual in an executive or middle management positian in the same
department, or in the City Manager's Office, the Personnel Director will review the hiring
or promotion process and make a determination on the decision.

(b) Immediate Supervisory Relationships

No officer or employee shall be permitted to directly supervise a relative or other
individual as defned in Section 2. This includes direct supervision as well as lead
heads are ible for enforcing this policy. Every
attempt should be made to reasslgn or transfer empluyees who may find |hemselves
by reason of marriage, promoti
relationship with a relative. As a Ias( resort, the Iayoﬂ rule shall be uﬂllzed

By way of example, supemslon includes, but i is not limited to, any pamcnpatlon in the
hiring decision, decision, work decision, shift
decision, disciplinary decision, or the evaluation process of another employee.

of the i i ip, no officer or employee shall
participate in any manner in a declslon mvalvmg the pecuniary |nlerest of a relative or
other individual as defined in Section 2, including hiring, discipline, and
merit increase(s). In addition, no officer or employee shall in any way attempt to
influence others in the decision regarding the pecuniary or employment (assignments,
shifts, discipline, etc.) interests of a relative or other individual as defined in Section 2.

(c)

Disclosure of Relationship

An officer or employee, in addition to di: lifying hir from ici in
any decision regarding the employment or supervisory interest of a relative(s) or other
individual(s) as defined in Section 2, the officer or employee shall make known the
existence of the relationship and the interest by filing, in writing, a form disclosing the
relationship and the interest involved (see attached). The form will be maintained in
the officer or employee’s department personnel file. The officer or employee is
responsible for updating the information on file as changes occur; however,
departments should, at a minimum, request updates from staff on an annual basis.




AR. 291 Revised
Personnel and Payroll
Page 3 of 4

Because of their broader ibilities, all ives and middle
managers must notify their department head or Deputy City Manager in writing of the
name(s) of the relative(s), or other individual(s) defined in Section 2 working in any
department in the City and the defined relationship. Due to the nature of work, some
departments may require broader notification requirements than those contained in
this regulation.

(d) Contractual Relationships

Any officer or employee who has, or whose relative has, a substantial pecuniary or
proprietary interest (as defined in Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-502), in any
contract, sale, purchase or service to the City of Phoenix, shall refrain from voting
upon or otherwise participating in any manner as an officer or employee in such

contract, sale or purchase.
fﬂﬁO//%/ fQ/ﬂW

Frank Fairbanks, City Manager

O TR AL TELALSRENI BRI
st R

s X e B e

T

T e

e e e |

e i edian

r, —— e i .. e e . s,

sexdena,

| Rt

_ whelase

s




@D

City of Phoenix

AR NUMBER
AR.2.93 Revised

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION

FUNCTION
Miscellaneous
PAGE 1 _OF 4
EFFECTIVE DATE

CITY EMPLOYEE GIFT POLICY September 9, 1996

) B
- applies solely to PURPOSE

9 " To reinforce the already strong policy for employees receiving gifts from persons o
Clty emp loyees entities who conduct business, or could potentially conduct business, with the City of
Phoenix.

- does not apply

e POLICY
to elected City employees must consider ethical principles before accepting personal gifts. No
o_q City employee shall accept any gift, service, or favor which would lead toward favoritism
Offlclals or the appearance of favoritism in any way. Generally, token gifts such as food and

plants can be accepted if they are of minimal value, can be shared with the entire work
unit, and will not be perceived as influencing decisions. The City of Phoenix Ethics
Handbook (available from Personnel) discusses in greater detail the ethical
considerations of accepting gifts.

If an employee concludes that he or she may accept an entertainment or sports/athletic
event gift (usually in the form of tickets), the employee must declare the gift with the
City Clerk D¢ using the “D ion Form” Alist of examples of
such gifts is listed in Appendix A and B. A declaration must be made regardless of
whether or not the gift is used by the employee. A personal gift from a friend or family
member or winning a promotional gift where the opportunity is open to the general
public does not require declaration. Employees who pay for the ticket or elect to make
a charitable contribution in the name of the donor for the face value of the gift do not
need to file a declaration. Employees should declare gifts within 2 working days of
acceptance.

VIOLATION OF GIFT POLICY
Any employee in violation of this policy will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.

FRANK FAIRBANKS, City Manager

by. b
Marsha Wallace, Assistant to the City Manager

APPEROR £
AL LOT DR SURTMATIR TR0 ST T SR 0




SRFESTN

12



Questions?

13



Ethics Review Ad Hoc
Task Force

September 17, 2012

e
City of Phoenix - Ethics Policy

To uphold, promote and demand the highest
standards of ethics from all of its
employees and officials,
whether elected,

appointed or hired.




e —————————————————
Ethics History

1978
O Municipal Integrity Program

O City also implemented more stringent
pre-hire background investigations

Ethics Handbook History

1990/91

0 Handbook developed by City ad-hoc
committee, including:

Thelda Williams — Councilmember

Carlos Arauz — Personnel Director

C. Timothy Delaney — State Solicitor General
Roderick G. McDougall — Phoenix City Attorney
Bruce Meyerson — local attorney

Katherine Patry — local business owner




Ethics Training

1991

0 Following City Council approval, over 500
employee training sessions were conducted
over the next 24-30 months

O Ethics was also added to the City’s new
employee orientation program

Ethics Handbook Revision

1997
O Ethics Handbook revised to reflect:

» Implementation of new City Administrative
Regulations

» Provide practical examples of situations that
might arise regarding use of ethical standards

» Improve look and usability of handbook

O Refresher training delivered citywide




Ethics History

2003 - 2005

O FAQs developed for members of City boards,
commissions and committees

O Ethic Handbook revised to reflect new/revised
A.R.S. 41-1232.08 regarding;

= Receipt of tickets for entertainment, sports and
athletics activities

» Clarified language on methods for reporting of
improper behavior

City’s Commitment

0O Core Training —
m Customer Service
m Civil Treatment
m Ethics

O Ethics training continues to be a significant
component of new employee orientation.

0O Customized refresher courses to departments
upon request.




—
City’s Value Statements

We are dedicated to serving our customers
We value and respect diversity

We work as a team

We each do all we can

We learn, change, and improve

We focus on results

We work with Integrity

O O 0O 00 0o 0 0

We make Phoenix better!

Electronic Communications

O Governs the acceptable use of the City’s
information systems

®  Subject to records retention policies & public records law

®  Must use city authorized software and safeguard City
information systems

m Permits incidental personal use

® Prohibits transmitting or displaying offensive or improper
messages or materials; personal business; forwarding
chain letters or solicitations




Political Activity

O Defines allowable and prohibited political
activities for City employees
= Employees may:

o privately express opinions on candidates for Mayor
and Council

o Actively participate in non-City political campaigns
and make financial contributions

= Employees may not:

o Participate in any way in City Mayor & Council
campaign activities

Solicitation by or of City Employees

0O Governs the activities at work to minimize
pressure to contribute financially to any
outside enterprise

= Employees may be allowed minimal City time to work on
City/department sponsored fund raising activities

m Passive solicitation is permitted only during non-working
hours with department approval




Work Conduct - Harassment

O Sexual harassment and protected category
harassment will not be tolerated. Policy
defines prohibited activities and reporting
procedures

= Protected category = gender, race, color, sexual
orientation, religion, age, disability, national origin,
genetic information or any other legally protected basis
that is not welcome, that is offensive, demoralizing,
and/or interferes with work effectiveness

Outside Employment

O Establishes parameters for employees to ensure
that work does not interfere with, or is in
conflict with, City employment. Prohibited if -

o the employee will be required to act upon the work in an
official capacity

if using City records which is not available to the public
when employment will bring the City disrepute

when in conflict with the City/department’s mission

O o o o

Work results in excessive absences, or decline of City
job performance




Conflicts of Interest

O Defines relationships that create conflicts
regarding employment, supervisory and
contractual relationships and identifies the
duty to disclose.
= Appointment to City employment
» Immediate supervisory relationships
»  Contractual relationships

Contract or Rehire of Retirees

O Establishes procedures and conditions for
contracting or rehiring retired City employees

» The immediate rehiring of a retired City employee to
perform part, or all, of their previous job is prohibited

m  Contracts with retirees permitted during the
recruitment/selection or for a specific project limited in
duration

®m Re-employment permitted into non-pension eligible
positions (different capacity or not to exceed 1000 hours)




——————————————————
Gift Policy

O No city employee shall accept any gift,
service, or favor which would lead toward
favoritism or the appearance of favoritism.

m  Token gifts such as food can be accepted if they are of
minimal value, can be shared, and will not be perceived as
influencing decisions

= Employees may accept an entertainment or sports/athletic
event gift (tickets) but must declare within 2 days of
acceptance

Ethics Related Violations

0O Most common violations -

®m  Misuse of city resources for personal use/gain
®m  Misuse of city time - lunch and rest breaks

O Other violations —

m Acceptance of gifts, such as tickets to
entertainment/sports activities

m Inappropriate workplace conduct towards others

m Failure to disclose potential conflict of interest or
appearance of favoritism




Integrity Committee

Established to provide employees with a way
to report fraudulent and unethical behavior
of city employees
O City Auditor
O City Attorney
O Deputy City Manager

Components of Ethics Program

O Culture of Integrity

O Policies / Code of Conduct
O Training programs

O Reporting procedures

O

Auditing and compliance monitoring

10



Ethics, Transparency and Service
in the City of Phoenix

City of Phoenix

Presenters

« Janet Smith, Human Resources Director
— City of Phoenix Code of Ethics
— Phoenix Police Operations Orders
— Phoenix Fire Department Professional Standards
« Gary Verburg, City Attorney
— Participating in City Elections
* Toni Maccarone, Public Information Director
— Internet and Media Transparency
» Cris Meyer, City Clerk
— Website Improvements
 Bill Greene, City Auditor
— Integrity Committee
« Jeff DeWitt, Finance Director;
James Scarboro, Deputy Finance Director
— Ensuring Ethical Procurement




The Phoenix Way

» The “Magic of Phoenix”

» How people join the “Phoenix Team”
» Performance-based promotions

« Equal basis of service delivery

» Budget process

« Customer and community involvement
(several hundred people)

« Constant improvement

Janet Smith, Human Resources Director

City of Phoenix Code of Ethics

» Presented at first Ethics Task Force meeting

 Policy: “To uphold, promote and demand the
highest standards of ethics from all of its
employees and officials, whether elected,
appointed or hired.”

« Ethics training is a significant part of new
employee orientation.




Janet Smith, Human Resources Director

Phoenix Police

Operations Orders

« Operations Order 1.1 — Guiding Values: PRIDE
— Protection and Prevention
— Responsibility and Respect
— Integrity and ldeals
— Dedication to Duty
— Employee Excellence

» Other Operations Orders also relate to ethical
conduct

* phoenix.gov/police/help/

Janet Smith, Human Resources Director

Phoenix Fire Department

Professional Standards

» “Professional Standards” booklet
distributed to all Firefighters during
training

 Related policies include:

— Management Procedures
— Standard Operating Procedures

 phoenix.gov/fire/forfiredepts/books/




Gary Verburg, City Attorney

Participation in City Elections

+ Chapter XXV, Section 11 of the City Charter and
City Code sections 12-217 and 218 prohibits:

— (1) any officer or employee from soliciting or receiving
campaign funds related to a City candidate election and;

— (2) prohibits City employees from taking part in the
management, affairs or campaigns of City elected officials.

+ State statute prohibits the use of any City resources
to influence the outcome of an election (ARS 9-
500.14)

Gary Verburg, City Attorney

Participation in City Elections

Administrative Regulation 2.16 provides further definition of
what is and what is not permitted.
» City employees may engage in the following political activity:
1. Plrivately express a personal opinion related to a City candidate
election;

2. Be politically active in bond and proposition matters provided it is
done on the employee's private time.

3. Participate on campaigns for national, state and county elections
on the employee's own time.
+ City employees may not engage in the following political
activity:
Use City authority to interfere with the results of an election;
May not solicit funds from other employees for any political
purpose;
May not sign recall or nomination petitions for City candidate
elections’
May not display political advertising on any City property;

May not use City title or employment in political advertisements
and endorsements.

o @ b=




David Cavazos, City Manager

Sample Industry Policies

International City/County Management Association
— “Tenet 7: Refrain from all political activities...”
International Public Management Association for
Human Resources Principles and Values Statement
— “To avoid a conflict of interest;”
American Institute of Certified Planners Code of
Ethics and Professional Conduct

— “B-14: We shall not use the power of any office to

seek or obtain a special advantage...”

American Association of Airport Executives Code of
Ethics

— “3. Refrain from participation in the election of the members
of the employing governmental body...”

9

Toni Maccarone, Public Information Director

Increased Transparency

in Decision-Making

City Council Formal, Policy and Subcommittee
meetings broadcast:

— Cox Cable PHX11

— Streamed live on phoenix.gov

— Facebook.com/cityofphoenixaz

Meetings replayed on PHX11 and posted to
youtube.com/cityofphoenixaz

Facebook (2700 followers), Twitter and YouTube
(22,000 views since Feb. launch)

Live Online Budget Hearing, plus 15 budget
hearings, all posted to YouTube

Improved online Public Records, moved to more
prominent online placement

10




Cris Meyer, City Clerk
Increased Transparency

Through Website Improvements

* Reqgistered lobbyist information available online

+ Elected official financial disclosure statements
available online

» Public Meeting Notices for all City boards and
commissions

« COfficial Records Search:

City Contracts
Ordinances and Resolutions

City Council Reports (CCRs) and Requests for Council
Action (RCAs)

City Council, Subcommittee and Board and Commission
meeting agendas, results and approved minutes

Registration documents for political committees and
Independent Expenditure organizations

Campaign finance reports

1

Cris Meyer, City Clerk

Formal Meeting Page

= Please visit our Public Records Search page for an official copy of the minutes.
= Subscribe to our Formal Agenda list serve.

= 2012 Tentative Council Meeting Calendar E
= 2013 Tentative Council Meeting Calendar '@

DATE

10/03M1 2

09/149M1 2

09/05mM 2

08724912

07/ 2

NOTES

Special
Start
Time:

1:00 P

AGENDA ADD-ON BACK-UP RESULTS MINUTES VIDEO
PACKET REPORTS

Watch
How

Watch
How

B o S
2]

L e O v RV |

2 I 2 R 12 Ve |

I@ Watch
How




Bill Greene, City Auditor

Integrity Committee

* Membership:
— City Auditor
— City Attorney
— Deputy City Manager
» Provides methods for employees to report
complaints
 Facilitates investigation of complaints
» Ensures proper complaint resolution

» Assesses corrective action

13

Bill Greene, City Auditor

City Auditor’s Role

 City Auditor’s role in Integrity Committee:
— Researching and investigating allegations
— Coordinating with other departments for investigations

— Reporting summary results to the Integrity Committee
and the City Manager’s Office

+ City Auditor Department promotes ethical culture and
behavior through:

— Compliance and operational audits

— Internal control assessments

— Internal control development

— Fraud risk assessments, prevention, detection

14




Jeff DeWitt, Finance Director

Ensuring Ethical Procurement

Recent Developments:

« Consolidated Procurement Websites — Established central
websites to identify all formal (above $50,000) solicitation notices
as well as award recommendations.

» Vendor Management System — Established a central vendor
registration and notification system within the City’s website.

» Transparency Policy — Established a policy limiting
communications between vendors and City officials*. Any meeting
requests of this type are limited to public meetings only.

« Appeal Process — Established a consolidated policy regarding
the processing of solicitation protests and appeals, including
options for a four-person appeal panel or an independent hearing
officer.

* City Council, City Manager’s Office, applicable Department Directors

15

Jeff DeWitt, Finance Director

Ensuring Ethical Procurement

Upcoming Developments:

* Updated Procurement Regulations — Currently revising City
procurement regulations with the objective of standardizing processes
across Departments, improving competitiveness and transparency of
City procurement.

* eProcurement System — Starting with the new Vendor Management
System and moving towards a Citywide eProcurement system, to
eventually include all aspects of the procurement process, from the
requisition to issuance of the payment, “Req-to-Check”.

» Centralized Procurement Training — Implementing the newly
revised procurement regulations across the Departments via the
establishment of a central training program. Maintain institutional
knowledge and assist in the development of new and existing staff.

* Procurement Compliance Support — Assuring Departmental
compliance with new procurement regulations through a central
oversight program. Ensuring compliance while reporting on
attainment of City procurement policies.

16




Conclusion

The Phoenix Way is exemplified by our

excellent employees every day

Questions?

17




Ethics Based Leadership

Traaen & Associates, LLC
www.TraaenandAssociates.com

602.510.3989

-

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012

Defining Ethics

An agent, acting in a capacity of trust with (full)
compelling transparency.

Doing the right thing at the right time.

Accepting responsibility for a decision ‘before’
the decision is implemented.

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012




Public Perceptions & Ethics

Fear Underlying Ethical Concerns

Real issues
Borrowed issues
Unfounded issues
Unknown issues

AW =

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012

Best Practices - Perceptions
Public Service Values

- Trustworthiness

- Fairness
- Responsibility
- Respect

- Compassion

- Loyalty

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012




Best Practices - Key Methods

1. Comprehensive adoption of standards.

2. Organization wide inclusion of ‘ethics
discussions’ on a regular basis.

3. Role modeling at every level of the
organization [measurement in performance
assessments].

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012

Best Practices - Barriers

1. Il conceived goals - unintended
consequences.

Motivated blindness - conflicts of interest.
Indirect blindness - outsourcing.
Slippery Slope - gradual conduct.

Overvaluing Outcomes - ignore unethical
decisions.

vi A W N

Harvard Business Review, April 2011

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012




Social Media

Social Networkers are more likely to believe
that questionable behaviors are acceptable.

When asked ‘Do you feel it is acceptable to
....2> [Two groups Active Social Networkers
versus Other U.S. Workers]

1. Friend a client/customer on a social network
....59% versus 28%

2. Blog or tweet negatively about your
company or colleagues....42% versus 6%

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012

Social Media Il

3. Buy personal items with your company credit card as
long as you pay it back .... 42% versus 8%.

4. Do a little less work to compensate for cuts in
benefits or pay ....51% versus 10 %.

5. Keep a copy of confidential work documents in case
you need them in your next job ..50% versus 15%

[Conclusion - Active Social Networkers show a higher
tolerance for activities that could be considered
unethical.]

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012




Best Practices - Social Media

1. Set expectations clearly.

2. Conduct training for all levels (including elected,
appointed and general workforce members).

3. Provide examples of professional
communications. [If you are ‘talking’ about your
organization, you are on stage.]

4. Official/appointee/employee: Do nothing that
brings dishonor to the organization.

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012 9

Bonus Recap: Checklist

Ethics Within High Performing Organizations
Employment Practices

Employee, Client and Vendor Information
Public Information/Communications
Conflicts of Interest

Relationship with Vendors

Environmental Issues

Ethical Management Practices

Political Involvement

[The organization measures its effectiveness]

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012 10




Resources

1. ‘Ethics and Social Media - Where Should You
Draw The Line?’
http://mashable.com/2012/03/17/social-
media-ethics/

2. Ethics Resource Center - National Business
Ethics Survey - both private and public sector
institutional research.

3. Markkula Center for Ethics. Santa Clara
University, Santa Clara, California.
http://www.ethics.org/resource/critical-
elements-organizational-ethical-culture

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012 11

Questions

TeriJ. Traaen, Ed.D., D.P.A.
CEO

titraaen@msn.com

Traaen & Associates, LLC
www.TraaenandAssociates.com

602.510.3989

Source - A Matter of Ethics:
Facing The Fear of Doing The
Right Thing Copyright 2012 12




Presented by
Daniel L. Brown, Acting Chief Counsel
City of Phoenix Law Department

Best Practices: City of Phoenix

A. Phoenix City Code, Section 2-52, sets out the City of
Phoenix Ethics Policy:

It is the policy of the City of Phoenix to uphold, promote and
demand the highest standards of ethics from all of its employees and
officials, whether elected or appointed. Accordingly, all City officers
and employees, members of City boards, commissions and
committees and members of the City Council should maintain the
utmost standards of personal integrity, truthfulness, honesty and
fairness in carrying out their public duties, avoid any improprieties
in their roles as public servants, and never use their City position or
powers for improper personal gain.

Note: Ethics policy expressly applies to employees,
City boards and commissions and elected officials.




est Practices: City of Phoenix cont’d

B. Enforcement of Ethics Policy

1. Phoenix Charter (“Charter”) Chap. III, Sec. 2 and Phoenix City Code
(“PCC”) Section 2-4 authorize the City Manager to administer and
enforce all ordinances, including the ethics policy, related to
employees.

2. PCC Section 2-53 sets out the enforcement of the ethics policy related
to boards and commissions:

A. Any person who is a resident of the City of Phoenix or who is
affected by the actions of a City board, commission, or committee
may file with the City Clerk a written complaint containing
specific allegations of violations of the City’s Ethics Policy by any
member of any board, commission, or committee.

B. Within five days of receiving the complaint, the City Clerk shall
forward the complaint to the City Manager or his designee.

est Practices: City of Phoenix cont’d

C. The City Manager or his designee shall appoint an independent
Hearing Officer to review the complaint and to conduct any
hearings which may be necessary.

D. After the conclusion of a hearing on a complaint alleging a
violation of the City’s Ethics Policy by a member of a board,
commission or committee, the Hearing Officer shall prepare a
written report with findings of fact and recommendations. The
report shall be provided to the City Manager or his designee for
such action as he deems appropriate.

E. Compliance with this Section is not required for the Council to
take action pursuant to Section 2-51

Note: Even though Ethics Policy applies to elected officials, there is no formal
process in the City Code or Charter to enforce it other than the general authority to
prosecute violations of Charter and ordinances pursuant to the Phoenix City
Charter, Chap. XXI, Sec. 7.




Best Practices: City of Mesa

A. A single code of ethics applies to elected officials and
board members:

It is the Policy of the City of Mesa to uphold, promote, and demand
the highest standards of ethics from all of its officials, whether
elected to City Council or appointed to advisory boards. Accordingly,
all members of City boards, commissions, committees and the City
Council (“elected officials and advisory board members”) shall
maintain the utmost standards of personal integrity, truthfulness,
honesty and fairness in carrying out their public duties, avoid any
improprieties in their roles as public servants, comply with all
applicable laws, and never use their City position or powers
improperly or for personal gain.

est Practices: City of Mesa cont’d

The City of Mesa and its elected officials and advisory board
members all share a commitment to ethical conduct in service to
their community. This Code of Ethics has been created to ensure that
all elected and appointed officials and advisory board members have
clear guidance for carrying out their responsibilities.

Note: The Mesa Code of Ethics is
substantially similar to that of the City of
Phoenix.




Best Practices: City of Mesa cont’d

B. Enforcement of ethics code is found in Section 206 of
the Mesa City Charter, which applies to council and
board members:

Section 206 (B):

1. The Mayor or a Councilmember shall forfeit their office if they (1)
lack at any time during their term of office any qualification for the
office prescribed by this Charter or by law, or (2) violate any express
prohibition of this Charter. (Amd. Charter Election 3-14-00/3739)

2. In addition, it shall constitute grounds for forfeiture of office,
suspension, censure, reprimand, monetary penalty, letter of
warning, other form of discipline, or some combination of the
foregoing penalties, at the sole discretion of the City Council, if
five (5) or more City Councilmembers agree that a Councilmember,

Best Practices: City of Mesa cont’d

including the Mayor, or a citizen advisory board member appointed
under Section 501 of this Charter, has: (Amd. Charter
Election 3-14-00/3739)

(a) Violated the mandatory code of ethics for
Councilmembers and citizen advisory board members adopted
by the Mesa City Council by resolution and in effect when the
alleged conduct occurred; (Amd. Charter Election 3-14-00/3739)




Best Practices: Arizona Legislature

A. A.R.S. § 38-519 establishes an ethics committee to
propose, and the legislature to adopt, a code of ethics
with provisions to enforce it:

A. An ethics committee is established in the senate and an ethics
committee is established in the house of representatives, each
consisting of five members. The president of the senate and the
speaker of the house of representatives shall appoint to the ethics
committee of their respective house five members, not more than
three of whom may be from the same political party.

B. Each ethics committee shall propose, and each house of the legislature
shall adopt, not later than thirty days after the beginning of the first
regular legislative session, a code of ethics and conflict of interest
requirements as part of the rules of the respective house in the same
manner as other rules are adopted.

Best Practices: Arizona Legislature cont’d

C. On the request of a member of the legislature or on its own initiative,
each ethics committee may issue advisory opinions interpreting the
code of ethics, conflict of interest and financial disclosure
requirements.

D. Each ethics committee shall investigate complaints and charges
against members of its house and, if necessary, report the results of
the investigation to its house with recommendations for further
action.

E. A member is subject to punishment or expulsion as provided by
article IV, part 2, section 11, Constitution of Arizona, for any violation
of the code of ethics, conflict of interest or financial disclosure
requirements.




Best Practices: Arizona Legislature cont’d

B. Arizona Senate Rule 29 and Arizona House
Rule 34 - Legislative Code of Ethics

A. No member shall:

1. Intentionally solicit, accept or agree to accept from any source
whether directly or indirectly and whether by himself or through any
other person any personal financial benefit, including any gift, for
himself or another upon an agreement or understanding that his vote,
opinion, judgment, exercise of discretion or other action as a public
official will thereby be influenced.

2. Disclose or use information designated by law as confidential in any
manner prohibited by law.

Best Practices: Arizona Legislature cont’d

3. Knowingly disclose or use, other than in the performance of his official
duties, information gained as a result of his official position and which
is not available to the general public, for his personal financial benefit
or the financial benefit of any other person, including compensation
from any employment, transaction or investment entered into that
utilizes or is based upon such information.

4. Enter into any contract with a public agency for the sale of goods or
services or have an interest in the profits or benefits of a contract
entered into with a public agency by any other person or entity for the
sale of goods or services, unless:

(a) The total gross annual income value of the contract is less than one
thousand dollars, or

(b) The contract is entered into by a business of which the member, his
spouse or any minor child of whom the member has custody, owns or
controls, individually or combined, less than ten percent thereof, or




Best Practices: Arizona Legislature cont’d

(c) The contract has been awarded through public and competitive
bidding pursuant to law, or

(d) The subject of the contract between a member and a public agency is
an appointment or employment for which an exception exists
pursuant to article IV, part 2, section 4 or 5 of the Constitution of
Arizona.

5. Appear for a fee on behalf of another person or entity before any
public agency for the purpose of influencing such agency by use of
threat to initiate or take an action in the discharge of his official duties
that would be adverse to such agency.

6. Participate in any action of the Senate if the member has a substantial
interest as defined in section 38-502, Arizona Revised Statutes.

Best Practices: Arizona Legislature cont’d

B. For the purposes of this rule:

1. A member shall be deemed to "have an interest in the profits of a
contract” if the contract is entered into by the member or his spouse
or any minor child of whom the member has legal custody.

2. "Public agency" means all courts and any department, agency, board,
commission, institution or instrumentality of this state but does not
include counties, cities and towns or any other political subdivision.

3. "Business” includes any corporation, partnership, joint venture, sole
proprietorship, business trust, enterprise, organization, trade,
occupation or profession.




Best Practices: Arizona Legislature cont’d

4. "Gift" includes any gratuity, special discount, favor, service, economic
opportunity, loan or other benefit received without lawful
consideration and not provided to members of the public at large but
does not include political campaign contributions if such
contributions are publicly reported as required by law.

5. "Fee" includes any compensation but does not include benefits
received pursuant to law as a result of being a legislator.

Note: The Houseand Senate Code of Ethics
does not apply to State employees or members of
boards and commissions. The conflict of interest
statutes are the sole ethics code to apply to all
groups.

Best Practices: Arizona Legislature cont’d

C. State of Arizona Boards and Commissions

38-501. Application of article

A. This article shall apply to all public officers and employees of
incorporated cities or towns, of political subdivisions and of the state
and any of its departments, commissions, agencies, bodies or boards.

B. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, or the provisions of
any charter or ordinance of any incorporated city or town to the
contrary, the provisions of this article shall be exclusively applicable to
all officers and employees of every incorporated city or town or
political subdivision or the state and any of its departments,
commissions, agencies, bodies or boards and shall supersede the
provisions of any other such law, charter provision or ordinance.

C. Other prohibitions in the state statutes against any specific conflict of
interests shall be in addition to this article if consistent with the intent
and provisions of this article.




Best Practices: Congress

A. Code of Ethics for Government Service articulated
broad guidelines for employees including
officeholders. The Code of Ethics for Government
Service articulates broad ethical guidelines for “all
Government employees, including officeholders.”
The 85t Congress adopted this Code in 1958. Among
other things, the Code stresses that any person in
government service should:
¢ Adhere to the highest moral principles;
¢ Give a full day’s labor for a full day's pay;

Best Practices: Congress

¢ Never discriminate unfairly by dispensing special favors;
* Never accept favors or benefits that might be construed as influencing
the performance of governmental duties;

* Make no private promises binding on the duties of office;

* Engage in no business with the Government inconsistent with the
performance of governmental duties;

e Never use information received confidentially in the performance of
governmental duties for making private profit; and

¢ Uphold the Constitution, laws, and legal regulations of the United
States and of all governments therein and never be a party to their
evasion.




Best Practices: Congress cont’d

B. Code of Ethics enforced by House Committee on
Ethics.

e U.S. Constitution art. I, § 5, cl. 2 authorizes each house to punish its
members for disorderly behavior and with concurrence of two-thirds
of the house, expel a member.

* House rule authorizes the Standards Committee to enforce Standards
of Conduct for members, officers and employees, to investigate alleged
violations of laws, rules or regulations.

e Approval by House or two thirds committee may report substantial
evidence of violation by a member.

Best Practices: Military Code of Ethics

A. Department of Defense (“DOD”) Regulation
5500.07R specifies the code of conduct.

B. Executive Order 13940 (January 9, 2009) Ethics for
government service to set out Ethical Values:

10



SECTION 2. EXECUTIVE ORDER 42834 /3940 {Reference (b))

12-200. [LO. 42834 13940 (Reference (b))

ECTION 3 CODE OF ETIICS EOR

WVERNMENT SERVICE

DoD 5500.07-R

cith S 1LS.C A 7304 o
h £ che ol Soida-oEBihias for
eop
I Putloyaliy-to-the high L prineiph
princip
o P
¥ e pertys
R
m Uphold the C ‘ o
- P 3
£ the Unifed States-and-ofull 3 4
o full-das's Iabas f
st and B
TG P g i d
7
-
b
115
Change 7, 11/17/2011
DoD 5500.07-R

i g 4
P i
2 Uphold =) &
P—
116
Change 7, 11/17/2011

11



DoD 5500.07-R
SECTION 43. DoD HUMAN GOALS
12-480300. DoD lluman Goals. On April 17, 1990, DoD established human goals as follows:
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
HUMAN GOALS
THE ATTAINMENT OF THESE GOALS REQUIRES THAT WE STRIVE

To attract (o the Department of Defense people with ability,
dedication, and capacity for growth;

To pravide apportunity for everyone, military and civilian, (o ise
10 s high a level of responsibility as possible, dependent amly on
individual talent and diligence;

To assure that equal opportunity and safety programs ate an
integral part of readiness;

To make military and civilian service in the Department of Defense
amodel of equal opportunity for all regardless of Tace, color, sex.
relipion, or national origin;

To pravide equity in civilian emplayment for older persons and
disabled individuals and to provide a safe cnvironment that s
accessible to and usable by them;

To hold those who do business with or receive assistance from the
Department to full compliance with its policies of equal
opportunity and safety;

To help each service member in leaving the service to readjust (o
civilian life;

To pravide 4 safe and bealthful work environment, free from
recognized occupational hazards for all personncl; and

To contribute to the improvement of our society, including its
disadvataged members, by greater utilization of our human and.
physical resources while maintaining full effectivencss in the
performance of our primary mission.

17
Change 7, 11/17/2011

DoD 5500.07-R
SECTION 4. LIIICAL VALULS

12-500400. General. Ethics are standards by which one should act based on values. Values are
core belicfs such as duty, bonor, and integrity that motivate attitudes and actions. Not all valucs
are ethical values (integrity is; happiness is nat). Fihical values elate to what is right and wrang
and thus take precedence over non-ethical values when making ethical decisions. DD
employees should carefully consider ethical values when making decisions as part of official
duties.

12-56440/. Primary Ethical Values
a. Llonesty. Being truthful, straiphtforward and candid are aspects of honesty.

(1) Truthfulness is required. Deceptions are casily uncovered and usually are. Lics
crode credibility and undermine public confidence. Untruths told for scemingly altruistic
reasons (1o prevent hurt feelings, to promote good will, etc.) are nonetheless resented by the
recipients.

@ adds frankness to and is usually necessary to
promote public confidence and (o ensure effective, efficient conduct of Federal Government
operations. Truths that are presented in such a way as 10 lead recipients to confusion,
misinterprotation or inaccurate conclusions are not productive. Such indircct deceptions can
promote ill-will and erode openness, especially when (here is an expectation of frankness.

(3) Candor is the forthright offering of unrequested information. It is necessary in
accordance with the geavity of the situation and the nature of the relationships. Candor is
required when a reasonable person would feel betrayed if the information were withheld. In
some circumstances, silence is dishonest, yet in other circumstances, disclosing information
would be wrang and perhaps unlawful

b. Integgity. Being faithful (o one's convictions is part of integaity. Following principles,
acting with honor, judgment and dutics with i
help to maintain integrity and avoid conflicts of interest and hypocisy.

c. Lovalty. There are many synonyms for loyalty: fidelity, faithfulness, allegiance, devotion
and fealty. Loyalty is the bond that holds the nation and the Federal Government together and
the balm against dissension and conflict. It is not blind obedience or unquestioning acceptance
of the status quo. Loyalty requires careful balancing among various interests, values and
institutions in the interest of harmony and cohesion.

d. Accountability. Dol emplayees are required (o accept responsibility for their decisions
and the resulting cansequences. This includes avoiding even the appearance of impropriety
because appearances affect public confidence. Accountability promotes careful, well thought-
out decision-making and fimits thoughtless action.

118
Change 7, 11/17/2011

12



DoD 5500.07-R

¢. Faimess. Open-mindedness and impartiality are important aspects of faimess. DoD
cmployees must be committed to justice in the performance of their ofticial dutics. Decisions
must ot be arbitrary, capricious or biased. Individuals must be treated equally and with
(olerance.

£ Caring. Compassion is an essential clement of good government. Courtesy and kindaess,
both to those we serve and to those we work with, help to ensure that individuals are not treated.
solely as a means to an end. Caring for others is the counterbalance agains the temptation to
pursue the mission at any cost.

g Respect. To treat people with dignity, to honor privacy and to allow selfdetermination
are critical in a government of diverse people. Lack of respect leads o a breakdown of loyalty
and honesty within a government and brings chaos to the international community.

h. Promise Keeping. No government cun function for long if its commitments are not kept.
DoD employees arc obligated to keep their promises in order to promote trust and cooperation.
Because of the importance of promise keeping, it is critical that Do> employees only make
commitments that are within their authority.

i. Responsible Citizenship. 1t s the civic duty of every citizen, and especially Dol
employecs, to exercise discretion. Public servants are expected to engage personal judgment in
the performince of official duties within the limits of their authority so that the will of the peaple
is respected in accordance with democratic principles. Justice must be pursued and injustice
must be challenged through accopted means.

j. Pursuit of Excellence. In public service, competence is only the starting poiat. DoD
employees are expected to sct an cxample of superior diligence and commitment. They are
expected to be all they can be and to strive beyond mediocrity.

SECTION 65. BTHICAL DECISION-MAKING

12666500, General. Virtually everyone in Federal Government service makes job related
decisions. Some of these decisions may seem more important than others, but all should be
preceded by a consideration of ethical Tamifications. Tn some cases, the ethical element of
decision-making will gono further than to consciously acknowledge that there are no significant
cthical ramifications to consider. 1 other cascs, in-depth cthical analysis is called for in addition
to application of ethics rules. The following plan for decision-making ensures careful review of
ethical consequences when there are alternative solutions that scem proper under existing laws
and regulations. DoD employees should consider incorporating the following plan in official
decision-making.

119
Change 7, 11/17/2011

DoD 5500.07-R
12-604501. lithical Decision-Making Plan

4. Deline the Problem. Proceed from a general staiement of the prablem to specific
statements of the decisions to be made. As you take the following steps, such as identifying
gouls and naming stakeholders, new problems or needed decisions may become apparent. Be
willing to add these to your problem list as you go.

b. Identiy the Goal(s). Proceed from a general statement of an end result both long term
and short term. Be prepared to add to this list as you take the following steps. Goals are
something o strive (oward. They are statements of the best possible results. The very best is not
always achicved for everyone. Many problems do not allow for “win/win” outcomes. Be
prepared to fall somewhat short of some goals for the sake of ethics and other considerations.

c. List Applicable Laws or Repulations. Laws and regulations arc basic constraints within
which official decisions are made. Until all relevant laws and regulations are considered, cthical
decision-making is impossible. Although it is concefvable that an ethical decision could violate
alaw or regulation, such circumstances are rare.

d. List the Fthical Values at Stake. Listing the ethical values at stake can awaken you to
problems and goals that you may not have otherwise considered. It may alert you to
stakeholders you may not have recognized. Listing the values reminds you of your commitment
to them at a time when the stress of the problem may cause you to forgat.

Nume All the Stakeholders. A stakeholder is anyone who i ikely (o be affecied by &
decision. Many stakeholders will be apparent because of the previous steps you already
followed. More will accur ta you as you give the matter a few minutes of thought. Do not forget
to include yourself and the peaple who may depend on you far support, both at work and at
home. As you list the stakeholders. try to note the way your decision could affect them. In other
words, name what is at stake for the stakeholder.

f. Gather Additional Information. This step is frequenily overlooked. The siress from the
problem urges speedy solutions. However, hasty decisions usually create problemss of their own.
“Take the time to gather all necessary information. Ask questions, demand proof when
appropriate, check your assumptions.

2. State All Feasible Solutions. By this time, some feasible solutions will have presented
themselves. Others may be found by sharing the lists and information you have pulled together
and "brain storming.” As you state the feasible solutions, note which stakeholders could be
affected and what might be gained or lost.

. Eliminate Unethical Options. There may be solutions that seem 1o resolve the problem
and reach the goal but which are clearly unethical. Remember that short term solutions are not
worth sacrificing our commitment fo ethics. The long term problems of unethical solutions will
not be warth the short term advantages. Lliminate the unethical solutions.

120
Change 7, 11/17/2011

13



DoD 5500.07-R

. Runk Remaining Solutions. Other solutions may not be clearly unethical but may be
questionable. You may have to rely on intuition or "gut feclings” to weed out these solutions.
Put these possible solutions at the bottom of your list. Rank the remaining solutions, which are
all ethical ones, in arder of how close they bring you to your goal and solve the problem

j. Commit To and Implement the Best Ethical Solution. Commitment and implementation
are vital to the ethical decision-making process. Determining which solution is the best ethical
one s a meaningless exercise unless i of the ethical solution follows. If the right
decision is not implemented, the door is left wide open for others to implement unethical
solutions.

SECTION 76, REFLRINCES
12-706600. References

Executive Order 12674, "Principles of Ethical Conduct for Government Officers
and Employees," April 12, 1988, as amended.

Executive Order 12834 /3940, "Ethics Commitments by Executive Branch
AppoisesPersonnel,” January 20 21, 4993 2009

“Fitho 5_Unitod Statos Cod & 01

@

b,

121
Change 7, 11/17/2011

Summary of Best Practices

Jurisdiction

Single Ethics Code

Other Discipline

Phoenix

Applies
H EM: City Manager |EM: Y
BD: City Manager |BD: Y
EL: Noneexcept |EL: None (recall)
by CA/CA/AG

EM: Y
BD: Y
EL: None

Mesa

EM: City Manager |EM:
BD: Council BD:
EL: Peer EL:

EM:
BD:
EL:

Arizona Legislature

EM: AG/GOV EM:
BD: AG BD:
EL: AG/Peer EL:
*conflicts % stat.
apply to all

EM:
BD:
EL:

Federal (US House
DOD)

EM: Y EM: Exec. EM:
BD: Y BD: BD:
EL: Y EL: Peer EL:

EM:
BD:

EM = Employee
BD = Boards and Commissions
EL = Elected Officials.

14



| Conclusions

A. Generally, the same ethical code applies to
employees, boards and commissions, and elected
officials.

B. Generally, enforcement is by peer review with
direction to staff to assist and advise body as
necessary.

C. A charter amendment is required if Task Force
wishes to recommend removal of elected official
from office as a possible remedy for an ethical
violation. Other remedies may be adopted by
Council through an ordinance.

N

Questions?

15



ETHICS - BEST
PRACTICES FOR
EMPLOYEES

Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force

October 29, 2012

Ethical Violations

Conflicts of interest

State of New York IT official used
position to gain employment for
himself and girlfriend

Fiesta Bowl employees encouraged
to contribute to particular politicians




Ethical Violations

Transparency in government

Bell, California officials setting CWJustice — mem—

salary inappropriately & without

8 current and former officials from Bell,
tra nsparency California, arrested

Entertainment  Tech Health Living Travel Opinion iReport Money:

Inappropriate behavior

Baltimore transportation employees gambling and
drinking on the job

RONEWS WOBLEALERTS BLOGS PHOTOS SUN

Supervisor of city workers accused
of gambling is suspended
ba

I background checks not

Recent Headlines

City of Phoenix

Inappropriate Behavior / Misconduct

Inappropriate comments or behavior in the work place

Misuse of City position

Diverting City funds to contractor for personal gain




Disciplina ry Actions (last 3 fiscal years)

Approximately 120 incidents per year

Most common = Wasting City resources/time

[
271 524_4

*  Wasting City * Violating Anti- * Conlflict of Interest,
Resources Harassment Gift/Favor, Favoritism

* Using _ Policies  Stealing or Unauthorized
Inappropriate * Falsifying Records possession
Language

Best Practices — Ethics Resource Center

Vision and Values Statement
Code of Ethics

Ethics Officer

Ethics Committee
Communication and training
Ethics Help line
Measurements and rewards
Monitoring and tracking
Periodic evaluation

Ethical Leadership




What are others doinc

U.S. Office of * Ethics Standards Federal Department of
Government * 14 General Principles Executive Branch Justice
Ethics * Online resources employees

* Annual training

* Giftpolicy - $20+
City of Mesa *  Ethics policy Employees, Auditor’s Office

* Ethics hotline and web-based officials,

reporting volunteers and
e Ethics handbook for elected temp workers
officials; guidelines for ee’s

City of San * Ethics code Employeesand  Ethics Review
Antonio *  Website City officials Board (advisory

* Complaintform opinions)

* Giftpolicy - $50+ City Attorney

(advisory opinions)

City of Dallas + Ethics code Employeesand  Ethics Advisory

*  Website City officials Commission

e Waste/Fraud Hotline (ethics code)

* Giftpolicy - $50+ Auditor’s Office

(waste and fraud)

Other Considerations

Resource Website

FAQs, easy access, training online
Selection processes

Interview questions, testing
Periodic training

Communication, expectations, challenges

Gift Policy

Nominal value




Example Web Sites

U.S. Office of Government Ethics

http://www.oge.gov/

City of San Antonio

http://www.sanantonio.gov/atty/ethics/AdvisoryOp
Req.asp

City of Dallas

http://www.ci.dallas.tx.us/cso/ethics.html




EMPLOVYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND HEARING
OFFICERS SUBCOMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATIONS

Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force
November 26, 2012

- s Subcommittee Charge

* |dentify gaps between the application of ethical
standards and best practices as it applies to
employees, volunteers and hearing officers.

» Work with staff to identify improvements to City
policies, training and education, and other
resources or practices.

» Focus on receipt of gifts, familial conflicts,
financial conflicts, and professional conflicts.




Members and Timeline

» Subcommittee members include:
Judge Elizabeth Finn, Chairperson
Tim Burke, Member

Bill Hardin, Member

Judge Cecil Patterson, Member

» Public meetings held on the following dates:

 November 8
 November 15
 November 19

Recommendations

Training, Communication, and Other Resources

1. Update the City’s HR website to include
ethics-related resources

« FAQs

* Ethical dilemmas

 Ethics-related policies and procedures
» Contact information




Recommendations

Training, Communication, and Other Resources

2. Add mandatory and periodic ethics training
* “Top 10” ethical dilemmas

» Updates on ethics related to new
information/technology

* Include both Court and non-Court
employees in the same class

» Classroom and on-line training

Recommendations

Training, Communication, and Other Resources

3. Update the City’s HR website to include
information regarding the Civil Service Board
and progressive discipline

« FAQs
« Information regarding progressive discipline
« Explanation of discipline




Recommendations

Training, Communication, and Other Resources

4. Add information to Planning and Development
website regarding ethics standards for Zoning
Hearing Officers

 Information on standards for attorneys who
serve as hearing officers

» Formal zoning interpretations to be added to
PDD'’s public website

Recommendations

Policy Changes
5. Revise City’s Ethics Handbook and gift policy

» Updated information regarding new or
revised policies

» Supervisory approval on receipt of gifts —
use judgment on conflict or appearance of
conflict

» Token gifts of minimal value allowed




Recommendations

Policy Changes

6. Changes to draft social media policy

» Not representing the City on personal social media
sites

+ Not posting confidential or personally-identifiable
information

» Not accessing personal social media sites on City
time or using City resources

« Subject to HR or EO investigations when posting
items related to co-workers and supervisors

Recommendations

Policy Changes

6. Changes to draft social media policy continued

» Accountability for postings that violate the City’s
anti-harassment standards or Civil Treatment
policy even if to a personal site or on own time

» Policy violations - the employee must allow the
supervisor access to their social media site

» Allowed to search for information about a
prospective employee on a public domain and
consider in the selection process (Supervisor’s
Toolkit)




Recommendations

Policy Changes

7. Add ethics-related questions to interview
selection process or use assessment tool

* Information will be included in “Supervisor’s
Toolkit for Selection Interviews and Hiring
Process Guidelines’.

Recommendations

Policy Changes
8. Add ethics requirements for volunteers

* Add ethics statement to volunteer website
and volunteer application

» Ongoing volunteers required to participate in
ethics training

« Staff will monitor compliance with ethics
training requirement




-

'y Summary

 Three public meetings held

+ 8 draft recommendations developed, grouped
into 2 topic areas:

« Training, Communication, and Other Resources
 Policy Changes

« Questions?




Elected Officials and Boards and
Commissions Subcommittee
Recommendations

Rick Romley, Chair
Ethics Review Ad Hoc Task Force

November 26, 2012

\§ Charges of the Subcommittee

The recommendations are aimed at providing clarity on
these questions:

=  What are the ethical standards expected of elected officials and
board/commission members?

= Who would enforce those standards for elected officials and
board/commission members?

= What process should exist for reporting and enforcement?

= What types of penalties, if any, should be incurred for
violations?




§ Summary of Recommendations

= Recommendations are presented in the
following categories
= General Principals
= Gift Policy

= Ethics Committee / Enforcement
Mechanism

» Addressing Future Ethical Issues

| General Principals




& General Principals

= Ethics Policy standards must apply as
equally as possible to all officials, board
members, employees, and volunteers

= Publish new ethics handbook for elected
officials and boards and commissions
members

q Gift Policy for Elected Officials




Gift Policy for Elected Officials

= All gifts over $50.00 shall be disclosed within 48
hours of receiving the gift.

= Gifts should be searchable in an online database

= Disclosures for gifts received by Elected Officials will
remain on file during full term in office and for 2
years after leaving office.

Ethics Committee and
* Enforcement Mechanism




& Ethics Committee

= Purpose

= Oversee the investigation and enforcement
of the City of Phoenix Ethics Policy
applicable to Elected Officials and Boards
and Commissions Members

= Committee should have the ability to
appoint an independent investigator and
hearing officer to carry out its purpose

Ethics Committee

= Membership Composition
= 5 members

« 1 Ethicist / 1 Former Elected Official
Appointed by City Council

« 1 Member Appointed by a Judicial Branch or
Body

Above 3 Members select 2 citizen members (who
are residents of Phoenix)

Staggered Terms | 3 year terms
Vacancies are filled by the existing membership

Service is unpaid, but reimbursement for
reasonable expenses incurred.




& Ethics Committee

= Authorities requiring Charter
Amendments and Council Action:

= City of Phoenix should bear all reasonable
commission costs related to an investigator and
hearing officer

= Allow the removal of an elected official or board
member for an ethics violation**

= Allow the C
amount up

**Requires City

ommission to impose a fine in an
to $10,000 per ethics violation**

Council to call for a special election for voters

to amend the

City Charter

Enforcement Mechanism

Complaint

Received by City Clerk, submitted to Ethics
Committee

No anonymous complaints will be accepted

4

Dismissal

Ethics Committee { —
Committee may grant a request for confidentiality
by the respondent
m Charges without merit shall be dismissed

Charges with merit may be referred to an
investigator

The committee or investigator will prepare a report
with recommendations on the charges based
on clear and convincing evidence

A consent decree or settlement may be reached by
the respondent w/ appropriate penalty

L Hearing Officer

he committee or investigator shall

present its findings and
recommendation before a hearing
officer

The respondent shall file an answer prior
to a settlement conference

If no resolution via a settlement
conference, a contested hearing is
held where the Hearing Officer shall

[essisiq

determined —

The committee can vote to recommend to Council
that the charges be dismissed in whole or

The commission can also set a formal hearing for
the charges to be heard based on clear and

part —

convincing evidence —

prepare a report based on findings
of fact, conclusions of law, and
recommended sanction for any
violation

The Hearing Officer may recommend to
Council to dismiss the complaint in
whole or in part, or find the official
is in violation and recommend the
imposition of a sanction

After completion of the investigation, all records
shall be made public, per public records law

Resolution Sanction may include censure, admonishment, reprimand,
suspension, removal from office, or reimbursement of costs

The Commission or respondent may appeal the Council action
by special action to the superior court




Addressing Future Ethical
* Issues for the City of Phoenix

Addressing Future Ethical
\§ Issues for the City of Phoenix

= Hearing Officers for Planning and
Zoning Members

= City of Phoenix should conduct a review

= Adopt an Ethics Review every 4 years

= This is just the beginning — An ongoing
process must be developed!




"

Questions and Discussion

Thank You




City of Phoenix Ethics Review Task Force

Process Flow Chart
January 14, 2013

Proposed Ethics Investigation and Enforcement for Elected Officials and Board Members

Less than
Councill majority
= Confidential = Public approval by . remand to
majority Commission
No Appeal for further
consideration
Crime
Settlement / Settlement /
referred to
Consent ——» Consent
proper
. Decree Decree
authority
$ 5 £
Request for Investigation Order for .
. 7. Formal Councill
Inquiry g 3/ Formal Complaint| Settlement Hearing / approval Appeal to
Dismissed Commission Commission Hearing with ~ompraing ng _app »  Superior
. ; . Conference Hearing violation and
Unanimous Evaluation or Hearing . . Court
; . Officer sanction
vote Investigator Officer
? ¢ v v
Less than
City Clerk majority
receives Dismissal of Dismissal of remand to
and assigns Request for Complaint Commission
matter Inquiry for further
number consideration
v
Less than
Request for Council majority
Inquiry approval by remand to
> o —p .
majority Commission
No Appeal for further
consideration

1014144




AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT B

CLC

ADVANCING

DEMOCRACY
THROUGH LAW 1411 K ST. NW, SUITE 1400 / WASHINGTON, DC 20005 / 202.736.2200

PRINCIPLES FOR DESIGNING AN
INDEPENDENT ETHICS COMMISSION

Citizen demands for ethics accountability have put new state
ethics commissions on the ballot for 2018

Executive Summary

Poll' after poll? indicates the public's growing distrust of American government
institutions and, to a degree, democracy itself. Americans expect the people who work
for them to be accountable for their actions. A strong independent ethics agency is an
essential part of a government that is representative, responsive, and accountable. This
type of agency, referred to here as an "ethics commission," provides oversight that is
critical to a functional democratic system by overseeing ethics, financial disclosure,
lobbying, and campaign finance laws.

Taking steps at the state and local levels is critical to the success of instilling ethical
standards and principles in government. In New Mexico and South Dakota, voters will
be going to the polls this year to decide whether they should join their 44 sister states,
and countless cities, towns, and counties, in adopting an ethics commission.® Vermont
established a new ethics commission on January 1, 2018;% the City of Pittsburgh recently
revamped its Ethics Hearing Board:®* and Sandoval County in New Mexico is in the
process of approving its first ethics commission.®

A well-designed and well-resourced ethics commission can help build public trust in
government by creating a culture of integrity and holding officials accountable for
violations of the public trust. Ethics, financial disclosure, lobbying, and campaign
finance laws are intended to provide citizens with a level of transparency regarding
who is trying to influence government and to hold officials accountable for real and
perceived conflicts of interest. To fulfil these goals, an ethics commission must be built
on the principles of independence, accountability, and transparency.

Independence and Structure

An ethics commission must be independent of the officials it oversees to make clear
that the commission serves the public interest and not the personal interests of public



officials. A state or local government must make decisions regarding where the
commission fits in government, the structure and composition of the commission, and
the staff that support the commission.

Where Does an Ethics Commission Fit in Government?

Because it can be difficult for an ethics commission to be independent from other
branches of government, an ethics commission should have features that allow it to
operate as independently as possible. An ethics commission benefits from these legal
arrangements by making clear that its activities are less dependent on the officials it
oversees. States and cities across the country approach this question in different ways:

e In Colorado, the Independent Ethics Commission was moved from the
executive branch to the judicial branch to maintain its independence and
autonomy.”

e Missouri's Ethics Commission is established under the executive branch, but
only for limited budgeting and reporting purposes. The executive branch in
Missouri is prohibited from performing other supervisory duties and may not
interfere with the work of the commission.®

e Oakland, CA, and Jacksonville, FL, established their commmissions in their city
charters, ensuring that they can be changed only by the more difficult process
of amending the charter.®

How Should the Commission Be Structured?

An ethics commission should be structured to effectively and fairly enforce the laws it
administers. Unless the commission has built-in mechanisms to prevent partisan
deadlock, the commission should have an odd number of commissioners. Having an
odd number of commissioners ensures that the commission will be able to make
decisions when voting on administrative regulations, enforcement matters, or other
actions. In the case that a commission has an even number of commissioners, often
with a bipartisan split to prevent one political party fromm dominating commission
votes, there should be features that prevent it from paralysis by deadlocked votes. A
commission that has an even number of commissioners should have a strong
chairperson position that has agenda-setting authority or require that only a majority
vote of the commission can overrule the recommendations of the general counsel. A
commission should also avoid having too many commissioners because it dilutes
accountability for individual commissioners and can make reaching consensus
difficult. Typical commissions have between five and nine commissioners.”®



How Should Commissioners Be Selected?

The process for selecting commissioners should ensure that a commissioner is
independent of the person making the appointment. A common procedure is to have
the executive and legislative leadership split nomination and confirmation duties.
Another approach is to require that appointments be made by a nominating
commission or local civic organizations that do not include the government officials
the ethics commission oversees.

e Minneapolis's Ethical Practices Board is appointed by a committee made up of
the Chief Judge of the Hennepin County District Court and the deans of the
University of Minnesota and University of St. Thomas law schools; the
nominations are supplemented by recommmendations from nonpartisan civic
groups and colleges.”

e For Milwaukee's Board of Ethics, seven local organizations, including the local
chamber of cormmerce and the local NAACP chapter, submit nominees for
appointment by the mayor.”?

e In Maryland, the governor appoints three members, one of whom must be from
the principal political party of which the governor is not a member. The
governor also appoints a member nominated by the speaker of the house and
a member nominated by the president of the senate.”

Who Can Serve?

It should be clear to the public that the ethics commission serves the public interest
and not the interests of those groups subject to the commission’s oversight. A
commission can demonstrate this independence by prohibiting a person from serving
as a commissioner if that person is an elected official, a candidate for office, a
contractor with state or local government, an employee of the state or local
government, a lobbyist, or campaign consultant. In a similar vein, some commissions
restrict commissioners from supporting election or ballot measure campaigns or from
running for office for a certain time before or after serving as a commissioner.

e Oakland's ethics commmissioners may not be employed by the city or have any
direct or financial interest in any city activities, seek election to public office or
contribute to municipal campaigns, or support any candidate or measure in an
Oakland election.'

e Vermont's ethics commissioners may not be state employees or hold any
legislative, executive, or judicial office; hold or enter into a lease or contract with
the state; be a lobbyist; be a candidate for state or legislative office; or hold office
in a state or legislative office candidate’'s committee, a political committee, or a



political party.’”®

e Oklahoma's ethics commissioners are not eligible to run for elected office for
two years after the end of the commissioner's term.”®

To further insulate an ethics commission from political meddling and allow
commissioners to work independently of the interests of public officials, jurisdictions
should provide that commissioners may only be removed for cause.” This safeguard
allows commissioners to do their work without fear of reprisal.

e A commissioner on Massachusetts' State Ethics Commission may be removed
only for substantial neglect of duty, inability to discharge the powers and duties
of the office, violations of certain prohibitions on commissioner activities, gross
misconduct, or conviction of a felony.™

e A commissioner on California’s Fair Political Practices Commission may only be
removed for substantial neglect of duty, inability to discharge the powers and
duties of office, or a violation of certain prohibitions on commissioner activities.”

A jurisdiction must also decide how long a commissioner may serve. Commissioners
are typically appointed to serve staggered terms of four or five years. Some
commissions have explicit rules limiting commissioners to one or two terms while
others have no term limits. %°

Dedicated Staff

An ethics commission should have sufficient dedicated, paid staff to administer its
laws. First, a commission should have an executive director and other administrative
support staff to ensure that the commission keeps up with its work and is properly
resourced. Second, a commission should have its own independent experts, including
investigators, auditors, general counsel, and trainers. By relying on these independent
experts, a commission can not only obtain independent advice and analysis of facts
and law in specific cases, but also avoid the appearance that it depends on an elected
official or appointee of an elected official, such as a secretary of state or city attorney.

e The Florida Commission on Ethics is required to hire an executive director and
provide the executive director with office space, assistants, and secretaries.?

e Philadelphia’s city charter requires its Board of Ethics to appoint an executive
director, legal counsel, and other staff, subject to budget constraints.?

An ethics commission should be structured to have the authority necessary to hold



public officials accountable and maintain the public trust. This oversight may also
overlap with a legislature's internal ethics review process, such as an ethics committee
of a state legislature.?® In establishing an ethics commission, jurisdictions should take
into account that aspect of coordinating ethics enforcement between various
interested entities when determining commission oversight responsibilities.

Enforcement

An ethics commission must have the ability to take actions to enforce ethics, lobbying,
campaign finance, and financial disclosure laws to ensure effective oversight. The key
powers for a commission include:

e Receiving and evaluating complaints.

o

The commission should be able to receive complaints from any member of
the public.

While many ethics commissions require a sworn or verified complaint, each
jurisdiction should carefully consider whether this requirement could have a
chilling effect on potential complainants.

California’s Fair Political Practices Commission allows any person to file a
complaint as a sworn complaint, a non-sworn complaint, or an anonymous
complaint.®*

¢ Conducting audits, investigations, and hearings.

o

A commission should be able to subpoena witnesses and documents.
Depending on the state constitution or local charter, to give a commission
this subpoena power, it may be necessary to take additional steps, such as
making this power enforceable by a court.

A commission should be able to initiate investigations on its own and
perform regular audits. Some commissions are required to audit a certain
percentage of political committees or other entities to encourage
compliance with reporting requirements.

The Oregon Government Ethics Commission may initiate investigations
based on complaints from any person or on its own motion.®

e Issuing orders compelling compliance and imposing civil fines and penalties for
violations, with appropriate recourse to challenge those penalties.

e Referring appropriate cases for criminal prosecution.



Disclosure

A commission should publicly disclose its enforcement actions, regardless of whether
the commission issues a sanction or finds no violation, to foster transparency in
government and to enhance the commission's credibility with the public.

e Florida's Commission on Ethics is required to publish its findings for each
investigation.?®

e Atlanta's Board of Ethics is required to make its findings and decision public as
soon as is practical after the commmission reaches its decision.?”

Because transparency is a touchstone of effective ethics oversight, an ethics
commission should provide the public and the people it oversees with information
regarding the laws it administers and how to comply with those laws. Providing
training, advice, and recommendations for legislative changes furthers an ethics
commission’s mission of creating a culture of integrity by educating the public and
demonstrating how the commission functions.

Training

An ethics commission should be required to provide trainings for government officials
and employees. Training provides an opportunity for people in government and people
working with the government to become familiar with local laws and understand what
is required, permitted, or prohibited. Without a useful training program, officials and
others doing business with the government may not be able to adequately recognize
or resolve possible ethics problems.?®¢ Depending on the availability of resources, there
may be various ways for an agency to provide this outreach: in-person presentations,
online trainings, written materials, or even on-call staff to answer questions over the
phone or through a website.

e The Connecticut Citizen's Ethics Board and Office of State Ethics provides
training for all state employees annually.?®

e The Memphis Board of Ethics is required to supervise the training of all city
officers and employees regarding their ethics obligations.*®

Advice

A commission should be empowered to serve as an advisory body, providing guidance
to individuals subject to ethics, campaign finance, financial disclosure, and lobbying
laws. This service educates people who are subject to the commission’s oversight,



helping them avoid violations and penalties. Advisory opinions should have legal
significance: a public official who relies on an opinion when taking an action should be
able to assert that reliance as a defense against liability for a violation of the law.

e The Arkansas Ethics Commission is specifically empowered to provide advisory
opinions and guidelines for the laws it oversees and enforces.®

e Inlowa, Boise, ID, and the ethics commission legislation under consideration in
Sandoval County, NM, a person who relies on an advisory opinion can use that
reliance as a safe harbor against liability for a violation of the law.*

Further, advisory opinions should be published in order to demonstrate the role the
commission plays in overseeing public officials and provide education on these laws for
the wider public. Providing advisory opinions can help an ethics commission achieve
one of the most important ethics goals: encouraging public officials to think ahead
about and ensure professional handling of ethical conflicts.®

Legislative Recommendations

As an expert in often complex regulatory landscapes, an ethics commission should
regularly provide recommmendations for changes to ethics, lobbying, campaign finance,
and financial disclosure laws. In addition to the power to create rules for administering
these laws, a commission is often best positioned to evaluate how well a law is working
and the ways in which a law may be overbroad, underinclusive, or otherwise deficient
for effective oversight. These recormmendations can educate lawmakers and the public
about the state of oversight and accountability laws that apply in their jurisdiction.

e The Board of Ethics in Sioux Falls, SD, is tasked with recommmending legislative
action to effectuate the ethics policies it oversees.®*

e Connecticut's Citizen's Ethics Board and the Kansas Government Ethics
Commission are required to annually provide recommendations for legislative
action to their legislatures®®

Creating a culture of integrity is an intangible best practice at the heart of an ethics
regime. Because this culture cannot easily be written into rules or policy, it is the best
practice that is most challenging to achieve.>*® A commitment to ethical government,
without any real or perceived bias, is necessary in selecting commissioners, hiring staff,
and executing the commission's duties. It is also important to foster this commitment
in the people the commission oversees. While difficult to achieve, the results would be
obvious: more public officials seeking advice to understand their ethical obligations



and to prevent any ethics violations, more public support for an ethics commission,
and an electorate that holds their elected officials at the ballot box for ethical failures.

ABOUT THE CAMPAIGN LEGAL CENTER

Campaign Legal Center (CLC) is a nonpartisan, nonprofit organization based in
Washington, D.C. Through litigation, policy analysis and public education, CLC works to
protect and strengthen the U.S. democratic process across all levels of government.
CLC is adamantly nonpartisan, holding candidates and government officials
accountable regardless of political affiliation.

CLC was founded in 2002 and is a recipient of the prestigious MacArthur Award for
Creative and Effective Institutions. Our work today is more critical than ever as we fight
the current threats to our democracy in the areas of campaign finance, voting rights,
redistricting, and ethics.

Most recently, CLC argued Gill v. Whitford, the groundbreaking Supreme Court case
seeking to end extreme partisan gerrymandering. In addition, CLC plays a leading
watchdog role on ethics issues, providing expert analysis and helping journalists
uncover ethical violations. CLC participates in legal proceedings across the country to
defend the right to vote.

T Public Trust in Government 1958-2017, PEW RESEARCH CENTER (Dec. 14, 2017), http://www.people-press.org/2017/12/14/public-trust-in-

government-1958-2017/.

Jeffrey Jones et al, How Americans Perceive Government in 2017, GALLUP (Nov. 1, 2017), http:/news.gallup.com/opinion/polling-

matters/221171/americans-perceive-government-2017.aspx.

* National Conference of State Legislatures, State Ethics Commissions: Jurisdiction, http://www.ncsl.org/research/ethics/50-state-chart-state-

ethics-commissions-jurisdic.aspx (last visited May 10, 2018).

Vermont creates first-ever ethics commission in wake of Center stories, THE CENTER FOR PUBLIC INTEGRITY (JUNE 14, 2017)

https://www.publicintegrity.org/2017/06/14/20922/vermont-creates-first-ever-ethics-commission-wake-center-stories.

5 Adam Smeltz, City ethics board opens an office, PITTSBURGH POST-GAZETTE (Nov. 1, 2016), http://www.post-gazette.com/local/city/2016/11/21/City-
ethics-board-opens-an-office/stories/201611210037.

& Stephen Montoya, County ethics law moves forward, rrobserver.com, Apr. 6, 2018, http://www.rrobserver.com/news/article_7230781a-39d9-
11e8-841b-fbe58b4b4001.html.

7 Colorado Independent Ethics Commmission, National Conference of State Legislatures,
http//www.ncsl.org/portals/l/documents/ethics/colorado.pdf.

8  Mo. Rev. Stat. § 105.955.

° Oakland, Cal,, Charter, art. VI, § 603; Jacksonville, Fla,, Charter, art. |, § 202.

©° Megan Comlossy, Ethics Commissions: Representing the Public Interest, THE LEGISLATIVE LAWYER (2011),
http//www.ncsl.org/documents/Isss/Ethics Commissions.pdf.

" Minneapolis, Minn. Code §15.210(a).

2 Milwaukee, Wis. Code § 303-15.

¥ Md. Code, Gen. Provisions § 5-202(a).

4 Oakland, Cal. Code § 2.24.050.

5Vt Stat. Ann. tit. 3, § 1221(3).

6 Okla. Const. art. XXIX, §1.

7Vt Stat. Ann. tit. 3, § 1221(4).

8 Mass. Gen. Laws ch. 268B, §2(g).

' Cal. Gov. Code § 83105.

20 Megan Comlossy, Ethics Commissions: Representing the Public Interest, THE LEGISLATIVE LAWYER (2011),
http//www.ncsl.org/documents/Isss/Ethics_Commissions.pdf (last visited May 9, 2018).

2 Fla. Stat. § 112.321(4).

2 Philadelphia, PA, Home Rule Charter, § 3-806(g).



http://www.people-press.org/2017/12/14/public-trust-in-government-1958-2017/
http://www.people-press.org/2017/12/14/public-trust-in-government-1958-2017/
http://news.gallup.com/opinion/polling-matters/221171/americans-perceive-government-2017.aspx
http://news.gallup.com/opinion/polling-matters/221171/americans-perceive-government-2017.aspx
http://www.ncsl.org/research/ethics/50-state-chart-state-ethics-commissions-jurisdic.aspx
http://www.ncsl.org/research/ethics/50-state-chart-state-ethics-commissions-jurisdic.aspx
https://www.publicintegrity.org/2017/06/14/20922/vermont-creates-first-ever-ethics-commission-wake-center-stories
http://www.post-gazette.com/local/city/2016/11/21/City-ethics-board-opens-an-office/stories/201611210037
http://www.post-gazette.com/local/city/2016/11/21/City-ethics-board-opens-an-office/stories/201611210037
http://www.rrobserver.com/news/article_7230781a-39d9-11e8-841b-fbe58b4b4001.html
http://www.rrobserver.com/news/article_7230781a-39d9-11e8-841b-fbe58b4b4001.html
http://www.ncsl.org/portals/1/documents/ethics/colorado.pdf
http://www.ncsl.org/documents/lsss/Ethics_Commissions.pdf
http://www.ncsl.org/documents/lsss/Ethics_Commissions.pdf

National Conference of State Legislatures, Committees and Commissions: What's the Difference?,
http//www.ncsl.org/research/ethics/committees-amp-commissions-whats-the-differenc.aspx.

California Fair Political Practices Commission, Electronic Complaint System, http//www.fppc.ca.gov/enforcement/electronic-complaint-
system.html.

Or. Rev. Stat. § 244.260(1)(b).

Fla. Stat. § 112.322(2) (b).

Atlanta, Ga. Charter, art. VII § 2-806(5)c.

ROBERT WECHSLER, LOCAL GOVERNMENT ETHICS PROGRAMS: A RESOURCE FOR ETHICS COMMISSION MEMBERS, LOCAL OFFICIALS, ATTORNEYS,
JOURNALISTS, AND STUDENTS, AND A MANUAL FOR ETHICS REFORM 459 (2d ed. 2013).

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-1-81(5).

Memphis, Tenn. Code § 2-10-10(B)5.

Ark. Code § 7-6-217(9)(2).

lowa Code § 68B.32A(12.); Boise, Idaho Code § 2-24-02; Sandoval Cnty, N.M. Draft Ordinance § 8 (j) (2), available at:
http://www.sandovalcountynm.gov/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Final-Draft-Sandoval-County-Ethics-Ordinance-v.10.4.17.pdf.
WECHSLER, LOCAL GOVERNMENT ETHICS PROGRAMS 402.

Sioux Falls, S.D., Code § 35.010(i).

Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-1-81 (6); Kan. Stat. Ann. § 25-4119a(f)

Fighting “Small Town” Corruption, CENTER FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF PUBLIC INTEGRITY (2016),
http//www.law.columbia.edu/sites/default/files/microsites/public-integrity/files/fighting_small_town_corruption_-_capi_practitioner_toolkit_-
_october 2016 _1.pdf.

CAMPAIGNLEGALCENTER.ORG



http://www.ncsl.org/research/ethics/committees-amp-commissions-whats-the-differenc.aspx
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/enforcement/electronic-complaint-system.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/enforcement/electronic-complaint-system.html
http://www.sandovalcountynm.gov/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Final-Draft-Sandoval-County-Ethics-Ordinance-v.10.4.17.pdf
http://www.law.columbia.edu/sites/default/files/microsites/public-integrity/files/fighting_small_town_corruption_-_capi_practitioner_toolkit_-_october_2016_1.pdf
http://www.law.columbia.edu/sites/default/files/microsites/public-integrity/files/fighting_small_town_corruption_-_capi_practitioner_toolkit_-_october_2016_1.pdf

	2026-02-19_EC_PublicMeetingNotice-Agenda_Rev
	Agenda Item 3 - DRAFT - 2025-12-18_EC_MeetingMinutes_Rev
	2026-02-19_EC_PublicMeetingNotice-AgendaPacket
	2026-02-19_EC_PublicMeetingNotice-Agenda
	Agenda Item 3 - DRAFT - 2026-01-15_EC_MeetingMinutes_
	Agenda Item 5 - Attachment A- Ethics Task Force Final Report
	Ethics Task Force Final Report - 1-29-13
	Tab 1- Ethics Task Force Members
	Tab 2 - Agendas
	Tab 3 - Results
	Tab 4 - Meeting Minutes
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Tab 5 - Applicable Laws-Regs
	AR 2.33 - Solicitation by or of City Employees.pdf
	Summary of Changes
	1.   Purpose
	2.   Community Service Fund Drive 
	3.   Non Profit Fund Raisers 
	4.   For-Profit Solicitation
	5.   Enforcement

	AR 2.35b - Protected Category Harassment.pdf
	I. STATEMENT OF COMMITMENT
	VII. REPORTING HARASSMENT
	1. When to make a report. Any employee who believes s/he has been harassed on the job because of gender, race, color, sexual orientation, religion, age, disability, national origin, or any other protected basis must report it immediately. Any employee or supervisor who knows or believes that harassment is occurring, or has occurred, also must file a report immediately.
	2. Where to make a report. Any employee who believes s/he has been subjected to protected category harassment should report the harassment to the immediate supervisor, department management, department Personnel Officer/Equal Opportunity Liaison, or to the Equal Opportunity Department’s Compliance and Enforcement Division at (602) 262-7486 (voice) or (602) 534-1557 (TTY). Complaints must be filed within 180 days of the alleged act(s) of harassment.

	VIII. INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS
	IX. RESOLUTION OF COMPLAINTS
	X. NON-HARASSMENT INCIDENTS


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Tab 6 - Research-Best Practices
	Tab 7 - OML
	Tab 8 - Legal Framework
	Tab 9 - Current City Policies
	Tab 10 - Current City Ethics
	Tab 11 - Gov Ethics - Ethics Based Leadership
	Tab 12 - Best Practices -Elected
	Tab 13 - Best Practices Employees
	Tab 14 - Recomm - Employee
	Tab 15 - Recomm - Elected
	Tab 16 - Ethics Process Flowchart

	Agenda Item 5 - Attachment B - Principles for Designing an Independent Ethics Commission




